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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 20-F

0 REGISTRATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OR 12(g) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

OR

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

OR

O SHELL COMPANY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Date of event requiring this shell company report

Commission file number 0-31106

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Chaer)

Bermuda
(Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization)

No. 1, R&D Road 1, Hsinchu Science Park
Hsinchu, Taiwan
Republic of China

(Address of Principal Executive Offices)

Shou-Kang Chen
Chief Financial Officer
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.
No. 1, R&D Road 1, Hsinchu Science Park
Hsinchu, Taiwan
Republic of China
Telephone: (886) 3 563 3988
Facsimile: (886) 3 563 3998

(Name, Telephone, E-mail and/or Facsimile Number ahAddress of Company Contract Person)

Securities registered or to be registered pursuarnb Section 12(b) of the Act:

Name of Each Exchangt
Title of Each Class on Which Registered




Common Shares, par value US$0.04 € The NASDAQ Capital Marke

Securities registered or to be registered pursuarnb Section 12(g) of the Act:
None
(Title of Class)
Securities for which there is a reporting obligatio pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Act:
None
(Title of Class)

Indicate the number of outstanding shares of etfedssuer’s classes of capital or common stactfahe close of the period covered
by the annual report.

As of December 31, 2012, 28,891,441 Common Shpeesjalue US$0.04 each, were outstanding (not dve4,474,211 Common
Shares held by our subsidiary).

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edBéturities Act.  Yed No
X1

If this report is an annual or transition repamtjicate by check mark if the registrant is not regglito file reports pursuant to Section 13
or (15)(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 193¥.es [ No

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@s filed all reports required to be filed by Sexti3 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementste past 90 days. Ye&l No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lhsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥eb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted @auntsio Rule 405 of Regulation5¢8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@grbnths
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). YEb No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filerRnle 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large Accelerated Filer] Accelerated Filer[X] Non-Accelerated Filer]
Indicate by check mark which basis of accountirgrégistrant has used to prepare the financiarsitts included in this filing.
US GAAP O
International Financial Reporting Standards aseidday the International Accounting Standards Boadd  Other

If “Other” has been checked in response to theipusvquestion, indicate by check mark which finahstatement item the registrant has
elected to follow. ltem 17.00 Item 18.

If this is an annual report, indicate by check mahether the registrant is a shell company (asddfin Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act). Yes O No
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR PURPOSES OF THE “SAFE HARB OR” PROVISIONS OF
THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 199 5

Except for historical matters, the matters discds$sehis Annual Report on Form 20-F are forwardkimg statements that are subject to
significant risks and uncertainties. These statesare generally indicated by the use of forwaxkiog terminology such as the words

” o SI T "o "

“anticipate”, “believe”, “estimate”, “expect”, “imnd”, “may”, “plan”, “project”, “will” or other sinmlar words that express an indication of
actions or results of actions that may or are ebgubto occur in the future. These statements appeanumber of places throughout this
Annual Report on Form 20-F and include statemesganding our intentions, beliefs or current expiata concerning, among other things,
our results of operations, financial conditionylidjty, prospects, growth, strategies and the itvtessin which we operate.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involisks and uncertainties because they relate totsand depend on circumstances tha
may or may not occur in the future. Forward-lookatgtements are not guarantees of future perforenand our actual results of operations,
financial condition and liquidity, and the develogmh of the industries in which we operate may diffaterially from those made in or
suggested by the forward-looking statements coathin this Annual Report on Form 20-F. Importartdas that could cause those difference
include, but are not limited to:

. our ability to successfully overcome the currerdremmic conditions and the financial market cri

. the volatility of the semiconductor industry aneé tinarket for er-user applications for semiconductor produ
. overcapacity in the semiconductor testing and assemarkets

. the increased competition from other companiescamability to retain and increase our market sf
. our ability to successfully develop new technolsgiad remain a technological leac

. our ability to maintain control over capacity expam and facility modifications

. our ability to generate growth or profitable gron

. our ability to hire and retain qualified personr

. our ability to acquire required equipment and siggaio meet customer dema

. our ability to raise debt or equity financing aguiged to meet certain existing obligatio

. the pending criminal indictment of our chairman ahdef executive officer

. our reliance on the business and financial comitifbcertain major customet

. the success of any of our future acquisitions, stwents or joint venture

. the outcome of any pending litigatic

. the outbreak of contagious disease and occurrdrearthquakes, typhoons and other natural disastensell as industrial
accidents

. the political stability of the regions to which wenduct operations; ar

. general local and global economic and financialdétons.

Forward-looking statements include, but are noitéchto, statements regarding our strategy andadytlans, future business condition
and financial results, our capital expenditure pjaur capacity expansion plans, our expansiorsptaMainland China, technological
upgrades, investment in research and developmentefmarket demand, future regulatory or otheetigyments in our industry. Please see

“Iltem 3. Key Information—Risk Factors” for a furthdiscussion of certain factors that may causeahctsults to differ materially from those
indicated by our forward-looking statements.

PART |

Item 1. Identity of Directors, Senior Management and Advises
Not applicable.

Item 2. Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable
Not applicable.
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Item 3. Key Information
Selected Financial Data

The following tables set forth our selected cortfed financial data. The selected consolidateaioal sheet data as of December 31,
2011 and 2012 and our consolidated statement satipes and cash flows data for 2010, 2011 and 20é&2lerived from our audited
consolidated financial statements included heigid, should be read in conjunction with, and ardifigin their entirety by reference to,
these audited consolidated financial statementselated notes beginning on page F-1 of this AnRegort on Form 20-F. These audited
consolidated financial statements have been aulditddoore Stephens. The selected consolidated talsimeet data as of December 31, 2008
2009 and 2010 and the consolidated statement ohtipes and cash flows data for the years ende@mber 31, 2008 and 2009 are derived
from our audited consolidated financial statemawtsincluded herein. Our consolidated financialesteents have been prepared and presente
in accordance with ROC GAAP, which differs in somaterial respects from US GAAP. Please see Note 84drr audited consolidated
financial statements for a description of the gpatdifferences between ROC GAAP and US GAAP Iier periods covered by these financial
statements.

Year ended December 31
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ uss$
(in millions, except per share data

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data

ROC GAAP:
Net revenue
Related partie®) $3122¢ $ 668¢ $2033:. $ 379 $ — $ —
Others 13,887.: 11,481 15,176.« 17,831.¢ 19,220.! 661.¢
Total net revenu 17,010.: 12,150.: 17,209. 18,210.¢ 19,220.! 661.¢
Cost of revenur 16,969.! 15,661.! 16,564.( 16,549.. 16,638.! 572.¢
Gross profit (loss 40.2 (3,511.) 645.7 1,661. 2,582.( 88.¢
Operating expense
Research and developme¢ 435.¢ 375.2 412.5 409.¢ 492.¢ 17.C
General and administratiy 885.€ 657.¢ 677.¢ 651.¢ 625.€ 21t
Sales and marketir 2,362, 561.2 64.£ 66.5 78.4 2.7
Total operating expens 3,683.¢ 1,594. 1,154. 1,128.: 1,196.¢ 41.2
Income (Loss) from operatiol (3,643.9) (5,105.9) (509.0 533.f 1,385.: 47.€
Other income (expenses), | (3,286.9) 116.7 2,320.¢ (455.9) (464.4) (16.0)
Income (Loss) before income tax, noncontrollingiasts and interest in bonuses paid by subsid(?) (6,930.9) (4,988.9) 1,811.¢ 771 920.¢ 31.€
Income tax benefit (expens (120.9) 420.7 99.2 (45.5) (131.5) (4.5
Income (Loss) before noncontrolling interests antdrest in bonuses paid by subsidia(® (7,051.9) (4,568.7) 1,910.¢ 32.2 789.% 27.1
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrollingenests 143.: 149.¢ (266.7) (47.9 (67.5) (2.9
Interest in bonuses paid by subsidia(®) (362.9) — — — — —
Net income (loss) attributable to ChipM( $(7,270.) $(4,418.°) $1644° $ (152 $ 7218 $ 24.¢
Earnings (Loss) per sha®):
Basic $(346.6) $(2233H) $ 6861 $ (057) $ 2627 $ 0.9C
Diluted $(346.6) $(2301H) $ 673t $ (057 $ 2550 $0.8¢
Weightec-average number of shares outstan{®):
Basic 21.C 19.¢ 24.C 26.€ 27.t 27.t
Diluted 21.C 22.¢ 26.¢ 26.€ 28.c 28.c
US GAAP: (3)
Net income (loss) attributable to ChipM( $(7,177.) $(4,550.) ¢$1616¢ $ 461 $ 750.6 $ 25.¢
Earnings (Loss) per shal®:
Basic $ (34229 $(23000 $ 6748 $ 17¢ $ 2732 $0.9¢
Diluted $ (34229 $(23660)0 $ 6635 $ 171 $ 265 $0.91]
Weightec-average number of shares outstand®) :
Basic 21.C 19.¢ 24.C 26.€ 27.t 27.t
Diluted 21.C 20.¢ 26.¢ 26.¢ 28.< 28.<

(1) Related parties include Mosel Vitelic Inc.,Mosel, Siliconware Precision Industries Co. Lta.Sdiconware Precision, ProMOS Technologies locProMOS and DenMOS
Technology Inc., or DenMOS. Commencing April 1, 20Mosel and its direct and indirect subsidiariesre longer related parties of the Company agcilely, they hold less than
10% interest in ChipMOS Bermuda and are no longasiclered as having significant influence on thenBany. Commencing April 1, 2011, Siliconware Priecideld less than 10%
interest in ChipMOS Bermuda and was no longer ansjareholder of the Company. See Note 18 of dhesrto the consolidated financial statements dawadan this Annual Report
on Form 2--F.

(2) Refers to bonuses to directors, supervisors andogegs paid by subsidiarie

(3) Reflects the US GAAP adjustments as described te R4 of the notes to the consolidated financeteshents contained in this Annual Report on For-F.

(4) The outstanding shares and per share informatftecté¢he reverse stock split of the Comp’s common stocks with a ratio c-for-every-4 shares effective on January 21, 2(

2
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As of December 31

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(in millions)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Date
ROC GAAP:
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 6,651.¢ $3,884.¢ $ 7,143 $ 7,357.¢ $ 9,319.C $320.¢
Restricted cash and cash equivalt 59.k 243.¢ 546.¢ 285.1 174.% 6.C
Financial assets at fair value through profit aveb 102.1 119.( 3.0 — — —
Held-to-maturity financial asse 250.( — — — — —
Investment with no active mark 100.( 100.( — — — —
Notes receivabl
—related partie® 195.( — — — — —
—third parties 14.2 27.¢ 14.C 5.7 5.C 0.2
Accounts receivabl
—related partie® 0.4 0.2 258.( — — —
—third parties 1,296.! 2,441.¢ 2,816.( 3,666.t 3,992.; 137.¢
Other receivable
—related partie® 30.C — 66.4 — — —
—third parties 172.% 130.] 182.( 73.2 149.¢ 5.2
Inventories 1,001 862.1 1,279.¢ 1,533.¢ 1,687.¢ 58.1
Deferred income tax, n 355.¢ 356.4 278. 76.€ 77.¢ 2.7
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 265.2 265.1 202.2 92.c 131.¢ 4.5
Total current asse 10,494.. 8,431.. 12,790.: 13,091.: 15,538.: 534.¢
Long-term investment 437.¢ 220.( 10.5 39.1 11.€ 0.4
Property, plant and equipm—net 23,654. 20,769. 17,273.( 13,896.: 12,108.( 416.¢
Intangible asse—net 107.¢ 102.¢ 94.2 100.t 178.¢ 6.2
Other asset 746.¢ 833.2 1,147.( 1,154 912.¢ 31.4
Total asset 35,441. 30,356.. 31,315.( 28,281.: 28,749.« 989.7
Current liabilities:
Shor-term bank loan 2,745. 2,363.1 1,494.° 546.¢ 366.t 12.€
Current portion of lon-term loans 4,603." 1,553.¢ 4,925." 684.( 2,227.¢ 76.7
Convertible note 1,541.¢ — 65.¢ — — —
Accounts payabl 477.¢ 738.( 690.1 1,130.¢ 890.1 30.€
Payables to contractors and equipment supg 251.¢ 201.c 790.¢ 415.¢ 484.¢ 16.7
Other payable 628.( 696.] 896. 1,081.t 1,008.- 34.7
Current portion of capital leases paya — 821.C 822.( — — —
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 469.< 525.7 990.¢ 830.¢ 767.C 26.4
Total current liabilities 10,721.1 6,921.! 10,697.! 4,712.. 5,775.¢ 198.¢
Long-term liabilities 9,934.¢ 13,475.. 6,566. 8,579.¢ 6,829.! 235.2
Other liabilities 242.: 7.2 7.7 6.C 175. 6.C
Total liabilities 20,898.! 20,404.( 17,271.¢ 13,297.¢ 12,780.. 440.(
Total equity (including noncontrolling interes $14,542.¢ $ 9,952.. $14,043.. $14,983.. $15,969.. $549.]

(1) Related parties include Mosel, Siliconware Rien, ProMOS and DenMOS. Commencing April 1, 2Qdibsel and its direct and indirect subsidiariesravdonger related parties of
the Company as collectively, they hold less thab Iifterest in ChipMOS Bermuda and are no longesicned as having significant influence on the Canyp Commencing April 1,
2011, Siliconware Precision held less than 10%ésteén ChipMOS Bermuda and was no longer a mdjareholder of the Company. See Note 18 of the rotdee consolidated
financial statements contained in this Annual ReporForm 2-F.

3
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As of December 31

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(in millions)
US GAAP O:
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 6,651.¢ $ 3,884.6 $ 7,143 $ 7,357.¢ $ 9,319.C $320.¢
Restricted cash and cash equivalt 59.t 243.¢ 546.¢ 285.1 174.5 6.C
Financial assets at fair value through profit aveb 102.1 119.( 3.0 — — —
Held-to-maturity financial asse 250.( — — — — —
Available-for-sale financial asse 100.( 100.( — — — —
Notes receivabl
—related partie(2) 195.( — — — — —
—third parties 14.2 27.€ 14.C 5.7 5.C 0.2
Accounts receivabl
—related partie(2) 0.4 0.2 258.( — — —
—third parties 1,296.! 2,441.¢ 2,816.( 3,666. 3,992.: 137.¢
Other receivable
—related partie(2) 30.C — 66.4 — — —
—third parties 172.2 130.] 182.( 73.2 149.¢ 5.2
Inventories 966.1 863.1 1,280.¢ 1,534.¢ 1,688.¢ 58.1
Deferred income tax, n 349.t 350.2 272.F 70.4 77.¢ 2.7
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 265.2 265.1 202.: 92.5 131.¢ 4.5
Total current asse 10,452.4 8,426.( 12,785.: 13,086.( 15,539.( 534.¢
Long-term investment 437.¢ 220.( 10.5 39.1 11.€ 0.4
Property, plant and equipm—net 23,427.. 20,474.. 16,924.. 13,501.( 11,652.¢ 401.1
Intangible asse—net 107.¢ 102.¢ 94.2 100.t 94.: 3.2
Other asset 731.¢ 893.2 1,221.: 1,237.¢ 977.1 33.7
Total asset 35,157.( 30,116.- 31,035.: 27,964.. 28,275.! 973.%
Current liabilities:
Shor-term bank loan 2,745. 2,363.1 1,494." 546.¢ 366.£ 12.€
Current portion of lon-term loans 4,603. 1,553.¢ 4,925." 684.( 2,227.¢ 76.7
Convertible note 1,453.( — 65.¢ — — —
Accounts payabl 477.¢ 738.( 690.1 1,130.¢ 890.1 30.€
Payables to contractors and equipment supg 251.¢ 201.2 790.¢ 415.¢ 484.¢ 16.7
Other payable 628.( 696.] 896.% 1,081.t 1,008.- 34.7
Current portion of capital leases paya — 821. 822.( — — —
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 469.¢ 525.7 990.¢ 830.¢ 767.C 26.4
Total current liabilities 10,632.¢ 6,921.! 10,697.! 4,712.; 5,775.¢ 198.¢
Long-term liabilities 9,934.¢ 13,475.. 6,566. 8,579.¢ 6,829.! 235.2
Other liabilities 435.( 286.1 398.€ 383.t 480.¢ 16.5
Total liabilities 21,002.¢ 20,682. 17,662.! 13,675.. 13,085.: 450.t
Total equity (including noncontrolling interes $14,154.. $ 9,433.¢ $13,372.¢( $14,288.¢ $15,190.. $522.¢

(1) Reflects the US GAAP adjustments as described te R4 of the notes to the consolidated financeteshents contained in this Annual Report on For-F.

(2) Related parties include Mosel, Siliconware Bien, ProMOS and DenMOS. Commencing April 1, 208ibsel and its direct and indirect subsidiariesrardonger related parties of
the Company as collectively, they hold less thab Iifterest in ChipMOS Bermuda and are no longesicned as having significant influence on the Canyp Commencing April 1,
2011, Siliconware Precision held less than 10%ésteén ChipMOS Bermuda and was no longer a mdjareholder of the Company. See Note 18 of the rotdee consolidated
financial statements contained in this Annual ReporForm 2-F.

4
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Year ended December 31

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2012
NTS$ NT$ NTS NTS$ NTS$ us$
(in millions)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Dat:
ROC GAAP:
Capital expenditure $2,188.c $3,479. $4,237.0 $2,319.0 $2,776.t $ 95.€
Depreciation and amortizatic 7,174 6,524.¢ 6,281.¢ 5,677.¢ 4,631.¢ 159.¢
Net cash provided by (used il
Operating activitie: 5,164.: 781.( 8,688.¢ 5,898.( 4,735.: 163.(
Investing activities (2,296.9 (1,042, (2,454.) (3,250.) (2,594.9 (89.9)
Financing activitie: (1,395.) (2,503.H) (2,959.H (2,464.9 (162.%) (5.6
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 46.3 (1.8 (16.) 31.¢ (16.€) (0.6)
Net increase (decrease) in ci $1,518.0 $(2,767.) $3,258. $ 2146 $1,961.. $ 67.F

Exchange Rates

References to “US$” and “US dollars” are to Unifdtes dollars and references to “NT$"” and “NT awll are to New Taiwan dollars.
This Annual Report on Form 2B-contains translations of certain NT dollar amseunto US dollars at specified rates solely for¢bhavenienc
of the reader. Unless otherwise noted, all traimsiatfrom NT dollars to US dollars and from US dadlto NT dollars were made at the noon
buying rate in The City of New York for cable tréers in NT dollars per US dollar as certified fastoms purposes by the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York as of December 31, 2012, which Wa$29.05 to US$1.00. We make no representatiartiieaNT dollar or US dollar
amounts referred to in this Annual Report on FofsZould have been or could be converted into tlus or NT dollars, as the case may
be, at any particular rate or at all. On April 2013, the noon buying rate was NT$29.77 to US$1.00.

The following table sets out, for the years andrtfuaths indicated, information concerning the nunddeNT dollars for which one US
dollar could be exchanged based on the noon bugiegfor cable transfers in NT dollars as certifiedcustoms purposes by the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York.

NT dollars per US dollar noon buying rate

Average High Low Period-end
2008 31.52 33.5¢ 29.9¢ 32.7¢
2009 33.02 35.21 31.9¢ 31.9¢
2010 31.5( 32.4: 29.1¢ 29.1¢
2011 29.3¢ 30.6i 28.5( 30.27
2012 29.5¢ 30.2¢ 28.9¢ 29.0¢
October 29.2¢ 29.31 29.1¢ 29.2(
Novembel 29.11 29.2¢ 28.9¢ 29.07
Decembe 29.0¢ 29.1(C 29.0C 29.0¢t
2013
January 29.1( 29.5¢ 28.9¢ 29.5¢
February 29.6: 29.7: 29.52 29.6
March 29.7¢ 29.8¢ 29.6: 29.81
April (through 19, 2013 29.91] 30.0¢ 29.7 29.7

Sources: Federal Reserve Bank of New York.
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Risk Factors
Risks Relating to Economic Conditions and the Finatial Markets
The global credit and financial markets crisis calimaterially and adversely affect our business aregults of operations.

Disruptions in global credit and financial marketay occur that cause diminished liquidity and leditavailability of credit, reduced
consumer confidence, reduced economic growth, aser@ unemployment rates and uncertainty about etiorstability. Limited availability o
credit in financial markets may lead consumerstaminesses to postpone spending. This in turn magecour customers to cancel, decrea
delay their existing and future orders with us.dricial difficulties experienced by our customersuppliers as a result of these conditions
could lead to production delays and delays or disfa payment of accounts receivable. Continuireglit markets disruption restricts our
access to capital and limits our ability to fundedions or to refinance maturing obligations &ythecome due through additional borrowing
or other sources of financing. We are not ableréaligt the duration or extent of disruptions inliibcredit and financial markets that occurred
in since 2009 and through 2012. These conditioaease the difficulty of accurately forecasting afehning our business activities. If these
conditions and uncertainties continue or if creditl financial markets and confidence in economiait®ns further deteriorate, our business
and results of operations could be materially ahgeesely affected.

Risks Relating to Our Industry

Because we depend on the highly cyclical semicondutdustry, which is characterized by significannd sometimes prolonged downtur
from time to time, our net revenue and earnings miyctuate significantly, which in turn could causéhe market price of our commo
shares to decline

Because our business is, and will continue to bpeddent on the requirements of semiconductor coiepéor independent testing and
assembly services, any downturn in the highly catlsemiconductor industry may reduce demand fosewices and adversely affect our
results of operations. All of our customers openateis industry and variations in order levelsnfr our customers and in service fee rates ma
result in volatility in our net revenue and earrdingor instance, during periods of decreased derfmarassembled semiconductors, some ol
customers may even simplify, delay or forego fiteaking of certain types of semiconductors, sudtiyasimic random access memory or
DRAM, further intensifying our difficulties. Froninie to time, the semiconductor industry has expegd significant, and sometimes
prolonged, downturns which have adversely affectatresults of operations. In 2009, the semicorauotustry, especially the assembly and
testing services for DRAM products sector, contihteeexperience the significant downturn that beigaiourth quarter of 2008, and which t
adversely affected our business. As a result oirtthestry downturn, our net revenue for 2009 desed®29% from 2008 levels. This industry
downturn started to recover from the second quaift2009, and our net revenue for 2010 increaséd #8m 2009 levels. Our net revenue for
2011 increased 6% from 2010 levels. Our net revémuR012 increased 6% from 2011 levels and geadramet income of NT$722 million
(US$25 million) in 2012. We cannot give any assoearthat there will not be any downturn in the fetar that any future downturn will not
affect our results of operations.

Any deterioration in the market for er-user applications for semiconductor products wouktluce demand for our services and may result
in a decrease in our earnings.

Market conditions in the semiconductor industrgkreo a large degree, those for their end-useliGgipns. Any deterioration in the
market conditions for the end-user applicationseshiconductors we test and assemble could redunardtfor our services and, in turn,
materially adversely affect our financial conditiand results of operations. Our net revenue i®lgragttributable to fees derived from testing
and assembling semiconductors for use in persamapaters, communications equipment, consumer elgictproducts and display
applications. A significant decrease in demandpfoducts in these markets could put pricing pressarour testing and assembly services an
negatively affect our net revenue and earnings.R/eanand for LCD and other flat-panel display prdibegan in 2007 and has since
adversely affected our operating results in 200892 and 2010. The LCD driver market started tovecin the second quarter of 2009 and
positive recovery trend continued through 2012.&fenot give any assurances that there will notlgedawnturn in the future or that any
future downturn will not affect our results of opons. Any significant decrease in demand for eseFr applications of semiconductors will
negatively affect our net revenue and earnings.
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A decline in average selling prices for our serviceould result in a decrease in our earning

Historically, prices for our testing and asseml@ywsgces in relation to any given semiconductor tendecline over the course of its
product and technology life cycle. See also “— A&r@ase in market demand for LCD and other flat-pdisplay driver semiconductors may
adversely affect our capacity utilization rates #meteby negatively affect our profitability”. Ifevcannot reduce the cost of our testing and
assembly services, or introduce higher-marginrigstnd assembly services for new package typedfdet the decrease in average selling
prices for our services, our earnings could deereas

A reversal or slowdown in the outsourcing trend feemiconductor testing and assembly services coettlice our profitability.

In recent years, integrated device manufacturen®s, have increasingly outsourced stages of#miconductor production process,
including testing and assembly, to independent aomgs like us to shorten production cycles. In tholdli the availability of advanced
independent semiconductor manufacturing servicestsm enabled the growth of so-called “fablessiisenductor companies that focus
exclusively on design and marketing and outsoure# tnanufacturing, testing and assembly requirésenindependent companies. A
substantial portion of our net revenue is indiregeénerated from providing semiconductor assemibtytasting services to these IDMs and
fabless companies. We cannot assure you that doaspanies will continue to outsource their tesind assembly requirements to indepen
companies like us. A reversal of, or a slowdowrthig outsourcing trend could result in reduced dednfor our services, which in turn could
reduce our profitability.

Risks Relating to Our Business

If we are unable to compete effectively in the higltompetitive semiconductor testing and assembérkets, we may lose customers and
income may decline.

The semiconductor testing and assembly marketeesyecompetitive. We face competition from a numbdkiDMs with in-house testing
and assembly capabilities and other independenteaductor testing and assembly companies. Our etitops may have access to more
advanced technologies and greater financial angf oeisources than we do. Many of our competitove lshown a willingness to reduce prices
quickly and sharply in the past to maintain capagttlization in their facilities during periods oéduced demand. In addition, an increasing
number of our competitors conduct their operatioriswer cost centers in Asia such as Mainland @hirhailand, Vietham and the
Philippines. Any renewed or continued erosion @ phices or demand for our testing and assembljcssras a result of increased competitiol
could adversely affect our profits.

We are highly dependent on the market for memorggucts. A downturn in market prices for these prazis could significantly reduce our
net revenue and net income.

A significant portion of our net revenue is derivfeain testing and assembling memory semiconduc@us.net revenue derived from the
testing and assembly of memory semiconductors ateddor 62%, 57% and 55% of our net revenue ir02@011 and 2012, respectively. In
the past, our service fees for testing and assambiemory semiconductors were sharply reducecdhiteta with the decrease in the average
selling price of DRAM in the semiconductor industiihe continuing oversupply of DRAM products in 80éhd the weak demand in the
DRAM market in the period from 2009 to 2012 resdlite significant reductions in the price of DRAMaplucts, which in turn drove down the
average prices for our testing and assembly ser¥areDRAM products in these periods. We cannotiiesgou that there will not be further
downturns in DRAM prices in the future.
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A decrease in market demand for LCD and other -panel display driver semiconductors may adverssfgct our capacity utilization rates
and thereby negatively affect our profitability.

Our testing and assembly services for LCD and dthepanel display driver semiconductors generaietrevenue of NT$3,199 million,
NT$3,986 million and NT$4,356 million (US$150 mili) in 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. We iree$tT$1,659 million, NT$1,18
million and NT$977 million (US$34 million) in 201@011 and 2012, respectively, on equipment for tapeer package, or TCP, chip-film,
or COF and chip-on-glass, or COG, technologieschvhie used in testing and assembly services f&r && other flat-panel display driver
semiconductors. Most of this equipment may notdedfor technologies other than TCP, COF or CO. mhrket demand for LCD and otl
flat-panel display driver semiconductors and reldgsting and assembly services increased in 20mpared to the market demand in 2011.
Any significant decrease in demand for these pritsdacd our related services, however, would sigaifily impair our capacity utilization
rates. That may result in our inability to genemaiéficient revenue to cover the significant deaton expenses for the equipment used in
testing and assembling LCD and other flat-pangdldisdriver semiconductors, thereby negatively e our profitability. See also “—
Because of our high fixed costs, if we are unablechieve relatively high capacity utilization teur earnings and profitability may be
adversely affected”.

Our significant amount of indebtedness and interastpense will limit our cash flow and could advelgaffect our operations.

We have a significant level of debt and interegtegrse. As of December 31, 2012, we had approxisn&t€$6,740 million (US$232
million) and NT$2,594 million (US$89 million) outstding long-term and short-term indebtedness, otispdy. Our longterm indebtedness .
of December 31, 2012, represented bank loans withtarest rate between 1.73% and 3.9117%. As oébBéer 31, 2012, NT$2,229 million
(US$77 million) of our short-term indebtedness &&%6,740 million (US$232 million) of our long-termdebtedness was secured by
collateral comprised of assets owned by ChipMOS HIEOLOGIES INC., or ChipMOS Taiwan, ThaiLin Semicartior Corp., or ThaiLin
and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Shanghai) LTD., or ChipBIShanghai.

Our significant indebtedness poses risks to ouinless, including the risks that:

. we may have to use a substantial portion of ousalistated cash flow from operations to pay printgal interest on our debt,
thereby reducing the funds available for workingita, capital expenditures, acquisitions and otfereral corporate purpos:

. insufficient cash flow from operations may forcetosell assets, or seek additional capital, wiiehmay be unable to do at all or
on terms favorable to u

. our ability to sell assets or seek additional aprtay be adversely affected by security interstair assets granted to our lenders
as collateral

. our level of indebtedness may make us more vulhetateconomic or industry downturns; &

. our debt service obligations increase our vulnditeEs to competitive pressures, because many o€ompetitors may be less
leveraged than we ar

For additional information on our indebtedness,“steen 5. Operating and Financial Review and Preogpe-Liquidity and Capital
Resources”.
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Our results of operations may fluctuate significdptand may cause the market price of our common #sato be volatile.

Our results of operations have varied significafriyn period to period and may continue to varyhia future. Among the more import
factors affecting our quarterly and annual resofitgperations are the following:

. our ability to accurately predict customer demagiywe must commit significant capital expendituneanticipation of future
orders;

. our ability to quickly adjust to unanticipated daek or shortfalls in demand and market priceotortesting and assembly servic
due to our high percentage of fixed co

. changes in prices for our testing and assemblyicss,

. volume of orders relative to our testing and assgitdpacity;

. capital expenditures and production uncertaingééegting to the ro-out of new testing or assembly servic
. our ability to obtain adequate testing and asser@lijpment on a timely bas

. changes in costs and availability of raw materiatgiipment and labo

. changes in our product mix; a

. earthquakes, drought and other natural disastemseh as industrial accident

Because of the factors listed above, our futurelt®sf operations or growth rates may be belowetkgectations of research analysts an
investors. If so, the market price of our commoarsh, and the market value of your investment, faky

The ongoing criminal proceeding of and adverse pigfty associated with Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng, our Chaian and Chief Executive Officer,
and Mr. Hung-Chiu Hu, our former director, could hae a material adverse effect on our business andssaour stock price to decline.

Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng, our chairman and chief exeeutiificer, was indicted by the Taipei District Reostors Office, or the prosecutor,
December 2005. Based upon information releasetdoprosecutor, the indictment alleges that Mr. Slyia Cheng, as instructed by Mr. Hung-
Chiu Hu, purchased repurchase notes on Januaanéady 13, and January 28, 2004 from Founder AasexcLimited, a British Virgin Islands
company affiliated with Mega Securities Co., Ltidrnerly known as Barits International Securities @.td.), with an aggregate principal
amount of approximately US$29 million, by usingmanate funds from ChipMOS Taiwan and ThaiLin. Theictment further alleges that
these repurchase notes were used as a cover teantisacorporate funds of Mosel, and its affiliadatities, including ChipMOS Taiwan and
ThaiLin, in violation of ROC law. In addition, thedictment alleges that Mr. Hu and others were gedan the insider trading of the securities
of Mosel in violation of ROC law, but none of therent officers at ChipMOS Taiwan or ThaiLin waslitted in this regard.

On January 5, 2006, our board established a spmmainittee to evaluate the circumstances surrogritii@ indictment of Mr. Cheng.
The special committee engaged K&L Gates LLP (foiynkirkpatrick & Lockhart Preston Gates Ellis LLB} its independent international
legal counsel, Baker & McKenzie as its independ®DC legal counsel, and Ernst & Young (formerly Diw&rnst & Young) as its financial
advisor to assist in its investigation. As of Ma&h 2012, the special committee was solely coredriff Mr. Yeong-Her Wang, our
independent director.

The special committee’s investigation focused Qrtl{g¢ probability that Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng woulddoavicted on the charges describec
in the indictment, (2) whether the indictment résdlin any pecuniary or other damage to us, (3)xhérghere were any internal control
weaknesses related to the investments in repuretmss within ChipMOS Bermuda and its subsidiaaied (4) whether ChipMOS Bermuda is
required by applicable laws or the NASDAQ Globalke$eMarket listing requirements to take any acfimeonnection with the indictment. T
special committee did not attempt to independetgbermine whether Mr. Cheng had engaged in anygdwoing in connection with the
investments in repurchase notes, irrespective ethkdr such wrongdoing would lead to a convictiontt@charges under the indictment.

On June 28, 2006, the special committee issuedptsit, including its findings and recommendatiddased upon the results of its
investigation, it found that (1) Mr. Shih-Jye Chdrag declared himself not guilty of the charge€deed in the indictment, (2) Baker &
McKenzie, after reviewing the indictment and thegacutor’s exhibits, has found that the evidenoeyeed by the prosecutor seems to be
inadequate and that there is a low probabilityhef ¢harge of irregular transactions in the indicthieing founded, (3) the financial advisor to
the special committee has found that we sufferelbsm (not taking into account exchange rate fagtand that all monies (capital and interest
were remitted back to our subsidiaries involved \wWé have suffered no identifiable harm to our tapan or business and (5) Mr. Cheng has
not been impaired by the indictment to perform asahairman and chief executive officer. The spemianmittee recommended that our boarc
maintain Mr. Cheng as our chairman and chief exeeuwfficer with full responsibilities and our ba@hunanimously (with Mr. Cheng having
recused himself) resolved to accept and adoptpeeia committee’s recommendation with regard to ®eng. Our board of directors also
resolved to continue the role of the special conaifor the duration of the ongoing criminal pratieg involving Mr. Cheng to actively
monitor any developments of the criminal invesiigmtand take or recommend any appropriate actidigli of such developments.
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On October 1, 2007, the Taipei District Court fowid Shih-Jye Cheng not guilty, and on OctoberZ007, the prosecutor appealed the
Taipei District Court decision at the Taiwan Higbutt. The Taiwan High Court held four trial heasrig 2008, six trial hearings in 2009 and
six trial hearings in 2010. A new bench was forrteetty this case at the beginning of 2010 due tly@irotation. Seven trial hearings have
since been conducted by the new bench, with tabligarings in 2011, four trial hearings in 2018 ane trial hearing in 2013. The next trial
hearing is scheduled to take place on May 22, 2013.

Theoretically, as a result of prosecutor’s appeial,Cheng may still be convicted of one or morergea in the indictment. In addition,
new evidence that leads to additional criminal gearand/or an adverse judgment against Mr. Chendgomaroduced during the ongoing
criminal investigation, and the special committesyrmake recommendations to our board in respedro€heng’s positions with us or our
subsidiaries. However, up to the present, no nedeece or charge has been presented or collectdtelyrosecutor or the Court. Therefore,
we are reasonably confident that the non-guiltgjadnt for Mr. Cheng will be maintained by the Taivmtdigh Court. If Mr. Cheng is
convicted, or in light of any new developments, $hecial committee may recommend or our boardretthrs may otherwise decide that it is
in the Company’s best interests that Mr. Chengomgér serves in all or some of his current capexitiith us or our subsidiaries, or if
Mr. Cheng resigns as a result of a final adverdgruent rendered against him by the court, or otiserwhe public perception of us may be
seriously harmed and we would lose some or athefservices of Mr. Cheng. In addition, if Mr. Chaéagonvicted and sentenced to
imprisonment, the ROC Financial Supervisory Commissnay subject ChipMOS Taiwan or ThailLin to cantegstrictions on financing
activities if Mr. Cheng continues to serve as thaikanan or president of ChipMOS Taiwan or ThailMr. Cheng is very important to our
current on-going business operations and our ogsliips with our customers and financing souraas,car loss of his services due to any
adverse publicity from the trial or conviction ofMCheng or other key personnel could materially adversely affect our business, reputatior
and prospects and therefore cause our stock pridedine.

We depend on key customers for a substantial parid our net revenue and a loss of, or deterioratiof the business from, or delayed
payment by, any one of these customers could resuitecreased net revenue and materially adversdfgct our results of operations an
financial condition.

We depend on a small group of customers for a anbat portion of our business. In 2012, our tye fcustomers, collectively accounted
for 55% of our net revenue. As part of our strafegy have been focusing on sales to key custorhesadh long-term service agreements. We
also focus on our business with smaller customaidscastomers who do not place orders on a regakis bWe expect that we will continue to
depend on a relatively limited number of custoniersa significant portion of our net revenue. Ardvarse development in our key customers
operations, competitive position or customer basddcmaterially reduce our net revenue and adweedéct our business and profitability.
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In the past, our top customers have defaulted @in payment obligations under certain long-ternviseragreements. For example,
ProMOS has defaulted in its payment obligationggdn March 2008. Between the period of Novemb&820 May 2009, we revised our
contract terms and conditions with ProMOS to inelpdovision of collateral, prepayments and pledgesafer, Work-In-Process, or WIP,
existing finished goods as lien material and setemguipment mortgage for ProMOS’ payment obligatidProMOS made timely payments in
2012. See “Item 4. Information on the Company—Qusiis” for more information.

In January 2009, Spansion defaulted in its payrabligation to us and subsequently filed for a védu petition for reorganization unc
Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in March®@G a result, ChipMOS Taiwan entered into a difie Transfer of Claim Agreement
sell to Citigroup Financial Products Inc. (“Citigng’) the general unsecured claim reflected in tlwpof claim against Spansion. On October
4, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan entered into a settlemgraement with Spansion LLC for the general unsatat@&m on breach of contract and
liquidated damages rights reflected in the proaflaim, Claim No. 5, against Spansion Inc., Span3iechnology LLC, Spansion LLC,
Spansion International Inc. and Cerium LaboratdrieS filed by ChipMOS Taiwan in the U.S. Bankrupt©purt. In October 2010, the
Company received payment of NT$2,118 million urttier Transfer of Claim Agreement to Citigroup. Skerh 4. Information on the
Company—Customers” for more information.

Since semiconductor companies generally rely oviceproviders with whom they have establishedti@ighips to meet their testing
and assembly needs for their applications and nestomers usually require us to pass a lengthy igondous qualification process, if we lose
any of our key customers, we may not be able tlacephem in a timely manner. We cannot assurdlyatreceivable collection difficulties
experienced by us will not occur in the futureatfy of our key customers reduces or cancels iErsmr terminates existing contractual
arrangements, and if we are unable to attract nstomers and establish new contractual arrangemathit@xisting or new customers, our net
revenue could be reduced and our business andse$wperations may be materially adversely aéfect

Because of our high fixed costs, if we are unabtedchieve relatively high capacity utilization raggour earnings and profitability may b
adversely affected.

Our operations are characterized by a high propodf fixed costs. For memory and logic/mixed-siggemiconductor testing services,
our fixed costs represented 73%, 68% and 56% ofatalk cost of revenue in 2010, 2011 and 2012 getsgely. For memory and logic/mixed-
signal semiconductor assembly services, our fixadscrepresented 24%, 23% and 19% of our totalafastvenue in 2010, 2011 and 2012,
respectively. For LCD and other flat-panel dispiiiver semiconductor testing and assembly servimasfixed costs represented 55%, 52%
and 34% of our total cost of revenue in 2010, 28dd 2012, respectively. For bumping services, ixadfcosts represented 27%, 23% and
20% of our total cost of revenue in 2010, 2011 2082, respectively. Our profitability depends imtpaot only on absolute pricing levels for
our services, but also on the utilization ratesoiar testing and assembly equipment, commonly redeto as “capacity utilization rates”.
Increases or decreases in our capacity utilizaites can significantly affect our gross marginsrs costs generally decrease as the fixed
costs are allocated over a larger number of uimtfhe past, our capacity utilization rates havetflated significantly as a result of the
fluctuations in the market demand for semicondusctifrwe fail to increase or maintain our capadcitijization rates, our earnings and
profitability may be adversely affected. In additiove have entered into various long-term asselabllytesting services agreements with
certain of our customers that may require us tarisgynificant capital expenditures. If we are ueab achieve high capacity utilization rates
for the equipment purchased pursuant to these mgms, our gross margins may be materially andradiyeaffected.
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The testing and assembly process is complex andgoduction yields and customer relationships mayffer as a result of defects or
malfunctions in our testing and assembly equipmemd the introduction of new packages.

Semiconductor testing and assembly are complexepeas that require significant technological andegss expertise. Semiconductor
testing involves sophisticated testing equipmert@mputer software. We develop computer softwatedt our customers’ semiconductors.
We also develop conversion software programs thaible us to test semiconductors on different tyjfeesters. Similar to most software
programs, these software programs are complex aydcontain programming errors or “bugs”. In addifithe testing process is subject to
human error by our employees who operate our tgstiuipment and related software. Any significagfedt in our testing or conversion
software, malfunction in our testing equipment oman error could reduce our production yields amthage our customer relationships.

The assembly process involves a number of steph,aavhich must be completed with precision. D&fecpackages primarily result
from:

. contaminants in the manufacturing environm
. human error

. equipment malfunctior

. defective raw materials;

. defective plating service

These and other factors have, from time to timatrdmuted to lower production yields. They may dairs the future, particularly as we
expand our capacity or change our processing stepsldition, to be competitive, we must continaexpand our offering of packages. Our
production yields on new packages typically araificantly lower than our production yields on auore established packages. Our failure to
maintain high standards or acceptable productiettlyj if significant and prolonged, could resultitoss of customers, increased costs of
production, delays, substantial amounts of retugeatls and related claims by customers. Furtheéhegt@xtent our customers have set target
production yields, we may be required to compengateustomers in a pre-agreed manner. Any of theslglems could materially adversely
affect our business reputation and result in redune revenue and profitability.

Because of the highly cyclical nature of our indurgt our capital requirements are difficult to planf we cannot obtain additional capite
when we need it, we may not be able to maintainnmrease our current growth rate and our profits Isuffer.

As our industry is highly cyclical and rapidly chgng, our capital requirements are difficult tompld o remain competitive, we may need
capital to fund the expansion of our facilitiesnsl as to fund our equipment purchases and relseard development activities. To meet our
liquidity, capital spending and other capital needs have taken and plan to take certain measamgsrterate additional working capital and to
save cash. See “Item 5. Operating and FinancialeRReand Prospects—Liquidity and Capital Resourc@#s.cannot assure you that these
plans and measures will be implemented or will tesufficient sources of capital.

In addition, future capacity expansions or marketther developments may require additional fund@gr ability to obtain external
financing in the future depends on a number ofoia;tmany of which are beyond our control. Theyude:

. our future financial condition, results of operascand cash flow:

. general market conditions for financing activitmssemiconductor testing and assembly companiek

. economic, political and other conditions in Taivaard elsewhere

If we are unable to obtain funding in a timely manor on acceptable terms, our growth prospectgatehtial future profitability will
suffer.

Disputes over intellectual property rights could bestly, deprive us of technologies necessary forta stay competitive, render us unable
provide some of our services and reduce our oppnities to generate revenu

Our ability to compete successfully and achievarigrowth will depend, in part, on our abilitygmtect our proprietary technologies
and to secure, on commercially acceptable terntiadtechnologies that we do not own. We canrssuae you that we will be able to
independently develop, or secure from any thirdypaine technologies required for our testing asskanbly services. Our failure to
successfully obtain these technologies may sesidwmim our competitive position and render us uaablprovide some of our services.
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Our ability to compete successfully also dependsumability to operate without infringing upon theoprietary rights of others. The
semiconductor testing and assembly industry isattarized by frequent litigation regarding patemd ather intellectual property rights. We
may incur legal liabilities if we infringe upon tlitellectual property or other proprietary rigbfsothers. We are not able to ascertain what
patent applications have been filed in the UnitedeS or elsewhere, however, until they are graitedhy third party succeeds in its
intellectual property infringement claims againstan our customers, we could be required to:

. discontinue using the disputed process technolpgieieh would prevent us from offering some of testing and assembly
services

. pay substantial monetary damag
. develop no-infringing technologies, which may not be feasilule
. acquire licenses to the infringed technologies ciwmay not be available on commercially reasontdstas, if at all.

Any one of these developments could impose subiatdimancial and administrative burdens on us himdier our business. We are, from
time to time, involved in litigation in respect iotellectual property rights. Any litigation, whethas plaintiff or defendant, is costly and divert:
our resources. If we fail to obtain necessary kesnon commercially reasonable terms or if lityatregardless of the outcome, relating to
patent infringement or other intellectual propertgtters occurs, our costs could be substantiadiyeased to impact our margins. Any such
litigation could also prevent us from testing asdeanbling particular products or using particutghnologies, which could reduce our
opportunities to generate revenue. For more inftionaon litigation in respect of intellectual praperights, see “Item 8. Financial
Information—Legal Proceedings”.

If we are unable to obtain raw materials and otheecessary inputs from our suppliers in a timely ands-effective manner, our production
schedules would be delayed and we may lose custeared growth opportunities and become less profiéal

Our operations require us to obtain sufficient dities of raw materials at acceptable prices imely and cost-effective manner. We
source most of our raw materials, including crititeterials like leadframes, organic substratesxgpgold wire and molding compound for
assembly, and tapes for TCP/COF, from a limitedigrof suppliers. We purchase all of our material®gurchase order basis and have no
long-term contracts with any of our suppliers. Friimme to time, suppliers have extended lead tinmeseased the price or limited the supply of
required materials to us because of market sha@t&gmsequently, we may, from time to time, exparedifficulty in obtaining sufficient
guantities of raw materials on a timely basis.ddition, from time to time, we may reject materitdat do not meet our specifications, resul
in declines in output or yield. Although we typilgaiaintain at least two suppliers for each key raaterial, we cannot assure you that we wil
be able to obtain sufficient quantities of raw mials and other supplies of an acceptable qualityé future. It usually takes from three to six
months to switch from one supplier to another, dejpgy on the complexity of the raw material. If ew® unable to obtain raw materials and
other necessary inputs in a timely and cost-effeatianner, we may need to delay our productiondatidery schedules, which may result in
the loss of business and growth opportunities audddcreduce our profitability.
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If we are unable to obtain additional testing angsembly equipment or facilities in a timely manrend at a reasonable cost, we may
unable to fulfill our customers’ orders and may beme less competitive and less profitable.

The semiconductor testing and assembly businesgpital intensive and requires significant invesitrie expensive equipment
manufactured by a limited number of suppliers. Titegket for semiconductor testing and assembly eqeiyt is characterized, from time to
time, by intense demand, limited supply and lonlyvdey cycles. Our operations and expansion plaedd on our ability to obtain equipment
from a limited number of suppliers in a timely arabt-effective manner. We have no binding supphg@gents with any of our suppliers and
we acquire our testing and assembly equipmentmmehase order basis, which exposes us to changanket conditions and other significant
risks. Semiconductor testing and assembly alsanegjus to operate sizeable facilities. If we avahle to obtain equipment or facilities in a
timely manner, we may be unable to fulfill our @mters’ orders, which could negatively impact onaficial condition and results of
operations as well as our growth prospects. Preljoue have committed to acquire certain waferisgrtesters and probers under our long-
term service agreement with Spansion. We termindi@dagreement and commitment on February 19,,28f69 Spansion defaulted on its
payment obligations. Currently, we do not have lamg-term service agreements that require our camaerit to acquire additional testing and
assembly equipment or facilities, however we camsstre you that such commitment will not be madéeé future. See “ltem 4. Information
on the Company— Customers”.

If we are unable to manage the expansion of our ogitions and resources effectively, our growth pregps may be limited and our futui
profitability may be reducec

We expect to continue to expand our operationsiraaréase the number of our employees. Rapid expamsits a strain on our
managerial, technical, financial, operational atiteoresources. As a result of our expansion, leneéd to implement additional operational
and financial controls and hire and train additiggersonnel. We cannot assure you that we willlile 0 do so effectively in the future, and
our failure to do so could jeopardize our expangilams and seriously harm our operations.

Bermuda law may be less protective of shareholdghts than laws of the United States or other jutlistions.

Our corporate affairs are governed by our memomandiuassociation, our bye-laws and laws governormparations incorporated in
Bermuda. Shareholder suits such as class actisrthd€ae terms are understood with respect to catipos incorporated in the United States)
are generally not available in Bermuda. Therefotg,shareholders may be less able under Bermudthkawthey would be under the laws of
the United States or other jurisdictions to protheir interests in connection with actions by management, members of our board of
directors or our controlling shareholder.

It may be difficult to bring and enforce suits agast us in the United State:

We are incorporated in Bermuda and a majority afditectors and most of our officers are not resid®f the United States. A
substantial portion of our assets is located oattie United States. As a result, it may be diffitor our shareholders to serve notice of a
lawsuit on us or our directors and officers witttie United States. Because most of our assetseatet outside the United States, it may be
difficult for our shareholders to enforce in theitdd States judgments of United States courts. épplour Bermuda counsel, has advised us
that there is some uncertainty as to the enforcemeBermuda, in original actions or in actions émforcement of judgments of United States
courts, of liabilities predicated upon United Ssafiederal securities laws.
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Investor confidence and the market price of our coman shares may be adversely impacted if we or oadlependent public registere
accounting firm is unable to conclude that our inteal control over our financial reporting is effeéte as required by Section 404 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.

We are subject to the SEC'’s reporting obligati@mg] beginning in our Annual Report on Form 20-Ftfer year ended December 31,
2006, we have been required by the SEC, as direégt&ection 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@02clude a report of management on
our internal control over financial reporting inrdnnual Report on Form 20-F that contains an assest by management of the effectivenes
of our internal control over financial reportinged@nning in fiscal year 2007, our independent putdgistered accounting firm has audited the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting. Although our management concluded thatinternal controls are effective in this
Annual Report on Form 20-F, and our independenltipuokgistered accounting firm has rendered itsimpi that we maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financ&orting as of December 31, 2012, based on ieriset forth in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by Committee of Sponsoring Orgditiz of the Treadway Commission (COSO), our manmegg may not conclude that
our internal controls are effective in the futuvtoreover, even if our management concludes thatrdernal controls over our financial
reporting are effective, our independent publidstged accounting firm may disagree. If our indegent public registered accounting firm is
not satisfied with our internal controls over omaicial reporting or the level at which our cotdrare documented, designed, operated or
reviewed, or if the independent public registerecbanting firm interprets the requirements, rulesegulations differently from us, it may
decline to attest to our management’s assessmemhpissue an adverse opinion in the future. Anthese possible outcomes could result in
an adverse reaction in the financial marketplaeetdwa loss of investor confidence in the religpitif our consolidated financial statements,
which ultimately could negatively impact the markétes of our common shares.

Any environmental claims or failure to comply withny present or future environmental regulations, any new environmental regulation:
may require us to spend additional funds, may impasgnificant liability on us for present, past dature actions, and may dramatically
increase the cost of providing our services to @uistomers.

We are subject to various laws and regulationgingldo the use, storage, discharge and disposaierhical by-products of, and water
used in, our assembly and gold bumping procesd#®ugh we have not suffered material environmecims in the past, a failure or a cle
that we have failed to comply with any presentutuife regulations could result in the assessmedawfages or imposition of fines against us,
suspension of production or a cessation of ouraifmers or negative publicity. New regulations cordduire us to acquire costly equipment or
to incur other significant expenses. Any failurecum part to control the use of, or adequatelyrigsthe discharge of, hazardous substances
could subject us to future liabilities that may eratlly reduce our earnings.

Fluctuations in exchange rates could result in fagg exchange losses.

Currently, most of our net revenue is denominateldT dollars. Our cost of revenue and operatingeesps, on the other hand, are
incurred in several currencies, including NT dallalapanese yen, US dollars and Renminbi, or RWMBdtition, a substantial portion of our
capital expenditures, primarily for the purchaséesting and assembly equipment, has been, ampésted to continue to be, denominated in
Japanese yen with much of the remainder in US olM&e also have debt denominated in NT dollagzadese yen, US dollars and RMB.
Fluctuations in exchange rates, primarily amonguBedollar, the NT dollar and the Japanese yen afféct our costs and operating margin
NT dollar terms. In addition, these fluctuationsikcbresult in exchange losses and increased aost$ idollar terms. Despite selective hedg
and other techniques implemented by us, fluctuatiorexchange rates have affected, and may contiinaéect, our financial condition and
results of operations.

15



Table of Contents

We may not be successful in our acquisitions, inveents, joint ventures and dispositions, and magnéfore be unable to implement fully
our business strategy.

As part of our growth strategy, we may make actjaiss and investments in companies and businesstdlish joint ventures or make
dispositions of our interests. For example, in 8eyiter 2007, we acquired all outstanding commoneshair ChipMOS Taiwan through a share
exchange transaction with ChipMOS Taiwan. In Fety2810, we agreed to sell 15.8% of ChipMOS Taiwamitstanding shares to
Siliconware Precision and the transaction was cetaglin January 2011. The success of our acquisijtiavestments, joint ventures and
dispositions depends on a number of factors, irctud

. our ability to identify suitable investment, acqtiem, joint venture or disposition opportuniti

. our ability to reach an agreement for an acquisjtiovestment, joint venture or disposition oppaityion terms that are satisfactc
to us or at all

. the extent to which we are able to exercise comivel the acquired or joint venture compa

. our ability to align the economic, business or oteategic objectives and goals of the acquiredpamy with those of our
company; ant

. our ability to successfully integrate the acquioggoint venture company or business with our conyp

If we are unsuccessful in our acquisitions, investts, joint ventures and dispositions, we may eatltile to implement fully our busine
strategy to maintain or grow our business.

We depend on key personnel, and our revenue co@drdase and our costs could increase if we losértbervices.

We depend on the continued service of our execufifigers and skilled engineering, technical anteotpersonnel. We will also be
required to hire a substantially greater numbeskifed employees in connection with our expangitans. In particular, we depend on a
number of skilled employees in connection with bGD and other flat-panel display driver semicondudésting and assembly services, and
the competition for such employees in Taiwan anihMad China is intense. We may not be able tceeitbtain our present personnel or
attract additional qualified personnel as and wheeded. Moreover, we do not carry key person imagréor any of our executive officers nor
do we have employment contracts with any of oucetiee officers or employees, and, as a resulterafrour executive officers or employees
is bound by any non-competition agreement. If vge lany of our key personnel, it could be very diffti to find and integrate replacement
personnel, which could affect our ability to prozidur services, resulting in reduced net revendesamings. In addition, we may need to
increase employee compensation levels in ordegttarr our existing officers and employees and traett additional personnel. As of March
2013, 7.8% of the workforce at our facilities amesign workers employed by us under work permiés #re subject to government regulations
on renewal and other terms. Consequently, if tgeletions in Taiwan relating to the employmentarign workers were to become
significantly more restrictive or if we are othessiunable to attract or retain these workers abregble cost, we may be unable to maintain o
increase our level of services and may suffer redunet revenue and earnings.

If our security measures are breached and unauthmai access is obtained to our information techngl®ystems, we may lose proprieti
data.

Our security measures may be breached as a résitdbparty action, including computer hackenspoyees error, malfeasance or
otherwise, and result in unauthorized access t@astomers’ data or our data, including our inttlial property and other confidential
business information, or our information technoleggtems. Because the techniques used to obtainhanezed access, or to sabotage syst
change frequently, we may be unable to anticigaed techniques or to implement adequate preveatatasures. Any security breach could
result in disclosure of our trade secrets, confidénustomer, supplier or employee data, whichdoesult in legal liability, harm to our
reputation and otherwise harm our business.

Risk Relating to Our Relationship with Mosel

ChipMOS Taiwan entered into certain transactionsat, if determined to have constituted impermissifilancings or purchases of assets
equity of Mosel under ROC law, could result in thesignations of members of our management. As aufeour business operations could
be disrupted and the market price of our common ssmcould decline.

ROC law limits the ability of a company incorpomie Taiwan to purchase any equity interest in canigs, directly or indirectly,
holding more than 50% of its issued and outstandating securities or registered capital or to jpdeMoans or other financing to any compi
ChipMOS Taiwan purchased NT$242 million worth of $bshares in 2002.
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Lee and Li, our ROC special counsel, has advisdtatghese purchases do not violate relevant R@GHat prohibits a subsidiary from
buying or taking collateral in shares of compatiekling, directly or indirectly, more than 50% & issued and outstanding voting securitie
registered capital, because Mosel's indirect irtiefealculated as the product of (i) Mosel's petaga interest in ChipMOS Bermuda and

(ii) ChipMOS Bermuda’s percentage interest in Chip®Taiwan) in ChipMOS Taiwan was less than 50%G@nigMOS Bermuda is
incorporated outside of Taiwan. In 2005, ChipMO3aEen disposed of NT$84 million of Mosel shares, andugust 2006, ChipMOS Taiwan
further disposed of the remaining Mosel sharesifijproximately NT$30 million. ChipMOS Taiwan no largwns any Mosel shares. Lee and
Li has advised that under relevant ROC law, theroi similar restriction or limitation on a subsidi's disposal of its parent’s equity shares, if
the previous acquisitions of such shares compligll rglevant ROC law. However, we understand thatd is no applicable judicial precedent
and there is some doubt as to how a court wouldifydresented with the situation.

If it were to be determined that any of the tratisas described above constituted an impermissibéacing or purchase of assets of
Mosel by ChipMOS Taiwan or an impermissible purehaMosel’s equity by ChipMOS Taiwan, then ChipM®O&wan'’s then chairman and
any responsible officers would be jointly and sellgriiable to ChipMOS Taiwan for any losses sufiéiby ChipMOS Taiwan and may also be
severally liable criminally for any breach of fidary duties that resulted in losses and damagésrsdfby ChipMOS Taiwan. Moreover,
certain of these transactions may not have beérilicompliance with ChipMOS Taiwag’then applicable internal procedures due to tiheré
to have received an appropriate valuation opinidor jo entering into such purchases. The failoreamply fully with ChipMOS Taiwan’s
then applicable internal procedures could constibmidence of a failure by the then chairman op®t®S Taiwan and responsible officers to
comply fully with their fiduciary duties, which ctiiresult in them being held criminally liable fany breach of fiduciary duties that resulte:
losses and damages to ChipMOS Taiwan. If membessirofurrent management were held to have breatie@dfiduciary duties or become
criminally liable for the transactions describedwad, they may become obliged, whether under laotlogrwise, to resign from their respective
positions at ChipMOS Bermuda and our affiliatesyAgss of the services of these persons could plissur business, damage our reputation,
and cause the market price of our common sharesdiine.

Risks Relating to Countries in Which We Conduct Opeations

ROC laws and regulations limit or prohibit certaitechnology cooperation between ROC persons or &#itvith PRC persons or entitie
and our current technology transfer arrangementstiveen ChipMOS Bermuda and ChipMOS Shanghai may barfd to be in violation of
any such limitation or prohibition, which may restin a fine of between NT$50 thousand and NT$25 lioih and the termination of such
technology transfer arrangements and therefore havenaterial adverse effect on the operations of @iOS Shanghai and our financial
condition and results of operations.

ROC laws and regulations previously prohibited &apsfer of semiconductor testing and assemblyni@ogies to any person or entity
located in Mainland China, except for transferslming certain low-end semiconductor testing anskasbly technologies, such as
conventional wire bond assembly technology, if@iertequirements are met. The ROC Ministry of EeoiwoAffairs has the ultimate
administrative authority in interpreting such laargd regulations. In February 2010, these restristttave been relaxed, so that ROC entities
may transfer semiconductor testing and assembhnt#ogies to any person or entity located in Maidl&€hina after they have obtained
approval from the Investment Commission of the R@i@istry of Economic Affairs, or the ICM. Under adhnology transfer agreement, datec
August 1, 2002, ChipMOS Bermuda licensed to ChipM8b@&nghai certain testing and assembly-relatechtdobies that were then controlled
by ChipMOS Bermuda, which included technologies tire licensed to ChipMOS Bermuda by ChipMOS Taiw@hipMOS Bermuda will
continue to license such technologies to ChipMO&nghai pursuant to a new technology transfer ageaedated October 3, 2011 with
effective date on August 1, 2012. ChipMOS Bermusda provided ChipMOS Shanghai with technical suppad consulting services under
this agreement. On April 7, 2004, ChipMOS Bermudizeed into an assignment agreement with ChipMQO&arg pursuant to which
ChipMOS Taiwan transferred all of the technologiesvned as of that date to ChipMOS Bermuda, incigdhose previously licensed to
ChipMOS Bermuda. On April 12, 2007, ChipMOS Bermedéered into an assignment agreement with ChipNM&®an, pursuant to which
ChipMOS Taiwan assigned and transferred fifty petrod the title to ownership of and interest in@aflthe technologies and intellectual
property it owned as of that date to ChipMOS Beranud

In the opinion of Lee and Li, our ROC special calnsur technology transfer arrangements as destabove are in compliance with
applicable ROC laws and regulations. However, sutiistl uncertainties remain regarding the integidreh and application of those laws and
regulations. Accordingly, we cannot assure you R@C regulatory authorities will not take a viewntary to the opinion of our ROC special
counsel. If ChipMOS Taiwan were determined to beidhation of applicable ROGws and regulations governing technology coopemnatiith
PRC persons and entities, ChipMOS Taiwan may bgsuto a fine of between NT$50 thousand and NTi$2Bon and may be ordered by t
ICM to terminate or rectify such activity withinspecified period of time. Any termination of oum@nt technology transfer to ChipMOS
Shanghai could materially adversely affect our N&id China operations and our financial conditi@sults of operations or prospects, as we
as the market price of our common shares.
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Our ability to direct the operations we conduct thugh our subsidiaries and affiliated companies thae do not fully own may be limited by
legal duties owed to other shareholders of such pamies.

Certain of our operations are conducted throughpaonies that we do not fully own. For example, dertairrent consolidated operations
are conducted through ChipMOS Taiwan, our 84.2%iglidry as of March 31, 2013, ThaiLin, ChipMOS Taivis 42.9% owned subsidiary as
of March 31, 2013, and ChipMOS Shanghai, ThaiLursolly-owned subsidiary as of March 31, 2013. We also gondther activities throuc
our affiliated entities. See also “—ChipMOS Taiwaability to maintain its trading status on TaiweaEmerging Stock Board and to eventu
list on the Taiwan Stock Exchange is dependentotofs outside of the Company or ChipMOS Taiwanistiol and satisfaction of stock
exchange requirements. ChipMOS Taiwan may not letalbvercome such factors that disrupt its trgditatus on the Emerging Stock Board
or satisfy other eligibility requirements for theoposed listing transaction” and “Item 7. Major 8hwlders and Related Party Transactions—
Related Party Transactions”.

In accordance with the various laws of the releyanmsdictions in which our subsidiaries and afiés are organized, each of our
subsidiaries and affiliates and their respectiveaors owe various duties to their respectiveedzders. As a result, the actions we wish our
subsidiaries or affiliates to take could be in diobfvith their or their directors’ legal duties ew to their other shareholders. When those
conflicts arise, our ability to cause our subsidisior affiliates to take the action that we desiay be limited.

Any future outbreak of health epidemics and outbkesaof contagious diseases, including avian influenzswine flu or Severe Acut
Respiratory Syndrome, may materially affect our ogttons and business

Influenza viruses circulating in animals pose tls¢a human health. Humans can become ill wherciatewith viruses from animal
sources, such as avian influenza virus subtypesIHBIN2 and H7N9 and swine influenza virus subtypg#bll and H3N2. An outbreak of a
contagious disease such as New Influenza A or wmmemonly known as the “bird flu” and “swine flu"e8ere Acute Respiratory Syndrome
(SARS), or more recently, avian influenza with gisubtype H7N9, for which there is inadequate tneat or no known cure or vaccine, may
potentially result in a quarantine of infected eaygles and related persons, and adversely affectpmrations at one or more of our facilitie:
the operations of our customers or suppliers. Waabpredict the impact that any further futureboeék of the aforementioned influenza
viruses or other diseases could have on our bissares results of operations.

We face substantial political risk associated widbing business in Taiwan, particularly due to redethomestic political events and the
strained relations between the Republic of Chinadathe Peopl’s Republic of China, that could negatively affeatir business and the
market price of our common shares.

Our principal executive offices and most of outitesand assembly facilities are located in Taiwasna result, our business, financial
condition and results of operations and the maskiee of our common shares may be affected by admimgROC governmental policies, as
well as social instability and diplomatic and sbdevelopments in or affecting Taiwan which aredo&y our control. For example, the ROC
has a unique international political status. Th&€R@vernment regards Taiwan as a renegade proaimteloes not recognize the legitimacy of
the ROC. Although significant economic and cultuedhtions have been strengthened in recent yedanseekbn the ROC and the PRC, relations
have often been strained. In March 2005, the PR@mmnent enacted the “Anti-Secession Law” codifyitsgoolicy of retaining the right to
use military force to gain control over Taiwan, tgararly under what it considers as highly provibgacircumstances, such as a declaration o
independence by Taiwan or the refusal by the RC&tept the PRC'’s stated “One China” policy. Pasetbpments related to the interaction
between the ROC and the PRC have on occasion deprdse market prices of the securities of Taiwamneslaiwan-related companies,
including our own. Relations between the ROC ardRRC and other factors affecting military, poéitior economic conditions in Taiwan
could have a material adverse effect on our firelremndition and results of operations, as wethasmarket price and the liquidity of our
common shares.

The business and operations of our business asdesiand our own business operations are vulnerall@isruptions that may be caused by
natural disasters and other events.

We currently provide most of our testing servidestigh our facilities in the Hsinchu Industrial Pand the Hsinchu Science Park in
Taiwan and the Shanghai Qingpu Industrial Zone,ahdf our assembly services through our factitie the Southern Taiwan Science Park
and the Shanghai Qingpu Industrial Zone. Significlamage or other impediments to these faciliteea sesult of natural disasters, industrial
strikes or industrial accidents could significaritigrease our operating costs.

Certain regions we operate in are particularly spsble to earthquakes and associated naturaltdisagor example, in late 1999,
Taiwan suffered severe earthquakes which causedisant property damages and loss of life, patédy in the central part of Taiwan. The
earthquakes damaged production facilities and aelyeaffected the operations of many companieshaebin the semiconductor and other
industries. We experienced an aggregate of NT$8omiin damages to our machinery and equipmentijties, inventory and five days of
delay in production schedule as a result of theeve March 2011, Sendai of Japan registered ghepzake of 9.0 Mw (moment magnitude
scale) off the coast of Japan (the “Sendai EartkejlaThe Sendai Earthquake was recorded as megtnfal earthquake to hit Japan and the
fourth most powerful earthquake in the world. Thetlequake triggered tsunami warnings and evacuattong Japan’s Pacific coast and in at
least 20 countries, including Taiwan and Mainlafdn@. In April 2013, an earthquake registering aynide of approximately 6.6- 7.0 Mw
with epicenter located in Lushan County, Ya'’anh8&n (the “Lushan Earthquake”). Sichuan proving@lernment released information on
April 21, 2013 confirming 186 deaths and up to 2ispns missing and 12,100 injured victim reportsofthe date of this Annual Report on
Form 20-F, the official statistics related to ttehges caused by the Lushan Earthquake was nataible.
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In January and February 2008, certain parts of MadchChina, particularly in the southern, centrad @astern regions, experienced
reportedly the most severe winter in the countrsetent decades, which resulted in significantexidnsive damages to factories, power lines
homes, automobiles, crops and other propertieskdblds, transportation and communications disrumgti@and other losses in the affected areas
In addition, in May 2008, certain semiconductor pamies with facilities in eastern Mainland Chingersenced production disruption
reportedly due to power outages caused by theréadlficertain electricity supply system in the andeere the plants are located. We cannot
assure you that our facilities in the Shanghai Qintpdustrial Zone will not be adversely affectgdfiture snowstorms, power outages,
earthquakes or other similar events.

Natural disasters and other events like aforemeeati®@vents cause severe property damages to tgenstfrastructures and death and
injuries to Civilians. In Sendai Earthquake, malgctrical generators were disabled, and at leasethuclear power plant reactors partially
melted down and experienced a chemical explositeneiely damaging surrounding buildings. We carassure you that our production
facilities, operations and market located in Taiwad Mainland China will not be adversely affectisdresult of the events that take place
overseas like the Sendai Earthquake, includingatixti emission from the damaged nuclear power plansubsequent future earthquakes tha
may take place.

The production facilities of many of our suppli@rsmediately after customers and providers of comgletary semiconductor
manufacturing services, including foundries, aated in Taiwan and Mainland China. If our custesrae adversely affected by natural
disasters or other events occurring in or affectiregse geographic areas, it could result in adedti the demand for our testing and assembly
services. If our suppliers and providers of com@atary semiconductor manufacturing services aectdtl by such events, our production
schedule could be halted or delayed. As a resuitajar earthquake, snowstorm, other natural disasustrial strike, industrial accident or
other disruptive event occurring in or affectingwan or Mainland China could severely disrupt oarmal operation of business and have a
material adverse effect on our financial conditm results of operations.

Any future outbreak of radiatio-related disease as a result of nuclear power plegdctors damage caused by the Sendai Earthquakg ma
materially adversely affect our operations and busss.

The Sendai Earthquake raises tremendous conceons thie possible effects of radiation emission fitln damaged nuclear power
plants. Japanese official authorities are workiridp wxperts in assessing the risk and determirtiegbest courses of actions to implement to
escape harmful radiation. The potential healthotdfdue to exposure to harmful radiation may beptaary or permanent harmful effects in
nature.

Multiple radioactive gases could possibly be erdittea situation where uranium attains a “meltdowstaite, which is a severe overhea
of the core of a nuclear reactor, in which the cogdts and radiation and heat are caused to esthjgewould occur if the containment system
partially or fully fails. The particles that ardeased with the gases due to the meltdown woultidspewed particles of iodine-131, strontium
90 and cesium-137. These might enter into a hurgdelng swallowed, absorbed through the skin, balied. Depending on the chemical
characteristics of each of these and their pretitiledor certain body tissues, they could causeemnof such organs as bones, soft tissues ne
bones, thyroid gland, and the bone marrow (typydatiown as leukemia).

Acute or very high level radiation exposure canseaa person to become very ill or to die quickbynizing radiation, which is defined as
high-energy particles or electromagnetic wavesdhatbreak chemical bonds, damage humans by disgugliular function, particularly in
tissues with rapid growth and turnover of cellsetrse, high level and/or excessive radiation exygosiay result in acute radiation syndrome
whereby harmful effects to the human body may béesmced by skin burns, internal organ deterioratideeding, vomiting, bone marrow
distortion and deaths. If the radiation exposuless intense and/or more prolonged at a lowel,|éven the central nervous system, kidneys,
thyroid gland, and liver may be affected. Cancehésmost well known effect, and may affect virtyany significantly exposed tissue.

Certain health effects due to exposure to harnafdilation does not have adequate treatment or kieowenor vaccine, consequently, may
potentially result in a quarantine of infected eaygles and related persons, and adversely affectpmrations at one or more of our facilitie:
the operations of our customers or suppliers. Waabpredict the probability of any future outbrexdkadiation related diseases as a possible
result of nuclear power plants damage caused bg¢nelai Earthquake or the extent of the materiadi@e impact that this could have on our
business and results of operations.
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Risks Relating to Our Corporate Structure

Our ability to receive dividends and other paymefrtsm our subsidiaries may be restricted by commiakcstatutory and legal restrictions,
and thereby materially adversely affect our ability grow, fund investments, make acquisitions, ghyidends, repay or repurchase
outstanding indebtedness and otherwise fund and doct our business.

The ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividendswake other distributions to us is restricted goag other things, the availability of
funds and the terms of various credit arrangememtisred into by our subsidiaries, as well as stafiand other legal restrictions. In addition,
although there are currently no foreign exchanggrobregulations which restrict the ability of osubsidiaries located in Taiwan to distribute
dividends to us, we cannot assure you that theaataegulations will not be changed and that thiity of our subsidiaries to distribute
dividends to us will not be restricted in the flduA Taiwan company is generally not permittedistribute dividends or to make any other
distributions to shareholders for any year in whtddid not have either earnings or retained egwmif@xcluding reserves). In addition, before
distributing a dividend to shareholders followitng tend of a fiscal year, the company must recowgipast losses, pay all outstanding taxes
and set aside 10% of its annual net income (ldes years’ losses and outstanding taxes) as a fegalve until the accumulated legal reserve
equals its paid-in capital, and may set aside aiapeserve.

In addition, PRC law requires that our PRC-incogped subsidiary only distributes dividends outtehiet income, if any, as determined
in accordance with PRC accounting standards andatigns. Under PRC law, it is also required toastle at least 10% of its after-tax net
income each year into its reserve fund until theuawlated legal reserve amounts to 50% of its teigid capital. PRC-incorporated companie:
are further required to maintain a bonus and welfand at percentages determined at their soleedisn. The reserve fund and the bonus anc
welfare fund are not distributable as dividendsrééwer, a ROC-incorporated company is only abletdare dividends at its annual general
meeting of shareholders, which cannot occur uftégra&ompletion of its annual financial statemetsy limitation on dividend payments by
our subsidiaries could materially adversely affaat ability to grow, fund investments, make acgiass, pay dividends, repay or repurchase
outstanding indebtedness, and otherwise fund andum our business.

ThaiLin and He & Fang 2005 Revocable Living Trusbur two largest shareholders, may have significantiuence over our company and
may cause us to take actions that may not be, draia from taking actions that may be, in our bestterest or the best interest of our other
shareholders

As of March 31, 2013, ThaiLin, ChipMOS Taiwan’s 9% owned subsidiary, directly owned 13.4% of ounown shares. He & Fang
2005 Revocable Living Trust owned 8.4% of our comrabares according to the 13G/A filed by He Zhengith SEC on January 22, 2013.
These two largest shareholders, individually otemtively, through their equity interests may haignificant influence over matters submitted
to our shareholders for approval and other corpamations, such as:

. election of directors
. timing and manner of dividend distributior

. approval of contracts between us and these twedaghareholders or their respective affiliatedctwioould involve conflicts of
interest;

. open market purchase programs or other purchasas @bmmon share
. delay, defer or prevent a change in who contrgl:

. discourage bids for our shares at a premium owenthrket price; an

. adversely affect the market price of our commornresh

Moreover, because large shareholders have poteotiegr to direct or influence our corporate actjoms may be required to engage in
transactions that may not be agreeable to our stiemeholders or that may not be in the best ist@feour other shareholders.

Our ability to make further investments in ChipMOEaiwan may be dependent on relevant stock excharrggsiirements or other
regulatory approval requirements. If ChipMOS Taiwada unable to receive the equity financing it reges, its ability to grow and fund its
operations, and as a result our ability to grow andnduct our business, may be materially adverssfgcted.

Even though trading on the Emerging Stookr of Gre Tai Securities Market of ChipMOS Taivgashares under stock code “8150”
commenced on April 19, 2013, ChipMOS Taiwan wilhtioue to depend on its shareholders, ChipMOS Bdenand Siliconware Precision,
meet its equity financing requirements prior toiemmation of its plan of listing on the TSE. SeeChipMOS Taiwans ability to maintain it
trading status on Taiwan’s Emerging Stock Boardtarglentually list on the Taiwan Stock Exchangédpendent on factors outside of the
Company or ChipMOS Taiwan’s control and satisfattié stock exchange requirements. ChipMOS Taiway nod be able to overcome such
factors that disrupt its trading status on the Eyimgr Stock Board or satisfy other eligibility regerinents for the proposed listing transaction”
and “Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related ParéynJactions—Related Party Transactions”. Any chedatribution by us to ChipMOS
Taiwan may require the approval of the relevantlsexchange or other ROC authorities. For exangsig,capital contribution by us to
ChipMOS Taiwan will require the approval of thetzarities of the Science Park Administration. We maybe able to obtain any such
approval in the future in a timely manner, or &tl&iChipMOS Taiwan is unable to receive the egtihancing it requires, its ability to grow
and fund its operations, and as a result ChipMO@Bda’s ability to grow and conduct our businesay ine materially adversely affected.
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ChipMOS Taiwan'’s ability to maintain its trading atus on Taiwan’s Emerging Stock Board and to eveally list on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange is dependent on factors outside of the @amy or ChipMOS Taiwa'’s control and satisfaction of stock exchange recginents.
ChipMOS Taiwan may not be able to overcome suchtdag that disrupt its trading status on the EmergjrStock Board or satisfy other
eligibility requirements for the proposed listingansaction.

On March 14, 2013, the Board of Directors of Chip®Bermuda approved a plan for listing ChipMOS Taiwa Taiwan’'s Emerging
Stock Board in the second quarter of 2013 andhtisGhipMOS Taiwan on the Taiwan Stock Exchange ET$n the second quarter of 2014.
The Company subsequently engaged underwritersotoda assistance to the Company and to ChipMOS draiwecessary for ChipMOS
Taiwan to become eligible to list on TSE. The tngdof shares of ChipMOS Taiwan on Taiwan’'s Emerd@igck Board of Gre Tai Securities
Market under stock code “8150” commenced on A@il2013.

Whether requirements can be satisfied for ChipM@Bvan’s continued trading on Taiwan’s Emerging &tBoard or listing on the TSE
depends in part on market conditions and otheofagctot within the control of the Company or ChipBl@aiwan. Further, in addition to other
TSE listing requirements, the Company will be reedito reduce its ownership in ChipMOS Taiwan té67@r less by sale to third party
investors upon or prior to the completion of theETBting. The Company or ChipMOS Taiwan may nogbée to find investors willing to
purchase ChipMOS Taiwan shares in such a posal#dransaction. Entry into any definitive agreetaeamith respect to such a possible sale
transaction will be conditional upon, among othersether the Company is able to find third partyeistors willing to purchase ChipMOS
Taiwan shares, satisfaction of other requiremamtsréding or listing on the TSE and the developnoéChipMOS Taiwan’s application to be
listed on the TSE. For these reasons there can bssurance that ChipMOS Taiwan’s shares will owatito trade on Taiwan’s Emerging
Stock Board or that ChipMOS Taiwan will be listedtbe TSE.

Risks Relating to Our Common Shares

Volatility in the price of our common shares maysdt in shareholder litigation that could in turnesult in substantial costs and a diversion
of our management’s attention and resources.

The financial markets in the United States andratbantries have experienced significant price asidme fluctuations, and market
prices of technology companies have been and amntmbe extremely volatile. Volatility in the peiof our common shares may be caused b
factors outside of our control and may be unrelatedisproportionate to our results of operatidnghe past, following periods of volatility in
the market price of a public company’s securitedgreholders have frequently instituted securdiass action litigation against that company.
Litigation of this kind could result in substant@sts and a diversion of our management’s attertna resources.

Certain provisions in our constitutive documents @ our severance agreements with our executiviécefs make the acquisition of us by
another company more difficult and costly and théoee may delay, defer or prevent a change of cohtro

Our bye-laws provide that our board of directordiigded into three classes of directors, eachsdlade re-elected only once every three
years. As a result, shareholders would not genyeboallable to replace a majority of the directorsl after two annual general meetings.
addition, any extraordinary corporate transactiochsas a merger, amalgamation or consolidation,sale or transfer of all or substantially all
of our assets, cannot be done without the appfwsthareholders representing 70% of the total gotights of all shareholders having the right
to vote at such general meeting called to consdeh extraordinary transaction. These provisiormiinconstitutive documents may increase
the difficulty faced by a party which seeks to aogeontrol of our board or to approve an extraoady transaction.

In 2007, we entered into change in control severagreements with certain executive officers purstawhich we agreed to pay cert
severance payments if a change in control everddfised in the change in control severance agratsheccurs and the employment of such
executive officer is terminated by our company othan for cause or by such executive officer foodj reasons within two years following 1
occurrence of the change in control event. Theseeagents may increase the cost of a party seekiaffdct a change in control of our
company.

Future sales, pledge or issuance of common shanrgsig or our current shareholders could depress @lware price and you may suffer
dilution.

Sales of substantial amounts of shares in the puidirket, the perception that future sales maymaruhe pledge of a substantial por
of our common shares could depress the prevailiagket price of our shares. As of March 31, 2013hae approximately 33 million comm
shares issued and outstanding. As of March 31,,2ZM&Lin, He & Fang 2005 Revocable Living Trust,®Capital Management, LLC ,
Siliconware Precision, and, Chilton Investment Camp LLC our five largest shareholders, owned 4,274, 2,788,123, 2,421,949, 2,243,
and 1,781,416 common shares respectively, repiagantthe aggregate of approximately 41.1% of musstanding common shares. See “Iten
7. Major Shareholders and Related Party TransactieMajor Shareholders”.
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Mosel in the past decided to sell a significantiporof our common shares in order to raise fuirdgune 2006, Mosel sold
1,739,130 common shares through its wholly-owndxsisiiary, Giant Haven, under a shelf registratitatesnent which has since expired. In
addition, in March 2007, we issued 3,043,749 comstares pursuant to a share purchase and submt@gtieement with ChipMOS Taiwan
and Siliconware Precision, and we entered intgatation rights agreement in March 2007 withc®ifiware Precision, pursuant to which we
granted to Siliconware Precision certain rightseiguire us to register these common shares fousaler the Securities Act. In July 2007,
Mosel sold 2,030,316 common shares through Giamehl#o ProMOS and Powertech Technology, and we ghemted Giant Haven, ProMOS
and Powertech Technology certain rights to requsréo register these common shares for sale uhde3dcurities Act. For a shareholder th,
not our affiliate these shares may be resold putsweRule 144 after lapse of the applicable h@dieriod. In 2008, ProMOS failed to meet its
payment obligations to ThaiLin. Subsequently in 882009, ThaiLin acquired 1,015,158 common shawea ProMOS pursuant to its
enforcement of the collateral under a Stock Plesigreement between ThaiLin and ProMOS dated Dece®h2008. Furthermore, each of
Siliconware Precision, Mosel and ThaiLin may beeablsell, in any three-month period, that numbighose ChipMOS common shares that
each of Siliconware Precision, Mosel and ThaiLimewas the case may be, up to the greater oféipencent of our outstanding common
shares or (ii) the average weekly trading volumewfcommon shares as reported on the NASDAQ daydeket during the four calendar
weeks prior to filing a notice under Rule 144(h) &my such sales pursuant to Rule 144(e) undeBd¢iearities Act. In November 2012, ThailLin
sold 2,000,000 common shares and Siliconware Poacsld 800,000 common shares pursuant to a sacpoffering (the “Secondary
Offering”). From April 2012 to March 2013, Moselldd.,047,311 common shares through its wholly-owsggsidiary, Giant Haven, under
Rule 144.

On September 14, 2007, ChipMOS Bermuda issued 35L;0mmon shares pursuant to a share exchangadt@mswith ChipMOS
Taiwan, under which ChipMOS Bermuda exchanged onenton share for every 8.4 ChipMOS Taiwan shares tluiestanding. Following the
completion of the share exchange transaction, CGiM aiwan became our wholly-owned subsidiary. Ibrkary 2010, we agreed to sell
15.8% of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s outstanding shares tw&ilware Precision. In January 2011, the sharehasectransaction was completed and
we owned 84.2% of ChipMOS Taiwan’s outstanding skas of December 31, 2011. On April 16, 2013 aasgl ChipMOS Taiwan'’s listing
plan on the TSE, we completed the sale of 6.5 onilbutstanding ChipMOS Taiwan shares or 0.8% ofdte number of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s
outstanding shares, at the price of NT$15.0 persttaChipMOS Taiwars underwriters for the TSE listing plan and to @erbthers, includin
non-US employees of ChipMOS Taiwan. As of the ddtihis Annual Report on Form 20-F, we continuewmn approximately 703 million
ChipMOS Taiwan shares, representing 83.4% of ChigVi@iwan’s outstanding shares. See “Item 3. Kegrinhtion—Risk Factors—
ChipMOS Taiwan’s ability to maintain its tradingagis on Taiwan's Emerging Stock Board and to eadlytlist on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange is dependent on factors outside of thep@ognor ChipMOS Taiwan’s control and satisfactiéistock exchange requirements.
ChipMOS Taiwan may not be able to overcome suctofachat disrupt its trading status on the Emey@tock Board or satisfy other
eligibility requirements for the proposed listimgrisaction” for additional information on ChipMOS Taiwan’s lig plan. We plan to issue,
from time to time, additional shares in conneciidth employee compensation and to finance poséiltige capital expenditures, investments
or acquisitions. See “Item 6. Directors, Senior igement and Employees—Share Option Plan and Shgmeéiation Rights Plan” for a
discussion of the Share Option Plan that we hawetad for the benefit of all of our directors, offrs, employees and consultants. The isst
of additional shares may have a dilutive effecotirer shareholders and may cause the price ofaumon shares to decrease.

In addition, the indictment relating to Mr. Hu@hiu Hu alleges that embezzled funds were useahviestments by PacMOS Technolo¢
Holdings Limited, or PacMOS, which, as of March 3013, owned 3% of our outstanding common sharss result, PacMOS may be
ordered by relevant authorities to dispose ofit&estments made with any embezzled funds, whichnesuylt in a sale of our shares by
PacMOS. A sale of a significant number of our skdme PacMOS or our other current shareholders abejaess our share price.

The share numbers disclosed in the foregoing paphgrare adjusted for the Company’s 1-for-evergwérnse stock split effective on
January 21, 2011.

If the trading price of our common shares declinese may face a limited public market for our commehares and reduced availability
future debt or equity financing

Companies listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market (“NASQA are subject to delisting for, among other tlinfgilure to maintain a
minimum closing bid price of US$1.00 per shareF0rconsecutive business days. We are in compliaitbethe NASDAQ Listing Rules as of
the date of this Annual Report on Form 20-F. Weenrast in compliance with the NASDAQ minimum bidg&irequirement from
September 15, 2009 until May 5, 2010, when we regghtompliance. During this time, we applied ford NASDAQ approved, the transfer of
our listing from NASDAQ Global Select Market to NB8Q Capital Market. If the bid price of our commstock falls below US$1.00 per
share for 30 consecutive business days again ifuthee, we may be subject to delisting. If our coam shares are delisted from the NASDAQ
Capital Market, our common shares would likely &@dthe over-the-counter market, which could msddéng our common shares more
difficult. Smaller quantities of shares would litdde bought and sold, transactions could be de|aymd security analysts’ coverage of us may
be reduced. In addition, in the event our commareshare delisted, broker-dealers have certaifategy burdens imposed upon them, which
may discourage broker-dealers from effecting treti@as in our common shares. These factors conlid dur common shares’ liquidity and
result in lower prices and larger spreads in tldeanid ask prices for our common shares.
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Future declines in our share price could also Santly impair our ability to raise additional ressary capital through equity or debt
financing, and could significantly increase owngustilution to shareholders caused by our issuiqgjtg in financing or other transactions. A
general permission under the Exchange Control 8¢Rland the Exchange Control Regulation 1973 (dner welevant legislations and
regulations) has been given by the Bermuda Mon&atkority (the “BMA”) for the issue and transfef @ur common shares, notes and other
securities to and between non-residents of Berrfardexchange control purposes, provided that oarraon shares remain listed on an
appointed stock exchange (which includes listindhenNASDAQ Capital Market). There can be no asseadhat the BMA will give the same
or a similar consent in the event our common shareso longer listed on the NASDAQ Capital Maretinother appointed stock exchange.
In the absence of such a general consent, speoifigents of the BMA would be required for all issaed transfers of our shares, notes and
other securities, unless such issues and/or tnanfsf under certain exemptions as provided byBMA.

Item 4. Information on the Company
Overview of the Company

We believe that we are one of the leading indepangi®viders of semiconductor testing and assersdlyices. Specifically, we believe
that we are one of the leading independent prosidétesting and assembly services for LCD andrdtaepanel display driver semiconduct
in Taiwan and for advanced memory and logic/mixigaia products in Taiwan and Mainland China. Thptdef our engineering expertise
and the breadth of our testing and assembly teofgies enable us to provide our customers with ackéand comprehensive testing and
assembly services. In addition, our geographicemres in Taiwan and Mainland China is attractiveustomers wishing to take advantage of
the logistical and cost efficiencies stemming froan close proximity to foundries and producersafsumer electronic products in Taiwan
Mainland China. Our production facilities are laghin Hsinchu and Tainan, Taiwan and Shanghai, ldiathChina.

Our Structure and History

We are a holding company, incorporated in Augui020nder the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as datr(the “Bermuda
Companies Act”), under the name “ChipMOS TECHNOL@GSGI(Bermuda) LTD". Our principal place of businesfocated at No. 1, R&D
Road 1, Hsinchu Science Park, Hsinchu, Taiwan, Blépaf China and our phone number is (886) 3 58383 We provide most of our
services in Taiwan through our subsidiary, ChipMECHNOLOGIES INC., or ChipMOS Taiwan, in which welth a majority ownership
interest, and its subsidiaries and investees. e @ovide services in Mainland China through CHIBATECHNOLOGIES (Shanghai) LTD.,
or ChipMOS Shanghai, a wholly-owned subsidiary @dDERN MIND TECHNOLOGY LIMITED, or Modern Mind, whic is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of ThaiLin Semiconductor Corp.ThaiLin. As of March 31, 2013, ThaiLin, a 42.9%m&d subsidiary of ChipMOS
Taiwan, owned 13.4% of our common shares, He & P2Aip Revocable Living Trust, owned 8.4% of our owon shares, DLS Capital
Management, LLC , owned 7.3% of our common sh&@ispnware Precision, owned 6.7% of our commorrehand 15.8% of ChipMOS
Taiwan’s outstanding shares, and Chilton Investn@ampany, LLC, owned 5.3% of our common shares.
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The following chart illustrates our corporate sture and our equity interest in each of our printgubsidiaries and affiliates as of March 31,
2013.

ChipMOs TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. &
(Bermuda)

J' 84,20

ChupMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC
(Tarwan)

42.9%

L

Thailin Semiconductor Corp.
(Taiwan)

‘ 100.0%

i

MODERN MIND TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(BVI)

l 100.0%

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Shanghai) LTD.
(People’s Republic of China)

Notes:

(1) Under ROC Financial Accounting Standards ared#gulations of the Taiwan Securities and FutBrggau, we are required to consolidate the findmegults of any subsidiaries in
which we hold a controlling interest or voting irget in excess of 50%. We consolidated the findnegults of ChipMOS Taiwan, ChipMOS Japan Inc.CbipMOS Japan (which was
liquidated in October 2009), ChipMOS USA Inc., dri@VOS USA, ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (H.K.) Limited, @hipMOS Hong Kong (which was dissolved on July 2011),
Modern Mind, its wholl-owned subsidiary, ChipMOS Shanghai and Thai

(2) On March 27, 2007, we completed a share puechad subscription transaction with ChipMOS Taiwad Siliconware Precision, under which we and Cl@y@Taiwan purchased all
of Siliconware Precision’s equity interest in Chi@i8 Taiwan, and Siliconware Precision subscribe?l@d3,749 shares (adjusted to reflect the effettfofr-every4 reverse stock sp
effective on January 21, 2011) of our newly issceehmon shares through a private placement. Follpwirch transaction, on September 14, 2007, we @atetbh share exchange
transaction with ChipMOS Taiwan pursuant to whighexchanged one common share for every 8.4 ChiplVEd8an shares. Following the completion of the sretchange
transaction, ChipMOS Taiwan became our wholly-owseldsidiary. In February 2010, we agreed to seB%5of ChipMOS Taiwan’s outstanding shares to 8iligare Precision. The
share purchase transaction was completed in Ja@0ady On April 16, 2013, as part of ChipMOS Taivdrsting plan on the TSE, we completed the s#lé.5 million outstanding
ChipMOS Taiwan shares or 0.8% of the total numl&hpMOS Taiwan’s outstanding shares, at the pofcdT$15.0 per share to ChipMOS Taiwaninderwriters for the TSE listit
plan and to certain others, including non-US emgésyof ChipMOS Taiwan. As of the date of this AdRegport on Form 20-F, we own approximately 703ionl ChipMOS Taiwan
shares, representing 83.4% of ChipMOS Taiwan’stanting shares. See “Item 3. Key Information—RisktBrs— ChipMOS Taiwan’s ability to maintain itading status on
Taiwan’s Emerging Stock Board and to eventuallydis the Taiwan Stock Exchange is dependent oonrfaoutside of the Company or ChipMOS Taiwan’s marénd satisfaction of
stock exchange requirements. ChipMOS Taiwan mayeatble to overcome such factors that disruptatting status on the Emerging Stock Board or fyatither eligibility
requirements for the proposed listing transact” for additional information on ChipMOS Taiw’s listing plan

Below is a description of our principal consolidhtibsidiaries:

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC.ChipMOS Taiwan was incorporated in Taiwan in JUQ1 as a joint venture company of Mosel and
Siliconware Precision and with the participatiorotiier investors. Its operations consist of thérigsand assembly of semiconductors as well
as gold bumping and memory module manufacturingadégiired our interest in ChipMOS Taiwan by

24



Table of Contents

issuing our common shares to ChipMOS Taiwan’s s$twdders in exchange for their 70.3% shareholdinGhipMOS Taiwan in January 2001.
In October 2001, ChipMOS Taiwan issued 6,911,738rmoon shares as employee bonuses. In December®802sued 132,793 common
shares in exchange for 5,633,442 ChipMOS Taiwameomshares held by these employees.

On March 27, 2007, we completed a share purchassuwscription transaction with ChipMOS Taiwan &ilicconware Precision, under
which we and ChipMOS Taiwan purchased all of Siliware Precision’s equity interest in ChipMOS Taiwand Siliconware Precision
subscribed to 3,043,749 of our newly issued comaitres through a private placement. As of Marct28@y, we held 99.1% of the
outstanding common shares of ChipMOS Taiwan. Onebaper 14, 2007, we completed a share exchangsatrion with ChipMOS Taiwan
pursuant to which we exchanged one common shaevéoy 8.4 ChipMOS Taiwan shares. In connectioh #ie share exchange transaction,
ChipMOS Bermuda and ChipMOS Taiwan paid in the aggte NT$53 million in cash to purchase fractigteres and shares held by
dissenting shareholders, and ChipMOS Bermuda issbg®31 new common shares. Following the compiaifcthe share exchange
transaction, ChipMOS Taiwan became our wholly-owselsidiary. In February 2010, we agreed to seB%bof ChipMOS Taiwan’s
outstanding shares to Siliconware Precision. Tlaeespurchase transaction was completed in Jan@dry. ®n April 16, 2013, as part of
ChipMOS Taiwan’s listing plan on the TSE, we contgdethe sale of 6.5 million outstanding ChipMOSWah shares or 0.8% of the total
number of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s outstanding sharesheiprice of NT$15.0 per share to ChipMOS Taiwamderwriters for the TSE listing
plan and to certain others, including non-US emgésyof ChipMOS Taiwan. As of the date of this AdriReport on Form 20-F, we own
approximately 703 million ChipMOS Taiwan share@resenting 83.4% of ChipMOS Taiwan’s outstandingrel. See “ltem 3. Key
Information—Risk Factors— ChipMOS Taiwan’s abilttymaintain trading status of ChipMOS Taiwan onvilaai’'s Emerging Stock Board
and to eventually list ChipMOS Taiwan on the Taiv&nock Exchange is dependent on factors outsi@oafpany or ChipMOS Taiwan’s
control and satisfaction of stock exchange requémreisy ChipMOS Taiwan may not be able to overconsé $actors that disrupt its trading
status on the Emerging Stock Board or satisfy otligibility requirements for the proposed listilgnsaction’ for additional information on
ChipMOS Taiwan’s listing plan. See “Item 3. Keydnfhation—Risk Factors—Risks Relating to Our Corpo@tructure— ChipMOS
Taiwan'’s ability to maintain its trading status Baiwan’s Emerging Stock Board and to eventuallydis the Taiwan Stock Exchange is
dependent on factors outside of the Company orMBI Taiwans control and satisfaction of stock exchange requénts. ChipMOS Taiwe
may not be able to overcome such factors that glistsitrading status on the Emerging Stock Boarsktisfy other eligibility requirements for
the proposed listing transaction. ”

The share numbers disclosed in the foregoing paphgare adjusted to reflect the Company’s 1-foredereverse stock split effective
January 21, 2011.

MODERN MIND TECHNOLOGY LIMITED and ChipMOS TECHNOLGGIES (Shanghai) LTD.Modern Mind was incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands in January 2002. Modéfimd conducts its operations through ChipMOS Shanghwholly-owned subsidiary
incorporated in Mainland China in June 2002. ChigB/€hanghai is engaged in wafer testing and semimbodassembly and testing. We
acquired a 100% equity interest in Modern Mind at@mber 12, 2002, and then transferred it to JespBecember 31, 2002. In 2003, we
acquired from Jesper a convertible note in the armnoftilUS$37.5 million issued by Modern Mind thatynize converted into a controlling
equity interest in Modern Mind at a conversion mtene ordinary share of Modern Mind for every U if the repayment is not made wl
due. In 2004, we restructured our control of Chipf8hanghai and our Mainland China operations. @n28j 2004, we replaced the US$:
million convertible note previously issued by Modéind in its entirety with a US$62.8 million denthnote issued by Modern Mind, with 1
difference representing a US$25 million loan thatextended to Modern Mind from the net proceedsuofluly 2004 offering of common
shares. In addition, we extended a loan in theeggggge amount of US$50 million to Modern Mind froine net proceeds of our November 200¢
convertible debt offering in exchange for demantkadssued by Modern Mind in the same aggregataian{the “MMT Notes”). The MMT
Notes were convertible at any time into common ehagpresenting, immediately after the converstmpst 100% of the then outstand
common shares of Modern Mind at a conversion rat¢S$1.00 for each common share of Modern Mind.neayt under the MMT Notes we
fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Jesper sexlred by a pledge agreement in respect of tlve ity interest in Modern Mind and
ChipMOS Shanghai. We obtained from Jesper an io&vie option to acquire at any time the commoneshaf Modern Mind then owned by
Jesper. Under an assignment and assumption agresigiead on April 22, 2011 (the “MMT Assignment Agment”),ChipMOS agreed to si
the MMT Notes to ThailLin for a purchase price opegximately US$40 million subject to certain clasiconditions. Post completion of MMT
Assignment Agreement transaction, ThaiLin immedyatenverted the MMT Notes into common shares offetm Mind and purchased all of
the remaining common shares of Modern Mind fronpdgswith ChipMOS Shanghai becoming a wholly-owsatsidiary of ThaiLin. The
MMT Assignment Agreement was completed on Octob@031.

On July 1, 2010, ChipMOS Bermuda and ChipMOS Shangitered into an exclusive services agreemensppat to which ChipMOS
Shanghai provides services exclusively to ChipM@®nida or customers designated by ChipMOS Bermididder the exclusive services
agreement, ChipMOS Bermuda agrees to procure geztpiipment required to render those services ansign such equipment for the
exclusive use of ChipMOS Shanghai. The exclusiveices agreement has a term of ten years and uoilessvise terminated by either party
giving at least 30 days prior written notice to theiration of such ten-year term, will automatigaénew for another ten-year term upon its
expiry. In addition, under the exclusive servicgeeament, ChipMOS Bermuda has the discretion toitette the exclusive services agreemen
for any reason at any time by giving 30 days’ pvieitten notice to ChipMOS Shanghai.

25



Table of Contents

ThaiLin Semiconductor CorpThaiLin was incorporated in Taiwan in May 1996, amtisted on the GreTai Securities Market in Taiwa
It is engaged in the provision of semiconductotingsservices. ChipMOS Taiwan acquired a 41.8%régkin ThaiLin in December 2002.
Under applicable accounting principles, ThaiLin wagssolidated into our consolidated financial stegats in 2003 because ChipMOS Taiwan
was deemed to exert significant control over Thailhirough common directors and management.

On March 4, 2008, ChipMOS Taiwan made a loan iarmount of NT$145 million that bears interest aat@ of 4.69% per annum to
Taiwan Kolin Co. Ltd., or Kolin, a major sharehalad ThaiLin, ChipMOS Taiwan'’s 42.9% owned subsigiadNT$15 million of this loan was
repaid in 2008. The loan is secured by a pledgédiy of 11 million common shares of ThailLin. As thfe date of this Annual Report on Form
20-F, the loan has been fully repaid and the stiipjecige has been released accordingly. See “ltdviajor Shareholders and Related Party
Transactions—Related Party Transactions—ThaiLini€emauctor Corp.”

As of March 31, 2013, ChipMOS Taiwan held (exclgdihe ThaiLin common shares pledged to us in caiorewith the loan to Kolin)
a 42.9% interest in ThaiLin. Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng, chairman and chief executive officer and theadweand chairman of ChipMOS Taiwan,
is also a director and the chairman of ThaiLinadilition, four of the nine directors of ThaiLin agpointed by ChipMOS Taiwan. As of
March 31, 2013, ThaiLin held 4,474,211 of our catsiing shares, corresponding to 13.4% of all ofautstanding shares. See “ltem 7. Major
Shareholders and Related Party Transactions —dReRdrty Transactions—ThaiLin Semiconductor Corp.”

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (H.K.) LimitedChipMOS Hong Kong (formerly ChipMOS Far East Lind}evas incorporated in Hong
Kong in November 2002. It is engaged in semicormutetsting and assembly services and trading aegparts and tools. Effective May 31,
2005, the name of ChipMOS Far East Limited was ghdrto ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (H.K.) Limited. ChipMQ®ng Kong was
dissolved on July 20, 2011.

Industry Background

We provide a broad range of back-end testing sesyincluding engineering testing, wafer probing final testing of memory and
logic/mixed-signal semiconductors. We also offér@ad selection of leadframe-based and organidsiesased package assembly services
for memory and logic/mixed-signal semiconductorsr @vanced leadframe-based packages includerttat sutline packages, or TSOPs,
and our advanced organic substrate-based packadjede fine-pitch ball grid array packages or fpitsh BGA. In addition, we provide gold
bumping, testing and assembly services for LCDathdr flat-panel display driver semiconductors mptoying TCP, COF and COG
technologies.

Semiconductors tested and assembled by us arérupetsonal computers, graphics applications, siscpame consoles and personal
digital assistants, or PDAs, communications equimreuch as cellular handsets, and consumer etéctpooducts and display applications,
such as flat-panel displays. In 2012, 28.9% ofrmtrrevenue was derived from testing services famory and logic/mixed-signal
semiconductors, 33.2% from assembly services fanong and logic/mixed-signal semiconductors, 22.7étfLCD and other flat-panel
display driver semiconductor testing and assemdalyises and 15.2% from bumping services for sendootors.

Semiconductor Industry Trends

Growth in the semiconductor industry is largelywén by end-user demand for consumer electronicspramications equipment and
computers, for which semiconductors are criticahponents. The worldwide semiconductor industrydxaeerienced peaks and troughs over
the last decade, with a severe downturn at theo€2600 that was followed by a modest recovenate P002. Beginning in the fourth quarter
of 2008, the semiconductor industry commenced anatbwnturn that increased in unprecedented sguatd the first quarter of 2009. The
overall semiconductor industry commenced to recérneen the downturn in the second quarter of 2009 thee positive recovery trend
continues through 2012.

Selected Key Semiconductor Markets

While a recovery trend in end-user demand for negvienproved electronic products and applicationgiocoes, various sectors of the
semiconductor industry are in turn expected to fieftem a resumption in growth. These sectorsudel the memory semiconductor market,
and the LCD and other flat-panel display driver memductor market.
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Memory Semiconductor Market

The potential for memory market growth is linkedatdticipated memory content increases in consufeetrenics and PC applications
(after such time as a recovery occurs in end-userathd for these) due to increasing operating systguirements, increasing use of graphics
in gaming and other applications, continued grosfthroadband content and a transition to 64-bitaRehitecture. The memory market is
dominated by two segments—DRAM and flash memorye®a@l growth in the DRAM market is expected todsen by continued growth in
both the commaodity and niche DRAM market, as welgeowth opportunities in mobile DRAM as memoryuigments significantly increase
for mobile applications. Flash memory market patdmfrowth is expected to be driven by increasirepmory requirements for cellular
handsets, digital cameras, digital audio/video, athér mobile applications.

LCD and Other Flat-Panel Display Driver Semiconcdvarket

Flat-panel displays are used in applications ssdA@ monitors, notebook computers, television selljlar handsets and digital
cameras. The end-user demand for LCD and othep#la¢l display driver semiconductor experiencedwrdurn in 2007 and 2008. The LCD
driver market started to recover in the secondtquaf 2009 and the positive recovery trend comtththrough 2012.

Logic/Mixed-Signal Semiconductor Market

The communications market is one of the main dsizémpotential growth in the semiconductor industrygic/mixed-signal
semiconductors, which are chips with analog fumatiity covering more than half of the chip are® largely used in the communications
market. The increasing use of digital technologgammunications equipment requires chips with lgfital and analog functionality for
applications such as modems, network routers, begtccable set-top boxes and cellular handsetthedsize and cost of cellular handsets and
other communications-related devices have decreasetponents have increased in complexity. Logicéakisignal semiconductors, such as
LCD controllers and DVD controllers, are also usedonsumer electronic products.

Overview of the Semiconductor Manufacturing Process

The manufacturing of semiconductors is a complec@ss that requires increasingly sophisticatednerging and manufacturing
expertise. The manufacturing process may be bradidiged into the following stages:

4 -‘_f'||

Circuit Wafer C'a

Front End Design Fabrication mfp ChipMOS

Wafer
Probe

ﬂ' Ln

Back End Chi ﬂM.DS # ChipMOS '
Final Assembly
Test
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Process Description
Circuit Design The design of a semiconductor is developed by éagint circuit patterns and interconnectic
Wafer Fabrication Wafer fabrication begins with the generation ohatomask, a photographic negative onto which aitioesign

pattern is etched or transferred by an electromb@alaser beam writer. Each completed wafer castaiany
fabricated chips, each known as a -

Wafer Probe Each individual die is then electrically testedpoobed, for defects. Dies that fail this testdiszarded, or, in some
cases, salvaged using laser rey

Assembly The assembly of semiconductors serves to protedith facilitates its integration into electroeicstems and enables
the dissipation of heat. The process begins withdibing of the wafers into chips. Each die is»afti to a leadframe-
based or organic substrate-based substrate. Tleeirj@l connections are formed, in many casesdmnecting the
terminals on the die to the inner leads of the pgekusing fine metal wires. Finally, each chiprisapsulated for
protection, usually in a molded epoxy enclos!

Final Test Assembled semiconductors are tested to ensuré¢hthaievice meets performance specifications. Tgstikes place
on specialized equipment using software customiaedach application. For memory semiconductoriis, ghocess
also includes “burn-in” testing to screen out défecdevices by applying very high temperatures avithges onto
the memory device

Outsourcing Trends in Semiconductor Manufacturing

Historically, integrated device manufacturers,@Ms, designed, manufactured, tested and asseméteid@nductors primarily at their
own facilities. In recent years, there has beeerdtin the industry to outsource stages in theufsturing process to reduce the high fixed
costs resulting from the increasingly complex mantifring process. Virtually every significant staffehe manufacturing process can be
outsourced. The independent semiconductor manufagtservices market currently consists of waférifzation and probing services and
semiconductor testing and assembly services. Mdbtowvorld’s major IDMs now use some independemisonductor manufacturing
services to maintain a strategic mix of internal arternal manufacturing capacity. We believe thahy of these IDMs are significantly
reducing their investments in new semiconductadirtgsand assembly facilities.

The availability of technologically advanced indegent semiconductor manufacturing services haseaabled the growth of “fabless”
semiconductor companies that focus exclusivelyamisonductor design and marketing and outsourde fédarication, testing and assembly
requirements to independent companies.

We believe the outsourcing of semiconductor martufa services, and in particular of testing asgleanbly services, will increase for
many reasons, including the following:

Significant Capital Expenditure Requirememsiven by increasingly sophisticated technologregjuirements, wafer fabrication, testing
and assembly processes have become highly compbpxring substantial investment in specializedipapent and facilities and sophisticated
engineering and manufacturing expertise. In additwoduct life cycles have been shortening, magmgfthe need to continually upgrade or
replace manufacturing, testing and assembly equiptoeaccommodate new products. As a result, ngesitments in in-house fabrication,
testing and assembly facilities are becoming lesérdble for IDMs because of the high investmests;as well as difficulties in achieving
sufficient economies of scale and utilization ratebe competitive with the independent servicevjglers. Independent foundry, testing and
assembly companies, on the other hand, are abéaliae the benefits of specialization and achexs@omies of scale by providing services tc
a large base of customers across a wide rang@dbipis. This enables them to reduce costs andeshproduction cycles through high capa
utilization and process expertise.
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Increasing Focus on Core Competencis the costs of semiconductor manufacturing faediincrease, semiconductor companies are
expected to further outsource their wafer fabraratiesting and assembly requirements to focus thsdurces on core competencies, such as
semiconductor design and marketing.

Time-to-Market Pressuréncreasingly short product life cycles have ametiftime-to-market pressure for semiconductor con@san
leading them to rely increasingly on independemhjganies as a key source for effective wafer fabidnatesting and assembly services.

Semiconductor Testing and Assembly Services Industr

Growth in the semiconductor testing and assembilyicss industry is driven by increased outsour@hthe various stages of the
semiconductor manufacturing process by IDMs antefabsemiconductor companies.

The Semiconductor Industry and Conditions of Outsng in Taiwan and Mainland China

Taiwan is one of the world’s leading locations dortsourced semiconductor manufacturing. The serdioctor industry in Taiwan has
developed such that the various stages of the saewhictor manufacturing process have been disaggeghaus allowing for specialization.
The disaggregation of the semiconductor manufawysrocess in Taiwan permits these semiconductoufaaturing service providers to
focus on particular parts of the production procdeselop economies of scale, maintain higher agpatilization rates and remain flexible in
responding to customer needs by lowering time-toketgpressure faced by semiconductor companiegeTdre several leading service
providers in Taiwan, each of which offers subs&lapacity, high-quality manufacturing, leadinghgonductor wafer fabrication, test,
assembly and process technologies, and a full rahgervices. These service providers have acoess éducated labor pool and a large
number of engineers suitable for sophisticated f@uring industries. As a result, many of the wtsrlleading semiconductor companies
outsource some or all of their semiconductor mastufang needs to Taiwan’s semiconductor manufaatusiervice providers and take
advantage of the close proximity among facilitiesaddition, companies located in Taiwan are vetywa in the design and manufacture of
electronic systems, which has created significacdlldemand for semiconductor devices.

Mainland China has emerged as a similarly attradtieation for outsourced semiconductor manufaeguiainland China is an
attractive manufacturing location for electroniogcts because companies can take advantage dif@edueated yet low-cost labor force, cost
savings due to tax benefits and a large domestikeharhese factors have driven increased relacatfonuch of the electronics industry
manufacturing and supply chain to Mainland China.idcreasing number of global electronic systemeufecturers and contract
manufacturers are relocating or have relocatedymtazh facilities to Mainland China. We believe thizese electronic product manufacturers
and contract manufacturers will source an increpportion of their demand for semiconductors framgonductor suppliers located in
Mainland China in order to reduce production cyifees, decrease costs, simplify supply chain logisind meet local content requirement
line with this trend, we have in recent years exjgghour operations in Mainland China.

Our Strategy

Our goal is to reinforce our position as a leadimtependent provider of semiconductor testing asaiably services, concentrating
principally on memory, logic/mixed-signal and LCBdaother flat-panel display driver semiconductditse principal components of our
business strategy are set forth below.

Focus on Providing Our Services to Potential Growiegments of the Semiconductor Industry.

We intend to continue our focus on developing amdiding advanced testing and assembly servicepdtential growth segments of the
semiconductor industry, such as memory, logic/migieghal, LCD and other flgtanel display driver semiconductors and bumpingises. W«
believe that our investments in equipment and rekeend development in some of these areas allaw offer a differentiated service from
our competition. In order to benefit from the exjgelcresumption of growth in these segments, wethte continue to invest in capacity to
meet the testing and assembly requirements of teseemiconductor market segments.

Continue to Invest in the Research and DevelopmehAdvanced Testing and Assembly Technologies.

Critical to our business growth is the continuatiorexpand our capabilities in testing and assentbprovide better service to our
customers. We typically focus on advanced technefotihat consist greater potentials to generateehimargins. For example, we conducted
new product introductions and on an on-going beaitinue to expand our capabilities in fine-pitcafer bumping, multi-chip package (MCP)
and high speed testing and assembly of fileh COFs. We have also introduced low cost neaiposite bump (MCB) products based on
proprietary Cu plating technology to service flapl display market and expand offerings to othsir®ess regions. We continue to maintain
close working relationships with local and oversesearch institutions and universities to keegairwith leading edge technologies and
broaden the scope of applications.
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In 2013 we expect to focus our research and dewedap efforts in the following areas:

. development of advanced assembly technologies i€8R, MEMS and flip chip products for memory deviagd mixed signal
products;

. expand fin-pitch Au and Cu bumping technology for 300mm pradL

. expand fin-pitch test capabilities for advanced LCD drive

. carry out ir-process improvement to improve manufacturing yielas shorten turnaround tirr

. develop new software conversion programs to inerétaes capabilities of our testers; ¢

. contin.utle to focus on delivering environmentallefrilly assembly services by eliminating the leadlaidgen elements from the
materials.

In 2012, we spent approximately 2.6% of our neeneie on research and development. We will contiouevest our resources to recruit
and retain experienced research and developmesapesl. As of March 31, 2013, our research andldpieent team comprised 312 persons.

Build on Our Strong Presence in Taiwan and Expandu©Operations Outside Taiwan.

We intend to build on our strong presence in keyters of semiconductor and electronics manufaajuergrow our business. Currently,
most of our operations are in Taiwan, one of thedi®leading locations for outsourced semiconduatanufacturing. This presence provides
us with several advantages. Firstly, our proxintyther semiconductor companies is attractiveugiamers who wish to outsource various
stages of the semiconductor manufacturing pro&essondly, our proximity to many of our suppliersstomers and the end-users of our
customersproducts enables us to be involved in the earlyestaf the semiconductor design process, enhancebiity to quickly respond t
our customers’ changing requirements and shortensustomers’ time-to-market. Thirdly, we have asc® an educated labor pool and a
large number of engineers who are able to worketyosith our customers and other providers of semdzictor manufacturing services.

As with our operations in Taiwan, we intend to $arly benefit from our operations in Mainland Chinle intend to invest in and expz
our operations in Mainland China, increasing ostitgy and assembly services for memory and logic#dhisignal semiconductors.

Depending on customers demands, market conditioth®#her relevant considerations, we may from tionéme look into other
opportunities to expand our operations outside &aiw
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Expand Our Offering of Vertically Integrated Servés.

We believe that one of our competitive strengthmuisability to provide vertically integrated sex®s to our customers. Vertically
integrated services consist of the integratedrtgstissembly and direct shipment of semiconduttoesnd-users designated by our customers.
Providing vertically integrated services enablesoushorten lead times for our customers. As timeiarket and cost increasingly become
sources of competitive advantage for our custontieey, increasingly value our ability to provide tingvith comprehensive back-end services.

Through ChipMOS Taiwan, ThaiLin and ChipMOS ShangWa are able to offer vertically integrated sees for a broad range of
products, including memory, logic/mixed-signal ar@D and other flat-panel display driver semicondust We believe that these affiliations,
which offer complementary technologies, products services as well as additional capacity, willtowre to enhance our own development
and expansion efforts into new and potential gronvérkets. We intend to establish new alliances lgitlling companies and, if suitable
opportunities arise, engage in merger and acquiséctivities that will further expand the serviees can provide.

Focus on Increasing Sales through Long-Term Agreemte with Key Customers as well as Business with $ena&Customers.

From time to time, we strategically agree to comariortion of our testing and assembly capacitettain of our customers. We intend
to continue focus on increasing sales to key custerthrough long-term capacity agreements. Theomests with which we currently have
long-term agreements include a reputable memonpmes based in the US. See “— Customers” belovaforore detailed discussion of these
long-term agreements.

Global market and economic conditions have beemasgglented and challenging with tight credit candi and recession in most major
economies since 2008 continuing into 2012. Begipimn2008, we also resumed our focus on our busingth smaller customers or customers
who do not place orders on a regular basis. Wewekhat the dual focused strategy will assisbusetbetter prepared for the current economi
volatility and ensure maximum utilization rate afra&apacity and help us to develop closer relatipsswith all types of our customers.

Principal Products and Services

The following table presents, for the periods showemenue by service segment as a percentage oevuevenue. During 2011, the
revenue of the bumping segment exceeded the cat@rdithreshold for aggregation and the Companyn@éekit appropriate to present revenue
data related to bumping as a separate segmenhurhping segment revenue presented in this tablédeas recast from LCD and other flat-
panel display driver semiconductor testing andragferevenue for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
Testing
Memory testing revent 32.4% 30.0% 26.3%
Logic/mixec-signal testing revent 3.5 2.4 2.6
Total testing revenu 35.9 32.4 28.9
Assembly
Memory assembly revent 29.7 27.4 28.7
Logic/mixec-signal assembly reven 6.7 5.5 4.5
Total assembly revent 36.4 32.9 33.2
LCD and other fle-panel display driver semiconductor testing andrag$erevenue 18.6 21.9 22.7
Bumping 9.1 12.8 15.2
Total net revenu 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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Memory and Logic/Mixed-Signal Semiconductors
Testing
We provide testing services for memory and logigadisignal semiconductors:

Memory.We provide testing services for a variety of memsggniconductors, such as SRAM, DRAM and flash mgmbo speed up the
time-consuming process of memory product testirgpvovide multisite testing, which can test up to 256 devices kanaously. The memo
semiconductors we test are used primarily in dgsktomputers, notebook computers and handheld carselectronic devices and wireless
communication devices.

Logic/Mixed-SignalWe conduct tests on a wide variety of logic/mixéghal semiconductors, with lead counts ranging ftbmsingle
digits to over 1024 and operating frequencies afou®00 MHz. The semiconductors we test includse¢hased for networking and wireless
communications, data communications, graphics @sidabntrollers for home entertainment and persooaiputer applications. We also test a
variety of application specific integrated circuits ASICs, for applications such as cellular hatslsdigital still cameras and personal digital
assistants.

The following is a description of our pre-assemtelsting services:

Engineering TestinglVe provide engineering testing services, includiofiware program development, electrical desigrda&ibn,
reliability and failure analyses.

. Software Program Developmebtesign and test engineers develop a customizeda@tprogram and related hardware to test
semiconductors on advanced testing equipment. foguzed software program is required to test thfamnity of each particular
semiconductor to its particular function and sgeatfon.

. Electrical Design ValidationA prototype of the designed semiconductor is suteahito electrical tests using advanced test
equipment, customized software programs and refsedivare. These tests assess whether the prosgympieonductor complies
with a variety of different operating specificatmrincluding functionality, frequency, voltage, @nt, timing and temperature rar

. Reliability AnalysisReliability analysis is designed to assess the-teng reliability of the semiconductor and its abitity of use
for its intended applications. Reliability testintay include operatintife evaluation, during which the semiconductositbjected t
high temperature and voltage te:

. Failure Analysislf the prototype semiconductor does not perforragecifications during either the electrical validator
reliability analysis process, failure analysis ésfprmed to determine the reasons for the faildgepart of this analysis, the
prototype semiconductor may be subjected to atyapietests, including electron beam probing aretlcal testing

Wafer ProbingWafer probing is the step immediately before trse=athly of semiconductors and involves visual indpeand electrice
testing of the processed wafer for defects to enthat it meets our customers’ specifications. Wpfebing employs sophisticated design and
manufacturing technologies to connect the termiofesach chip for testing. Defective chips are redrkn the surface or memorized in an
electronic file, known as a mapping file, to faeite subsequent processing.

Laser Repairingln laser repairing of memory products, specificypmi metal fuses are blown after wafer probingniatde a spare row
column of a memory cell to replace a defective mgnoell.

After assembly, we perform the following testingviees:

Burn-In TestingThis process screens out unreliable products usglgtemperature, high voltage and prolonged stessisure that
finished products will survive a long period of emsker service. This process is used only for merpovgucts.
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Top Marking.By using either a laser marker or an ink markerweaek products according to our customers’ spetifinis, including the
logo, product type, date code and lot number.

Final Testing Assembled semiconductors are tested to ensuréhihdevices meet performance specifications. Tstsonducted using
specialized equipment with software customizedeteh application in different temperature condgicanging from minus 45 degrees celsius
to 85 degrees celsius. One of the tests includesdsfesting to classify the parts into differerdespgrades.

Final Inspection and Packingrinal inspection involves visual or auto-inspectadrihe devices to check for any bent leads, inateu
markings or other construction defects. Packinglwes dry packing, packing-in-tube and tape antl By pack involves heating
semiconductors in a tray at 125 to 150 degreesusdisr about two hours to remove the moisture teefbe semiconductors are vacuum-seale
in an aluminum bag. Packing-in-tube involves paghkime semiconductors in anti-static tubes for sleipmTape and reel pack involves
transferring semiconductors from a tray or tubeant anti-static embossed tape and rolling the ¢ape a reel for shipment to customers.

Assembly
Our assembly services generally involve the follogvsteps:

Wafer Lapping
Die Saw

Die Attach
Wire Bonding
Molding
Marking

Dejunking anc
Trimming

Electrical Plating

Ball Mount and
Reflow

Forming/Singulatior

The wafers are ground to their required thickn

Wafers are cut into individual dies, or chips, nearation for the d-attach proces:
Each individual die is attached to the leadframerganic substratt

Using gold wires, the I/O pads on the die are cotateto the package inner lea
The die and wires are encapsulated to provide palysupport and protectio

Each individual package is marked to provide prodientification.

Mold flash is removed from between the lead shasltlerough dejunking, and the dambar is cut dutfire
trimming process

A solderable coating is added to the package leEadeevent oxidization and to keep solder wettaboif
the package lead

Each electrode pad of the substrate is first pdimtich flux, after which solder balls are mountbdated
and attached to the electrode pad of the substmatagh a reflow over

Forming involves the proper configuration of theride packages leads, and singulation separates the
packages from each oth
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We offer a broad range of package formats desi¢gmedovide our customers with a broad array of mbde services. The assembly
services we offer customers are leadframe-basddipas, which include thin small outline packagesl, @rganic substrate-based packages,
including fine-pitch BGA.

The differentiating characteristics of these paelsaigclude:

. the size of the packag

. the number of electrical connections which the pgekcan suppor

. the electrical performance and requirements optekage; an

. the heat dissipation requirements of the pack

As new applications for semiconductor devices negsinaller components, the size of packages haslatseased. In leading-edge

packages, the size of the package is reducedttsligbtly larger than the size of the individuaig itself in a process known as chip scale
packaging.

As semiconductor devices increase in complexity,nthmber of electrical connections required alsogiases. Leadframe-based products
have electrical connections from the semicondudaice to the electronic product through leadshenperimeter of the package. Organic
substratébased products have solder balls on the bottomeopackage, which create the electrical connectigtisthe product and can supg
large numbers of electrical connections.

Leadframe-Based Packagdhese are generally considered the most widely paekiage category. Each package consists of a
semiconductor chip encapsulated in a plastic mgldompound with metal leads on the perimeter. @h&gn has evolved from a design
plugging the leads into holes on the circuit baard design soldering the leads to the surfacketircuit board.

The following diagram presents the basic componeidsstandard leadframe-based package for meneomjcenductors:

Epoxy
Gold Wire Encapsulation

i - —."‘" _ v N\
i"\\ r 4 T T / +  Lead

IC Chip Tape

To address the market for miniaturization of pdea#ectronic products, we are currently develogind will continue to develop
increasingly smaller versions of leadframe-basextkages to keep pace with continually shrinking semductor device sizes. Our advanced
leadframe-based packages generally are thinnesraater, have more leads and have advanced themdaglectrical characteristics when
compared to traditional packages. As a result ofcontinual product development, we offer leadfrdmased packages with a wide range of
lead counts and sizes to satisfy our customersiireapents.
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The following table presents our principal leadfeabrased packages, including the number of leadadh package, commonly known as
lead-count, a description of each package andrttiaiser applications of each package.

Package Lead-count Description End-User Applications

Plastic Leaded Chip Carrier (PLCC) 32-44 Package with leads on four sides used ifCopiers, printers, scanners, personal
consumer electronics products in which computers, electronic games, monitors
the size of the package is not vi

Plastic Dual-in-line Package (PDIP) 16-56 Package with insertion leads on longer Electronic games, monitors, copiers,
sides used in consumer electronics printers, audio and video products,
products personal computel

Thin Small Outline Package | (TSOP ) 28-56 Designed for high volume production of Notebook computers, persor
low lead-count memory devices, computers, still and video cameras and
including flash memory, SRAM and standard connections for peripherals for
MROM computers

Thin Small Outline Package Il (TSOP II) 24-86 Designed for memory devices, includingDisk drives, recordable optical disk
flash memory, SRAM, SDRAM and drives, audio and video products,

DDR DRAM consumer electronics, communication
products

Quad Flat Package (QFP) 44-208  Flat structure with 4-sided peripheral ~ Wireless communication products,
leads designed for SRAM, graphic notebook computers, personal compu
processors, personal computer chipsetsconsumer electronics
and mixeesignal device:

Quad Flat No Lead (QFN) 8-132 Thermal enhanced quad flat no lead Wireless communication products,
package providing small footprint (chip notebook computers, PDAs, consumer
scale), light weight with good thermal  electronics
and electrical performant

Low-Profile Quad Flat Package (LQFP) 48-128  Low-profile and light weight package  Wireless communication products,
designed for ASICs, digital signal notebook computers, digital cameras,
processors, microprocessors/controllerscordless/radio frequency devices
graphics processors, gate arrays,

SSRAM, SDRAM, personal computer
chipsets and mixe-signal device:

Thin Quad Flat Package (TQFP) 44-128  Designed for lightweight portable Notebook computers, persot
electronics requiring broad performance computers, disk drives, office equipme
characteristics and mixed-signal devicesaudio and video products and wireless

communication produc

Small Outline Package (SOP) 8 Designed for low leadount memory ar Personal computers, consumer
logic semiconductors, including SRAM electronics, audio and video products,
and micrecontroller units communication produc!

Multi-Chip Package (TSOP with organic  24-86 Our patented design for memory devic Notebook computers, persot

substrate)

including SRAM, DRAM and SDRAM
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Organic Substrate-based Packagas.the number of leads surrounding a traditionafifeamebased package increases, the leads mt
placed closer together to reduce the size of tbkgupe. The close proximity of one lead to anotlaer areate electrical shorting problems and
requires the development of increasingly sophisttand expensive techniques to accommodate thenbigber of leads on the circuit boat

The BGA format solves this problem by effectivelgating external terminals on the bottom of thekpge in the form of small bumps
balls. These balls are evenly distributed acrosstiiire bottom surface of the package, allowirgtgr pitch between the individual terminals.
The ball grid array configuration enables high-pount devices to be manufactured less expensivigtyless delicate handling at installation.

Our organic substrate-based packages employ aficke-BGA design, which uses a plastic or tape teat@ rather than a leadframe and
places the electrical connections, or leads, omtiom of the package rather than around the pdeimThe fine-pitch BGA format was
developed to address the need for the smaller fintgpequired by advanced memory devices. Benefitall grid array assembly over
leadframe-based assembly include:

. smaller size

. smaller footprint on a printed circuit boa
. better electrical signal integrity; au

. easier attachment to a printed circuit bo

The following diagram presents the basic compoparts of a fine-pitch BGA package:

Epoxy Encapsulation

| /
s \ IC Chip
W —F—— 9V

Triazine Substrate
Solder Ball Gold Wire

The following table presents the ball-count, dga@n and end-user applications of organic substoased packages we currently
assemble:

Package Connections  Description End-User Applications

Mini BGA 36-400 Low-cost and space-saving assembly designed for Memory, analog, flash memory, ASICs, radio
low input/output count, suitable for semiconductors frequency devices, personal digital assistantfjlae
that require a smaller package size than standard handsets, communication products, notebook
BGA computers, wireless systel

Fine-Pitch BGA 54-90 Our patented design for DRAM products that requireNotebook computers, cellular handsets, gl
high performance and chip scale package (CSP)  positioning systems, personal digital assistants,
wireless system

Very Thin Fine-Pitch BGA 48-176 Similar structure of Mini BGA package with thinner Handheld devices, notebook computers, disk drives,
and finer ball pitch that is designed for use inide wireless and mobile communication products
variety of applications requiring small size, high
reliability and low unit cos

Land Grid Array (LGA) 44-52 Thinner and lighter assembly designed essential to Disk drives, memory controllers, wireless, mobile
standard BGA without solder balls, suitable for communication products
applications that require high electrical perforice

Multi-Chip BGA 48-137 Designed for assembly of two or more memory chipNotebook computers, digital cameras, pers:
(to increase memory density) or combinations of  digital assistants, global positioning systems; sub
memory and logic chips in one BGA pack: notebooks, board processors, wireless sys

Stacked-Chip BGA 48-137 Designed for assembly of two or more memory chipsCellular handsets, digital cameras, personal digita
or logic and memory chips in one CSP, reducing theassistants, wireless systems, notebook computers,
space required for memory chi global positioning systen
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Wafer Level CSP

Si wafer

-
O C ) o O
Wafer-level CSP (WL CSP) is the technology of paikg an integrated circuit at wafer level. WL CSRegsentially a true chip scale
package (CSP) technology, since the resulting grelsapractically of the same size as the die. VAP®as the ability to enable true
integration of wafer fab, packaging, test, and kiarat wafer level in order to streamline the maatifiring process undergone by a device fror
silicon start to customer shipment.

Most other kinds of packaging does wafer dicingtfiand then puts the individual die in a plastickage and attaches the solder bumps
WL CSP involves the RDL, wafer solder bumping, whtill in the wafer, and then wafer dicing. Betselif WL CSP compare to general CSP
package assembly include:

. ultimate smaller package si:

. smaller footprint on a printed circuit boa

. very short circuit connection; ai

. cost effective packaging solution for small It

Package Connection: Description End-User Applications

WL CSP 8-30 Very small package size (identical to die size), Memory, ASICs, MEMS devices, controllers, for
suitable for the low pin count and require the $mal  mobile phone, tablet, ultra book computer product.
package size applicatio

FC CSP

compound

Holdering joint

Flip chip chip scale package (FC CSP) construditilizes the flip chip bumping (with solder bump@u pillar bump) interconnection
technology to replace the standard wirebond intareot. It allows for a smaller form factor due twenMoop reduction and area array bumping
FC CSP includes the substrate or leadframe typgisnimaking an attractive option for advanced @gplication when electrical performance
is a critical factor.

. Excellent electrical performance, very low interaent parasitics and inductance compare to wirelymel
. High electrical current endurance (Cu pillar bunmgéal for high power solutiol
. Smaller package form factor by reducing the wi@plteight and wire span compared to conventionadheind package
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Package Connections  Description End-User Applications
FC CSP 8-100 Superior electrical performance, sma Power device, RF, Logic/Analog devi
form factor. wireless or portable applicatio

LCD and Other Flat-Panel Display Driver Semicondurs and Gold Bumping

We also offer testing and assembly services for |20 other flat-panel display driver semiconductdve employ TCP, COF and COG
technologies for testing and assembling LCD aneérdfilat-panel display driver semiconductors. Initdd, we offer gold bumping services to
our customers.

Tape Carrier Package (TCP) Technology

TCPs offer a high number of inputs and outputjmpackage profile and a smaller footprint on ¢hreuit board, without compromising
performance. Key package features include surfamnirtechnology design, fine-pitch tape format alide carrier handling. Because of their
flexibility and high number of inputs and output&Ps are primarily employed either for STN-LCD ¢¥TFLCD driver semiconductors.

Testing of TCP3Ne conduct full function testing of LCD and oth&tfpanel display driver semiconductors with a &icdesigned
probe handler to ensure reliable contact to thiepteds on the TCP tape. We can test STN-LCD or LED-driver semiconductors with
frequencies of up to 750 MHz and at voltages uf0id. The test is performed in a temperature-coletiodnvironment with the device in tape
form. The assembled and tested LCD and other #aepdisplay driver semiconductors in tape formpmeked between spacer tapes together
with a desiccant in an aluminum bag to avoid candacing shipment.

Assembly of TCP3.CPs use a tape-automated bonding process to datieeand tape. The printed circuit tape is shippét a reel. The
reel is then placed onto an inner lead bonder, evttex LCD or other flat-panel display driver semidoctor is configured onto the printed
circuit tape. The resulting TCP component congitie device interconnected to a thiager tape, which includes a polyimide carrier filam
epoxy-based adhesive layer and a metal layer. dpermetallization area of the interconnectionmiplated over a metal layer. The silicon
chip and inner lead area is encapsulated with la teimperature thermoset polymer after inner leadilng. The back face of the chip is left un-
sealed for thermal connection to the printed ctrboard.

For the limitation of inner lead pitch (>43um) withis kind of package, the volume of TCP nowadastheen trending down to ~1% of
total demand.

The following diagram presents the basic componeinésTCP:

Resin
S e —

Base Film

PiTape IC chip

Gold Bump
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Chip-on-Film (COF) Technology

In 2001, we commenced testing and assembly serugiag COF technology. We have developed this ety technology from our
existing TCP technology, and it has been widelyepted by our customers. The primary use of the @©#ule is to replace the liquid crystal
module, or LCM, in certain applications. LCM is migi employed in handheld electronics, such as P&#scellular handsets.

COF technology provides several additional advadagor example, COF is able to meet the size,hwaigd higher resolution
requirements in electronic products, such as fetepdisplays. This is because of its structuralgie including an adhesive-free thayer tape
that is highly flexible, bending strength and iépacity to receive finer patterning pitch.

COF package has been using for large-size andreggiution panel display nowadays, referring tottead of the last several years, the
avg. inner lead pitch of COF package went down5in2 with about 40% of market share.

The following diagram presents the basic componeiésCOF:

IC chip &

Base Film Pl Tape

Gold Bump

Inner Lead

The TCP and COF processes involve the followingsste

Chip Probing Screen out the defect chips which fail to meetdiéice spec

Wafer Lapping Wafers are grounded to their required thickn

Die Saw Wafers are cut into individual dies, or chips, negaration for inner lead bondir

Inner Lead Bondiny An inner lead bonder machine connects the chipagtinted circuit tape

Potting The package is dispensed a re

Potting Cure The potting cure process matures the resin usedgltire potting oven with high temperatur
Marking A laser marker is used to provide product iderdifion.

Final Testing To verify device spec. within electrical testingesfassembly proces

Inspection and Packin  Each individual die with tape is visually inspecteddefects. The dies are packed within a reel art
aluminum bag after completion of the inspectioncpss.
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Chip-on-Glass (COG) Technology

COG technology is an electronic assembly technotbgyis used increasingly in assembling LCD armoflat-panel display driver
semiconductors for communications equipment. Coatpso the traditional bonding process for TCP oiFCthe new COG technology
requires lower bonding temperature. In additior, @OG technology reduces assembly cost as it diasse tapes for interconnection betweel
the LCD panel and the printed circuit board.

The COG assembly technology involves the followsteps:

Chip Probing To screen out the defect chips which fail to mhetdevice spet
Wafer Lapping Wafers are ground to their required thickni
Die Saw Wafers are cut into individual dies, or chips, negaration for the pick and place proce

Auto Optical Inspectio Process of wafer inspection is detecting defesefmarate chips at pick and place stal
Pick and Place Each individual die is picked and placed into gpdhay.

Inspection and Packin Each individual die in a tray is visually or auttspected for defects. The dies are packed witliaya
into an aluminum bag after completion of the insjpecprocess

Bumping
We also offer bumping services to our customers.

Gold bumping technology, which can be used in TCBF and COG technologies, is a necessary interctiongechnology for LCD ar
other flat-panel display driver semiconductors. Mpsd bumping services are performed on eightvahte-inches wafers. Gold bumping
technology provides the best solution for finedpithips and is able to meet the high productiomireqment for LCD and other flat-panel
display driver semiconductors or other chips teguire thin packaging profiles. In addition to tf@d bumping, we also offer the WLCSP, Cu
RDL and Copper pillar service which can be appfadlip chip and QFN package. The product scomtuitles but is not limited to flash and
power device.

The gold bumping fabrication process uses thin fitetal deposition, photolithography and electrating technologies. A series of
barrier and seed metal layers are deposited oeesutface of the wafer. A layer of thick photoregisiterial is spin-coated over these barrier
and seed layers. A photomask is used to patterlotiagions over each of the bond pads that wilbbmped. UV exposure and developing
processes open the photoresist material, whicimelethe bump shape. The gold bump is then eleatexpbver the pad and the deposited
barrier metal layers. Once the plating is compleatseries of etching steps are used to removehibtesist material and the metal layers that
are covering the rest of the wafer. The gold bumgpgets the underlying materials from being etcfigwe gold bumped wafers will go through
an annealing furnace to soften the gold bumpdg tbdi hardness requirement of TCP, COF and COGrdsgerocesses.

Other Services
Drop Shipment

We offer drop shipment of semiconductors direatlgnd-users designated by our customers. We pravateshipment services,
including assembly in customer-approved and brahdees, to a majority of our testing and assembbtamers. Since drop shipment
eliminates the additional step of inspection bydhstomer prior to shipment to enders, quality of service is a key to successfopdhipmer
service. We believe that our ability to succesgfaitecute our full range of services, includingmshipment services, is an important factor in
maintaining existing customers as well as attrgctiew customers.

Software Development, Conversion and Optimizatiaogram

We work closely with our customers to provide ssfibated software engineering services, includasg program development,
conversion and optimization, and related hardwassgh. Generally, testing requires customizedrtigstoftware and related hardware to be
developed for each particular product. Softwarmeften initially provided by the customer and themeerted by us at our facilities for use on
one or more of our testing machines and containgngfunctionality depending on the specified itggtprocedures. Once a conversion test
program has been developed, we perform correlatiohtrial tests on the semiconductors.
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Customer feedback on the test results enablesadjuest the conversion test programs prior to d¢asting. We also typically assist our
customers in collecting and analyzing the testltesund recommend engineering solutions to imptbe& design and production process.

Customers
We believe that the following factors have beem wiil continue to be, important factors in attiagtand retaining customers:

our advanced testing and assembly technolo

our strong capabilities in testing and assembli@@pland other fle-panel display driver semiconducto
our focus on hig-density memory products and logic/mi-signal communications products; &

our reputation for high quality and reliable custas-focused service:

The number of our customers as of March 31, in @&@011, 2012 and 2013, respectively, was 87,r85%0. Our top 15 customers in
terms of revenue in 2012 were (in alphabetical Qrde

ADATA Technology Co., Ltd.

Elite Semiconductor Memory Technology, Inc.
Fitipower Integrated Technology Inc.

Himax Technologies, Inc.

ILI TECHNOLOGY CORP.

Integrated Circuit Solution Inc.

LAPIS Semiconductor Co., Ltd.

Macronix International Co., Ltd.

Micron Technology, Inc., or Micron
Novatek Microelectronics Corp., or Novatek
ProMOS Technologies Inc.

Raydium Semiconductor Corp.

Spansion LLC

Winbond Electronics Corp., or Winbond
Zentel Electronics Corp.

In 2010, our largest customer was Novatek, ourrsgdargest customer was ProMOS; and our third-trgestomer was Micron
accounting for approximately 18%, 12% and 9% ofmefrrevenue, respectively. In 2011, our largestauer was Novatek, our secoladges!
customer was Micron and our third-largest custowes Winbond accounting for approximately 21%, 1% @% of our net revenue,
respectively. In 2012, our largest customer wasatkek; our second-largest customer was Micron andhing-largest customer was Winbond
accounting for approximately 21%, 14% and 8% ofmmefrrevenue, respectively.

The majority of our customers purchase our senticesigh purchase orders and provide us three-mmamkbinding rolling forecasts on
a monthly basis. The price for our services isdgfly agreed upon at the time when a purchase sq#aced.

In 2006 and 2007, we strategically entered intexdended certain long-term agreements with sonoeiokey customers, including a
reputable memory customer based in the US, undehwire reserved capacity for the customers priparid the customer committed to pl.
orders in the amount of the reserved capacity (whisubject in certain cases to reduction by tistamer).
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Pursuant to the long-term service agreement we éatered into with ProMOS in July 2007, ProMOS adrto provide us with six
month rolling forecast on testing and assemblyisererders to be placed to us, and ProMOS guaratieaé such orders will represent no less
than certain percentage of ProMOS’ total productiolume of these products (excluding OEM produdtsjlanuary 2008, at the request of
ProMOS, we agreed to permit ProMOS to defer payrokaggregate service fees of NT$450 million tors@by 15, 2009. The deferred sen
fees, bore an interest at a rate of 4.69% per anmam recorded as long-term accounts receivable@scember 31, 2007, and were paid in
full by ProMOS in March and April 2008. In March@® ProMOS failed to place orders in the amounhefreserved capacity and failed to
meet its payment obligations under the long-termise agreement. In November 2008, we enteredamvised subcontracting contract with
ProMOS by requiring ProMOS to provide wafers withadue of 80% of the subcontracting fee as colétén May 2009, a further revised
subcontracting contract was entered into by andids us and ProMOS under which ProMOS providedittswafer as pledge and Work-In-
Process, or WIP and existing finished goods asrtiaterial. Part of ProMOS’ receivables will be reeed through sales of the pledged wafer
and lien material back to ProMOS with a discountarket price, and the remaining outstanding acsorgteivables will be secured by
equipment mortgage under the same contract arraarge&ffective March 2009, we started to requespgyment from ProMOS. As of
December 31, 2009, other receivables from ProMOSuaited to NT$409 million and 100% allowance was enlag ChipMOS Taiwan.

NT$7 million was received by April 2010. Under thimended subcontracting contract, ProMOS paid ChigM@iwan NT$200 million ir

May 2010. The remaining NT$202 million was paichine monthly installments with final installmentypaent ended on March 15, 2011. As
of December 31, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan received NB&3@lion and the related allowance of NT$409 moitliwas reversed to other non-
operating income. In March 2011, all payments Haeen received. The collection term was revisedtda&/s upon delivery in May 2010, to
45 days upon delivery in October 2010 and to theecti term of advance payment prior to deliveryrfrBroMOS in June 2011.

As of December 31, 2009, other receivables fronM¥8 amounted to NT$55 million and 100% allowances weade by ThaiLin. In
June 2010, ThaiLin agreed a settlement with ProNtOte amount of NT$24 million and it was collectating the same year. The allowance
of NT$24 million was reversed to other non-opemimcome. Commencing in June 2010, the collec@&mtwas revised to become 30 days
upon delivery. In January 2011, the collection tevas revised to 45 days after delivery and it wather revised to request advance payment:
from ProMOS in June 2011. See Note 18 to our cathetgld financial statements contained in this AhiReport on Form 20-F.

Pursuant to the long-term service agreement we éatered into with Spansion in September 2005, Sparagreed to provide us with
six month rolling forecast on testing and assensklyice orders to be placed to us. In January 28p8nsion defaulted on its payment
obligations under the long-term service agreemedtvee subsequently terminated the long-term selagreement with Spansion on
February 19, 2009. Our service fee receivable f&gansion in connection with its default amounteNT$1,539 million. On March 1, 2009,
Spansion filed for a voluntary petition for reorgaation under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy &€&lbsequent to such filing, on
March 16, 2009, ChipMOS Taiwan was elected as thehairman of the Unsecured Creditor Committeeefyesent unsecured creditors in
Spansion’s efforts to reorganize its debts undexp@r 11 petition. In early January 2010, ChipMG8nvBn resigned as a member of the
Unsecured Creditor Committee.

On January 25, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan entered irdefmitive Transfer of Claim Agreement to sell taigroup the general unsecured
claim reflected in the proof of claim against Spandnc., Spansion Technology LLC, Spansion LLCa&gon International Inc. and Cerium
Laboratories LLC (collectively, “Spansion”) filed/lChipMOS Taiwan in U.S. Bankruptcy Court. The giahat is the subject of the Transfer
of Claim Agreement includes accounts receivabladsting and assembly services provided to Spamsitve amount of approximately US$
million to US$70 million (the “Undisputed Claim"ChipMOS Taiwan received the purchase price fotthdisputed Claim of NT$1,118
million in February 2010 from Citigroup. The Traesbf Claim Agreement also includes the sale oatheof contract and liquidated damages
rights against Spansion in the amount of approxigdd S$234 million (the “Damages Claim”). The puask price for the Damages Claim is
expected to be an amount that will be determinegdb@n a purchase rate of 50.2% multiplied by tréign of the Damages Claim that is
allowed by a final adjudication of the U.S. BankiaypCourt. The purchase price for the Damages Cigipayable to ChipMOS Taiwan to the
extent that the Court allows this claim. In furtwece of the Transfer of Claim Agreement, the Compadso has entered into an agreement to
subscribe for, purchase and transfer to Citigragipts offering shares to be issued by Spansionrdoapto the Second Amended Joint Plan of
Reorganization filed in U.S. Bankruptcy Court. Tagreement provides that Citigroup will pay to @@mpany the amount of the rights
offering shares purchase price. On October 4, 20hipMOS Taiwan entered into a settlement agreemvéhtSpansion LLC for the general
unsecured claim on breach of contract and liquitideenages rights reflected in the proof of claiai@ No. 5, against Spansion Inc.,
Spansion Technology LLC, Spansion LLC, Spansioearhdtional Inc. and Cerium Laboratories LLC filgd®@hipMOS Taiwan in the U.S.
Bankruptcy Court. In October 2010, the Companyrkasived payment of NT$2,118 million for the Traarséf Claim Agreement to Citigrou
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On April 22, 2010, the Company announced that Spand C and ChipMOS Taiwan entered into a two-yeafer sort services
agreement, utilizing the V5400 test platform, mak@hipMOS Taiwan Spansion’s exclusive wafer sobicemtractor, except for any sort
equipment operated by Spansion LLC or currentlated at Spansion Japan Limited. The wafer soricEagreement became effective upor
the effective date of Spansion’s confirmed planeafrganization. The U.S. Bankruptcy Court confirnggnsion’s Second Amended Plan of
Reorganization on April 16, 2010. The effectiveedat Spansion’s plan of reorganization is May 1,2 The wafer sort services agreement
became effective on May 10, 2010 and was extenaleainfother two-year period expiring in April 2014.

Beginning in 2008, we also resumed a focus on asiness with smaller customers and customers whmtplace orders on a regular
basis.

The following table sets forth, for the periodsicaded, the percentage breakdown of our net reveraiegorized by geographic region
based on the jurisdiction in which each customéemdquartered.

Year ended December 31
2010 2011 2012

Taiwan 74% 73% 71%
Singapore —@ 6 14
United State: 22 15 7
Japar 1 2 3
Hong Kong SAF —@ 1 2
Korea 3 2 2
Others — @ 1 1

Total 100% 100% 100%
Note:

(1) Lessthan 1%

Qualification and Correlation by Customers

Our customers generally require that our facilitieslergo a stringent “qualification” process durimigich the customer evaluates our
operations, production processes and product iyalincluding engineering, delivery control atekting capabilities. The qualification
process typically takes up to eight weeks, or londepending on the requirements of the custonwartdst qualification, after we have been
qualified by a customer and before the customeéveisl semiconductors to us for testing in volumpracess known as “correlation” is
undertaken. During the correlation process, théoousr provides us with test criteria; informati@garding process flow and sample
semiconductors to be tested and either providegithshe test program or requests that we develogvaor conversion program. In some
cases, the customer also provides us with a dgtafloesults of any testing of the semiconductat the customer may have conducted
previously. The correlation process typically takpso two weeks, but can take longer dependinthemequirements of the customer.
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Sales and Marketing

We maintain sales and marketing offices in TaivMainland China and the United States. Our saleswantteting strategy is to focus on
memory semiconductors in Taiwan, Japan, Korea laadJhited States, logic/mixed-signal semicondudiiBaiwan, Japan and the United
States, LCD and other flat-panel display driver isemductors in Japan, Taiwan, Hong Kong and Maithi@hina. As of March 31, 2013, our
sales and marketing efforts were primarily caroetiby teams of sales professionals, applicati@ineers and technicians, totaling 38 staff
members. Each of these teams focuses on specifiornars and/or geographic regions. As part of mphasis on customer service, these
teams:

. actively participate in the design process at thstamer’ facilities;

. resolve customer testing and assembly issues

. promote timely and individualized resolutions tetmmer’ issues

We conduct marketing research through our in-hauséomer service personnel and through our relsttips with our customers and
suppliers to keep abreast of market trends anda@wents. Furthermore, we do product and systemtberarking analyses to understand the
application and assembly technology evolution, aghnalysis on mobile handsets and CD-/DVD-ROMgi& In addition, we regularly
collect data from different segments of the semdemtor industry and, when possible, we work closghp our customers to design and

develop testing and assembly services for their p@ducts. These “co-development” or “sponsorspigjects can be critical when customers
seek large-scale, early market entry with a sigaift new product.

We have appointed a non-exclusive sales agentréongting our services for memory semiconductotheéUnited States, Japan and
Korea. Our sales agent helps us promote and mauketervices, maintain relations with our existamgl potential customers and communicate
with our customers on quality, specific requirenseantd delivery issues. We generally pay our sajeataa commission of 1.5% to 2.5% of our
revenue from services for memory semiconductotlériUnited States, Japan and Korea. In 2010, 260d2@12, we paid approximately NT$9
million, NT$3 million and NT$5 million (US$172 theand), respectively, in commissions to our salenig

Research and Development

To maintain our competitive edge for continued bass growth, we continue our focus of our investritenew technology research and
development. In 2010, 2011 and 2012, we spent appadely NT$413 million, or 2%, NT$410 million, @ and NT$493 million (US$17
million), or 3%, respectively, of our net revenueresearch and development. We intend to sustesetifforts.

Our research and development efforts have beerséacprimarily on new technology instruction, imgrayefficiency and production
yields of our testing and assembly services. Fiiom to time, we jointly develop new technologieshwibcal and internationl resear
institutions and universities. In testing area, @mgearch and development efforts focused partiguta high speed probing, fine pitch probing
capability and wafer level burn-in technology. @uojects include:

. Grew wafer level BIST testing capabilit

. Developec®one touchdown full contact testing capability f@02nm and 300mm wafe”;
. Ramped up high frequency testing capability for LI

. Built up fine pitch testing capability for 12um bprpitch products; an

. Developing centralized server test control syst

In bumping and assembly areas, our research aredogenent efforts were directed to

. Low-cost alloy wire bonding alternatives for Cu wiretdp

. Au height reduction, as part of cost reduction @ritOum bump height COF package was releaseddduption;
. Wafel-level chip scale packaging and Cu RDL proces

. Flip-chip QFN for power IC application

. Cu pillar bumping and assemb

. MEMS packages for mobile device

. Multi-chip assembly and modules for SSD and eMMC apjiias
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. Stackerdie chip scale packag

. Thin wafer lapping and dicing

. Advanced thin core/co-free substrate for thin packages; i

. Qualified thermally enhanced COF and MCB (metal posite bump) COF and released for manufactu

For new product and product enhancement work ir820ar work concentrates on three key developmegrams: WLCSP, MEMS ar
flip chip technology. In the bumping area, we coet@dl customer qualification of 300mm wafer Au bumgpprocess in 2012 and started
volume production in Q4, 2012. Development of Catipg enables the entry of WLCSP, RDL and flip cmgrket. Backend service of
WLCSP was ramped up to mass production successkuliyturnkey service has begun in 2013. Develamnoé flip chip QFN packaging has
been completed in 2012 and mass production is sidtb be operational by end of the first quaofe2013. In 2012, we also initiated both
200mm and 300mm Cu pillar bumping engineering wbrk013, related packaging technologies are beééwgloped for mixed-signal and
memory products.

In 2012, in-process engineering advancement allayveetd extend our wirebond technology to serviceM@Hroducts. To further
achieve cost reduction, alloy wire and 0.6 mil Awelsond processes were also developed. In 2018yilveontinue to work on improvements
of wafer thinning and polishing operations factiitéahe expansion of multi-chip NAND packages offgs. Capability of handling miniature
molded packages has been extended to 1x1 mm radgeagous improvements will also be made in preéidmcequipment to enhance
throughput for efficiency.

As of March 31, 2013, we employed 312 employeesiinresearch and development activities. In additibher management and
operational personnel are also involved in reseanthdevelopment activities but are not separadelytified as research and development
professionals.

We maintain laboratory facilities capable for metisrand electrical characterizations to suppartipction and new product
development. Computer simulation is used to vadideith mechanical and electrical models in comparie measurement results.
Enhancement of Shadow Moiré and Micro Moiré equipieas carried out to support MCP and flip chipkzage warpage characterization. In
Advanced Packaging Lab, rheology measurement ditgabas established, aimed at expanding capalfititymaterial selection and inspection
to support flip chip introduction and various resharacterizations. A new analytical laboratory basn equipped in our bumping line
providing timely support to manufacturing operason

Quality Control

We believe that our reputation for high quality aatiable services have been an important factattimacting and retaining leading
international semiconductor companies as custofoeiaur testing and assembly services. We are ctteanio delivering semiconductors that
meet or exceed our customers’ specifications or &imd at a competitive cost. We maintain qualitytien staff at each of our facilities.

As of March 31, 2013, we employed 385 personnebtorquality control activities. Our quality contsiaff typically includes engineers,
technicians and other employees who monitor testimjassembly processes in order to ensure highyqiWee employ quality control
procedures in the following critical areas:

. sales quality assurance: following market trendartiicipate custome’ future needs

. design quality assurance: when developing newngstnd assembly process

. supplier quality assurance: consulting with ourg-term suppliers

. manufacturing quality assurance: through a compr&lie monitoring program during mass productiord
. service quality assurance: quickly and effectivelyponding to custome¢ claims after completion of sal

All of our facilities have been QS 9000 certifiegithe International Automotive Sector Group. Ini&dd, our facilities in Hsinchu and
Tainan have been ISO 9002 certified in Septemb@7 Hhd December 1998, respectively and recertifighl ISO 9001 for substantial revision
since 2000. With respect to our quality managersgsitem, on November 26, 2003, ChipMOS Taiwan obthI8O/TS 16949 quality system
certification. In 2005, ChipMOS acquired ChantelCémipei site. In the subsequent year, the Chufgedbiained 1ISO/TS16949 quality system
certification. ThaiLin and ChipMOS Shanghai alsdadted ISO/TS 16949 quality system certificatiorSeptember 2005 and January 2006,
respectively.

QS 9000 quality standards provide for continualriomement with an emphasis on the prevention ofalefend reduction of variation a
waste in the supply chain, and a QS 9000 certifinas required by certain semiconductor manufaesias a threshold indicator of a
company’s quality control standards. An 1ISO 9002ifeeation is required by many countries for satésndustrial products. ISO/TS
16949:2002 certification system seeks to integyatdity management standards into the operatiaaafmpany, and emphasizes the
supervision and measurement of process and penf@ena
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In addition to the quality management system, e ahrned the 1998 QC Group Award from The Chigeséety of Quality, which is
equivalent to the similar award from the Americacity of Quality. In 2003, ChipMOS passed SONY &@r@artner (Tier 2) certification
through its ProMOS channel, and in 2009, ChipMOtioled SONY Green Partner (Tier 1) certificatiore da its direct business relationship
with SONY. ChipMOS Shanghai also obtained SONY @reartner (Tier 2) certification through its ISSlaninel in 2008. Our laboratories
have also been awarded Chinese National Laboratmmeditation under the categories of reliabilstt electricity and temperature calibrati

Our testing and assembly operations are carriethaléan rooms where air purity, temperature amaiidity are controlled. To ensure
the stability and integrity of our operations, waintain clean rooms at our facilities that meet.Ue8eral 209E class 100, 1,000, 10,000 and
100,000 standards. A class 1,000 clean room messmacontaining less than 1,000 particles of cmitiants per cubic foot.

We have established manufacturing quality contysteams that are designed to ensure lgjghlity services to our customers and mair
reliability and high production yields at our fatids. We employ specialized equipment for manuwfiany quality and reliability control,
including:

. Joint Electron Device Engineering Council (JEDE@nsgardized temperature cycling, thermal shockmrdsure cook reliability
tests;

. high and low temperature storage life tests, teatpee humidity bias test and highly acceleratedpenature/humidity stress test
(HAST); and

. high resolution scanning acoustic tomography, sicanelectronic microscope and X-Ray microscopydioysical failure analysis,
curve tracer and se-probe station for electrical failure analys

In addition, to enhance our performance and owareh and development capabilities, we also irstalseries of high-cost equipment,
such as temperature humidity bias testers, low ¢ézatpre storage-life testers and highly accelerstiess testers. We believe that many of oul
competitors do not own this equipment.

As a result of our ongoing focus on quality, in 20Wve achieved monthly assembly yields of an aved®9.95% for our memory and
logic/mixed-signal assembly packages, 99.96% forGDF packages and 99.92% for our COG packagesa3dambly yield, which is the
industry standard for measuring production yiedcgqual to the number of integrated circuit packapat are shipped back to customers
divided by the number of individual integrated aits that are attached to leadframes or organistsaie.

Raw Materials

Semiconductor testing requires minimal raw matsridlbstantially all of the raw materials usedunmemory and logic/mixed-signal
semiconductor assembly processes are interconraetials such as leadframes, organic substratébwge and molding compound. Raw
materials used in the LCD and other ftatrel display driver semiconductor testing andragbe process include carrier tape, resin, spaqas,
plastic reel, aluminum bags, and inner and outgedoCost of raw materials represented 22%, 22%2&#@l of our net revenue in 2010, 2011
and 2012, respectively.

We do not maintain large inventories of leadfranmeganic substrates, gold wire or molding compoumd,generally maintain sufficient
stock of each principal raw material for approxietgione month’s production based on blanket ordatsrolling forecasts of near-term
requirements received from customers. In addisimge the commencement of economic downturn inrekeqaarter of 2008, due to the
volatility of the semiconductor market, severabaf principal suppliers have also ceased to stoekritories to be reserved to meet its
customers’ production requirements. Instead, oppkers now require longer lead time for delivefyoar supply orders. Despite shortages in
the supply of materials, the prices of raw matsrigve decreased compared to the quoted prices@tive second quarter of 2008. Our
principal raw material supplies have not been ingaby the Japan earthquake and tsunami catastrSpbeltem 3. Key Information—Risk
Factors—Risks Relating to Our Busined$we are unable to obtain raw materials and ottemessary inputs from our suppliers in a timely
cost-effective manner, our production scheduleslevba delayed and we may lose customers and gropgbrtunities and become less
profitable” for a discussion of the risks assodatgth our raw materials purchasing methods. Fangple, with the exception of aluminum
bags and inner and outer boxes, which we acquira focal sources, the raw materials used in our/CTOF process and for modules are
obtained from a limited humber of Japanese supplier
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Competition

The independent testing and assembly markets ayecempetitive. Our competitors include large IDMgh in-house testing and
assembly capabilities and other independent semictiar testing and assembly companies, espechaiietoffering vertically integrated
testing and assembly services, such as Advanceét@eathctor Engineering Inc., Amkor Technology, If¢hipbond Technology Corporatic
King Yuan Electronics Co., Ltd., Powertech Techggltnc., Siliconware Precision, STATS ChipPAC Lathd United Test and Assembly
Center Ltd. We believe that the principal measofeompetitiveness in the independent semiconduesiing industry are:

. engineering capability of software developme
. quality of service

. flexibility;

. capacity;

. production cycle time; an

. price.

In assembly services, we compete primarily on dmof:

. production yield

. production cycle time

. process technology, including our COF technologyLf6D and other fle-panel display driver semiconductor assembly sesy

. quality of service

. capacity;

. location; anc

. price.

IDMs that use our services continually evaluatepmrformance against their ownhieuse testing and assembly capabilities. These |

may have access to more advanced technologiesraatkgfinancial and other resources than we dob®eve, however, that we can offer
greater efficiency and lower costs while maintagnam equivalent or higher level of quality for threasons:

. firstly, we offer a broader and more complex ranfservices as compared to the IDMs, which tenid¢os their resources on
improving their fron-end operations

. secondly, we generally have lower unit costs bexzafi®ur higher utilization rates and thus enablisdo operate at a more cost-
effective structure compared to the IDMs; ¢

. finally, we offer a wider range of services in terof complexity and technolog

Intellectual Property

As of March 31, 2013, we held 457 patents in Taiwl&8Y patents in the United States, 222 paterttseiPeople’s Republic of China and
1 patent in the United Kingdom, France and Germeasspectively, relating to various semiconductstitgy and assembly technologies. These
patents will expire at various dates through t0120%s of March 31, 2013, we also had a total op28ding patent applications in the United
States, 80 in Taiwan, and 55 in the People’s RépobIChina. In addition, we have registered “Chip8I' and its logo and “InPack” as
trademarks in Taiwan, and “ChipMOS” and its logdraslemarks in the United States, the People’s Bapaf China, Singapore, Hong Kong,
Korea, Japan and the European Community.

We expect to continue to file patent applicatiorere appropriate to protect our proprietary techgiels. We may need to enforce our
patents or other intellectual property rights odéfend ourselves against claimed infringemenhefrights of others through litigation, which
could result in substantial costs and a diversioouo resources. See “ltem 3. Key Information—R¥gictors—Risks Relating to Our
Business—Disputes over intellectual property rigtusld be costly, deprive us of technologies nesmgs®r us to stay competitive, render us
unable to provide some of our services and reduceportunities to generate revenue” and “lterRiBancial Information—Legal
Proceedings”.
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Government Regulations

As discussed above under “— Intellectual Propeggifernmental regulation of our intellectual prapenay materially affect our
business. The failure to protect our property sghiould deprive us of our ability to stay compeétin the semi-conductor industry. Our
intellectual property rights are protected by thievant patent and intellectual property agenciegseoEuropean Community, United States, the
People’s Republic of China, Singapore, Hong Kongrdg, Japan and Taiwan.

Environmental Matters

Semiconductor testing does not generate signifipalititants. The semiconductor assembly processrgtes stationary acid and alkali
pollution, principally at the plating stages. Liguvaste is produced when silicon wafers are grabimher and diced into chips with the aid of
diamond saws and cooled with running water andndutie gold bumping process. In addition, excesemahon leadrames and moldings ¢
removed from assembled semiconductors in the trigrand dejunking processes, respectively. We hastalied various types of liquid and
gaseous chemical waste-treatment equipment atouicenductor assembly and gold bumping facilit&iace 2001, we have adopted certain
environmentally-friendly production management sgsd, and have implemented certain measures intéad®ithg our assembly process in
compliance with the Restriction of Hazardous Sulista Directive 2002/95/EC issued by the Europednrie believe that we have adof
adequate and effective environmental protectionsoness that are consistent with semiconductor imgysactices in Taiwan and Mainland
China. In addition, we believe we are in compliaimcall material respects with current environmétaes and regulations applicable to our
operations and facilities.

All of our facilities in Taiwan and Mainland Chitreve been certified as meeting the 1ISO 14001 emwiemtal standards of the
International Organization for Standardization, afief our facilities in Taiwan have been furtleertified as meeting the OHSAS18001
standards, of the International Organization fan8ardization. Our facilities at Hsinchu SciencekP@hupei and Southern Taiwan Science
Park have won numerous awards including health ptiom awards granted by Department of Health of R®2012, “Safety & Health
Performance Certification Unit” from Council of th@bor Affairs of ROC in 2009 and 2010. Our bumpfagility has won “Civil Defence
Excellent Award” from Hsinchu City in 2009, 201@%2L and 2012. We continue to encourage our empdolyeattend and participate in
community environmental campaigns and events tmpte and build better environmental friendly preesi.

We will continue to implement programs, measurabsrafated training to reduce industrial waste, savergy and control pollution. In
2001, ChipMOS Taiwan completed a lead-free proceasrol program, which offers a lead-free method semiconductor package, a |degk
plating, a lead-free solder ball and a lead-fréialsdity method and specification. In 2005, Chipl8Ghanghai completed a similar lead-free
process control program. In 2003 and 2008, ChipM@i#an and ChipMOS Shanghai obtained Green Pateréfication from Sony
Corporation of Japan, respectively. The Green Bagrogram requires external suppliers to meet S@GNBfeen Partner requirements. In 2!
we further obtained SGS recognition whereby weiveckthe “Greenhouse Gas Verification Statementiciialso further enhances our
eligibility under the Green Partner program. Stadiding on green, “environmentally friendly” prodsgcproduction facilities and management
systems, which has become an industry trend, anthtty companies, a key criteria in selection ofrtbervice providers.
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Insurance

We maintain insurance policies on our buildingsjipment and inventories. These insurance poliadercproperty damages due to all
risks, including but not limited to, fire, lightrgnand earthquakes. The maximum coverage of propetyance for ChipMOS Taiwan and
ThailLin is approximately NT$53,676 million and NT.$84 million, respectively. ChipMOS Shanghai alsaimains property insurance
policies for a maximum coverage of approximately B335 million.

Insurance coverage on facilities under construdanaintained by us and our contractors, who atigated to procure necessary
insurance policies and bear the relevant experfaghioh we are the beneficiary. We also maintasuiance on the wafers delivered to us
while these wafers are in our possession and dirdmgportation from suppliers to us and from usupcustomers.

Employees
See “Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Eypgals—Employees” for certain information relatingoto employees.

Taxation

See “Item 5. Operating and Financial Review andpeots—Taxation” for certain information regardthg effect of PRC and ROC tax
regulations on our operations.

Facilities

We provide testing services through our four féetiin Taiwan and one facility in Shanghai, witledacility at each of the following
locations: Chupei, the Hsinchu Industrial Park, ltsgnchu Science Park, the Southern Taiwan SciBack and the Shanghai Qingpu Indust
Zone. We provide assembly services through oulitigeit the Southern Taiwan Science Park and aciliipat the Shanghai Qingpu Industrial
Zone. We own the land for our Hsinchu Industrialk®asting facility and Chupei facility and poss#éss land use right to the land on which
Shanghai Qingpu Industrial Zone facility is locatedil 2052, and, we lease two parcels of landbfarHsinchu Science Park testing facility
with lease expiration in year 2017 and 2027, rethpalg, and two parcels of land for our Southermvilam Science Park facility with lease
expiration in year 2017 and 2032.

The following table shows the location, primary asel size of each of our facilities, and the ppatiequipment installed at each facility,
as of March 31, 2013.

gloor Area (m

Location of Facility Primary Use ) Principal Equipment
Chupei, Hsinchu Testing/Gold Bumping 38,12: 6 steppers

16 sputters

275 tester:
Hsinchu Industrial Park, Taiwan Testing 27,12 95 testers

33 burr-in ovens
Hsinchu Science Park, Taiwan Testing 31,16¢ 149 testers

93 burr-in ovens
Southern Taiwan Science Park, Assembly/Testing 146,18( 497 wire bonders
Taiwan 143 inner-lead bonders

348 tester:
Shanghai Qingpu Industrial Zone, Assembly/Testing 66,817 41 testers
Mainland China 164 wire bonders

23 burr-in ovens
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Equipment
Testing of Memory and Logic/Mixed-Signal Semicondaocs

Testing equipment is the most capital-intensive ponent of the memory and logic/mixed-signal semilcaors testing business. Upon
the acquisition of new testing equipment, we instainfigure, calibrate and perform burn-in diagiotests on the equipment. We also
establish parameters for the testing equipmentbasanticipated requirements of existing and p@baustomers and considerations relating
to market trends. As of March 31, 2013, we operagg@itesters for testing memory and logic/mixediaigemiconductors. We generally seek
to purchase testers with similar functionality theg able to test a variety of different semicondrgc We purchase testers from international
manufacturer, Advantest Corporation.

In general, particular semiconductors can be tassety a limited number of specially designed tsst&s part of the qualification
process, customers will specify the machines orchvtiieir semiconductors may be tested. We ofteeldpuest program conversion tools that
enable us to test semiconductors on multiple egeigrplatforms. This portability among testers eaghis to allocate semiconductor testing
across our available testing capacity and thengipyave capacity utilization rates. If a customeyuiees the testing of a semiconductor that is
not yet fully developed, the customer consigngeissing software programs to us to test specifictions. If a customer specifies testing
equipment that is not widely applicable to othene®nductors we test, we require the customertiaigh the equipment on a consignment
basis.

We will continue to acquire additional testing quuint in the future to the extent market conditjaash generated from operations, the
availability of financing and other factors makeldésirable to do so. Some of the equipment anteckEpare parts that we require have been i
short supply in recent years. Moreover, the equignseonly available from a limited number of vemglor is manufactured in relatively limit
guantities and may have lead time from order tovegl in excess of six months.

Assembly of Memory and Logic/Mixed-Signal Semicondetors

The number of wire bonders at a given facilityasntnonly used as a measure of the assembly capdithg facility. Typically, wire
bonders may be used, with minor modifications i@ assembly of different products. We purchase Wimders principally from Shinkawa
Co., Ltd. and Kulicke & Soffa Industries Inc. Asifrch 31, 2013, we operated 661 wire bondersddit@an to wire bonders, we maintain a
variety of other types of assembly equipment, agtvafer grinders, wafer mounters, wafer sawshdmaers, automated molding machines,
laser markers, solder platers, pad printers, dejimkrimmers, formers, substrate saws and leathecs

Gold Bumping, Testing and Assembly of LCD and OthefFlat-Panel Display Driver Semiconductors

We acquired TCP-related equipment from Sharp ténbegr TCP-related services. We subsequently pgegthadditional TCP-related
testers from Yokogawa Electric Corp. and Advan@stporation and assembly equipment from Shibaurehsiigonics Corp., Shinkawa Co.,
Ltd., Athlete FA Corp., Daitron Electron Crop anii® Corp. As of March 31, 2013, we operated 6 stepp@d 16 sputters for gold bumpii
143 inner-lead bonders for assembly and 348 tefietCD and other flat-panel display driver senridactors. We are currently in the proces:s
of purchasing additional testing equipment. Théngsequipment can be used for the TCP, COF and @f@€esses, while the inner-lead
bonders are only used in the TCP and COF procefBesame types of wafer grinding, auto wafer maunat die saw equipment is used for
TCP, COF and COG processes. In addition, auto atgpemachines and manual work are used in the @@@Gess, which is more labor-
intensive than the TCP and COF processes.

Iltem 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
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Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospect

This discussion and analysis should be read inuomtipn with our consolidated financial statemeantd related notes contained in this
Annual Report on Form 20-F.

Overview

We provide a broad range of back-end testing sesyiocluding wafer probing and final testing ofmmey and logic/mixed-signal
semiconductors. We also offer a broad selectideadframe-based and organic substrate-based paakagmbly services for memory and
logic/mixed-signal semiconductors. Our advancedfleane-based packages include thin small outlinkages, or TSOPs, and our advanced
organic substrate-based packages include fine-pattgrid array, or fine-pitch BGA, packages. bidéion, we provide gold bumping, testing
and assembly services for LCD and other flatel display driver semiconductors by employind®TCOF and COG technologies. In 2012,
consolidated net revenue was NT$19,221 million (&&$million) and our net income was NT$722 milligsS$25 million).

We are a holding company, incorporated in BermudAwgust 1, 2000. We provide most of our servitesugh our majority-owned
subsidiary, ChipMOS Taiwan, and its subsidiaried iamwestees. ChipMOS Taiwan was incorporated inv&aiin July 1997 as a joint venture
company of Mosel and Siliconware Precision and withparticipation of other investors. Following ttompletion of the share exchange
transaction between ChipMOS Bermuda and ChipMO®dmion September 14, 2007, ChipMOS Taiwan becawigodly-owned subsidiary
of ChipMOS Bermuda. In February 2010, we agreesktbl5.8% of ChipMOS Taiwag’outstanding shares to Siliconware Precision.sHae
purchase transaction was completed in January Zd Rpril 16, 2013, as part of ChipMOS Taiwan'gitig plan on the TSE, we completed
the sale of 6.5 million outstanding ChipMOS Taivwgmares or 0.8% of the total number of ChipMOS Talwautstanding shares, at the price
of NT$15.0 per share to ChipMOS Taiwan’s underwsiter the TSE listing plan and to certain othérsluding non-US employees of
ChipMOS Taiwan. As of the date of this Annual Remar Form 20-F, we own approximately 703 millioniGMOS Taiwan shares,
representing 83.4% of ChipMOS Taiwan’s outstandingres. See “ltem 3. Key Information—Risk Factordip®IOS Taiwan’s ability to
maintain its trading status on Taiwan’s Emergingc&tBoard and to eventually list on the Taiwan &tBgchange is dependent on factors
outside of Company or ChipMOS Taiwan'’s control aatlsfaction of stock exchange requirements. ChigVi@iwan may not be able to
overcome such factors that disrupt its tradingustan the Emerging Stock Board or satisfy othejilality requirements for the proposed list
transaction” for additional information on ChipMOS Taiwan'’s ligg plan. For the year ended December 31, 2012Vardh 31, 2013 we
owned approximately 710 million ChipMOS Taiwan sfsmrepresenting 84.2% of ChipMOS Taiwan’s outstapdhares. In Taiwan, we
conduct testing operations in our facilities at if@nchu Science Park and the Hsinchu Industrigt,Rppld bumping and wafer testing in our
facility at Chupei, and testing and assembly openatin our facility at the Southern Taiwan ScieRegk. We also conduct operations in
Mainland China through ChipMOS Shanghai, a wholyred subsidiary of Modern Mind. ChipMOS Shangharapes a testing and assembly
facility at the Qingpu Industrial Zone in Shangh&irough our subsidiaries, we also have equity@sts in other companies that are engag
the semiconductor industry. In April 2011, ChipMB&rmuda entered into the MMT Assignment Agreeméitit WhaiLin to sell the MMT
Notes to ThaiLin for a purchase price of approxehat/S$40 million. The MMT Assignment Agreementrisaction was completed
October 3, 2011 and Modern Mind then became thdlybaned subsidiary of ThaiLin. See “Item 4. Infoation on the Company©verview
of the Company” for more details.

The following key trends are important to underdiag our business:

Capital Intensive Nature of Our Busine&xur operations, in particular our testing operajare characterized by relatively high fixed
costs. We expect to continue to incur substangateciation and other expenses as a result ofreuiqus acquisitions of testing and assembly
equipment and facilities. Our profitability deperidgart not only on absolute pricing levels for gervices, but also on capacity utilization
rates for our testing and assembly equipment. ttiqodar, increases or decreases in our capadityation rates could significantly affect our
gross margins since the unit cost of testing asdrably services generally decreases as fixed aoswllocated over a larger number of units.

The current generation of advanced testers typicalst between US$2 million and US$5 million eaghile wire bonders used in
assembly typically cost approximately US$68 thodsaach and inner-lead bonders for TCP and COF ddg@mst approximately US$360
thousand each and COG chip sorters cost approXyrag&$220 thousand each. We begin depreciatingquipment when it is placed into
commercial operation. There may be a time lag betvwbe time when our equipment is placed into cori@eoperation and when it achieves
high levels of utilization. In periods of depressesniconductor industry conditions, we may expegdiower than expected demand from our
customers and a sharp decline in the averagegeitioes of our testing and assembly services/tiegun an increase in depreciation exper
relative to net revenue. In particular, the capyadiilization rates for our testing equipment maydeverely adversely affected during a
semiconductor industry downturn as a result ofttberease in outsourcing demand from integrateccdewanufacturers, or IDMs, which
typically maintain larger in-house testing capatdtlitsn in-house assembly capacity.
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Highly Cyclical Nature of the Semiconductor IndystThe worldwide semiconductor industry has expeéeinpeaks and troughs over
last decade, with a severe downturn beginningerfdiarth quarter of 2000 that was followed by aokery in early 2003. The significant
decrease in market demand for semiconductors #gsrbin 2000 adversely affected our results ofatfmers for 2001 and 2002. Beginning in
the fourth quarter of 2008, the semiconductor ilgusommenced another significant downturn whichtgwed in 2009 and in 2010. Market
demand for semiconductors significantly decreasedss our industry during these periods, which exblg affected average selling prices for
our services and our results of operations for 22089 and 2010. The impact on our results of djpersiof the decrease in market demand
during these periods was partly offset by increasesir 2009 and 2010 net revenue from assemblgcses for logic/mixed-signal
semiconductors due to higher customer demand &setlervices in 2009 and 2010. The overall outedumssembly and testing services for
memory and logic/mixed-signal semiconductors inseeiagradually each year since 2010, continuin@k22During periods of decreased
demand for assembled semiconductors, some of stwroers may forego, delay or simplify final testofgertain types of semiconductors,
such as DRAM, which may further decrease demandhaarhge selling prices for our services and intgiosir difficulties related to realizing
pricing levels, capacity utilization rates and grasargin during these periods.

Declining Average Selling Prices of Our Testing #&s$embly ServiceShe semiconductor industry is characterized byreegd decrea:
in prices for products and services over the coafskeir product and technology life cycles. Thterof decline is particularly steep during
periods of intense competition and adverse maweditions. The average selling prices of our teséind assembly services experienced shat
declines during such periods as a result of intpnse competition from other independent testing assembly companies that attempt to
maintain high capacity utilization levels in thedésof reduced demand.

To offset the effects of decreasing average sefinges, we will continue to seek to:

. improve production efficiency and attain high capaatilization rates

. concentrate on testing of potentially h-demand, hig-growth semiconductor:

. develop new assembly technologies;

. implement new technologies and platforms to shifh potentially higher margin service

Market Conditions for the End-User Applications 8&miconductordMarket conditions in the semiconductor industryatiarge degree,
track those for their end-user applications. Antederation in the market conditions for the en@uapplications of semiconductors that we
test and assemble may reduce demand for our semik in turn, materially adversely affect ouafinial condition and results of operations.
Despite an increase in the demand for mobile/nizRAM in 2010, for DRAMs with more advanced featuseh as that of enhanced graphic
capability, increased power efficiency and incréas®bility, the average market demand for DRAM rerad low since 2010 until 2012. Our
net revenue is largely attributable to fees frostitg and assembling semiconductors for use iropafssomputers, consumer and portable
electronic products, display applications and comigations equipment. The markets for these prodargtsntensely competitive, and a
significant decrease in demand puts pricing pressuarour testing and assembly services and negasffects our earnings. The oversupply of
DRAM products in the second half of 2007 and thekveemand in the DRAM market in 2008 and in thst fijuarter of 2009 resulted in
significant reductions in the price of DRAM prodsicivhich in turn drove down the average sellinggsifor our testing and assembly service:
for DRAM products from the second half of 2009 aodtinue in 2012.

Change in Product MixDeclines in average selling prices since 2009 e partially offset by a change in our revenue i
particular, revenue from testing and assembly dDla®d other flat-panel display driver semicondusttumping services and 12-inch wafer
processing have increased as a percentage oftaliné revenue over the 2009 to 2012 period. ViEnihto continue focusing on testing and
assembling more semiconductors that have the paltémiprovide higher margins and developing arférafg new technologies in testing and
assembly services, in order to mitigate the effe€tdeclining average selling prices on our abil@yattain profitability.

Recent Acquisitions

In March 2007, we completed a share purchase agtsption transaction with ChipMOS Taiwan and®itiware Precision, under
which we became a holder of 99.1% of the outstandommon shares of ChipMOS Taiwan. In April 200@,and ChipMOS Taiwan further
entered into a share exchange transaction andgnirsuwhich we agreed to exchange one common $traesery 8.4 ChipMOS Taiwan
shares outstanding. Following the completion ofghare exchange transaction in September 2007 MG pTaiwan became our wholly-
owned subsidiary. In February 2010, we agreedltd5683% of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s outstanding shareSiiaconware Precision. The share
purchase transaction was completed in January Z&Laf March 31, 2013, we owned 84.2% of ChipMO$vBEa's outstanding shares. See
“Iltem 4. Information on the Company—OQOur Structunel &listory” for description of our earlier mergeseats.
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Net Revenue

We conduct our business according to the followirain business segments: (1) testing services fananeand logic/mixed-signal
semiconductors; (2) assembly services for memodyl@gic/mixed-signal semiconductors; (3) LCD andestflat-panel display driver
semiconductor testing and assembly services; griolif@ping services for memory, logic/mixed-signadla CD and other flat-panel display
driver semiconductors. The following table setgtpfor the periods indicated, our consolidatedraeenue for each segment.

Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ Uss$
(in millions)
Testing
Memory $ 5577« $5455.0 $ 5055.. $174.(
Logic/mixec-signal 592.: 444.( 508.1 17.5
Total testing 6,169. 5,899.. 5,563.: 191.t
Assembly
Memory 5,112.¢ 4,982.: 5,523.¢ 190.1
Logic/mixec-signal 1,146.: 1,006.¢ 856.¢ 29.t
Total assembl 6,258.¢ 5,989.( 6,380.¢ 219.¢
LCD and other fle-panel display driver semiconductor testing andrasde 3,199.( 3,985.¢ 4,356.: 150.(
Bumping 1,582.. 2,337.( 2,920.¢ 100.t
Total $17,209. $18,210.¢ $19,220.! $661.¢

Our net revenue consists primarily of service feesesting and assembling semiconductors, andeasser extent, fees from equipment
rentals to semiconductor manufacturers for engingdesting, less allowances for product returns. dfer testing and assembly services for
memory semiconductors, logic/mixed-signal semicatahs, testing and assembly services for LCD ahdrdiat-panel display driver
semiconductors and bumping services.

Most of our customers do not place purchase offdeiis advance and our contracts with customereigdily do not require minimum
purchases of our products or services. Our cuswmarchase orders have varied significantly fraeniqd to period because demand for their
products is often volatile. We have strategicafijeeed into long-term capacity agreements with sofrmur customers. Under certain of those
long-term agreements, we have agreed to resenaitafor our customers and our customers haveeggie place orders in the amount of the
reserved capacity (which is subject in certain saseeduction by the customers). As part of owatsgy, we intend to continue entry into
additional long-term capacity agreements as weflbess on our business with smaller customers stortners who do not place orders on a
regular basis. We believe that the dual focusedegy would assist us to be better prepared focthent economic volatility and ensure
maximum utilization rate of our capacity and hefpto develop closer relationships with all typesaf customers. Depending on customer
demands, market conditions and other considerat@semain to be focused on expansion of our tdjpaoutside Taiwan and Mainland
China in connection with possible future long-tezapacity agreements.

Our financial condition and results of operatioasédialso been, and are likely to continue to fectdd by price pressures on our service
fees, which tend to decline in tandem with the idéul) average selling prices of the products weded assemble over the course of their
product and technology life cycles. In order to m@in our margins, it is necessary to offset tleedmsion by continually improving our
production efficiency and maintaining high capaditijization rates. We also plan to continue toalep and implement new technologies and
expand our services into potentially higher-magggments. These efforts require significant uptfimorestment in advance of incremental
revenue, which could impact our margins.

Pricing

We price our testing fees primarily based on th&t obtesting the products to our customers’ sjatibns, including the costs of the
required material and components, the depreciatipenses relating to the equipment involved andwarhead expenses, and with reference
to prevailing market prices. Accordingly, the tagtfee for a particular product would principallgmtnd on the time taken to perform the tests
the complexity of the product and the testing psscand the cost of the equipment used to perfoeneist. For example, testing fees for
memory semiconductors are significantly higher ttrarse for other products because of the longes tequired and the need for burn-in
testing.
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We price our assembly services on a per unit b&dig)g into account the complexity of the packame, costs, including the costs of the
required material and components, the depreciatipenses relating to the equipment involved andwearhead expenses, prevailing market
conditions, the order size, the strength and histéour relationship with the customer and ourazfy utilization.

We price our testing and assembly services for 10D other flat-panel display driver semiconductord bumping services on the basis
of our costs, including the costs of the requirederial and components, the depreciation expersating to the equipment involved and our
overhead expenses, and the price for comparahlessr

We offer volume discounts to all customers who pase large quantities of our services and speisiabdnts to customers who use our
vertically integrated services. On a case by casespwe also may offer special payment termsudiob longer payment cycles, to key
customers during downturns in the market so astairr business from such key customers.

Revenue Recognition

We generally recognize our revenue upon completfdasting and assembly services. We also recognizeevenue upon shipment of
tested and assembled semiconductors to locatimigrdded by our customers, including our internatefiouse for customers using our
warehousing services. We submit invoices at the tifncompletion of service or shipment or delivand generally require all customers to
within 60 days after the last day of the month diginivhich the invoice was sent. However, for ProM@&jng 2010 the invoice settlement
cycle has been changed to 30 or 45 days upon dglimd commencing in June 2011, the collectiomtems revised to advance payment
to delivery. Commencing April 1, 2011, since Moseho longer a related party to us, ProMOS is atstoconsidered our related party.

In January 2008, at the request of ProMOS, we dgepermit ProMOS to defer payment of aggregateice fees of NT$450 million to
February 15, 2009. The deferred service fees, integest at a rate of 4.69% per annum, were redoaddong-term accounts receivable as of
December 31, 2007, and were paid in full by ProM@Blarch and April 2008. We also experienced coitecproblems for our receivables
from ProMOS in 2008 and 2009, respectively. Thedalount of allowance for these doubtful receivald&éNT$578 million and NT$464
million were reserved as of December 31, 2008 &P 2respectively. As of December 31, 2009, otheeivables from ProMOS amounted to
NT$409 million and 100% allowance was made by Clg®/Taiwan. NT$7 million was received by April 201Mder the amende
subcontracting contract ProMOS paid ChipMOS Taindi$200 million in May 2010. The remaining NT$202llioh was paid in nine
monthly installments with the final payment madeMarch 15, 2011. As of December 31, 2010, ChipM@$van received NT$336 million
and the related allowance of NT$409 million wasersed to other non-operating income. In March 2@l jhayments were received.

As of December 31, 2009, other receivables fronM@¥8 amounted to NT$55 million and 100% allowance weade by ThaiLin. In
June 2010, ThaiLin agreed a settlement with ProNtOe amount of NT$24 million and it was collectating the same year. The allowance
of NT$24 million was reversed to other non-opemgiimcome. See “Item 4. Information on the CompanyCustomers”.

We also experienced collection problems for ouvises of receivables from Spansion in 2008 and 2688$pectively. The full amounts
of allowance of these doubtful receivables of NB89, million and NT$2,232 million were reserved &®ecember 31, 2008 and 2009,
respectively. On January 25, 2010, we enteredartefinitive Transfer of Claim Agreement to sellGQitigroup Financial Products Inc.
(Citigroup) the general unsecured claim reflectethe proof of claim against Spansion. The claiat thas the subject of the Transfer of Claim
Agreement included accounts receivable for tesdimdj assembly services provided to Spansion (thelf4pated Claim”)In February 2010, w
received from Citigroup the purchase price forthelisputed Claim of NT$1,118 million against accsureceivable of NT$2,186 million. A
loss on sale of receivables of NT$1,068 million wexsognized and the related allowance for doub#aéivables of NT$2,186 million was
reversed in 2010. See “ltem 4. Information on tlen@any — Customers”.

We have not experienced other significant collecpooblems for our services.
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Related Party Revenues

In 2010, 2011 and 2012, 12%, 2% and nil, respégtiaé our net revenue were derived from relatedips. While we believe that our
transactions with related parties were entereddntan arm’s length basis, we extended them fal®izdyment terms, as discussed in the
preceding paragraph. See “ltem 7. Major Sharehslded Related Party Transactions” for more inforomatoncerning our related party
transactions.

Geography and Currency

The majority of our net revenue is generated frost@mers headquartered in Taiwan, which represéiftéd 73% and 71% of our net
revenue in 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. \&@ génerate net revenue from customers in the dUBitates, Singapore, Korea, Japan and
other countries. Our service fees and revenueeanerglly denominated in the currency of the jugdn in which our facilities are located, for
example NT dollars for our Taiwan operations andBRfdr our Mainland China operations. As we genematst of our net revenue from
Taiwanese customers using our Taiwanese operatiodssince most of our labor and overhead costdereminated in NT dollars, we
consider the NT dollar to be our functional curnenc

See Note 22 to our consolidated financial stateseontained in this Annual Report on Form 20-F ‘dregn 11. Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk — Markesk® — Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risks” fotage information on our exchange
rate risks.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit (Loss)

Our cost of revenue consists primarily of the fafllog: depreciation and amortization expenses, ratenal costs, and labor and
overhead expenses, which primarily include expeledatpuipments, sub-contracting fees and rentalresgee Our operations, in particular our
testing, are characterized by relatively high fixedts. We expect to continue to incur substadgateciation and other expenses as a result
our previous and future acquisitions of testing assembly equipment and facilities, including eweistment in our Mainland China
operations. As of March 31, 2013, we had 908 testet9 burn-in ovens, 661 wire bonders, 143 inaadIbonders, 6 steppers and 16 sputters
We use inner-lead bonders for the assembly of L&@Dather flat-panel display driver semiconductas®mg TCP or COF technology, and wire
bonders for TSOP, BGA, and some other package &dgdachnologies.

Our profitability depends in part not only on ahgelpricing levels for our services, but also on@apacity utilization rates. Our average
capacity utilization rate for testing of memory dadic/mixed-signal semiconductors was 60% in 2@&% in 2011 and 69% in 2012. Our
average capacity utilization rate for assembly efirory and logic/mixed-signal semiconductors was &2010, 79% in 2011 and 78% in
2012. Our average capacity utilization rate for L&l other flat-panel display driver semicondutésting and assembly was 77% in 2010,
80% in 2011 and 79% in 2012. In addition, our agereapacity utilization rate for bumping was 77%2@10, 88% in 2011 and 81% in 2012.

For each period of time selected, we derived tipacisy utilization rate for our testing operatidnsdividing the total number of hours of
actual use of our facilitiegesting equipment units by the maximum number afrbohat these equipment units were capable ofjhesad. Th
testing capacity utilization rate generally inceesii correlation to increases in the total volwheur customer orders, and generally decreas:
in correlation to decreases in the total volumewfcustomer orders.

For each period of time selected, we derived tipacity utilization rate for our assembly operatibysdividing the total number of units
actually produced by our assembly facilities by neximum number of units that these facilities@pable of producing. The assembly
capacity utilization rate generally increases irrglation to increases in the total volume of oustomer orders, and generally decreases in
correlation to decreases in the total volume ofaustomer orders.

Our gross revenue is generally the product ofaked /olume of our customer orders multiplied bg #verage selling price per
deliverable unit from our assembly or testing sesj as the case may be. As a result, in a pefiedeithe average selling prices do not
fluctuate significantly, increases or decreasemlincapacity utilization rates generally corref@téncreases or decreases in our gross revenue
Periods with significant increases in the averaakng prices reduce the negative impact on ousgrevenue from any decreases in our
capacity utilization rates. Similarly, periods watgnificant decreases in the average selling prieduce the positive impact on our gross
revenue from any increases in our capacity utiizatates.
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The Company has significant fixed costs in opegatiar assembly and testing facilities. For thisozg decreases in our cost of goods
sold during a period generally occur at a slowts than decreases, during the same period, inrossgevenue due to lower capacity
utilization rates, lower average selling pricesboth. Also, as a result, our gross margin anditatafity generally decrease in correlation to
decreases in our capacity utilization rates, deg®@ our average selling prices, or both. Sitgilaur gross margin and profitability generally
increase in correlation to increases in our capatilization rates, increases in our averagersglfirices, or both. Due to the cyclical nature of
the semiconductor industry, customer orders map@haignificantly, causing fluctuation in our cajpadcitilization rate and average selling
price.

Most of our labor and overhead costs are denondnatBIT dollars. However, we also incur costs ofereues and operating expenses
associated with testing and assembly servicesvierakother currencies, including Japanese yenddJiars and RMB. In addition, a substan
portion of our capital expenditures, primarily fbe purchase of testing and assembly equipmenhéders, and is expected to continue to be,
denominated in Japanese yen with much of the retaaitienominated in US dollars.

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, our gross profit (loss) and our gross pftdss) margin as a percentage of net
revenue.

Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ Us$
(in millions)
Gross profit (loss):
Testing
Memory $(362.4) $ 3521 $ 596.2 $205
Logic/mixec-signal 1145 24.9 86.0 3.0
Total testing (247.9) 377.0 682.2 23.5
Assembly
Memory (36.0) (20.3) 135.2 4.7
Logic/mixec-signal 240.9 303.2 283.5 9.7
Total assembl 204.9 282.9 418.7 14.4
LCD and other fle-panel display driver semiconductor testing andrasde 703.8 887.3 1,263.9 43.5
Bumping (15.1) 114.5 217.2 7.4
Total $ 645.7 $1,661.7 $2,582.0 $88.8
Gross profit (loss) margin:
Testing
Memory (6.5)% 6.5% 11.8% 11.8%
Logic/mixec-signal 19.3 5.6 16.9 16.9
Total testing (4.0) 6.4 12.3 12.3
Assembly
Memory (0.7) (0.4) 2.5 2.5
Logic/mixec-signal 21.0 30.1 33.1 33.1
Total assembl 3.3 4.7 6.6 6.6
LCD and other fle-panel display driver semiconductor testing andrasde 22.0 22.3 29.0 29.0
Bumping (2.0) 4.9 7.4 7.4
Overall 3.8% 9.1% 13.4% 13.4%

Operating Expenses
Research and Development

Research and development expenses consist prinoaplgrsonnel expenses, amortization expensesnglat technology, expenditures
qualify our services for specific customers anceottonsulting fees and certification fees paichtadtparties. Research and development
expenses are recognized as they are incurred. Yiently expect that research and development exgensl increase in the future as we
continue to explore new technologies and serviteriofys. We also expect to hire additional emplayi@eour research and development
department.
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Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarilhipping and handling expenses incurred in deligegroducts to our customers’
designated locations, advertising, corporate comcations and other marketing expenses, salary egsefor sales and marketing personnel,
sales commission, professional service fees, bhtimtevision and service support expenses.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist ofiealand related expenses for executive, finandeaanounting, and management
information systems personnel, professional serfées, and other corporate expenses. They alsadiedtock-based compensation that is
expensed using the intrinsic value-based methodandalue method. See “Item 6. Directors, SeManagement and Employees—Share
Option Plan and Share Appreciation Rights Plan'nfiare information concerning our share option p\&fie. expect general and administrative
expenses to increase in absolute terms as we asinpel and incur additional expenses relateda@tbwth of our business and operations.

Other Income (Expenses), Net

Our other income principally consists of interegtdme, sales of claims receivables, foreign excha@ains, warehouse space rental
revenue, royalty income, gains on sale of investmjagains on disposal of property, plant and eqeipnand fair value gains on financial
assets. In 2008, our other income included centa@mest income paid by Kolin under a loan repagablChipMOS Taiwan that bears interest
at a rate of 4.69% per annum. NT$15 million of tbisn was repaid in 2008. The loan was originadigused by a pledge by Kolin of 11 milli
common shares of ThailLin. As of the date of thiméal Report on Form 20-F, the loan has been felhaid and the subject pledge has been
released accordingly. See “Item 7. Major Sharehsldad Related Party Transactions—Related Partyséddions—ThaiLin Semiconductor
Corp” for more information. In January 2010, ChipB@aiwan entered into a definitive Transfer of @laigreement to sell to Citigroup
Financial Products Inc. (Citigroup) the generalamsed claim reflected in the proof of claim aga®gansion. As a result of the agreement,
ChipMOS Taiwan received from Citigroup the purchpsee for the Undisputed Claim of NT$1,118 milliagainst accounts receivable of
NT$2,186 million. A loss on sale of receivabled\Ndf$1,068 million was recognized and the relatedvedince for doubtful receivables
NT$2,186 million was reversed in 2010. The TransfeClaim Agreement also includes the sale of tiezfacontract and liquidated damag
rights against Spansion in the amount of NT$2,1iBom, which was received in October 2010.

As of December 31, 2009, other receivables fronM@¥8 amounted to NT$409 million and 100% allowaneswmade by ChipMOS
Taiwan. NT$7 million was received by April 2010. dlar an amended subcontracting contract, ProMOS@RiipMOS Taiwan NT$200
million in May 2010. The remaining NT$202 millionas subsequently received by March 2011. As of Deeerdl, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan
received NT$336 million and the related allowantdl©$409 million was reversed to other non-opemgiimcome. In March 2011, all
payments were received.

As of December 31, 2009, other receivables fronM@¥8 amounted to NT$55 million and 100% allowance weade by ThaiLin. In
June 2010, ThailLin agreed a settlement with ProNtOie amount of NT$24 million, this payment wabyfueceived in the same year. The
allowance of NT$24 million was reversed to othen4aperating income.

Our other expenses principally consist of inteeagtense, fair value loss on financial assets, fimgncosts, impairment losses, losses on
disposal of property, plant and equipment, lossmibedded derivative and foreign exchange losses.

Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests represent the portion wfimcome that is attributable to the shareholdimgur consolidated subsidiaries that we
do not own. See “Item 4. Information on the Compai@ur Structure and Historyfor information concerning our consolidated sulzsiidis. Ir
2010 and 2011, our noncontrolling interests wetibatable to the noncontrolling interests ownedSiconware Precision in ChipMOS
Taiwan as a result of the February 2010 share pgechgreement under which we agreed to sell 15t&hipMOS Taiwan’s outstanding
shares to Siliconware Precision, and the publicedtwders’ interests in ThaiLin. The sale of 15.82hipMOS Taiwan’s outstanding shares
to Siliconware Precision was completed in Janu@fi12 On April 16, 2013, we sold 6.5 million shace®.8% of the total number of
ChipMOS Taiwan’s outstanding shares, at the prfddT$15.0 per share to ChipMOS Taiwan’s underwsit&fuanta Securities Company
Limited and Capital Securities Corp., and to cert&hers, including non-US employees of ChipMOSwBEai. After deducting tax expense
payable to ROC authority for the aforementioneé,sthle proceeds to ChipMOS Bermuda were approxlynfE$97.2 million (US$3.3
million). Immediately after the completion of théale as of April 16, 2013, the Company holds apiprately 703 million ChipMOS Taiwan
shares, representing 83.4% of the total numbeh@OS Taiwan’s outstanding shares. Under the MMsSBIgnment Agreement signed on
April 22, 2011, ChipMOS Bermuda agreed to sellMidT Notes to ThaiLin. The transaction was complete@®ctober 2011 and ThaiLin
immediately converted the MMT Notes into commonrshaf Modern Mind and purchased all of the renmgjriommon shares of Modern
Mind from Jesper, with ChipMOS Shanghai becominghally-owned subsidiary of ThaiLin. As a resulttbg transaction, the interest of
ChipMOS Bermuda in Modern Mind and also ChipMOS&ftei decreased to 36.1% from 100%. In 2012, ooraumtrolling interests were
attributable to the non-controlling interests owmgdSiliconware Precision in ChipMOS Taiwan and pllic shareholders’ interests in
ThaiLin and ChipMOS Shanghai. As of the date of #hnnual Report on Form 20-F, we own approximaf€$ million ChipMOS Taiwan
shares, representing 83.4% of ChipMOS Taiwan’stanting shares. For the year ended December 32,&td March 31, 2013 we owned
approximately 710 million ChipMOS Taiwan share@resenting 84.2% of ChipMOS Taiwan’s outstandingres.
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Net Income (Loss)

Our net income was NT$1,645 million in 2010, nesslavas NT$15 million in 2011, and net income wa$R2 million (US$25 million)
in 2012, respectively. We believe our future resulill be dependent upon the overall economic doml in the markets we serve, the
competitive environment in which we operate, andahility to successfully implement our strategmang other things. For additional
information on factors that will affect our futuperformance, see “Item 3. Key Information—Risk 6ast.

Results of Operations
The following table presents selected operating data percentage of net revenue for the peridlitsaited:

Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
ROC GAAP:
Net revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of revenu 96.2 90.9 86.6
Gross profit margit 3.8 9.1 13.4
Operating expense

Research and developmt 2.4 2.3 2.6

General and administratiy 3.9 3.6 3.2

Sales and marketir 0.4 0.3 0.4

Total operating expens: 6.7 6.2 6.2

Income (Loss) from operatiol (2.9 2.9 7.2
Other income (expenses), | 13.5 (2.5) (2.4)
Income before income tax and noncontrolling inter 10.6 0.4 4.8
Income tax benefit (expens 0.5 (0.2) (0.7)
Income before noncontrolling intere: 111 0.2 4.1
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling intere (1.5) (0.3) (0.3)
Net income (loss) attributable to ChipM( 9.6% (0.1)% 3.8%

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year EDdedmber 31, 2011

Net Revenue Our net revenue increased by NT$1,010 millior%r, to NT$19,221 million (US$662 million) in 20@m NT$18,211
million in 2011.

Net revenue from testing services for memory agéclmixed-signal semiconductors decreased by NT$8ltbn, or 6%, to NT$5,563
million (US$191 million) in 2012 from NT$5,899 mitth in 2011. Net revenue from testing servicesnfiemory semiconductors decreased by
NT$400 million, or 7%, to NT$5,055 million (US$1rdillion) in 2012 from NT$5,455 million in 2011, mcipally due to lower custom
demand and decreased average selling price for DRAdducts. Net revenue for testing services foickogixed-signal semiconductors
increased by NT$64 million, or 14%, to NT$508 noifli(US$17 million) in 2012 from NT$444 million ird21, principally due to increased
capacity utilization rates.

Net revenue from assembly services for memory agit/mixed-signal semiconductors increased by NP#8dlion, or 7%, to
NT$6,381 million (US$220 million) in 2012 from NT$B9 million in 2011. Net revenue from assembly®es for memory semiconductc
increased by NT$542 million, or 11%, to NT$5,524lion (US$190 million) in 2012 from NT$4,982 millioin 2011, primarily as a result of
increased average selling price. Net revenue freserably services for logic/mixed-signal semicondigtlecreased by NT$150 million, or
15%, to NT$857 million (US$30 million) in 2012 froMiT$1,007 million in 2011, principally due to deased capacity utilization and average
selling price.
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Net revenue from LCD and other flat-panel displayeat semiconductor testing and assembly servicereased by NT$370 million, or
9%, to NT$4,356 million (US$150 million) in 20120 NT$3,986 million in 2011. This increase was pipally as a result of an increase in
customer demand and average selling price for L@daher flat-panel display products in 2012.

Net revenue from bumping services increased by 184 $8illion, or 25%, to NT$2,921 million (US$101 #ioh) in 2012 from NT$2,33
million in 2011. This increase was principally aseault of an increase in customer demand and geeselling price for bumping services in
2012.

See “— Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit (Loss)hiore information concerning our testing and assgicdpacity utilization rates and
the impact on our gross revenue, gross margin esfidgbility from any increases or decreases in@pacity utilization rates.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Margin Cost of revenue increased by NT$90 million, or, 3MNT$16,639 million (US$573 million) in
2012 from NT$16,549 million in 2011, primarily dteethe increases in direct materials, direct laat fringes expense of NT$857 million
(US$30 million), NT$133 million (US$5 million) andT$125 million (US$4 million), respectively, andrgially offset by a decrease of
depreciation expenses of NT$990 million (US$34 ionil).

Our gross profit increased to NT$2,582 million (89%nillion) in 2012 from NT$1,662 million in 201Qur gross margin was 13% in
2012, compared to 9% in 2011.

Our gross margin for testing services for memony lagic/mixed-signal semiconductors increased %% 12 2012 from 6% in 2011,
primarily due to a higher capacity utilization ratéhich increased to 69% in 2012 from 62% in 2011.

Our gross margin for assembly services for memaodylagic/mixed-signal semiconductors increased%oif 2012 from 5% in 2011,
primarily due to the increased average sellingepaicd sales of higher margin memory semicondusterably services.

Our gross margin for LCD and other flat-panel dagpdiriver semiconductor testing and assembly sesviltcreased to 29% in 2012 from
23% in 2011, primarily due to the increased avesading price and sales of higher margin LCD atiweoflat-panel display driver
semiconductor testing and assembly services.

Our gross margin for bumping services increaset¥tan 2012 from 5% in 2011, primarily due to thereased average selling price and
sales of higher margin bumping services.

See “— Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit (Loss)'hiore information concerning our testing and assgicdpacity utilization rates and
the impact on our gross revenue, gross margin esfdgbility from any increases or decreases in@apacity utilization rates.

Research and Development Expensefesearch and development expenses increased $83Nilillion, or 20%, to NT$493 million
(US$17 million) in 2012 from NT$410 million in 201This increase was primarily due to the incredsmatary expense, fringes expense and
utilities expense.

General and Administrative Expenses General and administrative expenses decreasdid $26 million, or 4%, to NT$626 million
(US$22 million) in 2012 from NT$652 million in 201frrimarily due to the decrease of professionaliserfees and partially offset by the
increase of fringes expense and amortization expens

Sales and Marketing ExpensesSales and marketing expenses increased by NT8l@wnor 18%, to NT$78 million (US$3 million) in
2012 from NT$66 million in 2011, primarily due ta ancrease of fringes expense, miscellaneous tdxdaty expense, freight-out expense anc
commissions expense.

Other Income (Expenses), NetOther expenses, net, changed by NT$9 million, or 26ther expenses, net, of NT$465 million (US
million) in 2012 from other expenses, net, of NT64#hillion in 2011. This change was primarily duete increase of foreign exchange los:
NT$378 million (US$13 million) and partially offsey the decrease of interest expense by NT$82ami(fluS$3 million), financing expense
NT$99 million (US$3 million) and impairment loss other assets by NT$160 million (US$6 millio
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Income (Loss) Before Income Tax and Noncontrollingnterests. As a result of the foregoing, income before incdmeand
noncontrolling interests increased by 1,081% to 8&2$million (US$32 million) in 2012 from NT$78 midin in 2011.

Tax Benefit (Expense) We had an income tax expense of NT$131 millioB$B million) in 2012 compared to income tax expesfse
NT$46 million for 2011, primarily due to the incsgaof income before income tax and noncontrollimgrests

Net (Income) Loss Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests. The net income less losses of ThaiLin and itsliykmvned subsidiaries,
Modern Mind and ChipMOS Shanghai and of ChipMOSwEai attributable to noncontrolling interests amedrio NT$68 million (US$2
million) in 2012, compared to NT$47 million in 2011

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to ChipMOS. As a result of the foregoing, the net incomalaitable to ChipMOS was NT$722
million (US$25 million) in 2012, compared to a thads attributable to ChipMOS of NT$15 million in2D

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year EDdedmber 31, 2010
Net Revenue Our net revenue increased by NT$1,001 millior%r, to NT$18,211 million in 2011 from NT$17,210llion in 2010.

Net revenue from testing services for memory agéclmixed-signal semiconductors decreased by NT$@iflion, or 4%, to NT$5,899
million in 2011 from NT$6,170 million in 2010. Netvenue from testing services for memory semicotmaaecreased by NT$122 million,
2%, to NT$5,455 million in 2011 from NT$5,577 milli in 2010, principally due to decreased averafi@gerice for DRAM products. Net
revenue for testing services for logic/mixed-sigsainiconductors decreased by NT$149 million, or 282 T$444 million in 2011 from
NT$593 million in 2010, principally due to decredseverage selling pric

Net revenue from assembly services for memory agit/mixed-signal semiconductors decreased by NU$@illion, or 4%, to
NT$5,989 million in 2011 from NT$6,259 million ir020. Net revenue from assembly services for mersenyiconductors decreased
NT$131 million, or 3%, to NT$4,982 million in 20Xdom NT$5,113 million in 2010, primarily as a ressaf decreased capacity utilization re
and average selling price. Net revenue from asses#ivices for logic/mixed-signal semiconductorsrdased by NT$139 million, or 12%, to
NT$1,007 million in 2011 from NT$1,146 million ir020, also attributable to decreased capacity atibn rates and average selling pr

Net revenue from LCD and other flat-panel displayeatr semiconductor testing and assembly service®ased by NT$787 million, or
25%, to NT$3,986 million in 2011 from NT$3,199 rioh in 2010. This increase was principally as altesf an increase of capacity and its
utilization for LCD and other flat-panel displayopiucts in 2011.

Net revenue from bumping services increased by N5$illion, or 48%, to NT$2,337 million in 2011 froNT$1,582 million in 2010.
This increase was principally as a result of amdased capacity utilization rate for bumping sersit 2011.

See “— Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit (Loss)'hiore information concerning our testing and asdgmdpacity utilization rates and
the impact on our gross revenue, gross margin esfidgbility from any increases or decreases in@apacity utilization rates.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Margin Cost of revenue decreased by NT$15 million, &#4).to NT$16,549 million in 2011 from
NT$16,564 million in 2010, primarily due to decrea®f depreciation expenses of NT$629 million aadiglly offset by an increase in dire
materials, direct labor, inventory supplies anceimery valuation allowance of NT$173 million, NT$Lillion, NT$104 million and NT$214
million, respectively. Direct materials increasethpipally as a result of the increase in capauttijzation rate.

Our gross profit increased to NT$1,662 million Bil2 from NT$646 million in 2010. Our gross margiasi®% in 2011, compared to ¢
in 2010.

Our gross margin for testing services for memony lagic/mixed-signal semiconductors increased toi62011 from negative 4% in
2010, primarily due to a higher capacity utilizati@te, which increased to 62% in 2011 from 60%0@&0.

Our gross margin for assembly services for memaodylagic/mixed-signal semiconductors increasedoi» 2011 from 3% in 2010,
primarily due to the increased sales of higher mamgemory semiconductor assembly services.
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Our gross margin for LCD and other flat-panel dagpdiriver semiconductor testing and assembly sesviltccreased to 23% in 2011 from
22% in 2010, primarily as a result of an increasthe capacity utilization rate from 77% in 2013B@%6 in 2011.

Our gross margin for bumping services increaseg®tan 2011 from negative 1% in 2010, primarily agsult of an increase in the
capacity utilization rate from 77% in 2010 to 88%@2011.

See “— Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit (Loss)hiore information concerning our testing and assgicdpacity utilization rates and
the impact on our gross revenue, gross margin eafdgbility from any increases or decreases in@apacity utilization rates.

Research and Development Expensefesearch and development expenses decreased®3yrilllion, or 1%, to NT$410 million in
2011 from NT$413 million in 2010. This decrease wamarily due to the decrease of amortization esps and professional services fees.

General and Administrative Expenses General and administrative expenses decreasdid $26 million, or 4%, to NT$652 million in
2011 from NT$678 million in 2010, primarily duetiee decrease of amortization expenses and bangehar

Sales and Marketing ExpensesSales and marketing expenses increased by NT$@mitr 3%, to NT$66 million in 2011 from NT$
million in 2010, primarily due to an increase diffht-out expenses.

Other Income (Expenses), NetOther income (expenses), net, changed by NT$2,7lliédmor 120%, to other expenses, net, of NT§
million in 2011 from other income, net, of NT$2,32illlion in 2010. This change was primarily duethe one-off income from the sale of
Undisputed Claim against Spansion of NT$2,118 oiilliand recovery of allowance for doubtful receleatof NT$2,717 million in 2010,
which were partially offset by the loss on saleafeivables of NT$1,068 million in 2010.This chamgges also caused in part by the increase ¢
foreign exchange gain by NT$422 million, decreasiaterest expense by NT$374 million and decredsmpairment loss on other assets by
NT$223 million.

Income (Loss) Before Income Tax and Noncontrollingnterests. As a result of the foregoing, income before incdmeand
noncontrolling interests decreased by 96% to NTi&#Bon in 2011 from NT$1,812 million in 2010.

Income Tax Benefit (Expense) We had an income tax expense of NT$46 millioA0t1 compared to income tax benefit of NT$99
million for 2010, primarily due to the utilizatioof tax credit in 2011.

Net (Income) Loss Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests. The net income less losses of ThaiLin and itsliykmvned subsidiaries,
Modern Mind and ChipMOS Shanghai and of ChipMOSwEa attributable to noncontrolling interests amedro NT$47 million in 2011,
compared to the net income of ThaiLin and of ChigBMCaiwan attributable to noncontrolling interest®Nd $266 million in 2010.

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to ChipMOS. As a result of the foregoing, the net loss atitalble to ChipMOS was NT$15 million in
2011, compared to a net income attributable to KRE of NT$1,645 million in 2010.

Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statementeimormity with ROC GAAP. Under ROC GAAP, we asgjuired to make certain
estimates, judgments and assumptions about méttgrare highly uncertain at the time those estisigtidgments and assumptions are made
and our financial condition or results of operasionay be materially impacted if we use differerttimnetheless reasonable estimates,
judgments or assumptions about those matters &p#rticular period or if we change our estimaiedgments or assumptions from perioc
period.

Under ROC GAAP, the significant accounting policies set forth in Note 2 of the notes to the cadatdd financial statements
contained in this Annual Report on Form 20-F. Tigaificant accounting policies that require us tak®m estimates and assumptions about the
effect of matters that are inherently uncertaindiseussed below. In connection with the reconidliaof our consolidated financial statements
to US GAAP, there are no additional accountinggies that we believe are critical to us exceptescdbed below under “— Convertible
Note¢" and “— Share-Based Compensation”.
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Allowance for Doubtful Receivables and Sales Retsirn

Our accounts receivable balance on our balance shatected by our allowances for doubtful acdsuand sales returns, which reflect
our estimate of the expected amount of the recédgahat we will not be able to collect and ouireate of the expected amount of sales
returns.

Our determination of the allowance for doubtfulai®ables is based on our determination of two diffie types of reserves. The first type
of reserve involves an individual examination o&iable information regarding any customer thathaee reason to believe may have an
inability to meet its financial obligations. Foretfe customers, we use our judgment, based on dlilalde facts and circumstances, and rect
specific reserve for that customer against amoduésto reduce the receivable to the amount thatpected to be collected. These specific
reserves are reevaluated and adjusted as additidaahation is received. The second type of resés\a general reserve established for all
customers based on a range of percentages appledny categories. These percentages are badastorical collection and write-off
experience. If circumstances change, our estinudté®e recoverability of amounts due to us coulddmuced by a material amount. As of
December 31, 2012, we provided NT$65 million (US§iftion) for the first type of reserve and NT$5btlsand (US$2 thousand) for the
second type of reserve. See “ltem 4. InformatiothenCompany—Customers”.

Our determination of the allowances for sales retas of the end of any quarter is based uponlasitog an average historical return
rate, usually based on the previous three quadatsmultiplying this by the revenue of that quarfes of December 31, 2012, we provided
NT$123 million (US$4 million) for the allowance séles returns

The allowance we set aside for doubtful receivabtessales returns was NT$262 million as of Decer@he2010, NT$186 million as of
December 31, 2011 and NT$188 million (US$6 millias)of December 31, 2012. The allowances as ofrbeee31, 2010, 2011 and 2012
represented 7%, 5% and 4%, respectively, of ouswats receivable and other receivables as of tHats. The allowance in 2010, 2011 and
2012 reflected a reduction of NT$74 million, NT$#lion and NT$57 thousand (US$2 thousand), respelstj in accounts receivable and of
receivables that were charged to sales and magkexipenses. If we were to change our estimateeohitowance for doubtful receivables ei
upward or downward 10%, our operating income wdigldffected by NT$28 thousand (US$1 thousand)@de2

An increase in our allowance for doubtful receiesbhnd sales returns would increase our sales arigting expenses, decrease our
recorded revenue and our current assets.

Inventory Valuation

Inventories are stated at the lower of standard (eajusted to the approximate weighted averagearothe balance sheet date) or net
realizable value. Inventory write-down is made aritam-by-item basis, except where it may be apfateto group similar or related items.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling poiceventories less all estimated costs of conipheind necessary selling costs. Pria
January 1, 2009, inventories were stated at thed@ivcost or market value. Any write-down was made totalnventory basis. Market val
represented replacement cost for raw materialsiahcealizable value for finished goods and worgriogress.

In 2010, 2011 and 2012, we reserved NT$37 millldh$85 million and NT$20 million (US$1 million) ofiventory valuation allowance,
primarily because the market price of tested asdrabled DRAM and SDRAM inventory was below costadldition, we reserved NT$28
million in 2010, NT$36 million in 2011 and NT$38 lfion (US$1 million) in 2012 for identified slow-nwing inventories.

As of December 31, 2012, we recorded NT$58 mil{id8$2 million) of inventory valuation allowanceséthe prevailing market price of
our testing and assembly services had been 10% leveewould have been required to recognize a tiauallowance of approximately
NT$86 million (US$3 million) in 2012 and would hadecreased our inventory value by 5% and decreasedet income by 129
respectively.
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Valuation Allowance for Deferred Tax Assets

When we have net operating loss carry forwardgstment tax credits or temporary differences inatm@unt of tax recorded for tax
purposes and accounting purposes, we may be atdedce the amount of tax that we would otherwisedguired to pay in future periods. \
recognize all existing future tax benefits arisirgm these tax attributes as deferred tax assetsham, based on our internal estimates of our
future profits, establish a valuation allowanceada the extent, if any, that it is more likelathnot that deferred tax assets will not be
realized. We record an income tax expense or kanejur statement of operations when there istaihange in our total deferred tax assets
and liabilities in a period. The ultimate realizatiof the deferred tax assets depends upon theajemeof future taxable income during the
periods in which the net operating losses and tearpalifferences become deductible or the investrteencredits may be utilized.
Specifically, our valuation allowances are impadigdur expected future revenue growth and pradfitabtax holidays, alternative minimum
tax, and the amount of tax credits that can b&atlwithin the statutory period. In determining ttmount of valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets as of December 31, 2012, we considastgerformance, the general outlook of the sendicotor industry, future taxable income
and prudent and feasible tax planning strategies.

Because the determination of the amount of valnaimwance is based, in part, on our forecastfré profitability, it is inherently
uncertain and subjective. Changes in market camditand our assumptions may cause the actual fotafigability to differ materially from
our current expectation, which may require us tvéase or decrease the amount of valuation allosvirat we have recorded. Because our
expectation for future profitability is generallysis during periods of reduced revenue, we will beertikely to provide significant valuation
allowances with respect to deferred tax assetsigthiose periods of already reduced income.

As of December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, the erukt@nces for valuation allowances were NT$1,171ionil NT$825 million and
NT$586 million (US$20 million), respectivel

Impairment Loss of Long-Lived Assets

Under ROC GAAP, we record impairment losses on-ioregl assets used in operations if events andigistances indicate that the
assets might be impaired and the recoverable amaditiie assets of the cash-generating unit asethes the carrying amounts of those items
Assumptions about the recoverable amounts of thg-lewed assets require significant judgment onexpected cash flow. Our cash flow
estimates are based on historical results adjustezflect our best estimate of future market apérating conditions. The net carrying value of
assets not recoverable is reduced to fair value n@nagement periodically reviews the carrying gatiour long-lived assets and this review
is based upon our projections of anticipated futagh flows.

In determining whether any impairment charges we@essary for the property, plant and equipmenbémel assets for the year ended
December 31, 2012, we assumed that the semicondadtestry will continue its growth in the next fexgars. Based upon our assumption of
growth in the semiconductor industry and our ottgsumptions in our internal budget, for the purpsdetermining whether any impairment
charges are necessary for the year ended Decermp2d B2, we estimated that our discounted futusd daws are not smaller than our
property, plant and equipment. Therefore, no immpairt loss has been recognized in respect of psop#ant and equipment. If our current
estimates of future cash flows decreases, thosefloags would be less than the reported amountodlived assets, and we would be requ
to recognize additional impairment loss, which vebsilgnificantly decrease our net income beforedaxe

Under US GAAP, an impairment loss is recognizedmiire carrying amount of an asset or a group atass not recoverable from the
expected future cash flows and the impairmentibaseasured as the difference between the faievahd the carrying amount of the asset or
group of assets. The impairment loss is recordeinings and cannot be reversed subsequently-lv@assets (excluding goodwill) held
and used by the Company are reviewed for impairwbenever events or changes in circumstances iedieat the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable.

Based on the assessment of our management, in @@lI2cognized NT$27 million (US$929 thousand) Bii&$8 million (US$275
thousand) of impairment loss for long-term invegitaseand other long-lived assets under ROC GAAPUR@GAAP.

While we believe that our estimates of future démlvs are reasonable, different assumptions reggrsliich cash flows could materially
affect our evaluations.
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Convertible Notes

Under US GAAP, we are required to account for teversion features in the Convertible Notes issoeé2D06 (“2006 Notes”), the
Convertible Notes issued in 2009 (“2009 Notes™g, @onvertible Notes issued in 2010 (*2010 Notesi) the Convertible Notes issued in 2
(“2011 Notes”) as derivative liabilities in accord® with Financial Accounting Standards Board Acttimg Standards Codification (“FASB
ASC") 815 “Derivatives and Hedging".

The change in fair value on revaluation of the edaeel derivative liabilities represents the differemetween the fair value of the
embedded derivative liabilities at the beginninghef reporting period and their fair value at the ef the reporting period. We are required to
record the change in fair value as a loss or gaiarobedded derivative liabilities in determining imeome under US GAAP. As of
December 31, 2011, all the 2006 Notes, the 20023\ dhe 2010 Notes and the 2011 Notes have beeamadl or converted and there was nil
balance of embedded derivative liabilities. Duriii 1, the changes of the fair value of the embedeéegative liabilities resulted in a loss on
embedded derivative liabilities of NT$57 millionh& loss was taken into account when determiningnetimcome under US GAAP for the
year ended December 31, 2011. The fair values bedaed derivatives are determined using optionnrimodels, which require us to me
various assumptions, including among others, tipeeted volatility of our stock over the life of tbption, market interest rates, credit spread
and the expected life of the option. In determirtimgse input assumptions, we consider historieaids and other relevant factors which may
change from period to period. Because the optianing models are sensitive to change in the ingatimptions, different determinations of
required inputs may result in different fair vakstimates of the options.

Under ROC GAAP, we are required to bifurcate anmhsstely account for embedded derivatives contaimedir convertible notes issu
after 2005 in accordance with SFAS No. 34 “Finahicistruments: Recognition and Measurement”. Foremioformation, see Notes 12 and
24h to our consolidated financial statements caetiin this Annual Report on Form 20-F.

Share-Based Compensation

Under US GAAP, we are required to account for anpleyee share option plans under the fair-valuetasethod and to recognize
share-based compensation arrangements as expehseconsolidated statements of operations, inrdeoee with FASB ASC 718
“Compensation — Stock Compensation”. The deterranaif the fair value of our share options on théedf grant under the Black Scholes
Option Pricing Model is affected by the price of @@mmon shares and assumptions of a number @hlas, including the risk-free interest
rate, the expected life of the options, the esttdair value of our common shares and the expgmied volatility of our common shares over
the term of the options. In 2012, the share-basetpensation expense amounted to NT$46 million (U8#$®n), which was taken into
account when determining our net income and shédets equity under US GAAP for the year ended Deloer 31, 2012.

Prior to adopting FASB ASC 718 in 2006, shbesed compensation arrangements were accountadder Accounting Principles Boz
Opinion No. 25, which utilized an intrinsic valugpoach in recognizing compensation expense. UR@EE GAAP and prior to January 1,
2008, we accounted for our shdr@sed compensation arrangements under the intsiakie method. Commencing January 1, 2008, we ad
SFAS No. 39 “Share-based Payment”. After the adoptf SFAS No. 39, our share-based compensatiobdes measured at the fair value of
the options at grant date using an option valuatiodel. For more information, see Notes 2, 24i 25icto our consolidated financial
statements contained in this Annual Report on F20rf.

Senior Management’s Discussion with the Audit Conttae

Our management has discussed the critical accauptiticies described above with the audit committeeur board of directors and the
audit committee has reviewed our disclosure regatiinthe critical accounting policies in this seati

Impact of Foreign Currency Fluctuations and Governental or Political Factors

For a discussion of the impact of foreign currefiagtuations and governmental economics, fiscalpetary or political policies or
factors that may directly or indirect impact us Sekem 3. Key Information—Risks Factors—Risks Riglg to Our Business—Fluctuations in
exchange rates could result in foreign exchangeekisand “Item 3. Key Information—Risks Factors—KRifelating to Countries in Which
We Conduct Operations”.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, we have funded our operatimsgrowth primarily through the issuance of equatynixture of short- and long-term
loans and cash flow from operations. As of Decen®iei2012, our primary sources of liquidity wersltand cash equivalents (excluding
restricted cash and cash equivalents) of NT$9,3ll®m(US$321 million), short-term loans of NT$B@ million (US$50 million) available to
us in undrawn facilities, which have expired orlwitpire from January 2013 to November 2013, and{&rm loans of US$2 million (NT$58
million) available to us in undrawn facilities, vehi will expire in March 2014. To meet our liquidityapital spending and other capital needs,
we have taken certain steps discussed below.

64



Table of Contents

In December 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan reached agreemigmiand received approval from its bank crediforsan extension of its
repayment schedule on its short-term loans. Tlais lepayment schedule is further discussed under Nbto our consolidated financial
statements contained in this Annual Report on F20rf. The following related key extended repaynterrhs and conditions apply to
ChipMOS Taiwan'’s bank loans due between 2009 t@2B&r repayment of non-revolving short-term lodbsipMOS Taiwan agreed to repay
20% of the outstanding principal on December 31,0280 repay the balance outstanding in eight gdarinstallments by the end of 2012, and
to set aside NT$50 million per month with Bank @fivian from January 2011 until December 2012 to finedscheduled estimated principal
repayments. ChipMOS Taiwan may maintain its curremblving short-term facilities but is requirediterease its collateral to secure up to
60% of the outstanding principal amount by the eh2011. For repayment of lortgrm loans, ChipMOS Taiwan agreed to set aside Batihk
of Taiwan NT$300 million per month for 2011, NT$270lion per month for 2012 and NT$150 million paonth for 2013 to meet the
principal repayment schedule. The bank creditorsejthat ChipMOS Taiwan may arrange additionakbaans for purchasing operating
materials by using its available assets as codht&@hese banks also agreed not to unilaterallgdose and seize any machinery, property or
deposits of ChipMOS Taiwan and agreed to waivep@mnalties that might have to be imposed on the @Gomn case of breach under the
existing loan agreements.

In July 2011, ChipMOS Taiwan obtained a syndicdtaah facility from banks in Taiwan in the amountNf$8,410 million separated
into two parts with its respective term of four yeeand five years. This loan facility was useddiinance the existing bank debts and equip
leases in July and August 2011.

Our bank creditors provided us with a waiver in feoy 2010 relating to any potential covenant bineaainder a syndicated loan facility
agreement with Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kbmgited as agent. The application by the Compamefly repayment of the
outstanding loan in four installments was appravedpril 2010 without penalty. The syndicated Idaility was fully repaid in January 2011.
See “Item 3. Key Information—Risk Factors—Risksaiglg to Our Business—Our significant amount ofelbédness and interest expense
will limit our cash flow and could adversely affemir operations” for additional information.

Liquidity
The following table sets forth our cash flows widispect to operating activities, investing actastifinancing activities and the effect of
exchange rate changes on cash for the periodsaiedic

Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012 2012
NTS$ NTS$ NTS$ US$
(in millions)
Net cash provided by (used il
Operating activitie! $8,688.¢ $5898.( $4,735.0 $163.(
Investing activities (2,454.9) (3,250.) (2,594.9 (89.9)
Financing activitie: (2,959.H (2,464.9 (162.7) (5.6
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (16.9) 31.¢ (16.6) (0.6)
Net increase in cas $3,258.. $ 214¢ $1961.. $ 67.F
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Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities totaleidbi, 735 million (US$163 million) in 2012, comparedNT$5,898 million in 2011. Ne¢
cash provided by operating activities was posijivelpacted by a net income of NT$722 million (US$&HBion) with depreciation expenses
NT$4,572 million (US$157 million) in 2012 compargxda net loss of NT$15 million with depreciatiorpexrses of NT$5,514 million in 201
The decrease in net cash provided by operatingigesi was primarily due to a decrease of accopag@ble of NT$233 million (US$8 million)
in 2012 compared to an increase of accounts paydiNg$433 million in 2011 and a decrease of ofhegyable of NT$72 million (US$2
million) in 2012 compared to an increase of otheygble of NT$161 million in 2011.

Net cash provided by operating activities totaledbb,898 million in 2011, compared to NT$8,689 roitliin 2010. The decrease in net
cash provided by operating activities was primadilie to a net loss of NT$15 million in 2011, conghto net income of NT$1,645 million in
2010, an increase of accounts receivables of NT$@8®n in 2011 compared to a decrease of accorgusivable of NT$1,564 million in
2010, the decrease of depreciation expenses, wastiNT$5,514 million in 2011 compared to NT$6,138iom in 2010, a decrease of accrt
expenses and other liabilities of NT$219 millior2@11 compared to an increase of accrued expendestiaer liabilities of NT$473 million in
2010. The net cash provided by operating activitias partially offset by the recovery of allowarfieedoubtful receivables, which was NT$69
million in 2011 compared to NT$2,718 million in 201

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities totaled NB$3, million (US$89 million) in 2012, compared to $3,251 million in 2011. The
decrease in net cash used in investing activitis pvimarily attributable to the decrease in cépitpenditures which was NT$2,706 million
(US$93 million) in 2012, compared to NT$4,151 moitliin 2011.The decrease in net cash used in imgeattivities also was partially offset
the decrease in proceeds from sales of propednt phd equipment which was NT$38 million (US$lionil) in 2012, compared to NT$315
million in 2011. In 2011, there were also procefedm sales of ChipMOS Taiwan'’s outstanding shaoeSiliconware Precision of NT$487
million.

Net cash used in investing activities totaled N2$3, million in 2011, compared to NT$2,454 million2010. The increase in net cash
used in investing activities was primarily the esfia decrease in the proceeds from sales of @i Taiwan’s outstanding shares to
Siliconware Precision which decreased to NT$48Tioniin 2011 from NT$1,133 million in 2010.

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities totaled NT$h@llion (US$6 million) in 2012, compared to NT485 million in 2011. The decree
in net cash used in financing activities was pritydhe result of the net payments of long-termns@f NT$198 million (US$7 million) in
2012, compared to NT$1,398 million in 2011 andp@tments of short-term loans of NT$180 million (8S#illion) in 2012, compared to
NT$948 million in 2011 and the increase in procefedis sale of treasury stock of NT$528 million (US$million) in 2012.

Net cash used in financing activities totaled N#$3, million in 2011, compared to NT$2,959 million2010. The decrease in net cash
used in financing activities was primarily the fésdi the net payments of long-term loans of NT®B 3nillion in 2011, compared to NT$2,227
million in 2010 and net payments of shtetm loans of NT$948 million in 2011, compared 6#869 million in 2010. This was partially offs
by the net proceeds of convertible notes of NT$h8lion in 2010.

Capital Resources

Capital expenditures in 2010 were funded by NT$8 ®@lion in cash flows from operating activiti€Sapital expenditures in 2011 were
funded by NT$5,898 million in cash flows from optimg activities. Capital expenditures in 2012 wkneded by NT$4,735 million (US$163
million) in cash flows from operating activities.

Steps taken with respect to generating additiomaking capital and to saving cash are further dised under “—Liquidity and Capital
Resources.”
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Loans

As of December 31, 2012, we had long-term loarsT#8,968 million (US$309 million) (including curreportions of such long-term
loans of NT$2,228 million (US$77 million)). As ofedBember 31, 2012, unused credit value of our lengrioans was approximately US$2
million (NT$58 million). As of December 31, 2012TH4,866 million (US$168 million) of our long-termdns were collateralized by
equipment, and NT$4,102 million (US$141 million)weollateralized by land and buildings and lanel ight. Of our long-term loans, in the
aggregate:

. NT$8,968 million (US$309 million) were floating mloans with a rate between 1.73% and 3.9117% Beoémber 31, 201.
repayable quarterly or se-annually until November 2014 to March 20.

We had entered into the following syndicated loacilities:

. On March 21, 2003, we obtained a syndicated loaifitiain the amount of NT$1,000 million. This lodacility is separated into
two parts with its respective term of seven yeacsfave years. This loan facility is secured by iLlirals facilities and the testing
equipment at Chupei. This loan facility was fulgpaid in May 2011

. On July 27, 2004, we obtained a syndicated loaifitiam the amount of NT$1,000 million for a teraf five years. This loan
facility is secured by our facilities at the South&aiwan Science Park and our testing and asseasfplippment located within our
facilities at Chupei, the Hsinchu Science Park tiedSouthern Taiwan Science Park. This loan fgaiis fully repaid in August
2011.

. On June 7, 2005, we obtained a syndicated loalitfeici the amount of NT$1,000 million for a ternfifour years. This loan facilit
is secured by our facilities at the Hsinchu ScigRaek. This loan facility was fully repaid in Jup11.

. In January 2006, we obtained a syndicated loatitiafrom banks in Taiwan in the amount of NT$6,00dlion for a term of five
years. This loan facility is secured by our famhktat the Hsinchu Science Park and our testingaasembly equipment locat
within our facilities at Chupei, the Hsinchu ScierRark and the Southern Taiwan Science Park. darsfacility was fully repaid i
July 2011.

. In February 2006, we obtained a syndicated loaifitiafrom banks in Taiwan in the amount of NT$3@illion for a term of six
years. This loan facility is secured by Tha's facilities at Chupei. The last withdraw date wagyust 2009, and the facility was
adjusted to NT$1,500 million. This loan facility svéully repaid in February 201

. In June 2007, we obtained a syndicated loan faéiiim banks in Taiwan in the amount of NT$6,000ion for a term of five
years. This loan facility is secured by our famhtat the Southern Taiwan Science Park and equiplmeated within our facilitie
at Chupei, the Hsinchu Science Park and the Sauffeiwan Science Park. In November 2009, the faadownward adjusted to
NT$2,100 million. This loan facility was fully reghin August 2011

. In July 2008, we obtained a syndicated loan facitibm banks in Taiwan in the amount of US$74.Sionil for a term of three
years. This loan facility is guaranteed by ChipMG#wan. This loan facility was fully repaid on Jamy 31, 2011

. On July 14, 2011, we obtained a syndicated loaifitiafrom banks in Taiwan in the amount of NT$804illion (US$290 million)
separated into two parts with its respective teffioor years and five years. This loan facilitysicured by existing land and
buildings and equipment owned by ChipMOS TaiwanoABecember 31, 2011, this loan facility was fudisawn.

. On March 7, 2012, we obtained a bank loan facitiyn a bank in Shanghai in the amount of US$9 onillior a term of three yea
This loan facility is secured by existing land uigght, buildings and equipment owned by ChipMOS r&jiei.

Certain of our loan agreements and indentures tootvenants that, if violated, could result in tii#igations under these agreements
becoming due prior to the originally scheduled migtuates. These covenants include financial caménthat require us to:

. maintain current assets to current liabilitiesaatbove 1:2 and 1:
. maintain total indebtedness to sharehol’ equity (excluding goodwill and other intangible ets3 ratio below 1.5:1
. maintain total indebtedness to sharehol’ equity ratio below 1.2:1 and 1.4:1; a

. maintain the earnings before interest, taxes, @égien and amortization to gross interest expeatie above 1.5:1 and 2:1 and
2.5:1.

In December 2009, ThaiLin obtained waiver from ctiamze with the earnings to principal and interesio requirement for 2009.
ThailLin was in compliance with the financial ratequirement for 2010 and 2011. In 2012, ThaiLin wasrequired to maintain any financial
ratio of which syndicated loans were repaid in 8efiter 2012. In February and November 2009 and Nbee2010, ChipMOS Taiwan
received three separate waiver request approwatsits creditors and was waived from compliancélhie financial ratio requirements for
2009 and 2010, respectively. ChipMOS Taiwan waimpliance with the financial ratio requirement 211 and 2012. Pursuant to a bank
creditors meetings and the approval notice fronm&ied Chartered Bank on February 9, 2010, ChipM@8nBda, as borrower, and ChipMt
Taiwan, as guarantor, were waived from complianitk the financial ratio requirements as of Decengigr2009. ChipMOS Shanghai was
required to maintain any financial ratio during 201
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In December 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan further receiviegraval for its request for repayment extensiomfimver 50% of the creditor
banks for its short-term loans and the amount c32N#68 million has been extended on December 3l0.Z0he key extension repayment
terms include agreement by ChipMOS Taiwan to regi# of the outstanding short-term loans on Decer@beP010 and to repay the balance
in eight installments by setting aside monthly atistents of NT$50 million with Bank of Taiwan, thergest bank creditor, commencing
January 2011 to December 2012.

In addition, a substantial portion of our shortteand long-term borrowings may be subject to regayrupon a material deterioration of
our financial condition, results of operations ar ability to perform under the loan agreements.

Set forth below are the maturities of our long-tdramk loans outstanding as of December 31, 2012:

As of
December 31, 201;
NT$ US$
(in millions)

During 2013 $2,22¢ $ 77
During 2014 2,86 99
During 2015 1,83¢ 63
During 2016 1,915 66
During 2017 and onwart 12t 4

$ 8,96¢ $30¢

As of December 31, 2012, certain of our land aritimgs and land use right and machinery with agragate net book value of
NT$5,665 million (US$195 million) and NT$2,119 nolh (US$73 million), respectively, were pledgectaliateral in connection with ot
long-term borrowings. Approximately 64% of our pebperty, plant and equipment in terms of book galiere pledged as collateral for our
long-term loans.

Our unused credit lines for short-term loans, aBedember 31, 2012, totaled NT$1,466 million (US#%&0ion), which have expired or
will expire from January 2013 to November 2013.0A®ecember 31, 2012, our unused Idagn credit facilities totaled US$2 million (NT$
million).

As of December 31, 2012, we had unsecured sharttezdit loans for importing raw materials in toéat amount of NT$366 million
(US$13 million), which were due between January®aid March 2013, and secured loans for importathimery in the total amount of
NT$705 thousand (US$24 thousand), which were ddamuary 2012

We believe our current cash and cash equivaleash, ftow from operations and available credit fde# will be sufficient to meet our
capital spending and other capital needs througletid of 2013. There can be no assurance regataiag matters, however, considering
prevailing global economic conditions which congrto have a negative impact on our ability to aataly forecast our revenues, results of
operations and cash position. See “Item 3. Keyrinfdion—Risk Factors—Risks Relating to Our Busire&rir significant amount of
indebtedness and interest expense will limit oshdéow and could adversely affect our operations”.

Capital Lease Obligations

ChipMOS Taiwan negotiated with its lessors and eoted the leases of certain equipment into calgigales in November 2009. As of
December 31, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan had capital leatigations of NT$1,454 million to be repaid beeme2011 and 2013, with an interest
rate between 4.0888% to 4.0973%. The leased equipamne the corresponding capital leases payableeaogded at the lower of the fair value
of the leased equipment and the present valueeahthimum lease payments of such assets. The thgaises were fully repaid with the
proceeds of the new NT$8,410 million long-term lwamJuly 2011.

Convertible Notes
As of December 31, 2011, all convertible notes Haeen fully converted or redeemed and no convertibtes remained outstanding.
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On November 3, 2004, ChipMOS Bermuda issued US$8®mof 1.75 % Convertible Senior Notes due 2@t “2004 Notes”)with a
conversion price of US$7.85 per share (which waes kdjusted to a conversion price of US$6.28 harey. In December 2004, we
repurchased and cancelled approximately US$1 mithicthe 2004 Notes. In October 2006, we made danded conversion offer to the
noteholders of the 2004 Notes in which noteholders/erted approximately US$7 million in aggregaiaegpal amount of the 2004 Notes ir
a combination of common shares and cash. In Nove@@6, we repurchased approximately US$6 millloaggregate principal amount of
the 2004 Notes pursuant to the noteholders’ pubobptnder the indenture. In 2007, ThaiLin, ChipMD&wan’s 42.9% owned subsidiary,
purchased approximately US$9 million of the 2004e@80During 2008, we repurchased approximately 83#illion of the 2004 Notes. In
October 2009, we completed the closing of two pgelyanegotiated transactions with two investorgir@, in aggregate, US$54 million of the
2004 Notes. In the first transaction, the Compamy @n institutional investor completed the exchanfggS$45 million in outstanding 2004
Notes for US$15 million in cash and US$16 milliditiee 10% Notes (as defined below) issued pursieaah indenture with The Bank of Ne
York Mellon as indenture trustee. In the secondgaation, the Company and ThaiLin, ChipMOS Taivwgat?.9% owned subsidiary, comple
an exchange of US$9 million in outstanding 2004dsdbr US$3 million of the 10% Notes and US$6 miilof the 8% Notes (as defined
below) issued by us. The remaining 2004 Notes,@pmately US$2 million, were repaid in full at maty in 2009.

In September 2006, we issued US$100 million 3.3C%vertible Senior Notes due 2011 with a converpioce of US$6.85 (US$27.4)
per share, issued pursuant to an indenture withBEmk of New York Mellon as the indenture trustte (‘2006 Notes”). In 2007, we
repurchased approximately US$1 million in aggregatecipal amount of the 2006 Notes. In 2008, waurehased approximately US$97
million in aggregate principal amount of the 2006té&&, primarily pursuant to the put option offetguier the indenture. On March 31, 2011,
the Company has elected to redeem approximatel2 u8fon in aggregate principal amount of the 200&es, then outstanding. The
effective date of the redemption is May 3, 2011.

In 2009, we issued the following convertible nateslectively, the “2009 Notes”):

. US$16 million of 10% Convertible Senior Notes d@d.2 with conversion price of US$6.0 per share,adsn October 2009
pursuant to an indenture with The Bank of New Yliddlon as indenture trustee (t“10% Note”);

. US$3 million of 10% Senior Convertible Bonds dud.2@vith a conversion price of US$6.0 per sharesyamt to notes issued in
October 2009 by us directly to ThaiLin, ChipMOSwWan's 42.9% owned subsidiary, in exchange of ontitey 2004 Notes (also,
the“10% Note”); and

. US$21 million of 8% Senior Convertible Bonds dud 2@vith conversion price of US$5.0 per share, pamsto notes issued by us
directly to the noteholders thereof (the “8% Nojesf which, US$16 million were issued to ThaiLm®ctober 2009.
Approximately US$6 million of which principal amoiwwas issued in exchange for outstanding 2004 NaotdsUS$10 million of
which principal amount was purchased by ThailLifaat value

In December 2009, we entered into purchase agraemah seven other investors (the “Purchasers’iie purchase of 8% Notes at
face value in the principal aggregate amount of 108&illion. The Purchasers included the Chairmah @hief Executive Officer of the
Company, Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng, who purchased the 8%3\n the principal amount of US$1 million on #@me terms and conditions as the
other Purchasers. The closing occurred on Decether009 for all Purchasers other than PacMOS lam@hairman of PacMOS, Mr. Chi
Hung Yip. The closing for PacMOS and Mr. Chi Hunip Yin the aggregate amount of US$5 million) ocedrm March 2010.

As of December 31, 2011, all 2009 Notes have beklyndonverted into our common shares, in variomsversion transactions that
occurred during the first quarter of 2010 througlsécond quarter of 2011. The conversion pricesiotonvertible notes disclosed in the
foregoing paragraph reflect adjusted figures degotivhere applicable, the effect of the Companyfsrievery-4 reverse stock split effective
on January 21, 2011.

In March 2010, we issued US$5 million of 8% Ser@anvertible Bonds due 2015, upon the same comni¢ecias as the 8% Notes (the
“2010 Notes”), all of which have been fully convaitinto our common shares, in conversion transagtioat occurred in May 2010 and April
2011.

The amount converted to our common shares uporecsion of the 2009 Notes and the 2010 Notes indasteamount equal to the sum
of any make-whole amount and any accrued and unipi@cest, calculated in accordance with the tesns conditions of the 2009 Notes and
the 2010 Notes. The makehole amount was the amount of interest that wbakk accrued from the applicable conversion datiethe statet
maturity, discounted to the present value usingtiigished yield on U.S. treasury notes havingragarable remaining tenor on the
determination date plus 50 basis points; providhed the additional 50 basis points was not add#weifipplicable treasury note rate is greater
than two percent (2%) of any unpaid interest aataseof the conversion date. Under the 2009 Naied’'2010 Notes’ “PIK” or payment in
kind provisions, unpaid interest was payable onartgrly basis and the Company had the optiongstiby the satisfaction of certain
conditions, of paying interest in cash or commaarsh or a combination thereof. When interest wasipaour common shares, the number of
common shares was equal to the amount of inteegstiye in common shares divided by the volume wetjaverage price of our common
shares over a period of 10 consecutive trading dagéng on the sixth day prior to the applicablgmant date.
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See “Item 3. Key Information—Risk Factors—Risks&iglg to Economic Conditions and the Financial Mésk for additional
information. For a discussion of the accountingtfe conversion feature of the convertible notedentdS GAAP, see “— Critical Accounting
Policies—Convertible Notes” and “— US GAAP Recoiztibn”.

Research and development, patents and licenses
See the discussion under “ltem 4. Information anG@ompany—Research and Development”.

Trend Information

See the discussion under “Iltem 4. Information amG@ompany—Industry Background” and “Item 4. Infotima on the Company—
Competition”.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of December 31, 2012, we had no off-balancetsreangements.

US GAAP Reconciliation

Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with ROC GAAP, which differs in cartmaterial respects from US
GAAP. The following table sets forth a comparisémor net income (loss), total assets and sharensléquity (including noncontrolling
interests) in accordance with ROC GAAP and US GA#&Rhe periods indicated:

Year ended as of December 3

2010 2011 2012 2012
NTS NTS$ NTS US$
(in millions)
Net income (loss) attributable to ChipMOS in acemrck with:
ROC GAAP $1644° $ (152 $ 721¢ $ 24k
US GAAP 1,616.¢ 46.1 750.€ 25.¢
Total assets in accordance wi
ROC GAAP 31,315.( 28,281.: 28,749.: 989.%
US GAAP 31,035.: 27,964.. 28,275.! 973.%
Total equity (including noncontrolling interesta)accordance witt
ROC GAAP 14,043. 14,983.. 15,969.: 549.%
US GAAP $13,372.¢  $14,288.¢  $15,190.. $522.¢

Note 24 to our consolidated financial statementgaioed in this Annual Report on Form EGdescribes the principal differences betw
ROC GAAP and US GAAP as they relate to us, andcan@liation to US GAAP for certain items, includimet income (loss) and
shareholders’ equity. Differences between ROC GAAB US GAAP which have an effect on our net incdlogs) as reported under ROC
GAAP relate to, among other things, depreciatiolicgptreatment of loss on partial disposal of sdiasy while retaining control, pension
expenses, share-based compensation and accouwntiogrfconvertible notes.

Under FASB ASC 718, share-based compensation thosa are generally required to be accounted $orgua fair-value-based method
and recognized as expenses in the consolidatedstats of operations. The standards became efdciivthe first interim period beginning
after December 15, 2005. For more information,“seeCritical Accounting Policies—Share-Based Compit” and Notes 24i and 25f to
our consolidated financial statements containgflimmAnnual Report on Form 20-F.

Under FASB ASC 815, we are required to bifurcate separately account for the conversion featuioftonvertible notes
as embedded derivatives contained in the conventibtes. Under US GAAP, we are required to camgdlembedded derivatives on our
balance sheet at fair value and changes in fairegabf these embedded derivatives are reflectéttinonsolidated statement of operations. Fc
more information, see Note 24h to our consolidéiteehcial statements contained in this Annual ReparForm 20-F.

70



Table of Contents

Taxation

ChipMOS Taiwan is entitled to tax incentives geigravailable to Taiwan companies under the ROQustaof Upgrading Industries,
including tax credits of 30% for certain researnld development and employee training expenses ffathe, amount of expenditure exceeds
the average amount of expenditure for the preceiogyears, 50% of the excess amount may be credgainst tax payable) and from 5% to
7% for certain investments in automated equipmedttachnology. These tax credits must be utilizétiwfive years from the date on which
they were earned. In addition, except for the yastr of the five-year period, the aggregate taxcédn from these tax credits for any year
cannot exceed 50% of that year’s income tax lighiln 2010, 2011 and 2012, tax credits resultedinsavings for ChipMOS Taiwan of nil,
approximately NT$164 million and NT$33 million (US$illion), respectively.

ThaiLin was granted a ROC income tax exemptiorafperiod of five years on income attributable t éxpansion of its production
capacity as a result of purchases of new equipfmeded by capital increase in 2002, which expireadecember 31, 2009.

ThailLin is also entitled to other tax incentivesigrlly available to Taiwan companies under the R8Dute of Upgrading Industries,
including tax credits of 5% to 7% for certain intraent in automated equipment and technology. Tteeseredits must be utilized within five
years from the date on which they were earneddditian, except for the last year of the i-year period, the aggregate tax reduction from
these tax credits for any year cannot exceed 508aaif year's income tax liability. In 2010, 201d&012, tax credits resulted in tax savings
for ThaiLin of approximately NT$9 million, NT$15 #ion and NT$21 million (US$1 million), respectivel

Net income generated by ChipMOS Taiwan and Thadglfier January 1, 1998, which is not distributethia year following the year the
income was generated, is subject to income taxeatate of 10%. If that net income is subsequetifiyributed, the income tax previously paid
on that income is credited against the amount tftwilding tax payable by shareholders, who aréntividuals or entities of the Republic of
China (for taxation purposes), in connection wité tistribution.

The ROC government enacted the ROC Alternative fdlimh Tax Act (“AMT Act”) that became effective onnigary 1, 2006. The
alternative minimum tax (“AMT") imposed under thé/A Act is a supplemental tax which is payable & thcome tax payable pursuant to the
ROC Income Tax Act is below the minimum amount pribged under the AMT Act. The taxable income foicaating the AMT includes mo
income that is exempted from income tax under wariegislations, such as tax holidays and investtaercredits. The AMT rate for business
entities is 10%. However, the AMT Act grandfathecedtain tax exemptions and tax credits granteat poi the enactment of the AMT. The
effects of the AMT on the tax expenses of ChipMGB~Rn and ThaiLin were reflected in 2012.

In accordance with the relevant tax rules and @@ns of the PRC, ChipMOS Shanghai is entitledrtancome tax exemption starting
from the first profit making year, with a full exgtion available for the first two years and a 5Qéraption available for three additional years
thereafter. As the first profit-making year for @RIOS Shanghai was 2004, the profits made in thesy2@04 and 2005 were fully exempt, anc
the profits made in the years 2006 through 200&wabject to a 50% tax exemption. Commencing Jariy&009, ChipMOS Shanghai is
subject to a 25% tax on profits. Any tax lossesaaly be carried forward for five years.

Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations and @mmercial Commitments
The following table summarizes our contractual gdgions and commitments as of December 31, 201thegperiods indicated:

Payments Due by Perioc

More than
Less than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years 5 years
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
(in millions)

Long-term debt«®) $ 9,400.¢ $2,430.: $4,907.( $2,038:! $ 25.1
Shor-term loan<® 367.1 367. — — —
Operating lease 259.1 30.3 60.5 54.7 113.€
Capital commitment 918.t 918.t — — —
Total contractual cash obligatio $10,946.. $3,746.° $4,967.! $2,093. $ 138.i

Notes:
(1) Includes interest payments. Assumes level of refevderest rates remains at December 31, 2018| texoughout all relevant perioc
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In addition to the commitments set forth in thetcactual obligations table above, we have certaistanding purchase orders relating to
the procurement of raw materials for which thereras definite delivery dates or deadlines.

Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employee
Directors and Senior Management

Our board of directors currently comprises ninectiors who were elected by our shareholders. Theeuof directors, which must not
be less than three nor greater than nine accotdiogr bye-laws, is set by our directors but s@lea a quorum of directors remains in office,
casual vacancies on the board may be filled byptzed. The quorum for a meeting of the directoreisby the board and otherwise is two in
number. The chairman of the board is appointed faomong the members of the board.

There is no requirement under Bermuda law thatecttir be a shareholder.

The following table sets out the names of our direcand executive officers, their positions witlr company and their ages as of
March 31, 2013. The business address for our dirgeind executive officers is No. 1, R&D Road lindsu Science Park, Hsinchu, Taiwan,
and Republic of China.

Name Age Position Term Expires
Shir-Jye Cheng 54 Chairman and Director/Chief Executive Offic 2014
Antonio R. Alvarez 56 Independent Directc 2014
Chin-Shyh Ou 55 Deputy Chairman and Independent Direc 2014
Hsinc-Ti Tuan 68 Director 2015
Yeonc¢-Her Wang 56 Independent Directc 2015
Shot-Kang Cher 51 Chief Financial Officer and Directt 2015
John Yee Woon Se! 68 Independent Directc 2013
Chac-Jung Tsa 58 Director 2013
Rong HsL 62 Independent Directc 2013
Carl Lei 49 Acting President of ChipMOS Shangt —
Lafair Cho 50 President of ThaiLi —
Li-Chun Li 56 Chief Operating Office —
Steve Cheny 50 President of ChipMOS US —
Vincent Hsu 44 Vice President, LCDD Production Gro —
Michael Lee 47 Vice President, Chupei Production Grc —
Ivan Hsu 47 Vice President, Memory Production Gra —
Jesse Huan 46 Vice President, Assembly Production Gr¢ —
David W. Wanc 63 Vice President, Research & Strategy Developmentet —
I-Fan Chianc 54 Vice President, .T.M. Centt —

Shih-Jye Chenbas served as one of our directors and chief execatficer since our inception. He was our depthgirman from our
inception to May 2004 and became our chairman iy RB204. He has also served as a director and prasod ChipMOS Taiwan since 1997,
the chairman of ChipMOS Taiwan since June 2003¢kaérman of ThaiLin since 2002. He was a direofdByntax-Brillian Corporation from
November 2005 to June 2008, the chairman of ChipNs@&ghai from 2002 to June 2005, the chairmarhah@k from 2002 to Novemb
2005, the chairman of ChipMOS Logic from Januar@£2@ November 2005, the chairman of Advanced M@&nip Technology Co., Ltd.
from 2003 to April 2004 and a director of UltimaeEtronics Corp. from 2000 to June 2003. He wawiaidn head of the backnd operation ¢
Mosel from 1992 to 1997. Mr. Cheng has a mastatgek in business administration from Saginaw Yaiate University. Mr. Cheng is
currently under indictment of the Taipei DistrigbBecutor’s Office for matters relating to the pnase by ChipMOS Taiwan and ThaiLin of
certain repurchase notes in 2004. Although Mr. @heas found not guilty by the Taipei District Coont October 1, 2007, the prosecutor
appealed the Taipei District Court’s decision oridder 27, 2007. For more information, please semfI3. Key Information—Risk Factors—
Risks Relating to Our Business—The ongoing crimprateeding of and adverse publicity associated Wit. Shih-Jye Cheng, our Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer, and Mr. Hung-Chiu Huy former director, could have a material adveféect on our business and cause our
stock price to decline”.
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Antonio R. Alvarehas served as one of our directors from July 2BB5Alvarez is the chief operating officer of Apéinmaging. Prior t
that he was the chief operating officer of AdvaAcmlogic Technology from October 2011 until its aifion by Skyworks in January 2012
and president and chief executive officer of Leddishnology Inc. from November 2005 to January 26(9was senior vice president and
general manager of the memory products divisioBygress Semiconductor Corporation from 1998 to 2005, and senior vice president of
research and development from 1991 to 2001. Heshulikter's and bachelor’s degrees in electricahergng from Georgia Institute of
Technology, where he is a member of the advisoardof the Electrical Engineering Department. Ha member of the Institute for Electric
and Electronic Engineers. Mr. Alvarez also serveshe Board of MEMC Corporation since 2012.

Chin-Shyh Ounas served as one of our directors since Augus®.286 has been the deputy chairman since Augu$t. 204 has served
a director of ChipMOS Taiwan since June 2007. Mr.j@ned the National Chengchi University as aroeisge professor in 1993 and a
professor in 1997. In 1998, he joined National Gh@heng University as a professor and the chairofidéime Department of Accounting. He
led a project to establish the Graduate Institfittazounting and Information Technology of Natioziung Cheng University in 1999. Mr.
earned a master degree in Public Policy and Managefrom Carnegie Mellon University, and a Ph.Dgrée in Business Administration
(Accounting) from the University of Minnesota. MPu holds several professional licenses and quatiios, including U.S. Certified Public
Accountant and Certified Internal Auditor.

Hsing-Ti Tuarhas served as one of our directors since Augus).2@6€. Tuan was the executive vice president oM®& Technologies
Inc. in charge of R&D from 2005 to 2010. Mr. Tuaasthe president of Mosel Vitelic Corp., USA fro®94 to 2009. Mr. Tuan was the acti
president of Mosel from November 2004 to Decemi@®52and previously served as the executive vicsigeat of their research and
development division. He was also the vice pregidéMosel from 1992 to 1996. Mr. Tuan holds a redstdegree in electrical engineering
from Utah State University and a bachelor's degmesdectrical engineering from National Cheng Kusgiversity in Taiwan.

Yeong-Her Wandas served as one of our directors since July 2884a member of the board of directors of ChipM@$van. He has
been a professor in the Department of Electricagiigering of National Cheng Kung University sin@92. He serves as the vice president of
National Applied Research Laboratories between 20@72012. He was also an associate dean of thegéalf Engineering between 1999
2003, chairman of the Department of Electrical Begring between 1996 and 1999, associate direttbed®epartment of Electrical
Engineering between 1993 and 1996 and directdreoElectrical Factory, College of Engineering otibilaal Cheng Kung University between
1995 and 1996. He has been the independent dirgcarfon Electronic Corp. and Giga Solution Téhi since 2006 and 2007, respectively
Mr. Wang holds Ph.D., master’'s and bachelor’'s degjfeom National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan.

Shou-Kang Chehas served as one of our directors since June Pi®Bas served as our chief financial officer, tae relations officer
and head of the finance division of ChipMOS Taivgarce 2002. He was the head of our strategy deselapdepartment from 2000 to 2001.
He was the department head of the quality lab @pK2®S Taiwan from 1998 to 2000. Mr. Chen holds eHgdor’s degree in mining and
petroleum engineering and a master of science degre a Ph.D. degree from the graduate schoolmhgimetallurgy and material science
National Cheng Kung University in Taiwa

John Yee Woon Seltas served as one of our directors since Augu€.29&¢ was a member of ChipMOS’s Board of Direcfoom
August 2000 to May 2004. Dr. Seto was a foundersamior vice president of operation and stratefinqng of Vitelic Corporation U.S.A. t
served as the executive vice president of the kasigroup of Mosel Vitelic Inc. from 1995 to 206f was a director of Mosel Vitelic Inc.
from 1999 to 2008. He served on the board of dirsdn a number of companies, such as ProMOS Téaties Inc. and Advanced Analogic
Technologies Inc. He has been the president and @HE@ernational Capture Tech Co LTD since 2006.Haélds a Ph.D. in electrical
engineering from University of California at Ber&gl

Chao-Jung Tsdhnas served as one of our directors since Noveni®t. Mr. Tsai was a director of ChipMOS Taiwan frdamuary 2001
to December 2005, as a representative of SilicoeRagcision, where he was a director from June 20@®cember 2009 and served as a
supervisor from June 2002 to June 2005. He wasaatsmpervisor of Phoenix Precision Technology Gd. ftom June 2005 to December 2C
He was previously president of Grand Cathay Seeartto., Ltd. and assistant vice president of Chimst Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
Mr. Tsai received his bachelor's degree in stassfiom National Cheng Kung University and mastdegree in management of technology
from National Chiao Tung University in Taiwan. Heldls Taiwan CPA and CFA licenses.

Rong Hsuvas appointed by our board of directors on Octdh@008 to fill the vacancy from Mr. Takaki Yamaslaésignation. He has
served as one of our directors from July 2005 tgust 2008. He has been the director of Corp. R&ElfdElectronics since February 2009.
He has been the vice president of Spatial Photdnicssince May 2006. He was a founder of eLCOSrbdtlsplay Technology Group where
was the president from April 2001 to December 2@@hjor director of operations at Aurora Systemsffoon 1999 to March 2001, director of
manufacturing for micro-display systems and testin§-Vision Co. from 1996 to 1999, manager of nfacturing at nCHIP Co. from 1991 to
1996, research engineer at Lawrence Livermore Nakibaboratory from 1988 to 1991 and senior engiaééntel Corporation from 1982 to
1988. He has a doctorate degree in material engigefeom the University of Maryland, a master’'sydee in material science from Brown
University and a bachelor’'s degree in mechanicgireering from National Taiwan University. He isoanding member and senior advisor of
the Chinese American Semiconductor Professionab@ason.
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Carl Leihas served as the acting president and vice presifl@ssembly and testing operations of ChipMO&nghai since July 2010.
Mr. Lei was the deputy director of Backend Operatid ProMOS from 2004 to 2010 and product manafidtasel from 1998 to 2003. Mr. L
received his bachelor’s degree from Feng Chia Usitxein Taiwan.

Lafair Chohas served as ThaiLin’s president since Decemh2d(3 and a director since December 30, 2002. Hewea president of
ThaiLin from February 1, 2003 to November 30, 2008.has also served as vice president of the meproduction group of ChipMOS
Taiwan from July 2003 to August 2004 and as a thireaf ChipMOS Taiwan from October 2003 to June2(8e served as a deputy assistant
vice president of the IC testing division of Chipl@Qaiwan from April 2000 to December 2001 and aasaistant vice president of the IC
testing division of ChipMOS Taiwan from January 20 January 2003. He served as manager of prauctaterial control of Mosel from
1993 to 1997. He holds a master’s degree in inddistranagement from National Cheng Kung Universityaiwan.

Li-Chun Lihas served as the Chief Operating Officer of Chi@vidiwan since January 2010. Prior to joining Chi®] he served as
vice president of the Product Engineering grouplosel-Vitelic (U.S.A.) and ProMOS Technologies Inc. fr@d03 to 2009, and vice presid
of product development in Mosel-Vitelic (U.S.A.)daMosel-Vitelic (Taiwan) from 1992 to 2003. Mr. téceived a bachelor’s degree in
electrical engineering from the University of Catifia, Berkeley.

Steve Chenbas served as the president of ChipMOS U.S.A. shugpist 2008. Mr. Cheng has served as the direftbmance and
Administration in ChipMOS U.S.A. since July 2004e Has been serving in ChipMOS U.S.A. since Noverttb88. He received a bachelor’s
degree in business banking and insurance from EéingUniversity in Taiwan.

Vincent Hsthas served as ChipMOS Taiwan'’s vice president dp ld@iver production group since March 2012. He wssistant vice
president of ChipMOS Taiwan from 2007 to 2012. Eleeived a master’s degree in Electrical Enginedrimg National Sun Yat-sen
University in Taiwan.

Michael Leehas served as ChipMOS Taiwan'’s vice president afp@hproduction group since November 2011 and piesident for
wafer sort business group since June 2004. He ssstant vice president of ChipMOS Taiwan from 2@02004. Mr. Lee received a master’s
degree from National Chiao Tung University in Taiwa

Ivan Hsuhas served as ChipMOS Taiwan'’s vice president ahamg production group since December 2004. He wapMOS
Taiwan’s assistant vice president from 2003 to 2804 deputy assistant vice president from 200D@82Mr. Hsu received a bachelor’s
degree from Feng Chia University in Taiwan.

Jesse Huangas served as ChipMOS Taiwan'’s vice presidentsdrably production group since April 2007. He wasdlsistant vice
president of assembly engineering division formetg received a bachelor’s degree in Physics frootBow University in Taiwan.

David W. Wangoined ChipMOS Taiwan as vice president of ResearehStrategy Development Center in 2007. Prigoitong
ChipMOS, he was the vice president of Fibera, firman 2001 to 2007. Mr. Wang served as Senior Dineat Lam Research where his
responsibilities included new product introductiepstem integration, field escalation and managemieregional teams from 1996 to 2001.
Mr. Wang also worked for IBM’s Microelectronics D&ion where he as Senior Engineer/ Manager ledrasbchpackaging materials, process
development and marketing organizations. Mr. Wang inember of SEMI Taiwan Packaging and Test Coraenénd holds 45 US patents.
Mr. Wang holds a Ph.D and M.S. from the Universityichigan and Bachelor of Science degree frond&w University.

I-Fan Chianghas served as ChipMOS Taiwan'’s vice president bf Qenter since July 2010. Mr. Chiang was a vicesigient of
Websurf Technologies Taiwan from 2003 to June 2040 Chiang also served as a vice president ofuiditmc. from 2000 to 2003.
Mr. Chiang holds a bachelor’s degree in Electrdéigineering from Tamkang University in Taiwan.
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Board Practice and Terms of Directorship

Our board of directors consists of three classebrettors. The first class, consisting of John Yée&on Seto, Chao-Jung Tsai and Rong
Hsu, is up for re-election at the annual generadting in 2013 and then every third annual geneesting thereafter. The second class,
consisting of Shih-Jye Cheng, Antonio R. Alvared &hin-Shyh Ou, is up for re-election at the anmygaderal meeting in 2014 and then every
third annual general meeting thereafter. The tbliads, consisting of Hsing-Ti Tuan, Yeong-Her Wand Shou-Kang Chen, is up for re-
election at the annual general meeting in 2015thed every third annual general meeting thereafter.

Any director vacates his or her office if he or:she

. is prohibited by law from being a director or cesagebe a director by virtue of the Bermuda Comgsiict;

. resigns from his or her offici

. becomes bankrupt under the laws of any countrporpounds with his or her credito

. becomes of unsound mind or a patient for the p@pdsny statute or applicable law relating to rakhealth and the board
resolves that his or her office is vacated

. is removed by a resolution passed by our shareteiitea special general meeting called for thapgse.

Share Ownership

The following table sets forth certain informatias of March 31, 2013 with respect to our commomeshawned by our directors and
executive officers.

Percentage Number of
Number of of Shares Exercise Price
Common Issued and Options of Options Expiration Date of

Name Shares Helc  Outstanding Held (@ (US$) Options
Shir-Jye Cheng 545,40( 1.6% 152,80 2.55-21.48¢ 2013/8/3-2017/8/3:
Antonio R. Alvarez — — * * *
Chin-Shyh Ou — — * * *
Hsinc-Ti Tuan * * * * *
Yeon¢-Her Wang — — * * *
Shot-Kang Cher * * * *
John Yee Woon Se! @ & & &
Chac-Jung Tsa — — * * *
Rong HsL * * * * *
Carl Lei * * * * *
Lafair Cho * * * * *
Steve Cheny * * — — —
Vicent Hsu — — * * *
Li-Chun Li — — * * *
Michael Lee — — * * *
Ivan Hsu * * * * *
Jesse Huan * * * * *
David W. Wang — — * * *
I-Fan Chiang¢ — — * * *
Notes:

* Indicate actual numbers held and/or including oygtiexercisable or vested within 60 days after M&%th2013, would beneficially own less than 1% of ordinary share
(1) Each option covers one of our common she
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Compensation Committee

The aggregate compensation paid in 2012 to ouctdire and our executive officers, including castt aocrued pension payable upon
retirement, was approximately NT$100 million (US#8lion). In 2012, we granted options to purchad8,500 of our common shares to our
directors and executive officers as set forth mtéible below. These options will vest over a gedbfour years, with an equal proportion
vesting on each of August 31, 2013, 2014, 2015281, except for certain options granted on Augast?2012 that vested on August 31, 2|

Considerations paic

Number of common shares issuable upon exercise gitimns Expiration date Exercise price (US$ for options granted
106,000 August 31, 201 11.1435 None
37,500 August 31, 202 11.1435 None

We do not provide our directors with any benefig®mi termination of employment.

Our compensation committee currently consists af Mitonio R. Alvarez, Dr. John Yee Woon Seto and®ong Hsu, all of whom are
independent directors according to NASDAQ Marketpl®ules requirements. This committee reviews andmmends to our board of
directors the compensation of all our directors affiders on at least an annual basis.

Audit Committee

Under our audit committee charter adopted on Fepr2®, 2001 and amended on May 14, 2004, Decenthe2D4, August 27, 2009
and August 31, 2012, our audit committee:

. is directly responsible for the appointment, congagion, retention and oversight of the work of external auditors or any other
public accounting firm engaged for the purposereppring or issuing an audit report or to perfourdif review or attestation
services

. oversees our accounting principles and policiesrfcial reporting and internal control over finaheceporting, internal audit
controls and procedures, financial statements @aeliendent audit

. meets with management, our external auditors &agpiropriate, the head of the auditing departrtediscuss audited financial
statements, audit reports or other communicatioetjding, without limitation, any audit problemsdifficulties relating to our
financial statements, any major issues regardicgatting principles and the adequacy of our intecoatrol over financial
reporting;

. pre-approves, or adopts appropriate procedureetagprove all audit and non-audit services, if,gmgvided to us by our external
auditors;

. establishes our internal complaints procedurelferréceipt, retention and treatment of complaietgived by us regarding
accounting, internal accounting controls or auditinatters, and for the confidential, anonymous sskion thereof by our
employees

. evaluates the independence of and discuss with geamant the timing and process for implementing thation of the audit
partners of the outside auditors; ¢

. reviews and approves all our related party transas!
The audit committee currently consists of Dr. J¥lee Woon Seto, Dr. Chin-Shyh Ou and Dr. Yeong-Heang/ all of whom are

independent directors according to NASDAQ Marketpl&ules requirements. Dr. Chin-Shyh Ou servesfiagacial expert to the Audit
Committee.

Nominations Committee
Under our nominations committee charter adopteAuwgust 26, 2005, our nominations committee:

. identifies individuals qualified to become membefshe board of directors, selects or recommendsimees to the board of
directors and, in the case of a vacancy of a direotcommends to the board of directors an indi&ido fill such vacancy

. develops and recommends to the board of directanslards to be applied in making determination® dlse absence of material
relationships between us and a direc
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. identifies members of the board of directors giedito fill vacancies on any committee thereof embmmends the appointment
the identified member(s) to the respective commj

. assists our management in the preparation of 8wadiure in our annual proxy statement regardiegtierations of the
nominations committee; ar

. performs any other duties or responsibilities egpisedelegated to the nominations committee byotherd of directors from time to
time relating to the nomination of members of toardd of directors and any committee ther

Dr. Yeong-Her Wang, Dr. Rong Hsu and Dr. Chin-SByhare currently the members of our nominationsroitae.

Special Committee

In connection with the indictment of Mr. Shih-Jybdnhg by the Taipei District ProsecuOffice, our board of directors formed a spe
committee to evaluate the circumstances surrounttimgndictment. As of March 31, 2013, the specaahmittee was solely comprised of
Mr. Yeong-Her Wang, our Company’s independent dinecT he special committee has engaged K&L Gate8 (formerly Kirkpatrick &
Lockhart Preston Gates Ellis LLP) as its independgernational legal counsel and Baker & McKeraseits independent ROC legal counsel,
and Ernst & Young (formerly know as Diwan, Ernsty&ung) as its accounting advisor to assist inve@ation and provide recommendatic

On June 28, 2006, the special committee issuedptsit, including its findings and recommendatiddased upon the results of its
investigation, it found that: (1) Mr. Cheng hasldeed himself not guilty of the charges describethie indictment; (2) Baker & McKenzie,
after reviewing the indictment and the prosecutekkibits, have found that the evidence producethbyrosecutor seems to be inadequate
and that there is a low probability of the chargethe indictment being founded; (3) the finanadlisor to the special committee have found
that we suffered no loss (not taking into accowehange rate factors) and that all monies (capitdlinterest) were remitted back to our
subsidiaries involved; (4) we have suffered no itfi@ble harm to our reputation or our business] &) Mr. Cheng has not been impaired by
the indictment to perform as our chairman and obxefcutive officer. The special committee recomneehtthat our board maintains Mr. Cheng
as our chairman and chief executive officer with fesponsibilities and our board unanimously (wNth Cheng having recused himself)
resolved to accept and adopt the special commstieegommendation with regard to Mr. Cheng.

Our board of directors also resolved to continwertiie of the special committee, for the duratibthe ongoing criminal proceeding
involving Mr. Cheng to actively monitor any devetnents of the criminal investigation and take ooramend any appropriate action in light
of such developments.

During its engagement by the special committeest&nYoung identified certain internal control weedsses that existed during the
relevant period of the special committee’s invesiign within ChipMOS Taiwan, ThaiLin and ChipMOSdio (which was merged into
ThaiLin on December 1, 2005). These weaknessesiwareas related to segregation of duties anafarate governance on investment
authorizations, insufficiency of training for fingial personnel in respect of derivative transaati@nd non-compliance with the applicable
ROC regulations. These identified internal contvebknesses have either been addressed previousiyeibeen remedied by our company
and our subsidiaries.

In light of the identification of these internalntool weaknesses, the special committee recommethdéthe audit committee of the
board of directors lead a special task force apdnteo the board of the directors as to the eiffecess of the implementation of internal cor
over financial reporting, with an aim to enhance campany’s financial personnel’s knowledge of dative transactions. The board of
directors unanimously resolved to accept and ath@pspecial committee’s recommendation in this nekga

In August 2006, we engaged Ernst & Young to desigain employee training sessions regarding devevéransactions and the
applicable accounting treatment for these transasti

See “Item 3. Key Information—Risk Factors—Risksa&iglg to Our BusinessFhe ongoing criminal proceeding of and adverseipitp
associated with Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng, our Chairmah@imef Executive Officer, and Mr. Hung-Chiu Hu,rdarmer director, could have a
material adverse effect on our business and cawsgtack price to decline”.
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Employees
The following table sets forth, as of the datesdatkd, the number of our full-time employees segin the functions indicated:

As of
As of December 31 March 31,

Function 2010 2011 2012 2013
General operatior 3,22¢  3,19¢ 3,06¢ 3,04¢
Quality control 381 384 40C 38t
Engineering 1,36C 1,377 1,34f 1,34:
Research and developmt 26¢ 27¢€ 313 31z
Sales, administration and finan 213 22¢ 17€ 17¢
Others 361 33t 383 371
Total 5,80¢ 5,79/ 5,68¢ 5,62¢

The following table sets forth, as of the datesdatéd, a breakdown of the number of our full-tiemeployees by geographic location:

As of
As of December 31 March 31,

Location 2010 2011 2012 2013
ThailLin (Hsinchu Industrial Parl 66¢ 59¢€ 544 534
ChipMOS Taiwan Hsinchu Production Gro 1,65¢ 1,66/ 1,56¢ 1,57¢
ChipMOS Taiwan Southern Taiwan Production Gr 2,88¢ 2,997 2,962 2,91¢
Shangha 591 531 60¢ 594
Japan and the United Sta 5 6 7 7
Total 5,80¢ 5,79/ 5,68¢ 5,62¢

Our employees are not covered by any collectivgdiamg agreements. We have not experienced aikgswr work stoppages by our
employees and believe that our relationship withesaployees is good.

Share Option Plan and Share Appreciation Rights Pla

We adopted a broad-based share option plan in 2@tith was amended at a special general meetindasoh 19, 2004 to increase the
number of shares available for issuance undertthreption plan from 1,450,000 to 2,250,000. Iiyéat 2006, we adopted a second broad-
based share option plan, which has 1,750,000 shaegiable for issuance. In September 2011, we tedog third broad-based share option
plan, which has 1,000,000 shares available foaisse. Each share option plan provides that ouctiirg, officers, employees and those of our
affiliates may, at the discretion of our board wédtors or a committee, be granted options tolmse our shares at an exercise price of no le:
than the par value of our common shares. The buratfie committee has complete discretion to detegmihich eligible individuals are to
receive option grants, the number of shares sutgezdch grant, the exercise price of all optior@ted, the vesting schedule to be in effect fo
each option grant and the maximum term for whiathegranted option is to remain outstanding, up teeaimum term of ten years. Shares
available for issuance under these plans are rispleth by shares that were subject to forfeitedeaqpired share options.
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In 2010, we granted 160,660 share options, witBxaicise price, at the time of grant, ranging fld8%$2.448 to US$5.474 per share. In
2010, 212,049 share options were forfeited, 353@0e options were expired and 19,246 share aptiene exercised. In 2011, we granted
692,624 share options, with an exercise pricehatite of grant, ranging from US$4.59 to US$6.@a2Pshare. In 2011, 148,403 share option
were forfeited, nil share options were expired 86d 03 share options were exercised. In 2012, aetgd 204,316 share options, with an
exercise price, at the time of grant, ranging fld8$11.1095 to US$11.1435 per share. In 2012, 163Hare options were forfeited, 289,268
share options were expired and 668,246 share apivene exercised. As of December 31, 2012, we &b 1548 share options outstanding,
with an exercise price ranging from US$0.748 to RES$08.

In September 2006 and August 2008, we adoptedra gipareciation rights (“SARs”) plan pursuant taethwe may issue up to
500,000 and 750,000 cash-settled SARs to our dirgobfficers, employees and those of our affifaténder the share appreciation rights plar
each holder of SARs, issued thereunder will betledtto receive, on the applicable exercise datsh in an amount equal to the excess of the
market value of our common shares on such datetheerxercise price of such rights. Our board céators or a relevant committee thereof
has complete discretion over the administratiothefshare appreciation rights plan, including deteing the recipients of the share
appreciation right awards, the number of rightsraled, the exercise date, the exercise price aret ogfevant terms. Unless earlier terminated
by our board of directors or the relevant board mittee, the plan will remain effective until Septean 2016 and August 2018. In 2010,
18,625 SARs were granted, with an exercise prictheatime of grant, ranging from US$2.448 to US®$3In 2010, 89,300 SARs were
forfeited and 15,300 SARS were exercised. In 2625,885 SARs were granted, with an exercise paitcthe time of grant, ranging from
US$5.151 to US$6.222. In 2011, 70,621 SARs wereited and 32,832 SARs were exercised. In 201 B6BSARs were granted, with an
exercise price, at the time of grant, ranging fld8$11.1095 to US$11.1435. In 2012, 67,375 SARs ¥emfeited, 154,106 SARS were
expired and 231,270 SARs were exercised. As of Dbee 31, 2012, we had 640,848 SARs outstanding), avitexercise price, at the time of
grant, ranging from US$0.748 to US$25.908.

Where applicable, the share numbers and exerdise @frour share option plan and share appreciaiigns plan disclosed in the
foregoing paragraph, are adjusted to reflect tlecebf the Company’s 1-for-every-4 reverse stquk effective on January 21, 2011.
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Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions
Major Shareholders

The following table and information set out certaiformation as of March 31, 2013 regarding the emhip of our common shares by
(1) each person known to us to be the owner of riiwe five percent of our common shares and (2)ate amount owned by our directors
and executive officers as a group.

Percentagt
Number of
Identity of person or group shares owne Owned
ThaiLin Semiconductor Cor[® 4,474,211 134
He & Fang 2005 Revocable Living Tr®@ 2,788,12. 8.4
DLS Capital Management, LL®) 2,421,94! 7.3
Siliconware Precision Industries Co., L®) 2,243,74! 6.7
Chilton Investment Company, LL®) 1,781,411 5.3

Directors and executive officers, as a gr(® 633,44¢ 1.9

Notes:

(1) From December 2008 to August 2009, ThaiLin &eqli506,364 shares pursuant to the Rule 10b5-1180kecurities purchase program, under which psehiaommenced on
December 28, 2008; 1,015,158 shares in March 2068upnt to its enforcement of the collateral preditly ProMOS under the Stock Pledge Agreementeshteto between Thailin
and ProMOS dated December 3, 2008; 401,352 shade85707 shares in 2010 and January 2011, regglgcipursuant to the interest shares payment w2@@9 Notes held by
ThaiLin and 4,485,630 shares (including 790,630eshas interest payment in connection with the nvetk@le clause) in March 2011 pursuant to the casigerof 2009 Notes held by
ThaiLin. In November 2012, ThaiLin sold 2,000,00@ees pursuant to the Secondary Offer

(2) According to the Schedule 13G/A filed by He Zhenguith the SEC on January 22, 20

(3) According to the Schedule 13G filed by DLS Capi&nagement, LLC with the SEC on January 24, 2

(4) Siliconware Precision completed a share purchadealnscription transaction with ChipMOS Taiwan ascdn March 27, 2007, pursuant to which we and @@ig Taiwan purchase
all of Siliconware Precision’s equity interest ihigMOS Taiwan, and Siliconware Precision subscrifee®,043,749 of our common shares through a fiptacement. See “Item 4.
Information on the Company—Our Structure and Histe€hipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC.In November 2012, Siliconware Precision sold 800,8fares pursuant to the Secont
Offering.

(5) According to the Schedule 13G filed by Chilton Istreent Company, LLC with the SEC on February 1432

(6) Excludes exercisable/vested options of our comshares and Mosel's beneficial ownership of ammon shares which may be considered to be bealéfibield by some of our
directors or officers. Includes shares held byaierfamily members of certain directo

The share numbers disclosed in the foregoing natesadjusted to reflect the effect of the Comparyfor-every-4 reverse stock split effective onuky 21, 2011.

As of March 31, 2013, approximately 75% of our coomnshares were held of record by shareholdersdddatthe United States. All
holders of our common shares have the same vaghtsrwith respect to their shares.

Related Party Transactions
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC.

On April 16, 2013, as part of ChipMOS Taiwan’siligt plan on the TSE, we completed the sale of 6lkomoutstanding ChipMOS
Taiwan shares or 0.8% of the total number of Chifvlaiwan'’s outstanding shares, at the price of NT&per share to ChipMOS Taiwan’s
underwriters for the TSE listing plan, Yuanta Sé@s Company Limited and Capital Securities Coang to certain others, including non-US
employees of ChipMOS Taiwan. After deducting tapense payable to ROC authority for the aforemenaticsale, the proceeds to ChipMOS
Bermuda were approximately NT$97.2 million (US$lion). As of the date of this Annual Report oarfh 20-F, after taking into account
the aforementioned sale, we continue to own appratély 703 million ChipMOS Taiwan shares represend3.4% of ChipMOS Taiwan’s
outstanding shares. See “ltem 3. Key InformationskRactors— ChipMOS Taiwan'’s ability to maintais itading status on Taiwan’s
Emerging Stock Board and to eventually list onTa@van Stock Exchange is dependent on factorsdmutsfithe Company or ChipMOS
Taiwan’s control and satisfaction of stock excharggpiirements. ChipMOS Taiwan may not be able &r@yme such factors that disrupt its
trading status on the Emerging Stock Board or fyadither eligibility requirements for the propodesting transaction.” for additional
information on ChipMOS Taiwan’s listing plan.

Siliconware Precision Industries Co., Ltd.

As of March 31, 2013, Siliconware Precistmmed 6.7% of our outstanding common shares ar8%46f ChipMOS Taiwan’s
outstanding shares. On March 27, 2007, we compketgthre purchase and subscription transactionGhitpMOS Taiwan and Siliconware
Precision, under which we and ChipMOS Taiwan puselaall of Siliconware Precision’s equity inter@s€ChipMOS Taiwan, and Siliconware
Precision subscribed to 3,043,749 (adjusted tecethe effect of 1-for-every-4 reverse stock sgffiective on January 21, 2011) of our newly
issued common shares through a private placemaigMDS Taiwan became our wholly-owned subsidianseptember 14, 2007. In
February 2010, we agreed to sell 15.8% of ChipM@Bv&n’'s outstanding shares to Siliconware Precisitie share purchase transaction was
completed in January 2011. As of the date of tmaual Report on Form 20-F, we own 83.4% of ChipM@&$van’s outstanding shares.
Siliconware Precision is an independent provideseshiconductor testing and packaging servicexdvare Precision currently has, and is
expected to continue to have from time to timehim future, contractual and other business relatipsswvith us. No revenue was derived from
Siliconware Precision in 2010 and 2011. From Ap@iL1 onwards, Siliconware Precision is not ourteglgarty as it owned less than 10% of
our outstanding common shares.
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Mosel Vitelic Inc.

As of March 31, 2013, Mosel indirectly owned 4.9%oar outstanding common shares. Mosel designsvaamlifactures semiconductor
products, including DRAM, SRAM, flash memory, LCiDdother flat-panel display driver semiconductard power-related semiconductors.
Mosel and its affiliates currently have, and arpemted to continue to have from time to time infiitare, contractual and other business
relationships with us. Our relationships include tbllowing:

. In 2010, 2011 and 2012, we paid NT$148 thousan&28Thousand and nil in website fees to Mosel forision of certain
website services

Commencing April 1, 2011, Mosel and its direct amdirect subsidiaries are no longer related pattegbe Company.

Registration Rights Agreements with Siliconwareciien, Giant Haven, ProMOS and Powertech Technpolag.

In March 2007, we issued 3,043,749 common shanesipat to a share purchase and subscription agréevith ChipMOS Taiwan and
Siliconware Precision, and we entered into a regjisin rights agreement, dated March 27, 2007, @ilisonware Precision, pursuant to which
Siliconware Precision agreed not to sell or otheewransfer any of our common shares it acquirdddarshare purchase and acquisition for a
period of nine months after March 27, 2007, andyveanted to Siliconware Precision certain rights|uding demand registration, “piggyback”
registration and Form F-3 registration rights,dquire us to register its common shares for sadethe Securities Act. In addition, we entere
into a registration rights agreement, dated Augu2007, with Giant Haven, ProMOS and Powertechielogy Inc., pursuant to which we
granted to Mosel, ProMOS and Powertech Technologydertain registration rights, including custoyndemand and “piggybackégistratior
rights, to register its common shares for the safsur common shares under the Securities Act. &mdil 2009, ThaiLin acquired
1,015,158 common shares from ProMOS pursuant gnftsrcement of the collateral under a Stock Pleigreement entered into between
ThaiLin and ProMOS dated December 3, 2008.

The share numbers disclosed in the foregoing paphgare adjusted to reflect the effect of the Camjsal-for-every-4 reverse stock
split effective on January 21, 2011.

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Shanghai) LTD.

Since 2002, we have managed our PRC operationgMO®% Shanghai, through Modern Mind, our controBetsidiary. Whilst we did
not own any equity interest in Modern Mind, we ltadtrolled Modern Mind through our ownership of MMT Notes. Under the MMT
Assignment Agreement signed on April 22, 2011, GHQS has agreed to sell the MMT Notes to ThaiLindgrurchase price of approximat
US$40 million subject to certain closing conditiomBe Assignment Agreement transaction completeddtober 2011 and ThaiLin
immediately converted the MMT Notes into commonrebhaf Modern Mind and purchased all of the renmgjriommon shares of Modern
Mind from Jesper, with ChipMOS Shanghai becomimnghally-owned subsidiary of ThaiLin.

Under a technology transfer agreement dated Augud02 which expired on August 1, 2012, we licensertain technologies and
systems, and agreed to provide certain techniggd@tiand consulting services to ChipMOS Shangtlating to those technologies and
systems, and ChipMOS Shanghai paid an aggreg&t&$25 million to us in 2002 for the technology aeavices we provide under this
agreement. Under another technology transfer agreedated October 3, 2011 which became effectivawgjust 1, 2012, we licensed certain
technologies and systems, and agreed to providaircéechnical support and consulting serviceship®lOS Shanghai relating to those
technologies and systems, and ChipMOS Shanghapailan aggregate of RMB27 million to us by forigtallments on the last day of each
guarter during the term of this agreement.

On July 1, 2010, ChipMOS Bermuda and ChipMOS Shangitered into an exclusive services agreemensppat to which ChipMOS
Shanghai will provide its services exclusively ti@MOS Bermuda or customers designated by ChipM@&®nBda. Under the exclusive
services agreement, ChipMOS Bermuda agrees to rgreome of the equipment and consign such equipfoense by ChipMOS Shanghai.
The exclusive services agreement has a term ofdars and will automatically be renewed for periotigen years, unless terminated by either
party at least 30 days prior to the expirationuafisten-year term. In addition, ChipMOS Bermuda reagninate the exclusive services
agreement at any time by giving 30 days’ prior cati
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ThaiLin Semiconductor Corp.

On March 4, 2008, ChipMOS Taiwan made a loan iarmount of NT$145 million that bears interest aat® of 4.69% per annum to
Kolin, a major shareholder of ThaiLin. The loan veaginally secured by a pledge by Kolin of 11 meil common shares of ThaiLin. On
August 22, 2008, Kolin repaid NT$15 million of tlean. On December 23, 2008, ChipMOS Taiwan notiRetin to proceed with the transfer
of the collateral’s ownership, the payment of udgdaan and interest accrued in the amount of NT$tB@n, and the payment of interest
incurred due to loan repayment default under tha.l®n January 20, 2009, Kolin informed ChipMOS theould not fulfill request made by
ChipMOS, including the transfer of shares sinds firohibited to do so under an interim restrictivder of disposition. Subsequently, Kolin
was granted on March 27, 2009, pursuant to a rufifaiwan District Court on (Civil Ruling no.7 amib.9 of 2009), the approval for its
reorganization and declaration of creditor’s riglgglication. Therefore, such shares shall stilibemed as the creditor’s collateral. ChipMOS
made the creditor’s rights application on April 2009. On January 31, 2011, a final ruling of Taivtigh Court (Civil Ruling No.186 of
2010) confirmed its approval of the organizatioarpbf Kolin. On March 15, 2012, ChipMOS Taiwan eatkinto an agreement with Kolin
whereby Kolin agreed to dispose of the common shaf@hailLin that were pledged to ChipMOS Taiwad ase the proceeds to settle the
outstanding debt to ChipMOS Taiwan. As of the adtthis Annual Report on Form 20-F, the loan hasnbiellly repaid and the subject pledge
has been released accordingly.

In November 2012, ThaiLin sold 2,000,000 shareseutitk Secondary Offering. As of March 31, 2013 held 4,474,211 of our
outstanding shares, corresponding to 13.4% offalio outstanding shares. ThaiLin’s current holdimgjudes 1,015,158 shares or 3.0% of our
outstanding shares acquired pursuant to ThaiLinfesreement of the collateral provided by ProMOSemithe Stock Pledge Agreement dated
December 3, 2008, entered into between ThaiLinRnod1OS, 506,364 shares or 1.5% of our outstandiages accumulated from the Rule
10b5-1/10b-18 securities purchase program launchBécember 2008, and 467,059 shares or 1.4% obwtstanding shares acquired
pursuant to the interest shares payment and 2, 3@5S!gares or 7.5% of our outstanding shares aafjpirssuant to the conversion of 2009
Notes in March 2011

The share numbers disclosed in the foregoing paphgare adjusted to reflect the effect of the Comjsal-for-every-4 reverse stock
split effective on January 21, 2011.

ProMOS Technologies Inc.
As of March 31, 2013, Mosel directly and indireathwned 12.0% of ProMOS.

On July 1, 2003, ChipMOS Taiwan entered into a {targn agreement with ProMOS, under which ChipMO$vaa reserves a specified
amount of capacity for DRAM testing and assemblyises to ProMOS and under which ProMOS guararttegtace orders in the amount of
the reserved capacity. This agreement was supasedely 2007 when ChipMOS Taiwan and ProMOS eténto a new long-term
agreement with similar terms and conditions, extegt under the new agreement, ProMOS will givep®HDS six month rolling forecast on
testing and assembly service orders to be placad,tand ProMOS guarantees that such orders ikksent no less than certain percentage c
ProMOS’ total production volume of these produetsc{uding OEM products). The price for the serviocE€hipMOS Taiwan under this
agreement will be agreed upon quarterly, subjecettain price adjustments. If ChipMOS Taiwan iglie to test and assemble the agreed
number of DRAM, ProMOS may use a third party toerathe shortfall and ChipMOS Taiwan may be lialole 8mong other damages, any
operation loss of ProMOS caused by such delay padditional costs in using a third party to cothe shortfall. If ProMOS fails to place
orders in the amount of the reserved capacity, KGi§ Taiwan is entitled to damages calculated basetthe difference between the value of
the reserved capacity and the value of the acted gapacity, provided that the value of the capagi ChipMOS Taiwan that has been used
for other customers shall be deducted. In Marct82800MOS failed to place orders in the amounhefreserved capacity. In November 2(
we entered into a revised subcontracting contrétt RroMOS by requiring ProMOS to provide wafershna value of 80% of the
subcontracting fee as collateral. In May 2009, réhkr revised subcontracting contract was entertedly and between us and ProMOS under
which ProMOS provided us with wafer as pledge aratRAIn-Process, or WIP and existing finished goasldien material. Part of ProMOS’
receivables will be recovered through sales ofpledged wafer and lien material back to ProMOS witliscount to market price, and the
remaining outstanding accounts receivables wiéeured by equipment mortgage under the same coatrangement. Effective March 20
we started to request prepayment from ProMOS. ABeaiember 31, 2009, other receivables from ProM@&8uamted to NT$409 million and
100% allowance was made by ChipMOS Taiwan. NT$Tonilwas received by April 2010. Under the amensigldcontracting contract,
ProMOS paid ChipMOS Taiwan NT$200 million in May1ZD The remaining NT$202 million was paid in ninenthly installments with final
installment payment ending on March 15, 2011. ABetember 31, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan received NT$88kon and the related
allowance of NT$409 million was reversed to othen+operating income. All payments have been receivéarch 2011. In May 2010, the
collection term provided to ProMOS was revised@addys upon delivery and this was further reviged3 days upon delivery in October
2010. Since June 2011, we request ProMOS to paghiance prior to delivery.
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As of December 31, 2009, other receivables fronM@¥8 amounted to NT$55 million and 100% allowance weade by ThaiLin. In
June 2010, ThaiLin agreed a settlement with ProNtOSe amount of NT$24 million and it was collectating the same year. The allowance
of NT$24 million was reversed to other non-opemiimcome. Commencing in June 2010, the collec@&mtwas revised to 30 days upon
delivery. In January 2011, the collection term wegsed to 45 days after delivery. Since June 20Elrequest ProMOS to pay in advance
prior to delivery. See Note 18 to our consoliddtaencial statements contained in this Annual ReporForm 20-F.

Commencing April 1, 2011, since Mosel is no longeelated party to us, ProMOS is also not consitlets related party.
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Iltem 8. Financial Information
Consolidated Financial Statements and Other Finanal Information
Please see “Iltem 18. Financial Statements” andspiagethrough F-60.

Legal Proceedings

In February 2006, ChipMOS Taiwan and ChipMOS USéeieed notice of a lawsuit filed by Tessera Techgds, Inc., or Tessera. The
complaint was initially filed in United States Dist Court for the Northern District of Californ{&ivil Action No. C05-04063CW), or the
California court. In an amended complaint, Tesselded ChipMOS Taiwan and ChipMOS USA, among sewehar semiconductor
companies, as co-defendants. The amended comalkeiges that ChipMOS Taiwan, ChipMOS USA and thepto-defendants infringed
certain patents owned by Tessera and that ChipM&\8anh is in breach of a license agreement with des®r the Tessera license agreement
Tessera also sought unspecified damages and injemetief. ChipMOS Taiwan and ChipMOS USA havep@sded to the lawsuit by denying
Tessera’s claims of patent infringement and bredaontract. ChipMOS USA and ChipMOS Taiwan hawmahised various counterclaims
for declaratory judgment and related affirmativéetises that the Tessera patents are invalid antfanceable. In May 2007, the California
court, with the concurrence of ChipMOS Taiwan amip®OS USA, stayed all litigation in the Californtaurt as a result of a related
investigation by the International Trade CommissimmiTC, initiated by Tessera against certain ptdwedefendants. In addition, a defendar
in the Tessera lawsuit requested the United SRdé&ant and Trademark Office to reexamine the palbdity of each of Tessera’'s patents that
are at issue in the case in the California coure flequests were granted and, in February 200T).8ePatent and Trademark Office conclu
that certain claims of the patents were invalidtenbasis of prior art. In April 2008, ChipMOS Barda, ChipMOS USA and ChipMOS
Taiwan received notice that Tessera requestedifBdd initiate another investigation alleging tkta¢ sale for and after importation into the
United States as well as importation into the UWhBtates of certain small format non-tape based B&aiconductor packages by ChipMOS
Bermuda, ChipMOS Taiwan and ChipMOS USA infringesthof the five Tessera patents at issue in the pasding in the California court.
Tessera sought, among other things, an investigaiiadhe ITC and general exclusion orders to pribkhle infringing products from entry into
the United States. The ITC initiated the invesimain May 2008. On March 13, 2009, after the closdiscovery, Tessera submitted a reques
to terminate the proceedings at the ITC, whichjuldge granted on July 17, 2009. No petitions fotew were filed. The ITC issued an orde
terminate the investigation on August 7, 2009. Butihe completion of a companion investigation agaother companies by ITC, the stayed
litigations in the Northern District of Californi@sumed in January 2012. The date for jury triad warrently scheduled for April 2014. On
July 19, 2012, Tessera filed a stipulation with @adifornia court dismissing its breach of contrelaim against the companies. Accordingly,
this litigation is now limited to only Tessera’steat infringement allegations against the compamiesourt-ordered mediation between the
parties was held on December 13, 2012 but was uassful. Our counsel has not formed an opiniom &ise& outcome of the case.

In April 1999, Motorola, Inc. (“Motorola™) and ChigOS Taiwan entered into an immunity agreement ‘(fggeement”) whereby each
party covenanted not to sue each other for thefisertain Ball Grid Array (“BGA”) patents. In Degter 2004, Motorola spun off its
semiconductor division, and thereby formed Frees8aimiconductor, Inc. (“Freescale”), who then assiMotorola’s rights and obligations
under the Agreement. On October 16, 2006, Freescdlterally terminated the Agreement, allegingtt@hipMOS Taiwan breached the
Agreement. ChipMOS Taiwan argued that Freescalglateral termination of the Agreement has no lexjidct, and continues to accrue
royalty payments for products it believes are ceddsy the Agreement. The payments previously retliby Freescale and accrued by
ChipMOS Taiwan have been deposited in a separatevesiccount. On July 13, 2009, Freescale allelgad@hipMOS Taiwan breached the
Agreement by failing to pay royalties on certain®@ackages assembled by ChipMOS Taiwan. ChipMO®dmifiled an answer to deny all
allegations, and also filed counterclaims agaimsescale alleging that Freescale engaged in patisnse by seeking to obtain royalties on
certain of ChipMOS Taiwan’s BGA products that wace covered by any Freescale patent included uhdeAgreement, and for declaratory
judgment of patent n-infringement and invalidity. On December 11, 20B&escale filed a motion to dismiss the declaygtmtgment
counterclaims filed by ChipMOS Taiwan and to sthyther patent related claims and issues untiitsach of contract claims could be
decided. On July 29, 2010, the Court found thattgeeement constituted a “Total Sales Royalty” agnent, however, Freescale’s motion wa:
partly denied for patent misuse issue. A mediatias held between the parties on October 28, 200 &8 unsuccessful. The fact discovery
and expert discovery process regarding patent misssie closed in middle June 2011. An Order grgritreescale’s motion for partial
summary judgment and denying ChipMOS’ cross-mofisrpartial judgment was given on September 8, 2&h1Order granting in part and
denying in part ChipMOS’ Motion for Reconsiderati@as given on March 30, 2012. The Court reinst&teippMOS’ claims for patent misuse
and its affirmative defenses for patent exhaustedual mistake and license. Freescale refiled d@sans to strike ChipMOS’ jury demand and
for summary judgment on ChipMOS’ affirmative defea®f exhaustion, mutual mistake and license. Towatthas granted those motions on
January 24, 2013 and later denied ChipMOS’ mot@rréconsideration of those rulings in April 20T8e date for next jury trial is scheduled
to take place in September 2013. The Company’ssauras not formed any opinion as to the outconteeotase.
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Other than the matters described above, we wermwalved in any material litigation in 2012 anckarot currently involved in any
material litigation.

For certain information regarding legal proceedirgjating to certain of our current and former dices, see “ltem 3.—Key
Information—Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Bess—The ongoing criminal proceeding of and adveuddicity associated with
Mr. Shih-Jye Cheng, our Chairman and Chief Exeeu@¥ficer, and Mr. Hung-Chiu Hu, our former diregtoould have a material adverse
effect on our business and cause our stock pridec¢bne”.

Dividend Policy

Company paid an annual cash dividend of US$0.14@@&mon share for a total cash cost of US$4.0amilin December 18, 2012 to all
common shareholders of record on relevant recal dhe payment of future dividends is subjechBoard’s continuing determination that
the payment of dividends are in the best interefstise Company’s shareholders and are in compliatteall laws and agreements of the
Company applicable to the declaration and distidiout

Item 9. The Offer and Listing
Listing

Since March 17, 2010, the NASDAQ Capital Market basn the principal trading market for our commibarss, which are not listed or
qguoted on any other markets in or outside the drfiiates. Our common shares were formerly quotadeNASDAQ Global Market
(formerly the NASDAQ National Market) under the dyoh“IMOS” since June 19, 2001, and our common efavere formerly quoted on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market since July 1, 2006. THgSIP number for our common share“G2110R114". Our Shareholders approved a
reverse stock split of ChipMOS’s common stock inuky 2011 with a ratio of 1-for-every-4 shareefifve on January 21, 2011. As a result,
the number of outstanding shares of ChipMOS comstock is reduced to 27,725,782 shares, from 11(838Q8hares prior to the reverse
stock split becoming effective. As of March 31, 30there were 33,369,590 common shares issuedusthnding. The table below sets forth
for the periods indicated, historical prices fog thigh, low and average closing prices on the NA&Mational Market, the NASDAQ Global
Select Market or the NASDAQ Capital Market for aammon shares.

NASDAQ Price per share(l)

(US$)

High Low Average
2008 16.4( 0.74 9.3
2009 3.97 0.8C 2.4~
2010 7.6¢€ 2.4C 4.8(
2011 9.81 4.4¢ 6.94
First Quarte 8.8( 6.24 7.3¢
Second Quarte 9.81 7.71 8.7C
Third Quartel 9.0z 5.1€ 6.5¢
Fourth Quarte 6.0C 4.4¢ 5.2C

2012
First Quarte 19.0¢ 5.47 10.9:
Second Quarte 18.4¢ 9.61 12.6¢
Third Quartel 15.8¢ 8.7¢ 12.41
Novembel 11.8¢ 9.74 10.6i
Decembe 11.6C 9.9¢ 10.77
Fourth Quarte 16.0: 9.74 11.5¢

2013
January 12.42 10.6€ 11.4f
February 11.9¢ 10.57 11.2¢
March 13.3:  10.32 11.1¢
First Quarte 13.32 10.3z 11.2¢
April (through April 23, 2013 15.3¢ 12.3¢ 13.71

Note:

(1) The figures in the table contain historical priceecting the effect of our reverse stock splitiethwas approved by our Shareholders on Januarg(21,
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Item 10. Additional Information
Description of Share Capital

Our authorized share capital is US$3,250,000 ctnsfs62,500,000 common shares of par value US$e@4hare, and 18,750,000
preferred shares of par value US$0.04 per share.

Common Shares

Each shareholder is entitled to one vote for eachncon share held on all matters submitted to a @bshareholders. Cumulative voting
for the election of directors is not provided fordur byelaws, which means that the holders of a majoritthefshares voted can elect all of
directors then standing for election. The commaareh are not entitled to preemptive rights anchatesubject to conversion or redemption.
Upon the occurrence of a liquidation, dissolutiominding-up, the holders of common shares woule@tigled to share ratably in the
distribution of all of our assets remaining avaiator distribution after satisfaction of all lidiies.

Preferred Shares

Currently there are no specific rights attachethéopreferred shares. The specific rights of tledgored shares could include rights,
preferences or privileges in priority to our comnstrares and the establishment of such rights atetegyation to the board of directors to
establish such rights will need to be approvedudnyshareholders. As of March 31, 2013, no prefesteates have been issued by our compan

Bermuda Law

We are an exempted company organized under thelBler@ompanies Act. The rights of our shareholdergaverned by Bermuda law
and our memorandum of association and bye-laws BEmmuda Companies Act differs in some materigheets from laws generally
applicable to United States corporations and tteareholders.

Dividends

Under Bermuda law, a company may pay dividendsdretleclared from time to time by its board oédiors unless there are reason
grounds for believing that the company is, or waafler the payment be, unable to pay its liabsites they become due or that the realizable
value of its assets would thereby be less thamadlgeegate of its liabilities, issued share caital share premium accounts. The holders of
common shares are entitled to receive dividendebassets legally available for such purposesrags and in amounts as our board of
directors may from time to time determine. Any demd unclaimed for a period of six years from asedof declaration will be forfeited and
will revert to our company.

Voting Rights

Under Bermuda law, except as otherwise provideaierBermuda Companies Act or our bye-laws, questimaught before a general
meeting of shareholders are decided by a majodtg of shareholders present at the meeting. Outdwe provide that, subject to the
provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act, and exfiethe resolutions for approving the extraordynansaction, any question properly
proposed for the consideration of the shareholdél$e decided by a simple majority of the votast either on a show of hands or on a poll,
with each shareholder present (and each persoimbqgddoxies for any shareholder) entitled to ontevan a show of hands, or on a poll, one
vote for each fully paidip common share held by the shareholder. In the @&an equality of votes cast, the chairman ofntleeting shall hay
a second or casting vote. Any resolution for antheffollowing extraordinary transactions will réguthe approval of shareholders holding at
least 70.0% of the total voting rights of all theaeeholders having the right to vote at such mgetin

. a resolution for the merger, amalgamation or ahgmwotonsolidation of us with any other company, iekier incorporatec
. a resolution for the sale, lease, exchange, transfether disposition of all or substantially aflour consolidated assets;
. a resolution for the adoption of any plan or pr@der the liquidation of our compan

Rights in Liquidation

Under Bermuda law, in the event of liquidation daneing-up of a company, after satisfaction in fafilall claims of creditors and subject
to the preferential rights accorded to any serfgg@ferred shares, the proceeds of the liquidatiowinding-up are distributed pro rata in
species or in kind among the holders of our comsfares in accordance with our bye-laws.
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Meetings of Shareholders

Under Bermuda law, a company is required to conatieast one general shareholders’ meeting asrmumégeneral meeting each
calendar year, unless according to the provisidiseoBermuda Companies Act, shareholders eledisfpense with the holding of annual
general meetings. Bermuda law provides that a apgeneral meeting may be called by the boardretttirs and must be called upon the
request of shareholders holding not less than 10&tegpaid-up capital of the company carrying tightto vote. Bermuda law also requires
that shareholders be given at least five days’ ackwaotice of a general meeting but the accidem@gsion to give notice to any person does
not invalidate the proceedings at a meeting. Undebye-laws, we must give each shareholder writtitice at least five days prior to the
annual general meeting, unless otherwise agreed bliareholders having the right to vote at thmaiuel general meeting, and written notice a
least five days prior to any special general meetimless otherwise agreed by a majority of shddehns having a right to vote at that special
general meeting, and together holding at least 868#te paid-up capital of the company carryingrilgét to vote at that meeting.

Under Bermuda law, the number of shareholders itatisy a quorum at any general meeting of shaadrslis determined by the bye-
laws of the company. Our bye-laws provide thatast two shareholders present in person or by progyholding shares representing at least
50% of the total voting rights of all shareholdkeawving the right to vote at the meeting constitutpiorum. Our bye-laws further provide that,
in respect of a general meeting adjourned for Gfaguorum, at least two shareholders present isgueor by proxy holding shares representin
33 1/3% of the total voting rights of all shareterisl having the right to vote at the meeting comtia quorum.

Access to Books and Records and Dissemination offéemmation

Under Bermuda law, members of the general puble tlae right to inspect the public documents obmpany available at the office of
the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda. These dontsieclude a company’s certificate of incorporafiils memorandum of association
(including its objects and powers), and any alterato its memorandum of association and docunretdsing to an increase or reduction of
authorized share capital. The shareholders havadti¢ional right to inspect the bye-laws of thengany, minutes of general meetings and the
company’s audited financial statements, which, ssmbgreed by all shareholders and directors, naukstith before the annual general meeting.
The register of shareholders of a company is gh&mao inspection by shareholders and by membetseajeneral public for not less than two
hours each day without charge. Any member of thdipumay require a copy of the register, or of gayt thereof, on the payment of a fee. A
company is required to maintain its share regist®&ermuda but may, subject to the provisions afnBela law, establish a branch register
outside Bermuda. We maintain a share register milian, Bermuda and a branch register in New Jeld&A. A company is required to keep
at its registered office a register of its direstand officers which is open for inspection for lesis than two hours each day by members of th
public without charge. Bermuda law does not, howepmvide a general right for shareholders to ét$r obtain copies of any other
corporate records.

Election or Removal of Directors

Under Bermuda law and our bye-laws, directors breted or appointed at an annual general meetidgarve until re-elected or re-
appointed or until their successors are electeappointed, unless they are earlier removed foreeausesign or otherwise cease to be director
under Bermuda law or our bye-laws.

A director may be removed for cause at a speciaigd meeting of shareholders specifically calledtiiat purpose, provided that the
director is served with at least 14 days’ notidee Tirector has a right to be heard at that meefing vacancy created by the removal of a
director at a special general meeting may be fiéiethat meeting by the election of another direittdnis or her place or, in the absence of any
election by the shareholders, by the board of thrsc

Board Actions

Our bye-laws provide that the quorum necessaryh®transaction of business is two individual dioeg of the board, and that questions
arising at a properly convened meeting of the bo&nirectors must be approved by a majority ofihtes present and entitled to be cast. In
the case of an equality of votes, the chairmaheihteeting is entitled to a second or casting vote.

The board of directors may appoint any of our decto act as our managing director or other seiecutive, on such terms and
conditions as it may determine, including with @spto remuneration.
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Amendment of Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws

Bermuda law provides that the memorandum of assogiaf a company may, with the consent of the Bligi of Finance of Bermuda (if
required), be amended by a resolution passed etergl meeting of shareholders of which due ndtasebeen given. Our bye-laws, other than
the bye-law separating our board of directors thtee classes, may be amended by the board otatiseEthe amendment is approved by a
majority of votes cast by our directors and by shereholders by a resolution passed by a majdritgptes cast at a general meeting. Any
amendment to our bye-law separating a board o€fdire into three classes must be approved by candbaf directors and by shareholders
holding shares representing at least 60% of tla votting rights of all our shareholders having tigit to vote at such general meeting.

Under Bermuda law, the holders of an aggregat®déss than 20% in par value of a comparigsued share capital or any class of is
share capital have the right to apply to the Beran@durt for an annulment of any amendment of thearandum of association adopted by
shareholders at any general meeting. Where ancagipl is made, the amendment becomes effectiyetorthe extent that it is confirmed by
the Bermuda Court. An application for the annulmefran amendment of the memorandum of associatigst be made within 21 days after
the date on which the resolution altering the camgfsamemorandum of association is passed and mayade on behalf of the person entitled
to make the application by one or more of their hamas they may appoint in writing for the purpdse.application may be made by persons
voting in favor of the amendment.

Appraisal Rights and Shareholder Suits

Under Bermuda law, in the event of an amalgamaiios merger of two Bermuda companies, a sharehwaierdid not vote in favour of
the amalgamation or the merger and who is notfeatithat fair value has been paid for such shddsns shares may apply to the Bermuda
Court to appraise the fair value of those sharhs.Bermuda Companies Act provides that, subjettteéderms of a company’s bye-laws, the
amalgamation or merger of a Bermuda company wittthean company requires the amalgamation or megyereanent to be approved by the
board of directors and, except where the amalgamati merger is between a holding company and ongooe of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries or between two or more wholly-ownelosgdiaries, by meetings of the holders of sharemach company and of each class of suc
shares at a meeting of the shareholders by seVigntpercent of the members present and entitladte at that meeting in respect of which
the quorum shall be two persons holding or reptésgat least one-third of the issued shares dfieampany or class, as the case may be.
Under our bye-laws, any resolution proposed foisaeration at any general meeting to approve thgengamalgamation or any other
consolidation of our company with any other compamyerever incorporated shall require the appro¥alur shareholders holding shares
representing at least 70% of the total voting sgbftall our shareholders, and the quorum to bbesst 2 shareholders present in person or by
proxy holdings shares representing at least 50#beofotal voting rights of all our shareholders.

Class actions and derivative actions are genenaliyavailable to shareholders under Bermuda law. Bérmuda Court, however, would
ordinarily be expected to permit a shareholdemimmence an action in the name of a company to rgmedong done to the company where
the act complained of is alleged to be beyond thiparate power of the company or is illegal or veébrdsult in the violation of the company’s
memorandum of association or bye-laws. Furtheridenstion would be given by the Bermuda Court tts #tat are alleged to constitute a
fraud against the minority shareholders or, fotanse, where an act requires the approval of agrparcentage of the compasghareholde|
than that which actually approved it.

When the affairs of a company are being conductedmanner oppressive or prejudicial to the intereBsome part of the shareholders,
one or more shareholders may apply to the Bermwdat@or an order regulating the company’s cona@ffairs in the future or compelling
the purchase of the shares by any shareholdetthiey shareholders or by the company.

Exchange Controls
The following discussion is based on the advicAmfleby, our Bermuda counsel.

The BMA, has designated us as rresident for exchange control purposes. The BMAgnaated its consent under the Exchange Co
Act 1972 and regulations promulgated thereundettfeiissue or transfer to non-residents of Bernfadaxchange control purposes of our
common shares, subject to the common shares remgajooted on the NASDAQ Capital Market.

88



Table of Contents

Share Issuance and Transfers by Non-Bermuda anuhi#a Residents

Under Bermuda law, there are no limitations onrigbts of non-Bermuda residents to hold or votértbleares of Bermuda companies.
Because we have been designated as a non-resid&erimuda exchange control purposes, there arestactions on our ability to transfer
funds in and out of Bermuda or to pay dividendshited States residents who are holders of our comshares other than in respect of local
Bermuda currency.

Under Bermuda law, we are an exempted companyxa&mpted company is exempt from the provisions ohBela law, which stipula
that at least 60% of the equity must be beneficialined by Bermuda persons. Persons regardedidsm=ssof Bermuda for exchange control
purposes require specific consent under the Exeh@uaaptrol Act 1972 to acquire securities issuedifyyThe Exchange Control Act 1972
permits companies to adopt bye-law provisions irgdatb the transfer of securities. None of Bermlade, our memorandum of association or
our bye-laws imposes limitations on the right akign nationals or non-residents of Bermuda to leoidshares or vote such shares.

As an exempted company, we may not participateitam business transactions, including, amongrstlf#) the acquisition or holding
of land in Bermuda, except (i) land acquired ferldusiness by way of lease or tenancy agreemeanttiym not exceeding fifty years, or
(i) with the consent of the Minister of Financeagted in his discretion, land by way of lease aatey agreement for a term not exceeding
twenty-one years in order to provide accommodatiorecreational facilities for its officers and dimyees; (2) the taking of mortgages on lanc
in Bermuda to secure an amount in excess of US88M@&hout the consent of the Bermuda Minister ioaRce; or (3) the carrying on of
business of any kind in Bermuda, except in furtheeaof our business carried on outside Bermudandetua license granted by the Bermuda
Minister of Finance.

The Bermuda government actively encourages fori@igestment in exempted entities like us that asedan Bermuda but do not opel
in competition with local business. In additionhi@ving no restrictions on the degree of foreign enghip, we are subject neither to taxes ot
income or dividends nor to any foreign exchangdrotsmin Bermuda. In addition, there is no capifains tax in Bermuda, and profits can be
accumulated by us without limitation.

Director’s Interests

Under our bye-laws, our director may, notwithstagdhis office be a party to, or otherwise interdste any transaction or arrangement
with our company or in which our company is otheasvinterested. He or she may also be a directoffioer of, or employed by, or a party to
any transaction or arrangement with, or otherwiserested in, any corporate body promoted by ompamy or in which our company is
interested. Therefore, where it is necessary, 80 & our director declares the nature of his pirtterest at the first opportunity at a meetin
the board or by writing to the directors as reqiiing the Bermuda Companies Act, that director siatllby reason of his or her office be
accountable to our company for any benefit he erdgrives from any office or employment to which bye-laws allow him or her to be
appointed or from any transaction or arrangementhith our bye-laws allow him or her to be inteegstand no such transaction or
arrangement shall be liable to be avoided on thargt of any such interest or benefit. A generaicedo our directors by a director or officer
declaring that he or she is a director or officehas an interest in a person and is to be regasl@uterested in any transaction or arrangemen
made with that person shall be sufficient declaratf interest in relation to any transaction saagement so made.

Share Issuance and Transfer

We have been designated as a non-resident for egelwntrol purposes by the BMA, whose permissioritfe issuance and transfer of
common shares has been obtained subject to the eorsinares being quoted on the NASDAQ Capital Market

The transfer of common shares between personsdedjas non-resident in Bermuda for exchange coptngloses and the issuance of
shares after the completion of the currently copleted offering of our common shares to those persoay be effected without specific
consent under the Exchange Control Act 1972 of Belarand regulations thereunder subject to the canshares remaining quoted on the
NASDAQ Capital Market. Issuance and transfer ofsbdo any person regarded as resident in Bernardax€hange control purposes reqt
specific prior approval under the Exchange Confweil 1972.

There are no limitations on the rights of pers@garded as non-residents of Bermuda for foreighaxge control purposes who own
common shares to hold or vote their common sh&iase we have been designated as a non-resideBeforuda exchange control purposes,
there are no restrictions on our ability to tran$@eds in and out of Bermuda or to pay divideral§/hited States residents or other non-
residents of Bermuda who are holders of commonreshather than in respect of local Bermuda curreRaythermore, it is not our intent to
maintain Bermuda dollar deposits and, accordinglif,not pay dividends on the common shares in Betancurrency.
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Share certificates are issued only in the namesgforations or individuals, being the registerettibrs of shares as represented by sucl
share certificates. Where an applicant for comniares acts in a special capacity, such as an examutrustee, certificates may, at the req
of that applicant, record the capacity in which éipplicant is acting. Our recording of any specaacity, however, shall not be construed as
obliging us either to investigate, or to incur aagponsibility or liability in respect of, the prapadministration of any trust or estate. Except a
ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction orexguired by law, regardless of whether or not weehzad notice of a trust, no notice shall be
taken of any trust, equitable, contingent, futur@artial interest in any share or any interestny fractional part of a share or any other right i
respect of any common shares except an absoliitietoighe entirety thereof in the registered halder

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd. (formerly knovenReid Management Limited) serves as our principgiktrar and transfer agent
in Bermuda for the common shares. Computershare=8Waer Services, LLC serves as our United Stasesfer agent and registrar for the
common shares.

Material Contracts

We have entered into the following contracts witthia two years preceding the date of this AnnugldReon Form 20-F that are or may
be material:

. On February 26, 2010, the Company entered int@eegturchase agreement (the “Share Purchase Agn€¢méh Siliconware
Precision to sell to Siliconware Precision our lraddof 133 million common shares of ChipMOS Taiweith a consideration of
approximately NT$1,630 million. The purchase shaegsesent 15.8% of the total number of ChipMOSwEai's outstanding
shares. Under the terms and conditions of the Sharehase Agreement, Siliconware Precision paigtimehase price in four
installments to ChipMOS Bermuda, with the finaltaibnent scheduled to be paid on or before Margh2811. The share purchase
transaction was completed in January 2(

. On February 26, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan entered intequipment purchase agreement (the “EquipmenthBaecAgreement”)
with Siliconware Precision to purchase its DRAMi¢es and LCD driver assembly and test equipmetit avjpurchase price of
approximately NT$1,630 million. Under the terms aodditions of the Equipment Purchase Agreemenp@sS Taiwan will pay
the purchase price in four installments to SilicanevPrecision, with the final installment paid arbefore March 31, 2011. All of
the purchased equipment will be shipped to andliest at ChipMOS’ plant no later than July 31, 20itQJanuary 2011, the
Company has paid the final installment to SilicorsvBrecision and completed the Equipment Purchgseefnent transactio

. On April 22, 2011, the Company entered MMT Assigntnggreement with ThailLin to sell the MMT NotesTbailLin for a
purchase price of approximately US$40 million sabje certain closing conditions. The MMT Assignrh&greement was
completed in October 2011. Post completion of thdTVAssignment Agreement transaction, ThaiLin imnageliy converted the
MMT Notes into common shares of Modern Mind andcpased all of the remaining common shares of Moléna from Jesper,
with ChipMOS Shanghai becoming a wh-owned subsidiary of ThailLir

. On July 14, 2011, ChipMOS Taiwan obtained a syrditéoan facility from banks in Taiwan in the ambohNT$8,410 million
separated into two parts with its respective teffioor years and five years. This loan facility wesed to refinance the existing
bank debts and equipment leases in July and Aafist. As of December 31, 2011, this loan faciligsviully drawn

. On October 26, 2012, Company entered UnderwritiggeAment with Thailin, Siliconware Precision, Coveerd Company, LLC
and Crai-Hallum Capital Group LLC for the Secondary Offeriofgup to 2.8 million Compar's Common Share

Please see also “Item 7. Major Shareholders anat&kParty Transactions” for further summary infation regarding the contracts
listed under “Item 10. Additional Information — Maital Contracts” that are with certain of our rethparties.
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Bermuda Taxation

This summary is based on laws, regulations, trpaiyisions and interpretations now in effect andilable as of the date of this Annual
Report on Form 20-F. The laws, regulations, trgabywisions and interpretations, however, may chaigay time, and any change could be
retroactive to the date of issuance of our comniamess. These laws, regulations and treaty pro\dsioa also subject to various interpretati
and the relevant tax authorities or the courtsattater disagree with the explanations or conchsget out below.

At the date hereof, there is no Bermuda incomeyamation or profits tax, withholding tax, capitaligs tax, capital transfer tax, estate
duty or inheritance tax payable by us or our shaldshrs other than shareholders ordinarily residleBermuda. We are not subject to stamp or
other similar duty on the issuance, transfer oenggtion of our common shares.

We have obtained an assurance from the Ministéirance of Bermuda under the Exempted UndertakiiagsProtection Act 1966 that,
in the event there is enacted in Bermuda any kil imposing tax computed on profits or incomeamputed on any capital assets, gain or
appreciation, or any tax in the nature of estaty duinheritance tax, such tax shall not be atlie to us or to our operations, or to the
common shares, debentures or our other obligatintisMarch 28, 2016, except insofar as such tgliap to persons ordinarily resident in
Bermuda and holding such common shares, deberdums other obligations or any real property @skehold interests in Bermuda owned by
us. No reciprocal income tax treaty affecting ustsxoetween Bermuda and the United States.

As an exempted company, we are liable to pay imBela an annual government fee calculated on aglgtale basis by reference to
assessable capital, which is the aggregate ofuihoezed common share capital and the premiumuorissued common shares currently at a
rate not exceeding US$31,120 per annum.

United States Federal Income Tax Consequences

The discussion below is for general informationycanhd is not, and should not be interpreted tddeadvice to any holder of our
common shares. Each holder or a prospective hofdaur common shares is urged to consult his, hés@wn tax advisor.

General

This section is a general summary of the matenatdd States federal income tax consequences toHél8ers, as defined below, of the
ownership and disposition of our common shared #seadate of this report. This summary is basetherprovisions of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, the apldidabasury regulations promulgated and proposectinder, judicial decisions and cur
administrative rulings and practice, all of whiake aubject to change, possibly on a retroactivesbdbe summary applies to you only if you
hold our common shares as a capital asset witkimianing of Section 1221 of the Code. The UnitateS Internal Revenue Service, or the
IRS, may challenge the tax consequences descridded band we have not requested, nor will we reguesiling from the IRS or an opinion
of counsel with respect to the United States fddacame tax consequences of acquiring, holdindisposing of our common shares. This
summary does not purport to be a comprehensiveaigésn of all the tax considerations that may bkevant to the ownership of our common
shares. In particular, the discussion below doéganer tax consequences that depend upon youcyarttax circumstances nor does it cover
any state, local or foreign law, or the possiblpli@ation of the United States federal estate firtgk. You are urged to consult your own tax
advisors regarding the application of the Uniteat&t federal income tax laws to your particularation as well as any state, local, foreign an
United States federal estate and gift tax consempseaf the ownership and disposition of the comstwares. In addition, this summary does
not take into account any special United Statesriddncome tax rules that apply to a particulg®.Lar Non-U.S. Holder of our common
shares, including, without limitation, the follovgn

. a dealer in securities or currenci

. a trader in securities that elects to use a m-to-market method of accounting for its securities hgjd,;

. a financial institution or a ban

. an insurance compan

. a ta>-exempt organizatior

. a person that holds our common shares in a hedigingaction or as part of a straddle or a convernsansaction
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. a person whose functional currency for United Stételeral income tax purposes is not the U.S. g

. a person liable for alternative minimum t;

. a person that owns, or is treated as owning, 10#6ave, by voting power or value, of our common ebg

. certain former U.S. citizens and residents who lexmatriated; o

. a person who receives our shares pursuant to treis& of employee stock options or otherwise aspemsation

U.S. Holders
For purposes of the discussion below, you are 8&.“Holder” if you are a beneficial owner of our aoon shares who or which is:

. an individual United States citizen or residene@lof the United States (as specifically definedUnited States federal income tax
purposes)

. a corporation, or other entity treated as a cotpmrdor United States federal income tax purposesated or organized in or under
the laws of the United States, any State or th&ibi®f Columbia;

. an estate whose income is subject to United Statiesal income tax regardless of its source

. a trust (x) if a United States court can exerciseary supervision over the trust’'s administrateord one or more United States
persons are authorized to control all substangalsions of the trust or (y) if it was in existerare August 20, 1996, was treated :
United States person prior to that date and hadid &lection in effect under applicable Treaswagulations to be treated as a
United States perso

If a partnership holds our common shares, thertatrent of a partner will generally depend upandiatus of the partner and upon the
activities of the partnership. If you are a partoka partnership holding our common shares, yaulshconsult your tax advisor.

Distributions

Subject to the “passive foreign investment compghyFIC”) rules discussed below, for cash dividerttie gross amount of any such
distribution (other than in liquidation) that yoeceive with respect to our common shares genesdllype taxed to you as dividend income to
the extent such distribution does not exceed ouentior accumulated earnings and profits (“E&RY,calculated for U.S. federal income tax
purposes. Such income will be includable in yoursgrincome as ordinary income on the date of redeipidends received by individuals and
certain other non-corporate taxpayers from “quadifioreign corporations” are taxed at the ratetbee 0 percent, 15 percent or 20 percent,
depending upon the particular taxpayer’s U.S. fa@idacome tax bracket; provided that the recipsmreholder has held his or her shares as
beneficial owner for more than 60 days during tB&-tlay period beginning on the date which is 6Gsdasfore the shares’ ex-dividend date. A
foreign corporation is a “qualified foreign corptiea” if the stock with respect to which it paysidiends is traded on an established securitie:
market in the United States, provided that thei§preorporation is not a PFIC. Our stock is tradadan established securities market in the
United States, although we cannot guarantee thattook will be so traded in the future. We beli¢givat we should not be treated as a PFIC fc
U.S. federal income tax purposes. No assuranceéegiven, however, that the IRS may not disagrelesaek to treat us as a PFIC. If we were
a PFIC with respect to a particular U.S. Holdevjdénds received from us will be taxed at regulaiirary income tax rates and certain other
rules will apply. See “Passive Foreign Investmeotn@any (PFIC),” below. Holders of our shares shaaldsult their own tax advisers
regarding the availability of the reduced dividaéax rate in light of their own particular circumstas.

Certain U.S. Holders that are individuals, estatesusts will be required to pay an additional BeBcent Medicare contribution tax on
investment income, including interest, dividendyj aapital gain. U.S. Holders should consult thetradvisors as to the application of this
additional tax.
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To the extent any distribution exceeds our E&P dis&ribution will first be treated as a tax-fresturn of capital to the extent of your
adjusted tax basis in our common shares and waldpdied against and reduce such basis on a doltatellar basis (thereby increasing the
amount of gain and decreasing the amount of lassyrézed on a subsequent disposition of such shareshe extent that such distribution
exceeds your adjusted tax basis, the distributitio® taxed as gain recognized on a sale or exghanour common shares. See “Sale,
Exchange or Other Disposition of Our Common Shatedpw. Because we are not a U.S. corporatiordimmlendsreceived deduction will b
allowed to corporations with respect to dividendgby us.

For United States foreign tax credit limitation poses, dividends received on our common sharebwiiteated as foreign source incc
and will generally be “passive category income”jrothe case of certain holders, “general categmgme.” You may be eligible, subject to a
number of complex limitations, to claim a foreigx credit in respect of foreign withholding taxésny, imposed on dividends paid on our
common shares. The rules governing United Stategyfo tax credits are complex, and we recommenidytha consult your tax advisor
regarding the applicability of such rules to you.

Sale, Exchange or Other Disposition of Our Commonl&res

Subject to the PFIC rules discussed below, geneiialiconnection with the sale, exchange or othgalble disposition of our common
shares:

. you will recognize capital gain or loss equal te tifference (if any) betwee
. the amount realized on such sale, exchange or tathable disposition ar

. your adjusted tax basis in such common shares @djusted tax basis in the shares you hold gegesélllequal your U.S
dollar cost of such share:

. such gain or loss will be long-term capital gairass if your holding period for our common shagemore than one year at the
time of such sale or other dispositic

. such gain or loss will generally be treated as éthBtates source for United States foreign taxitgpedposes; an
. your ability to deduct capital losses is subjedirtatations.

Long-term capital gains recognized by individualsl @ertain other non-corporate taxpayers, are takée rate of 0, 15 or 20 percent,
depending upon the particular taxpayer’s U.S. faidacome tax bracket. Certain U.S. Holders thatiadividuals, estates or trusts will be
required to pay an additional 3.8 percent Medicargribution tax on net investment income, inclgpinterest, dividends, and capital gain.
U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisorsoaié application of this additional tax.

Passive Foreign Investment Company (PFIC)

We believe that our common shares should not lagetieas stock of a PFIC for United States federe tax purposes, but this
conclusion is a legal and factual determination ilhanade annually and thus may be subject to ahdhgie were treated as a PFIC, unless a
U.S. Holder elects to be taxed annually on a maskiarket basis with respect to the shares, gainzezhlbn the sale or other disposition of y
common shares would in general not be treated@tatgain. Instead, you would be treated as if fiad realized such gain ratably over your
holding period for the common shares. The amoutisaded to the taxable year of the sale or otligaskition and to any year before we
became a PFIC would be taxed as ordinary income .ahtmount allocated to each other taxable year weilsubject to tax at the highest rat
effect for such year, together with an interestrghan respect of the tax attributable to each s@ar. With certain exceptions, your common
shares will be treated as stock in a PFIC if weeweePFIC at any time during your holding periog@ur common shares. Dividends that you
receive from us will not be eligible for the spédé&x rates applicable to qualified dividend incoiinee are treated as a PFIC with respect to
you either in the taxable year of the distribut@srithe preceding taxable year, but instead willex@ble at rates applicable to ordinary inco
Further, any distribution in respect of our comnsbiares in excess of 125 percent of the averageahdistributions on our common shares
received by you during the preceding three yeayoar holding period, whichever is shorter, woutdllocated ratably over your holding
period for the common shares and subject to taxatsodescribed for sales or other dispositions @bov
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Non-U.S. Holders
If you are not a U.S. Holder, you are a “Non-U.®ld¢r.”

Distributions on Our Common Shares

You generally will not be subject to U.S. federatame tax, including withholding tax, on distritarts made on our common shares
unless:

. you conduct a trade or business in the United State

. the distributions are effectively connected with ttonduct of that trade or business (and, if atiGgige income tax treaty so
requires as a condition for you to be subject t8.ederal income tax on a net income basis ine@spf income from our common
shares, such distributions are attributable torenpaent establishment that you maintain in the ééh§tates)

If you meet the two tests above, you generally béllsubject to tax in respect of such dividendtésame manner as a U.S. Holder, as
described above. In addition, any effectively canied dividends received by a hon-U.S. corporatiay aiso, under certain circumstances, be
subject to an additional “branch profits tax” &8@percent rate or such lower rate as may be $padif an applicable income tax treaty.

Sale, Exchange or Other Disposition of Our Commonli&res

Generally, you will not be subject to U.S. fedenaglome tax, including withholding tax, in respe€ain recognized on a sale or other
disposition of our common shares unless:

. your gain is effectively connected with a tradéosiness that you conduct in the United States, (&ad applicable income te
treaty so requires as a condition for you to bgemitio U.S. federal income tax on a net incomeashasespect of gain from the s
or other disposition of our common shares, such aattributable to a permanent establishment ta@ied by you in the United
States), o

. you are an individual N¢-U.S. Holder and are present in the United Staieatfleast 183 days in the taxable year of the sal
other disposition, and certain other conditionse

You will be subject to tax in respect of any gdfifeetively connected with your conduct of a traddbasiness in the United States
generally in the same manner as a U.S. Holderessrithed above. Effectively connected gains redlizea non-U.S. corporation may also,
under certain circumstances, be subject to aniaddit‘branch profits tax” at a rate of 30 percensuch lower rate as may be specified by an
applicable income tax treaty.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

Payments, including dividends and proceeds of salesspect of our common shares that are matteeitunited States or by a United
States related financial intermediary will be sebje United States information reporting rulesatifdition, such payments may be subject to
United States federal backup withholding tax. Ydll mot be subject to backup withholding providéxt

. you are a corporation or other exempt recipien

. you provide your correct United States federal éaqp identification number and certify, under p&ralof perjury, that you are n
subject to backup withholdin

Amounts withheld under the backup withholding rutesy be credited against your United States fedecaime tax, and you may obtain
a refund of any excess amounts withheld under glo&up withholding rules by filing the appropriataim for refund with the IRS in a timely
manner.

Documents on Display

We are subject to the information requirementef$ecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendeatdardance with
these requirements, we file reports and other inétion with the Securities and Exchange CommisSibiese materials may be inspected and
copied at the Commission’s Public Reference RoofdatF Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Thaipunay obtain information on the
operation of the Commission’s Public Reference Rbgmalling the Commission in the United State$-800-SEC-0330. The Commission
also maintains a web site at http://www.sec.gov tbatains reports, proxy statements and otherrimdtion regarding registrants that file
electronically with the Commission.
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ltem 11. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Marke Risk
Market Risks

Our exposure to financial market risks relates prity to changes in interest rates and foreign arge rates. To mitigate these risks, we
utilize derivative financial instruments, the applion of which is primarily for hedging, and not Speculative, purposes.

Interest Rate Risks

As of December 31, 2012, we had aggregate debssamating of NT$9,334 million (US$321 million), whievas incurred for capital
expenditure and general operating expenses. Gfuistanding debts as of December 31, 2012, 100%ifeaest at variable rates. The inte
rate for the majority of our variable rate debtsesmbased on a fixed percentage spread over itine pate established by our lenders. Our
variable rate debts had an annual weighted avénégrest rate of 2.653% as of December 31, 2012onAtingly, we have cash flows and
earnings exposure due to market interest rate esafiog our variable rate debts. An increase ir@sterates of 1% would increase our annual
interest charge by NT$93 million (US$3 million) ledson our outstanding floating rate indebtedness Becember 31, 2012.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, ChipMOS Taiwahriwainterest rate swap agreements outstanding.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risks

Our foreign currency exposure gives rise to marisés associated with exchange rate movements stgaeNT dollar, is the Japanese
yen and the US dollar. As of December 31, 20129%8of our financial assets and 9.4% of our finan@ailities are denominated in the L
dollar and Japanese yen, respectively. To minifuzeign currency exchange risk, from time to time wtilize forward exchange contracts anc
foreign currency options to hedge our exchangerisiteon foreign currency assets or liabilitiesifioss. These hedging transactions help to
reduce, but do not eliminate, the impact of foreigrrency exchange rate movements. An average @ppiom of the NT dollar against all ott
relevant foreign currencies of 5% would decreasesgohange gain by NT$348 million (US$12 milliorgded on our outstanding assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies aPetember 31, 2012. As of December 31, 2010, 26#12812, we had no outstanding forw
exchange or foreign currency option contracts.

See Note 22 of our audited consolidated finantakments for additional information on these daiixe transactions.
Item 12. Description of Securities Other Than Equity Securiies
Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delinquencie
None.
Item 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of Security Hdders and Use of Proceed

Not applicable.

Iltem 15. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedure®n evaluation was carried out under the supervisioth with the participation of our management,
including our chief executive officer and chiefdincial officer, of the effectiveness of our discigscontrols and procedures (as defined in
13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 19B4sed upon that evaluation, the chief executivie@ffand chief financial officer concluded
that these disclosure controls and procedures @féxetive as of December 31, 2012.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control OWarancial ReportingManagement's Report on Internal Control Over Fimgnc
Reporting is set forth below.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

April 26, 2013

Management of ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTDgéther with its consolidated subsidiaries, therf(pany”)is responsibl
for establishing and maintaining adequate intecoatrol over financial reporting (as defined in 8df3a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934). The Company'’s internal control over fiimhreporting is a process designed under thersigien of the Company’s chief executive
officer and chief financial officer to provide reemble assurance regarding the reliability of feiahreporting and the preparation of the
Company’s financial statements for external repgrpurposes in accordance with generally accepteauating principles in the Republic of
China and the required reconciliation to generatlgepted accounting principles in the United States

As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s manageméthithe participation of the Comparsythief executive officer and chief financ
officer, conducted an assessment of the effectsenéthe Companyg’internal control over financial reporting usirrgeria set forth in Intern:
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Comemiof Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway @@sion (COSO). Based on this
assessment, the Company’s management has conthateéble Company’s internal control over financegorting as of December 31, 2012
was effective.

Moore Stephens, an independent registered puldimuating firm, has audited our consolidated finahstatements included in the
Annual Report of the Company on Form 20-F for tearyended December 31, 2012 and has issued atatdteseport on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2012. The attestation report is set farthtem 18. Financial Statements”.

/s/ Shih-Jye Cheng /s/ Shou-Kang Chen
Name ShiF-Jye Chen¢ Name Shot-Kang Cher
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Offic Title: Chief Financial Office

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repogiiuring 2012, no change to our internal control dirgaincial reporting occurred
that has materially affected, or is reasonablylyike materially affect, our internal control oviamancial reporting.
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Item 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert

Our Board of Directors have determined that Ciyh Ou, one of our independent directors, quadlifis audit committee financial exy
and meets the independence requirement as defirlezi 16A to Form 20-F.

Iltem 16B. Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsizthhich applies to our directors, officers ancgkayees. A copy of our Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics is filed as ExhibifL 1@.this Annual Report on Form 20-F.

Item 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Servise

The table below summarizes the aggregate feesvthpaid or accrued for services provided by ModepBens for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2012.

2011 2012
NT$ NT$
(In thousands)
Audit Fees $9,68¢ $ 9,151
Audit Related Fee — —
Tax Fees — —
All Other Fees — 2,38:
Total $9,68¢ $11,53:

Audit Fees This category includes the audit of our annuafiicial statements and services that are normadliged by the independent
auditors in connection with statutory and reguhafiimgs or engagements for those fiscal years. 811 and 2012, this category primarily
include the audit of our financial statements andinternal control over financial reporting comtadl in this Annual Report on Form 20-F.

Audit-Related FeesThis category includes fees reasonably relatédeigerformance of the audit or review of our ficial statements
and not included in the category of Audit Fees ¢dbsd above).

Tax FeesThis category includes aggregate fees for respegars for services relating to tax compliancejcdand planning.

All Other FeesThis category includes aggregate fees for respegtiars for services other than the services ieclind the above. For
2012, this category primarily include the feesdervices received relating to Company'’s transadtiith respect to the Registration Statement
on Form F-3 declared effective in September 2012.

All non-audit services are pre-approved by our A@immittee on a case-by-case basis. Accordingtyhave not established any pre-
approval policies and procedures.

All audit services that Moore Stephens was engégedrry out after May 6, 2003, the effective dafteevised Rule 2-01(c)(7) of
Regulation S-X entitled “Audit Committee Administin of the Engagement” on strengthening requirgseggarding auditor independence,
were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

Item 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards for AuditCommittees
Not applicable.

Item 16E. Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer dnAffiliated Purchasers

On August 26, 2011, our Board of Directors approared subsequently implemented a Rule 10b5-1 andl&Gihare repurchase program
in accordance with the Securities Exchange Act 1884mended, on November 17, 2011 to purchasegihm® broker our common shares,
with a maximum purchase amount of US$10 millidRepurchase Program)l Repurchase Program | was terminated on Augus2@I2. On
August 10, 2012, our Board of Directors approved subsequently implemented a Rule 10b5-1 and 104x&B: repurchase program in
accordance with the Securities Exchange Act 1984n@ended, on August 20, 2012 to purchase throlgbkar our common shares, with a
maximum purchase amount of US$10 millioRépurchase Program )l Repurchase Program Il was completed on Octobe?d12.

The table sets forth certain information aboutgbechase of our common shares by the Issuer’s paechrograms for the year ended as
of December 31, 2012.
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Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

Maximum Dollar

Value of Shares

Total Number of that May Yet Be
Shares Purchased Purchased Unde
Total Number Average Price as Part of
Publicly Announcec the Plans or
of Shares Paid Per Programs

Period Purchased Share (US$ Plans or Programs (USS$ Million)
January — February, 2012 (Repurchase Program ) 47,10( 7.6¢ 47,10( None
Septembe- October, 2012 (Repurchase Progran 653,61( 15.3( 653,61( None
Total 700,71( 700,71( None

Item 16F. Change in Registran’'s Certifying Accountant
Not applicable.

ltem 16G. Corporate Governance

Our corporate governance practices are governeghplcable Bermuda law, specifically, the Bermuaanpanies Act, and our
memorandum of association and bye-laws. Also, bescaur securities are listed on the NASDAQ, wesalgect to corporate governance
requirements applicable to NASDAQ-listed foreigivate issuers under NASDAQ listing rules.

Under NASDAQ Rule 5615(a)(3), NASDAQ-listed foreigrivate issuers may, in general, follow their hotoantry corporate
governance practices instead of most NASDAQ cotpayavernance requirements. However, all NASDA@tisforeign private issuers must
comply with NASDAQ Rules 5605(c)(2)(A)(ii), 5605(8), 5625 and 5640.

Item 16G requires a foreign private issuer to pevin its annual report filed with the Securitiesl&xchange Commission a brief,
general summary of any significant ways its corppgovernance practices differ from those follokgdNASDAQ-isted domestic companie
The table below provides this summary informatisreqjuired by Item 16G and by NASDAQ Rule 56158)) (

Corporate Governance Practice To Bt
NASDAQ Listing Rule Followed by Domestic Companie Our Corporate Governance Practice

5605(b) Requires a majority independent  We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancagtice as followed by
board and an independent director domestic companies.
executive sessiol

5605(c)(1) Audit committee charter We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancaqgice as followed by
requirements domestic companie

5605(c)(2)(A)(i))  Audit committee composition and We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governanceqtice as followed by
independence requiremer domestic companie

5605(c)(2)(A)(i),  Audit committee financial We follow governance practices under Bermuda lagrni2ida Companies Act

(iii), (iv) sophistication requirement does not have such requireme

5605(c)(3) Audit committee responsibilities and/NVe follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancagtice as followed by
authority requirement: domestic companie

5605(d), (e) Requires independent director We follow governance practices under Bermuda lagrni2ida Companies Act
oversight of executive officer does not have such requirement.All compensatiomuittee members are
compensation and director independent directors. All directors who approveaenive officer compensation
nominations and director nominations are independent direc

5610 Requires a code of conduct for We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancaqgiice as followed by

directors, officers and employe domestic companie

5620 Annual shareholder meeting We follow governance practices under Bermuda law.

requirements. The Bermuda Companies Act and our ses provide for certain requirements

the annual shareholder meeting, including the ¥ataq:

(a) an annual general meeting at least once iryeatendar year unless according
to the provisions of Bermuda Companies Act, shddsms elect to dispense with
the holding of annual general meetin
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NASDAQ Listing Rule

Corporate Governance Practice To B¢
Followed by Domestic Companie

Our Corporate Governance Practice

5625

5630

5635

5640

Requires an issuer to notify
NASDAQ of any materia

noncompliance with the Rule 5600

series

(b) the Bermuda Companies Act does not have expresssions requiring proxy
solicitation; anc

(c) under bye-law 49, the quorum for any annuakgairmeeting shall be at least
two shareholders present in person or by proxytemding shares representing at
least fifty percent (50%) of the total voting righdf all the shareholders having
the right to vote at such meeting and entitleddte

We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancagtice as followed by
domestic companies.

Requires oversight of related party We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancagtice as followed by

transactions

Circumstances that require
shareholder approval.

Shareholder voting rights
requirements

domestic companie

We follow governance practices under Bermuda ldve Bermuda Companies
Act and our bye-laws provide for certain circumstswhich require
shareholdel approval, including but not limited to the follovgn

(a) under bye-law 5, subject to the Bermuda ComgsaALt, all or any of the
special rights for the time being attached to dagsof shares for the time being
issued may from time to time be altered or abraatéh the consent in writing
of the holders of not less than 75% of the issinedes of that class or with the
sanction of a resolution of our shareholders paasadseparate general meeting
of the holders of such shares voting in personyqurbxy;

(b) under bye-law 129, subject to the Bermuda CangsaAct and our bye-laws,
any resolution proposed for consideration at amegg meeting to approve (i) 1
merger, amalgamation or any other consolidatiomsofvith any other company,
wherever incorporated; (ii) any sale, lease, exgbatransfer or other disposition
of all or substantially all of our consolidated eiss and (iii) the adoption for any
plan or proposal for our liquidation, shall requihe approval of our shareholders
holding shares representing at least 70% of ttz voting rights of all the
shareholders having the right to vote at such mggéind

(c) under the Bermuda Companies Act, there areigions setting out the
requirements as well as specified shareholderg’aajapfor a scheme of
arrangement, compulsory acquisition, amalgamatianerger.

We follow the same NASDAQ listing rule governancaqtice as followed by
domestic companie
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Item 17.

PART IlI

Financial Statements

The Company has elected to provide the financiéstents and related information specified in Ii6hin lieu of Item 17.

Iltem 18.

Financial Statements

The financial statements and related informatiothefCompany are located at pages F-1 to F-60.

Item 19. Exhibits

Exhibits Description

1.1 Memorandum of Association of ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIE®(muda) LTD.®

1.2 Bye-laws of ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LT

2.1 Certificate of Incorporation of ChipMOS TECHNOLOG@HKBermuda) LTD., dated August 15, 20®

4.1 Joint Venture Agreement, dated July 14, 1997, betmMosel Vitelic Inc. and Siliconware Precision uistties
Co., Ltd.®

4.2 Asset Sales Agreement, dated June 14, 1999, betWieeochip Technology Taiwan and ChipMOS TECHNOLSI INC.®)

4.3 Tessera Compliant Chip License Agreement, dated 29y 1999, between Tessera Inc. and ChipMOS TEOHBGIES INC.®

4.4 License Agreement, dated April 1, 1999, betweeiit$tu)td. and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES IN®

4.5 Sales Agreement, dated February 10, 2000, betwleamp £orp. and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES IN®

4.6 (Rl)aw Materials Processing Agreement, dated Augus2@@0, between Mosel Vitelic Inc. and ChipMOS TEGBLOGIES INC.

4.7 Raw Materials Processing Agreement, dated Jany&9Qil, between Siliconware Precision Co. Ltd. @&h¢pMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.8 Integrated Circuit Processing Agreement, datedalgnl, 2001, between Siliconware Precision Co. atil ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.9 Integrated Circuit Processing and Warehousing Mamamt Agreement, dated August 10, 2000, betweereMbelic Inc. and
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INCW

4.10 Land Lease Agreement, dated November 26, 1997 gdeen8cience Based Industrial Park Administratich@hipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

411 Land Lease Agreement, dated November 26, 1997 gdeen8cience Based Industrial Park Administratich@hipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.12 Land Lease Agreement, dated September 1, 1997¢bat®cience Based Industrial Park Administratiath@hipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.13 Purchase Agreement, dated July 31, 1997, betwegMTt TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Mosel Vitelic In®

414 Form of Share Exchange Covenant Letter from the fgzom to the Shareholde @

4.15 Amendment to the Integrated Circuit Processing\&adehousing Management Agreement, dated AugusQl), between Mos
Vitelic Inc. and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC, datedpBamber 1, 2001

4.16 Purchase Agreement, dated October 15, 2003, bet@iegMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and DenMOS Technologg. (2)

4.17 Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated April 25, 2088;een ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Ron How Iirent Corp.

(English Translation®
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Exhibits Description

4.18 Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated April 25, 2088een ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Yuan Sharestment Corp.
(English Translation®

4.19 Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated April 25, 28€8een ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Mosel Vitdfic. (English
Translation)®

4.20 Laser Stamping Machine Lease Agreement, dated Niogefy 2002, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. @ANTEK
ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. (English Translatio®

4.21 Automatic Stamping Machine Lease Agreement, dateckhber 1, 2002, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES lat@l
CHANTEK ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. (English Translatio®

4.22 Raw Materials Processing Agreement, dated Jany&9QaB, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and CHAXT
ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. (English Translatio®

4.23 Integrated Circuit Processing Agreement, datedaignl, 2003, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. attiANTEK
ELECTRONIC CO., LTD. (English Translatio®

4.24 Technology Transfer Agreement, dated December @ 2between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and ThaiLin
Semiconductor Corp. (English Translatic®

4.25 Tester Equipment Lease Agreement, dated NovemhetQD2, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and ThaiL
Semiconductor Corp. (English Translatic®

4.26 Tester Equipment Lease Agreement, dated Deceml2802, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and ThaiLi
Semiconductor Corp. (English Translatic®

4.27 Joint Engagement Letter, undated, by and amongéIgilectronics Corp., ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. &uh-Fund
Securities Ltd. (English Translatio®

4.28 Lease Agreement, dated June 1, 2002, between CHHIMECHNOLOGIES INC. and SyncMOS Technologies, (English
Translation)®

4.29 Technology Transfer Agreement, dated August 1, 2088veen ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. adp®10S
TECHNOLOGIES (Shanghai) LTL®

4.30 Promissory Note from Modern Mind Technology Limitedlesper Limited, dated November 4, 2(®

4.31 Deed of Variation, dated December 2, 2002, betvidedern Mind Technology Limited and Jesper Limit®

4.32 Deed of Assignment, dated December 27, 2002, betdegper Limited and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda)
LTD. ®

4.33 Deed of Assignment, dated June 25, 2003, betwegredé&imited and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES IN®

4.34 Agreement, dated May 3, 2003, between Jesper Ldnaitel Modern Mind Technology Limite®

4.35 Master loan agreement, dated July 12, 2004, am&gMDS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD., Modern Mind heology
Limited and Jesper Limite®

4.36 Cooperation Agreement, dated March 27, 2002, betwmnghai Qingpu Industrial Zone Development (@ydompany and
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. (English Traat&hn)®)

4.37 Deed of assignment, dated December 17, 2003, bet@kipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIE
(Bermuda) LTD®

4.38 Supplemental deed of assignment, dated May 14, Béeen ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTC®

4.39 Second supplemental deed of assignment, dated €ctdh2004, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermudd). and
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.40 Assignment agreement, dated April 7, 2004, betwaldpMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. and ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

4.41 Supplemental assignment agreement, dated May 04, Detween ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. &dpMOS

TECHNOLOGIES INC®
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Exhibits

Description

4.42

4.43

4.44

4.45

4.46

4.47

4.48

4.49

4.50

451

4.52
4.53

4.54

4.55

4.56

4.57

4.58

4.59

4.60

4.61

4.62

4.63

4.64

Second supplemental assignment agreement, datete€ddtl, 2004, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Beraud D. and
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC®

Patent license agreement, dated April 7, 2004, éetvChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. and ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

Supplemental patent license agreement dated J@Q08, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) L&bd ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

Second supplemental patent license agreement Gatetber 11, 2004, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES ifaeta) LTD.
and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES IN(®

Third supplemental patent license agreement dagseidber 30, 2004, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIESr(Beia) LTD.
and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES IN(®

Assembly and Testing Service Agreement, dated Nbeera7, 2005, between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. Spdnsion
LLC.®

Share Purchase and Subscription Agreement, dateddrg 13, 2007, among ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bera)udrD.,
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Siliconware Precislodustries Co., Ltc®

Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 27, 206@%&veen ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. aflgc@ware
Precision Industries Co., Lt(™

Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of April 127 20&ween ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. &dpMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

Assignment Agreement, dated April 12, 2007, betw@kipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. and ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

Form of Change In Control Severance Agreen®)

Southern Taiwan Science Park Administration LandseesAgreement, dated June 1, 2007, between Solthevan Science Park
Administration and ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. (ErgjliTranslation(®)

Second Amendment to Assembly and Test Service Ageag dated July 16, 2007, by and between SpahiGrand ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC®

Service Agreement for Integrated Circuit Produdgged July 17, 2007, by and between ProMOS Techieddnc. and ChipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC. (English Translatio®)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 8, 28@¥ong ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD., Giaiatven
Investment Limited, ProMOS Technologies Inc. andv@®tech Technology Ind®

Third Amendment to Assembly and Test Services Aperd, dated November 30, 2007, by and between #&pabksC and
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC®

Science Park Administration Land Lease AgreemattediDecember 1, 2007, between Science Park Adnaitigs and
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. (English Translatic®

Lease Agreement, dated April 2, 2008, between CRBM ECHNOLOGIES INC. and ThaiLin Semiconductor Cdfnglish
Translation)®

Master Lease Agreement and Addendums to the Mastee Agreement, dated November 9, 2009, betwegMTS
TECHNOLOGIES INC. and GE Money Taiwan Limite1

Transfer of Claim Agreement, dated January 25, 2B&fwween ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Citigroupdncial
Products Inc@d

Share Purchase Agreement, dated February 26, B8ideen ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. andcSitware
Precision Industries Co., Lt@1

Equipment Purchase Agreement, dated February 26, P@tween ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and SilicomsvBrecision
Industries Co., Ltd@b

Assignment and Assumption Agreement, effective pnil®2, 2011 between ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (BermudaD. and
ThaiLin Semiconductor Cor(®?2)
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Exhibits Description

4.65 Syndicated Loan Agreement, dated July 14, 201 ydrt ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES INC. and Taiwan CoopgmBank,
Bank of Taiwan and Land Bank of Taiwan as the leadngers®3)

4.66 Underwriting Agreement, dated October 26, 2012ywbeh the Company, ThaiLin, Siliconware Precisioow€n and Company,
LLC and Crai-Hallum Capital Group LLC4

8.1 List of principal subsidiaries of ChipMOS TECHNOLTES (Bermuda) LTD

11.1 Code of Business Conduct and Eth®)

121 Certification of Chief Executive Officer requireg¢ Rule 13-14(a) under the Exchange A

12.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer require IRule 13i-14(a) under the Exchange A

131 Certification of Chief Executive Officer requireg¢ Rule 13-14(b) under the Exchange A

13.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer required IRule 13i-14(b) under the Exchange A

151 Consent of independent registered public accouffiting

(1) Incorporated by reference to our Registration &tate on Form -1 (File No. 33-13218), filed on February 28, 20(
(2) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 17, 20C

(3) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 30, 20C

(4) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 17, 20C

(5) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 29, 20C

(6) Incorporated by reference to our Registration &tate on Form -3 (File No. 33-130230), filed on December 9, 20(
(7) Incorporated by reference to Schedule 13D filedhwhie United States Securities and Exchange Coriumiby Siliconware Precision Industries Co., Ltd.April 4, 2007.
(8) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report om+2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 8 200

(9) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 6, 20C

(20) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 4, 20C

(11) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report om#2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 4, 201

(12) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report omF2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on June 3, 201

(13) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report om+2(-F (File No. (-31106), filed on April 26, 201:

(14) Incorporated by reference to our Interim ReporFomm ¢€-K (File No. (-31106), filed on October 26, 201

We have not included as exhibits certain instrumerith respect to our debt, the amount of debt@izbd under each of which does not
exceed 10% of our total assets, and we agreergsfua copy of any such instrument to the Commissjmon request.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of #mufities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrantifaestthat it meets all the

requirements for filing on Form 20-F and it hasydedwused this Annual Report on Form 20-F to beesigi its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in Taipei, Taiwan, Rdjuif China, on April 26, 2013.

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTI

By: /sl Shir-Jye Cheng

Name: Shih-Jye Cheng
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTDOd anbsidiaries (collectivel
the “Company”) (see Note 1) as of December 31, 201d12012, and the related consolidated staternéoizerations, changes in equity, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the peginded December 31, 2012, all expressed in Newaradollars. We have also audited the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag) of December 31, 2012, based on criteria estaliin Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Tam@any’s management is
responsible for these financial statements, fomtaaiing effective internal control over financraporting, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting, included in the accompanying ManagemeRgport on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to exgg@n opinion on these consolidated financial statgs and an opinion on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting basedaam audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audigtagdards generally accepted in the Republic afaCand the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Statéhpse standards require that we plan and perfoenatidit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated finastzEitdments are free of material misstatement amtheh effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all materidpects. Our audits of the financial statemermsiited examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the diolaged financial statements, assessing the ace@uptinciples used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating gralbfinancial statement presentation. Our autiiht®rnal control over financial reportii
included obtaining an understanding of internaltcmrover financial reporting, assessing the rtsktta material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectis®é internal control based on the assessedQiskaudits also included performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary airthuenstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (&ajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettfansactions and dispositions of the assetssofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm (continued)

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the consolidated financial position
of the Company as of December 31, 2011 and 20IRthenresults of their operations and their casWwslfor each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity \&itbounting principles generally accepted in theuRép of China. Also, in our opinion,
the Company maintained, in all material respedtectve internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2012, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Frawmdwissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaitinatof the Treadway Commission
(COSO0).

Accounting principles generally accepted in the litdip of China vary in certain significant respefrtsam accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The apftin of the latter would have affected the deteation of net income for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2012, anddtermination of equity and financial positiorDaicember 31, 2011 and 2012, to

extent summarized in Note 24.

/sl Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 14, 2013
F-3
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2011 and 2012 (Notes 1 and 16)
(In Thousands of New Taiwan and U.S. Dollars, Excefrar Value)

December 31

2011

2012

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSET

Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (Note
Notes receivable (Note :

NT$

7,357,90:
285,13(
5,71(

Accounts receivable - net of allowance for doubtédeivables and sales return allowances

of NT$121,143 in 2011 and NT$122,994 in 2012 (N&esd 4,

Other receivables - net of allowance for doubtédeivables and sales return allowance:
NT$64,783 in 2011 and NT$64,783 in 2012 (Notes® 4

Inventories- net (Notes 2 and !

Deferred income ta- net (Notes 2 and 1°

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Total Current Asset

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS (Notes 2 and {
Financial assets carried at c

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN™- NET (Notes 2 and 1¢
Cost

Land

Buildings and auxiliary equipme

Machinery and equipme

Furniture and fixture

Transportation equipme

Tools

Leasehold improvemen

Total cosl
Accumulated depreciation (Note
Accumulated impairment (Note
Construction in progress and advance payir
Net Property, Plant and Equipme

INTANGIBLE ASSETS- NET (Notes 2 and ¢

OTHER ASSETS

Employee dormitory buildings - net of accumulategkciation of NT$180,731 in 2011
and NT$200,135 in 2012 (Note

Refundable deposi

Prepaid pension (Notes 2 and :

Deferred income ta— net (Notes 2 and 1’

Others (Note 2

Total Other Asset

TOTAL ASSETS

3,666,50

73,17¢
1,533,86!
76,55¢
92,33¢

13,091,19

39,12!

452,73t
9,095,371
38,698,62
1,401,27
36,81¢
3,056,05!
2,31(

52,743,19

(37,910,33)
(1,417,10)
480,29(

13,896,04
100,49¢

248,42¢
21,36¢
33,54
600,35!
250,52:

1,154,20
28,281,06

NT$ Uss$
(Note 3)

9,319,022 320,79:
174,48t 6,00¢
4,95¢ 171
3,992,21! 137,42t
149,82- 5,157
1,687,88! 58,10:
77,82¢ 2,67¢
131,81¢ 4,53¢
15,538,04 534,87.
11,638 401
452,73¢ 15,58¢
9,335,22. 321,35(
39,793,43 1,369,82
1,511,87. 52,04
39,80: 1,37(C
3,308,60 113,89
2,21¢ 76
54,443,89 1,874,14!
(41,632,21)  (1,433,12)
(1,377,43) (47,416
673,74. 23,19:
12,107,97 416,79¢
178,89( 6,15¢
221,11! 7,61z
21,07( 72%
503,58: 17,33t
167,08: 5,751
912,84¢ 31,42:
28,749,39 989,65

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)
December 31, 2011 and 2012 (Notes 1 and 16)

(In Thousands of New Taiwan and U.S. Dollars, Excefrar Value)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank loans (Notes 9 and 1

Current portion of lon-term loans (Notes 13 and 1
Deferred credi

Accounts payabl

Other payables (Note 1

Income tax payable (Note

Payables to contractors and equipment supg
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities éNidt)

Total Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term deferred revent
Long-term loans (Notes 13 and 1
Total Lon¢-Term Liabilities

OTHER LIABILITIES

Accrued pension cost (Notes 2 and
Guarantee deposi

Total Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 2C

EQUITY (Notes 2 and 1€

Capital stock NT$1.169 (US$0.04) par va
Authorized 62,500 thousand common shares and 18hdb@and preferred shai
Issued 33,366 thousand common shares (2011: 3§)888and common share
Outstanding 28,891 thousand common shares (2019228housand common shar

Capital surplut

Retained earnings (accumulated los:

Unrealized pension co

Cumulative translation adjustmel

Treasury stocl

Total Shareholde’ Equity

Noncontrolling interest

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

December 31

2011

2012

NT$

NT$

uss$

(Note 3)
546,91¢ 366,48: 12,61¢
684,02¢ 2,227,801 76,68¢

2,38: 2,291 79
1,130,73 890,07 30,63¢
1,081,53! 1,008,40! 34,71

20,28: 28,88( 994
415,39: 484,65¢ 16,68
830,90: 766,99: 26,40
4,712,16. 5,775,59. 198,81t
95,30¢ 89,35( 3,07¢
8,484,301 6,739,92° 232,01:
8,579,60: 6,829,27 235,08

4,25( 172,96¢ 5,954

1,77 2,47¢ 85

6,027 175,44 6,03¢

13,297,79 12,780,31 439,94.
39,04: 39,01 1,34:
15,201,35 11,583,89 398,75
(3,787,43) 531,79  18,30¢
= (42,647 (1,46
433,90: 416,89 14,35
(924,78)) (635,74) (21,889
10,962,08  11,893,21 409,40
4,021,18! 4,075,86/ 140,30!
14,983,27 15,969,07 549,71(
28,281,06 28,749,39  989,65:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2QNotes 1 and 16)
(In Thousands of New Taiwan and U.S. Dollars, Excefcarnings Per Share)

Year Ended December 31

2010

2011

2012

NT$ NT$ NT$ Us$

(Note 3)
NET REVENUE (Notes 2, 18 and 2
Related partie 2,033,34. 379,00¢ — —
Third parties 15,176,39 17,831,92 19,220,56 661,63
Total Net Revenue 17,209,73 18,210,93 19,220,56 661,63
COST OF REVENUE (Notes 2.
Related partie 2,408,32. 446,60¢ — —
Third parties 14,155,68 16,102,60 16,638,51 572,75
Total Cost of Revenu 16,564,00 16,549,21 16,638,51 572,75
GROSS PROFIT (LOSS 645,73( 1,661,72. 2,582,04  88,88!
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 1.
Research and development (Note 412,75: 409,75¢ 492,77: 16,96:
General and administrati 677,61¢ 651,92. 625,64( 21,531
Sales and marketing (Notes 2 anc 64,38 66,53¢ 78,38t 2,69¢
Total Operating Expensi 1,154,75 1,128,21. 1,196,79°  41,19¢
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATION: (509,02)) 533,50¢ 1,385,241 47,68t
NON-OPERATING INCOME
Foreign exchange ga- net (Note 2! — 129,72: — —
Rental 12,64¢ 9,60t 7,13¢ 24¢
Interest 15,86: 23,77 31,82 1,09t
Cash dividend from financial assi 9,19¢ — — —
Fair value gain on financial ass: 3,91¢ — — —
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipmBbloté 2) 104,31( 39,06! 21,65 74¢€
Gain on disposal of financial ass 15,81¢ 1,25¢ 4,26: 147
Gain on partial disposal of a subsidi 31,37: — — —
Gain on disposal of scrapped materials and toc 66,167 47,44¢ 57,65¢ 1,98t
Gain on disposal of pate — 10,61¢ 8,97¢ 30¢
Claim received (Note ¢ 2,118,491 — — —
Recovery of allowance for doubtful receivables @04 and 18 2,716,88I — — —
Other 117,32: 31,87 39,65¢ 1,36¢
Total Nor-Operating Incom: 5,211,98 293,34¢ 171,16¢ 5,89¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2QNotes 1 and 16)
(In Thousands of New Taiwan and U.S. Dollars, Exceftarnings Per Share)

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE!

Interest

Financing cos

Foreign exchange lo- net (Note 2’

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipmiotg 2)
Impairment loss on lor-term investments (Note |
Impairment loss on other ass

Loss on embedded derivati

Loss on partial disposal of a subsidii

Loss on sale of receivables (Note

Other

Total Nor-Operating Expense

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX AND NONCONTROLLING INTEREBS

INCOME TAX BENEFIT (EXPENSE) (Notes 2 and 1
INCOME BEFORE NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTEREST!
NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO ChipMO¢

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHAR- BASIC

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDINt BASIC
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHAR- DILUTED (Note 2)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDIN¢t DILUTED (Note 2)

Year Ended December 31

2010

2011

2012

NT$ NT$ NT$ Uss$
(Note 3)
683,48t 309,28t 227,76! 7,84(
39,61 99,43¢ 80C 28
292,56° — 248,28t 8,54
83,59: 7,38¢ 7,31¢ 252
9,42¢ — 27,48¢ 94¢
391,64t 168,15 8,38: 28¢
260,65 57,18¢ — —
— 74,92 — —
1,067,79 — — —
62,61¢ 32,74 115,52¢ 3,971
2,891,39. 749,11 635,57( 21,87¢
1,811,56! 77,73¢ 920,84! 31,69¢
99,36( (45,506 (131,49) (4,527
1,910,921 32,23 789,34t 27,17:
(266,199 (47,39) (67,510 (2,324
1,644,73. (15,167) 721,83( 24,84¢
68.6! (0.57) 26.27 0.9(
23,97 26,59( 27,47 27,47
67.3¢ (0.57) 25.5( 0.8¢
26,80¢ 26,59( 28,30 28,30¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL STOCK

Shares

Amount

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2QNotes 1 and 16)
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Numbeof Shares)

CAPITAL

DEFERRED
SURPLUS COMPENSATION

RETAINED
EARNINGS
(ACCUMULATED
LOSSES)

CUMULATIVE
UNREALIZED TRANSLATION

NON-

ADJUSTMENTS TREASURY CONTROLLING
(Note 2) STOCK

INTERESTS

TOTAL
EQUITY

(Thousands

NT$

NT$

NT$

NT$ NT$

NT$

NT$

Balance,
January 1
2010

Exercise of
stock
option

Issue of
option
warrants

Net profit for
2010

Interest
payment
for
convertibl
notes
(“CN")

CN
conversiol

Adjustment o
equity
method
for long-
term
investmer

Changes in
noncontrolling
interests

Partial
disposal
of a
subsidiary

Translation
adjustment

19,47

19

29C

5,93t

27,55

23

87¢

7,54¢

12,860,09

1,425

36,757

75,23¢

1,070,45!

(3,260

(8,692

7,11¢

(5,417,00)

1,644,73.

404,51° (81,715

— (46,899

(78,466 —

2,167,45!

266,19:

3,71C

1,105,78!

9,952,21

1,45(

43,87:

1,910,92

29,21¢

1,078,00

(3,260

3,71(

1,105,78

(78,466

Balance,
Decembe
2010

Exercise of
stock
option

Issue of
option
warrants

Net loss fol
2011

Interest
payment
for CN

CN
conversiol

Adjustment o
equity
method
for long-
term
investmer

Changes in
noncontrolling
Interests

Partial
disposal
ofa
subsidiary

Reverse stock
split

Translation
adjustmer

25,71¢

96

27

1,08¢

36,00¢

111

10€

6,61¢

(3,809)

14,040,71

15,87:

47,40:

16,82¢

1,083,58!

(6,619

3,56¢

(4,577

1,57

(3,772,27)

326,05: (128,619

= (11,529

— (784,639

107,85: —

3,543,14!

47,39¢

(132,80

563,45!

14,043,45

15,98:

48,97¢

32,23¢

5,40¢

305,56!

(6,619

(132,80

563,45!

(239

107,85:

Balance,
December 3.
2011

26,92«

39,04:

15,201,35

(3,787,43)

433,90: (924,78)

4,021,181

14,983,27



Exercise of

stock

option 66¢ 79z 122,07
Issue of

option

warrants — — 65,79
Net profit for

2012 — — —
Cash dividend

of

US$0.14

(NT$4.067

per share — — —
Disposal of

the

Company:.

shares by

a

subsidiary 2,00 — 244,18t
Adjustment of

equity

method

for long-

term

investment — — (27,817
Changes in

noncontrc

interests — — —
Unrealized

pension

cost — — —
Transfer of

capital

surplus to

retained

earnings — — (3,787,43)
Repurchase «

shares (70)) (820)  (234,27)
Translation

adjustmer — — —

721,83t

(117,52)

(1,78)

3,787,43
(70,749

— — — 67,51(

— — 284,10¢ —

— — 4,932 —

_ _ — (12,83

(42,64) — — —

= (17,006 = =

122,86

65,79t

789,34t

(117,52)

528,29¢

(24,660

(12,836

(42,647

(305,83}

(17,006

Balance,
December 3.
2012 28,89. 39,01 11,583,89

531,79:

(42,64:) 416,89 (635,74) 4,075,861

15,969,07

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2QNotes 1 and 16)
(In Thousands of New Taiwan and U.S. Dollars)

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NTS$ NTS$ NT$ Us$
(Note 3]
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIE¢
Net income (loss) attributable to ChipM( 1,644,73; (15,167 721,83t 24,84¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to mehcprovided by operating activiti
Depreciatior 6,132,86: 5,513,565  4,571,60i 157,37
Amortization of intangible and other ass 148,76 164,05( 60,27: 2,07t
Amortization of discount of convertible not 11,76: 1,29¢ — —
Interest payment from conversion of ( 276,89: 39,78( — —
Allowance for doubtful receivable 73,88: 1,56¢ 4,307 14¢
Recovery of allowance for doubtful receivakt (2,718,17) (69,205) (2,452) (84)
Deferred compensatic 43,87: 48,97¢ 65,79t 2,26¢
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipn- net (20,717 (31,677 (24,339 (499
Gain on disposal of financial ass (15,819 (1,259 (4,262) (147)
Loss (gain) on partial disposal of a subsidi (31,377 74,920 — —
Loss on embedded derivati 260,65« 57,18¢ — —
Impairment loss on lor-term investment 9,42¢ — 27,48¢ 94¢€
Impairment loss on other ass 391,64t 168,15« 8,38: 28¢
Fair value gain on financial ass (3,919) — — —
Accrued pension co: (7,049 (6,13)) 66,99/ 2,30¢
Deferred income ta- net (126,96¢) 19,73: 95,50: 3,28¢
Noncontrolling interest 266,19: 47,39« 67,51( 2,32¢
Changes in operating assets and liabili
Financial assets at fair value through profit aogs 124,81: 4,25¢ 4,262 147
Notes receivabl 13,95( 8,27( 751 26
Accounts receivabl 1,563,61 (693,10) (335,85) (11,567)
Other receivable 383,35t 119,24 (85,287 (2,93¢)
Inventories (423,18() (58,717) (158,52) (5,457)
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 60,56¢ 132,67: (40,629 (1,399
Other asset 61 (2,002 28,35! 97¢€
Accounts payabl (43,35)) 433,19t (233,23 (8,02¢)
Other payable 202,25: 160,97: (71,70 (2,46%)
Income tax payabl (85¢) 1,48 8,597 29€
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 473,31: (219,179 (47,807) (1,649
Deferred credi (2,309 (2,257) (2,329 (80)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activit 8,688,90! 5,898,044 4,735,25: 163,00
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash and casvagents (303,63) 262,31: 110,41( 3,801
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equip 899,07¢ 314,50: 37,88¢ 1,30¢
Proceeds from sales of Ic-term investmen 10,95 — — —
Proceeds from redemption of h-to-maturity financial assets and financial assets witkactive marke 300,00( — — —
Proceeds from sales of employee dormitory buildewgys other asse — 6,81« 4,062 14C
Proceeds from partial disposal of a subsid 1,133,04! 486,85¢ — —
Acquisitions of: —
Long-term investmen — (28,589 — —
Property, plant and equipme (4,467,69) (4,150,89) (2,706,32) (93,167
Deferred assel (17,919 (139,69)) (39,500 (1,360)
Employee dormitory building and other ass (11,107 (962) (1,749 (60)
Decrease (increase) in refundable dep¢ 3,102 (1,070 29€ 10
Net Cash Used in Investing Activiti (2,454,16) (3,250,71) (2,594,91) (89,32¢)

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2QNotes 1 and 16)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments or
Bank loans
Long-term loans
Cash dividenc
Repurchase of shar
Reverse stock spl
Proceeds from
Treasury stocl
Convertible note
Issuance of capital stor
Changes in noncontrolling intere:
Increase (decrease) in guarantee dep

Net Cash used in Financing Activiti

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CAS
Net increase in cash and cash equival

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Income tax pait

Interest paic
NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Current portion of lon-term loans
Interest payment for CN in shat

PARTIAL CASH PAID FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(In Thousands of New Taiwan and U.S. Dollars)

Cash paid for acquisition of property, plant andipment

Total acquisition:

Decrease (increase) in payables to contractorequiggment supplier

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012

NT$ NT$ NT$ Us$
(Note 3]
(868,66!) (947,73) (180,42 (6,21))
(2,227,38) (1,397,54) (197,79) (6,809
— — (117,52) (4,045)
— — (305,83) (10,52%)

— (239) — —
— — 528,29t 18,18¢

131,08 — — —
1,45( 15,98: 122,86¢ 4,23(
3,71( (132,801) (12,83¢) (442)
32: (2,217) 55€ 19
(2,959,48) (2,464,55) (162,68) (5,600
(16,817) 31,861 (16,53%) (569)
3,258,43 214,63 1,961,12 67,50¢
3,884,82 7,143,26!  7,357,90.  253,28:
7,143,26. 7,357,90 9,319,02.  320,79.
27,65: 24,93: 28,84¢ 99z
383,58: 289,69 228,48t 7,86t
4,925,73 684,02¢ 2,227,801 76,68¢

296,18( 42,37: — —
4,237,27 2,319,28  2,776,64 95,58:
230,41 1,831,61 (70,329 (2,42)
4,467,69 4,150,89  2,706,32! 93,16:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIE S
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD. (ChipMOS Bermadvas incorporated under the laws of Bermuda oguaul, 2000, ar
its common shares have been traded on the NASDARaESelect Market since June 2001. In Februar® 2ChipMOS Bermuda
submitted an application to the NASDAQ Stock Martketransfer its listing to The NASDAQ Capital Matkirom The NASDAQ Global
Select Market. The NASDAQ Stock Market has deteadithat the Company meets the NASDAQ Capital Mairkgal listing criteria
set forth in Listing Rule 5505. Its common sharagehbeen traded on the NASDAQ Capital Market siaech 17, 2010.

On January 21, 2011, the Company'’s shareholder®ag a one-fofeur share combination of its common stock whicbame effectiv
on January 21, 2011. As a result of this reversekstplit, every four shares of the Company’s comrsiock that were issued and
outstanding as of January 21, 2011 were automiticainbined into one issued and outstanding sh#tepar value change from
US$0.01 to US$0.04 per share, and the number hbemed but unissued shares of the Company’s constumk was proportionally
reduced. A proportionate adjustment was also madtleet Company’s outstanding stock options and atitke notes. No fractional
shares were issued in connection with this revetieek split, but rather shareholders who were ledtib fractional shares received cash
in aggregate of NT$239 thousand in lieu of recej\iractional shares.

As of December 31, 2012, ChipMOS Bermuda was 13.@041: 19.38%) owned by ThailLin Semiconductor CéfimaiLin).

As of December 31, 2012, ChipMOS Bermuda owned284.22011: 84.22%) of the outstanding common shair€&hipMOS
TECHNOLOGIES INC. (ChipMOS Taiwan).

ChipMOS Bermuda

B4.22%
ChipMOS Taiwan

42.87% 100%
Thailin ChipMOS USA

100%
Moderm Mind

100%
ChipMOS Shanghai
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1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS (continuec

ChipMOS Taiwan was incorporated in Taiwan on J@y 1997 as a joint venture company between MogeliZiinc. (MVI) and
Siliconware Precision Industries Co. Ltd. (SPIIt3. dperations consist of testing and assemblymfc®ductors. In connection with a
corporate restructuring on January 12, 2001, theeh® of an aggregate of 583,419 thousand commamesiof ChipMOS Taiwan
executed a Purchase and Subscription Agreementiwéney transferred their shares of ChipMOS Taitea@hipMOS Bermuda in
exchange for 14,585 thousand common shares in GbMermuda. The selling shareholders, who prewdusld an aggregate of
70.25% of the entire outstanding common shareshgdMOS Taiwan, thus became the holders of the@wptitstanding common shares
of ChipMOS Bermuda. Because 100% of the outstanctimgmon shares of ChipMOS Bermuda were owned bydoshareholders of
ChipMOS Taiwan, the exchange of shares has be@uatsd for as a merger as if ChipMOS Bermuda wasitiguirer. Equity and
operations attributable to ChipMOS Taiwan sharediclahot participating in the exchange offer weflecged as noncontrolling interests
in the historical financial statements. In Marcl®20ChipMOS Bermuda, ChipMOS Taiwan and SPIL coteple share purchase and
subscription transaction whereby ChipMOS Bermudalmased 100% of SPIL’s equity interest in ChipMC@8vlan at US$0.75 per
share. SPIL also subscribed to 3,043,749 newhedsommon shares of ChipMOS Bermuda through aterpiacement of US$6.28 per
share. After the transaction, ChipMOS Taiwan becar®.14% subsidiary of ChipMOS Bermuda and SPIha14.7% of ChipMOS
Bermuda. In September 2007, another share excheamggaction was completed whereby ChipMOS Bermiifgdaienl to exchange one
share of ChipMOS Bermuda for 8.4 shares of ChipM@Bvan shares. The exchange was completed in Sbpte2007 and ChipMOS
Taiwan became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ChipMB&muda. In February 2010, ChipMOS Bermuda enterteda Share Purchase
Agreement with SPIL to sell to SPIL the holdingl®3,000 thousand common shares of ChipMOS Taiwaa éonsideration of
NT$1,630,580 thousand. In January 2011, the trdiosewas completed. As of December 31, 2012, SRIH h 15.78%

(2011:15.78%) interest in ChipMOS Taiwan and ChigfBermuda held an 84.22% (2011:84.22%) intere€hipMOS Taiwan.

ThailLin was incorporated on May 15, 1996 and itison the GreTai Securities Market in Taiwan. Thais engaged in wafer and
semiconductor testing services. On December 312,200ipMOS Taiwan acquired an equity interest aB2d in ThaiLin. On
December 1, 2003, ChipMOS Taiwan obtained contrglinfluence over ThaiLin’s decisions on its openas, personnel and financial
policies. Therefore, ThaiLin has been consolidatéal these financial statements from December 0320 spite of the fact that
ChipMOS Taiwan holds an equity interest of less1t@% in ThaiLin. ChipMOS Bermuda consolidates Thain reliance on Rule 3A-
02(a) under Regulation S-X which requires a compargonsolidate an entity, notwithstanding the latknajority ownership, if such
consolidation is necessary to present fairly itaficial position and results of operations becatifiege existence of a parent-subsidiary
relationship by means other than record ownershypting stock. This is consistent with the guidama Financial Accounting Statement
Board Accounting Standard Codification (FASB AS@P8L0. ChipMOS Bermuda has a parent-subsidiaryioakhip with ThaiLin by
indirect ownership and by means other than recantkoship of voting stock. This relationship is hea ChipMOS Bermuda’power tc
direct or cause the direction of the managemenialidies of ThaiLin. As of December 31, 2012, QWPS Taiwan held a 42.87%
(2011: 42.87%) equity interest in ThaiLin.

ChipMOS U.S.A,, Inc. (ChipMOS USA) was incorporatedhe United States of America in October 199@nigages in sales and
customer services and all the expenses incurred inese activities are charged to current inconmpl@OS USA began generating
revenue in 2001. As of December 31, 2012, ChipM@Bvan owned 100% of the outstanding shares of CRISMUSA.

MODERN MIND TECHNOLOGY LIMITED (Modern Mind) was icorporated in the British Virgin Islands on Janu2®y 2002. Moder
Mind conducts its operations through ChipMOS TECHNIGIES (Shanghai) LTD. (ChipMOS Shanghai). ChipMSt&anghai a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Modern Mind was estatdid in the People’s Republic of China (PRC) on Jur002. ChipMOS Shanghai
is engaged in wafer testing, semiconductor assearlytesting, and module and subsystem manufagtu€inipMOS Shanghai
commenced commercial production in 2003.

ChipMOS Bermuda acquired a 100% equity interedadern Mind on December 12, 2002, and then traredidt to Jesper Limited
(Jesper) on December 31, 2002. In December 2002@0@, ChipMOS Bermuda acquired from Jesper angMBiS Taiwan,
respectively, convertible notes issued by ModerndiMMT Notes) that are convertible into a conirall equity interest in Modern Mit

if the repayment is not made when due. Prior tmBet 3, 2011, ChipMOS Bermuda consolidated ModeimdMnd its wholly-owned
subsidiary, ChipMOS Shanghai in reliance on Rule024a) under Regulation S-X which requires a corggarconsolidate an entity,
notwithstanding the lack of majority ownershipsifch consolidation is necessary to present faslfinancial position and results of
operations because of the existence of a paresidiaty relationship by means other than recordexainip of voting stock. This is
consistent with the guidance in FASB ASC 810-10p®tOS Bermuda had a parent-subsidiary relationsfiip Modern Mind by means
other than record ownership of voting stock. Tkiationship was based on ChipMOS Bermuda'’s powdirezt or cause the direction of
the management and policies of Modern Mind and RIS Shanghai.
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1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS (continuec

The parent-subsidiary relationship with and managerand policies direction of Modern Mind and Chip8 Shanghai was established
through the MMT Notes. ChipMOS Bermuda has agreqatdvide loans from time to time to Modern Mindguant to MMT Notes that
can be converted into Modern Mind common sharesatime. Payment under the MMT Notes was fully andonditionally guarantee
by Jesper and secured by a security interest mugdkanding equity interests in Modern Mind andp®tOS Shanghai. Jesper had grar
the Company an irrevocable option, exercisabletiane, to acquire all common shares of Moderndvtimen owned by Jesper. These
MMT Notes would represent, immediately after thevarsion, almost 100% of the then outstanding comst@res of Modern Mind.
Accordingly, ChipMOS Bermuda was deemed to haverdrolling interest in Modern Mind.

Under an assignment and assumption agreement sign&gril 22, 2011, ChipMOS Bermuda agreed to t&llMMT Notes to ThaiLin
for a purchase price of US$39,950 thousand. Onlg2ct8, 2011, the transaction was completed.

On October 3, 2011, ThailLin converted the MMT natés common shares of Modern Mind and purchaskdf #he remaining common
shares of Modern Mind from Jesper. Modern Mind &savholly-owned subsidiary, ChipMOS Shanghai, lmeeavholly-owned
subsidiaries of ThaiLin.

Since October 3, 2011 ChipMOS Bermuda’s intere€hipMOS Shanghai was reduced to 36.11%.

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (H.K.) Limited (ChipMOS HK) wancorporated in Hong Kong on November 18, 200 éngaged in
semiconductor testing and assembly services adihgy@f spare parts and tools. ChipMOS HK is a \wWhoWned subsidiary of
ChipMOS Bermuda. ChipMOS HK was liquidated in JRGA 1.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements include to@ants of ChipMOS Bermuda and all subsidiariestiich ChipMOS Bermuda
(hereinafter, referred to individually or collectly as the “Company”) holds a controlling interest/oting interests in excess of 50% in
accordance with the requirements of ROC Statenfdfinancial Accounting Standards (“SFAS No. 77)! significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

The Company'’s consolidated financial statementisidecfor 2010, 2011 and 2012, the financial reseflt€hipMOS Taiwan and its
subsidiaries, ThaiLin, ChipMOS USA, and Modern Mamt its wholly-owned subsidiary, ChipMOS Shangirad ChipMOS HK up to
liquidation in July 2011.

Concentration of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject@@npany to a concentration of credit risk consistash, accounts and other receivables

At December 31, 2011 and 2012, the Company hadtersklexposure of uninsured cash in banks of N43,035 thousand and
NT$9,493,508 thousand (US$326,798 thousand), résphc

A substantial portion of revenue is earned frormalsnumber of customers on credit and generalthovit any requirement of collateral.

The Company had two customers that had balancasegthan ten percent of total notes and accoestsvable as of December 31, 2
and 2012, respectively:

December 31

2011 2012
Third party
Micron Technology, Inc. group (Microl 18% 7%
Novatek Microelectronics Corp. (Novate 13% 18%
Winbond Electronics Corp. (Winbon 6% 11%

Credit evaluation of each customer is performedrasdrves for potential credit losses are mainthine
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemeaguires management to make estimates and judg i affect the recorded
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expgeolsthe Company. The Company continually evalutitese estimates, including those
related to allowances for doubtful amounts, inveeg) useful lives of properties, income tax vahmgllowances, pension plans and the
fair value of financial instruments. The Compangdrits estimates on historical experience and aggimptions, which it believes to
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual resdysdiffer from these estimates under differentiagstions and conditions.

Cash equivalents
Repurchase notes with original maturity dates oéghmonths or less are classified as cash equigalen

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value throumybfit and loss

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value thgl profit and loss include investments and ligibai held for trading purposes and those
designated as financial assets/liabilities repoatefdir value. Transaction costs directly attréhlé to the acquisition or issuance of these
financial assets and liabilities are expensed imately as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognitifinancial assets and liabilities are
remeasured at fair value and the changes shadidogynized in earnings.

Financial assets carried at cost

Investments for which the Company does not exesigficant influence and that do not have a qdatarket price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measungzh as non-publicly traded stocks and mutual fuads carried at their original cost.
The costs of non-publicly traded stocks and mufwadis are determined using the weightegrage method. If there is objective evide
which indicates that a financial asset is impaieelhss is recognized. A subsequent reversal ¢f sBapairment loss is not allowed.

Notes and accounts receivable and other receivables

Notes and accounts receivable arise from the sfigsods or services. Receivables that do not énage the sales of goods and services
are classified as other receivables. Notes anduatsoeceivable and other receivables are initi@bognized at fair value and carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Individual notes and accounts receivable, and adegivables, are assessed individually for indisadf impairment as of each balance
sheet date. Certain categories of financial asset$) as receivables, that are assessed not nopaéréd individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.

For financial assets carried at amortized costmgrairment loss is recognized in the consolidatatesent of operations when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of impairnhesg decreases and the decrease can be relasatividly to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognized, the previotetpgnized impairment loss is reversed througlctimsolidated statement of
operations to the extent that the carrying amofith@asset at the date the impairment is revetsed not exceed what the amortized
would have been had the impairment not been rezedni

Allowances for sales returns and discounts

Allowances for sales returns and discounts areigeavbased on the sales returns from past expesisach provisions are deducted fi
sales and the related costs of products are deatifrot® cost of products sold.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of standart (@dsch is adjusted to approximate weighted averemst on the balance sheet date) or
net realizable value. Inventory write-down is matean item-byitem basis, except where it may be appropriatedagsimilar or relate
items. Net realizable value is the estimated ggllirice of inventories less all estimated costsamfipletion and necessary selling costs.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec

Property, plant and equipment and employee dorgnitaildings

Property, plant and equipment and employee dorynitaildings (presented as part of Other Assetsytated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Major additions, renewals and improgats are capitalized while maintenance and repairgxpensed as incurred.

The initial estimate of the service lives of prageplant and equipment is as follows: machinergt aguipment, 1 to 5 years; buildings
and auxiliary equipment, 1 to 54 years; furnitune éixtures, 1 to 5 years; tooling, 1 to 2 yearansportation equipment, 5 years; and
leasehold improvements, the shorter of lease terinto 10 years. Salvage value is considered wieggrithining the basis of depreciated
assets. If items of property, plant and equipmedt@mployee dormitory buildings are still in goazhdition and useful at the end of their
original service lives, the salvage value is dejated over any extended useful life.

Upon sale or disposal of items of properties, tlated cost and accumulated depreciation are resfoor the accounts, and any gain or
loss is credited or charged to current income.

Leased assets

Assets under capital leases are recorded at they lofathe fair value of the leased assets andbsept value of the minimum lease
payments of such assets. The leased assets aeidégu over the shorter of lease terms or thenastd useful life of the leased assets.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost excepbifuatibn from the government, which is measurediatvilue. Subsequent to their initial
recognition, the book values are the cost and theiemental value that results from revaluationusiaccumulated amortization and
impairment loss.

Amortization is computed using the straight-linetihhoel. The Company reevaluates the residual vakienated useful lives, and
amortization method at least once every year. Gbaingthe above factors will be regarded as chaimgascounting estimate.

Deferred charges

Deferred charges are amortized using the straigatrhethod over the following periods: technologyWw-how, 5 years; technology
license fees, 5 years; software, 2 to 4 years; ligmance costs, using the average method.

Asset impairment

The Company reviews its long-lived assets, inclggiroperties, assets leased to others and defelneedes, to look for any indication
that an asset may be impaired as of the balanat date. An impairment loss is recognized whengwerecoverable amount of the asse
of the cash-generating unit is below the carryimgpant of an asset. If there is an indicator thaasset may be impaired, then the
Company calculates the recoverable amount of thet @s the cash-generating unit. An asset’s reaferamount is the higher of the
value in use of the asset or cash-generating amvhich it belongs and its fair value.

If an asset impairment loss (excluding goodwill)esersed, the increase in the carrying value tiegufrom the reversal is credited to
current income or debited to accumulated impairnb@iricrease the carrying value of the asset teiteverable amount. However, loss
reversal is limited to the carrying value (net epceciation or amortization) of the asset as ifithggairment had not been recognized.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec

Revenue recognition

The Company recognized revenue upon completioastiig and assembly services. Other criteria tteCiompany uses to determine
when to recognize revenue are: (1) existence auasive evidence of the services provided, (2)oousts’ fixed commitment to use our
service, (3) the selling price is fixed or deteraiite and (4) collectability is reasonably assured.

The Company does not take ownership of: (1) barécductor wafers received from customers thasstembles into finished
semiconductors, and (2) assembled semiconductoes/esl from the customers that it tests. The &itid risk of loss remains with the
customer for those bare semiconductors and/or ddedrsemiconductors. Accordingly, the customer-fagsemiconductor materials
are not included in the consolidated financialestents.

These policies are consistent with provisions eFASB ASC 605 “Revenue Recognition”.

The Company does not provide warranties to custemerept in cases of defects in the assembly ssrpiovided and deficiencies in
testing services provided. An appropriate salesmalhce is recognized in the period during whichsle is recognized, and is estimated
based on historical experience.

Government grant

A government grant is recognized at its fair vedue credited to the income statement. Where tha getates to an asset, the fair valu
credited to a deferred income account and is rdzedras income over the periods necessary to niacielated amortization of the
asset, on a systematic basis.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs consist of expeadiitcurred during the course of planned reseandhravestigation aimed at
discovery of new knowledge which will be useful tt@veloping new products or production processesigaificantly enhancing existir
products or production processes, and the impleatientof such through design and testing of proditernatives or construction of
prototypes. All expenses incurred in connectiorlite Company’s research and development actiatiesharged to current income.

Pension and retirement costs

Defined benefit pension costs are recorded basedmarial calculations. Provisions for pensiontigase accrued based on actuarially
determined amounts which include service costréste amortization of unrecognized net transitibligation and expected return on
pension assets. Unrecognized net transition oldigat amortized over the remaining service yedenaployees.

If additional accrued pension cost based on actueaiculation is not in excess of the sum of thamortized balance of prior service
costs and unrecognized net transition obligatiefieled pension cost will be debited. Otherwise,gkcess amount should be debited to
unrecognized pension cost as a deduction in stdd&red equity.

Retirement benefit contributions are made to aiparscheme and/or retirement funds, the assethiafvare managed by independent
investment firms and/or government agencies. Couiins are made based on a percentage of the peesicsalaries and bonus, if
applicable, and are charged to the statement ghtipas as incurred.

Income tax

The Company has adopted the inter-period incomaltagation method. Deferred income tax assetsearegnized for the tax effects of
deductible temporary differences, unused tax cseditd operating loss carryforwards and thosexafala temporary differences are
recognized as deferred income tax liabilities. Auation allowance is provided for deferred tax &s#eat are not certain to be realized. A
deferred tax asset or liability is classified asrent or non-current based on the classificatiothefrelated asset or liability. However, if a
deferred asset or liability cannot be related tasset or liability in the financial statementrifit is classified as current or non-current
based on the expected reversal dates of the teryptiference.

Any tax credit arising from the purchase of machinequipment and technology, research and devedopexpenditures, personnel
training, or investments in important technologwd@ enterprise is recognized as incurred.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec

Income tax

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are adido or deducted from the current year’s tax giow.

Income taxes (10%) on unappropriated earnings géeby ChipMOS Taiwan and ThailLin are recordedrasxpense in the year when
the stockholders have effectively resolved thanhieais shall be retained.

Advertising costs
Advertising costs included in sales and marketixgeases are expensed when incurred.

Foreigncurrency transactions

Foreign-currency transactions, except for derivafimancial instruments, are recorded in New Taigaltars at the rates of exchange in
effect when the transactions occur. Gains or lossadting from the application of different foraigxchange rates when cash in foreign
currency is converted into New Taiwan dollars, dwew foreign-currency receivables or payables dtkedeare credited or charged to
income in the year of conversion or settlementti@nbalance sheet dates, the balances of foreigaray assets and liabilities are
restated at the prevailing exchange rates ancethéting differences are charged to current inceruept those foreign currencies-
denominated investments in shares of stock wheite differences are accounted for as translationsaaents under equity. SFAS

No. 14, “Accounting for Foreign-Currency Transansg applies to foreign operations, with the locatrency of each foreign subsidiary
as its functional currency. The financial statersaitforeign subsidiaries are translated into Neiwan dollars at the following
exchange rates: assets and liabilities - curreat emuity - historical rates; income and expensesighted average rate during the year.
The resulting translation adjustment is recorded ssparate component of equity.

Earnings (Loss) per share

Earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividiagincome (loss) by the weighted average numbsghares outstanding in each period,
adjusted retroactively for reverse stock splitcktdividends and stock bonuses issued subsequéililyed earnings per share reflects
potential dilution of securities by including othmstential common stock equivalents, including ktoptions and warrants, and
convertible securities in the weighted average remol) common shares outstanding for the year)utige.

The following table reconciles the denominatoratcualate basic and diluted earnings (loss) pereshar

December 31

2010 2011 2012
(in thousands)
Basic number of shart 23,97: 26,59( 27,47
Add: stock option: 28¢ — 82¢
convertible note 2,54 — —
Diluted number of share 26,80¢ 26,59( 28,30¢

The following table reconciles the numerator tacukdte basic and diluted earnings per share:

Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NTS$ NT$ NT$ US$
(in thousands)
Net income (loss) attributable to ChipM( 1,644,73. (15,167 721,83t 24,84t
Add: interest expense and other income/expensesftex) 161,38: — — —
Income (loss) attributable to ChipMOS adjustedtffier effects of assumed exerc
of options and conversion of not 1,806,11. (15,16) 721,83t 24,84t
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec

Stockbased compensation

The Company adopted SFAS No. 39 “Share-based PaYytoeaccount for employee stock-based compensafamloyee stock-based
compensation is measured at the fair value of hiems at grant date using an option valuation rholdee total stock-based
compensation expense resulting from stock optisirscluded in the consolidated statement of opanati

Share appreciation rights have been accountedsing the fair value method. Cashttled stock appreciation rights have been rezegl
as a liability.
Bonuses to employees, directors and supervisors

The Company recognizes bonus to employees, digeata supervisors according to Interpretation NiG.72052 issued by the
Accounting Research and Development Foundation 2807-052). Bonuses to employees, directors andrsigors were accrued and
recorded in the consolidated statements of opermaocording to the Company’s Articles of Incorpiora

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued before January 1, 2008 aerounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 21 tAeting for Convertible Bonds”
and thus, the related interest premium payableaamattization of discount or premium were recognized

Convertible notes issued after January 1, 2008@lieinto liability and equity components. If ara@rtible debt instrument has an
embedded call or put option feature, the assessofivtiether the call or put option is closely rethto the host debt contract is made in
accordance with SFAS No. 34 “Financial InstrumeRtscognition and Measurement”. If the derivativesedded in the convertible
notes are not closely related to the host debtraontthe put and call option features are carmtefdir value with gains and losses in
earnings.

When holders of convertible notes exercise theaiwveosion right, the book value of the note is dexdito common stock at an amount
equal to the par value of the common stock anexigess is credited to capital surplus. No gaiross s recognized upon conversion of
notes.

Treasury stock

The Company’s stock held by its subsidiaries iatd as treasury stock. Treasury stock is statedsatand shown as a deduction in
equity. When the Company retires treasury stoaktbasury stock account is reduced and the constook as well as the capital surg
— additional paid-in capital are reversed on arpta basis. When the book value of the treasugkst®gceeds the sum of the par value
and additional paid-in capital, the differencehsuged to capital surplus — treasury stock tramsastand to retained earnings for any
remaining amount.

Operating Segments

The Company presents segment information in acooadwith SFAS No. 41, “Operating Segments.” Théest@nt requires
identification and disclosure of operating segmemtshe basis of how the Company’s chief operadiacjsion maker regularly reviews
information in order to allocate resources and ssperformance. The chief operating decision migkielentified as the Chairman of the
Company.
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3.

TRANSLATION INTO U.S. DOLLAR AMOUNTS

The Company maintains its accounts and expressesrisolidated financial statements in New Taiwaltads. For convenience purpos
U.S. dollar amounts presented in the accompanyingalidated financial statements have been traatsfabm New Taiwan dollars to
U.S. dollars at the noon buying rate in the CityNefv York for cable transfers as certified for cuss purposes by the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York as of December 31, 2012, which Wa$29.05 to US$1.00. These convenience transksbould not be construed
representations that the New Taiwan dollar amobat® been, or could in the future be, converteal thS. dollars at this or any other
rate of exchange.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES AND SALES RETURMLLOWANCES
The changes in the allowances are summarized lagvéol

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(in thousands)

Balance, beginning of ye 2,936,931  262,09: 185,92t 6,40(
Additions 73,88: 1,56¢ 4,307 14¢
Reversa (2,718,18) (69,20 (2,457) (84)
Write off (30,539 (8,529) (4 —
Balance, end of ye: 262,09: 185,92t 187,77 6,464

The allowance/reversal of allowance for doubtfuleigables was recorded in sales and marketing egsesnd other non-operating
income, respectively. The allowance/reversal afvadince for sales return was recorded in sales wig@nd returns in net revenue.

In 2010, included in the reversal of allowancedoubtful receivables were recovery of doubtful reakles from Spansion LLC
(Spansion) of NT$2,282,085 thousand (NT$2,186,8654and was recovered from the sale of receivabiBitigroup) and ProMOS
Technologies Inc. (ProMOS) of NT$432,999 thousaespectively.

On January 25, 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan entered irdefmitive Transfer of Claim Agreement to sell tdgi@roup Financial Products Inc.
(Citigroup) the general unsecured claim reflectethe proof of claim against Spansion. The claiat th the subject of the Transfer of
Claim Agreement includes accounts receivable fetirtg and assembly services provided to Spandmen“{ndisputed Claim”). In
February 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan received from Citigraéhe purchase price for the Undisputed Claim 8$N118,574 thousand agai
accounts receivable of NT$2,186,365 thousand. & érssale of receivables of NT$1,067,791 thousasminecognized and the related
allowance for doubtful receivables of NT$2,186,368usand was reversed. The Transfer of Claim Agee¢miso includes the sale of
breach of contract and liquidated damages righatnaggSpansion in the amount of NT$2,118,490 thodisahich was received in
October 2010.
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5. INVENTORIES- NET

December 31

2011 2012

NT$ NTS US$

(in thousands)

Finished good 107,13 75,41( 2,59¢
Work in progres: 218,87 196,36 6,76(
Raw material 1,328,44 1,473,97  50,73¢
1,654,44: 1,745,74"  60,09¢
Less- allowance for losse (120,589 (57,860 (1,997
1,533,86! 1,687,88"  58,10:

The changes in the inventory valuation allowancessammarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ VES
(in thousands)
Balance, beginning of ye 200,06 64,73¢ 120,58: 4,157
Additions 3,10 58,911 3,45¢ 11¢
Reversal: (138,43) (3,068 (66,178 (2,27¢)
Balance, end of ye: 64,73¢ 120,58: 57,86( 1,992

6. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

December 31

2011 2012
Carrying % of Carrying % of
Value Ownership Value Ownership
NT$ NT$ Us$

(in thousands, except percentage interest
Cost method
DigiMedia Technologies Co., Ltd. (DigiMedia

Cayman) 198,66t 11 — — —
Validity Sensors Inc 19,95¢ — @ 19,95¢ 687 — @
CONNECTEC JAPAN Corporation (CT 28,58¢ — (2) 28,58¢ 984 14
Tashee Golf & Country Clu 10 — 10 — —

Less: Accumulated impairme (208,09Y) (36,91 (1,270
39,12: 11,63¢ 401

(1) Lessthan 19
(2) Preferred share

Digimedia Cayman was fully impaired since Decen8fer2008 and the investment was derecognized irmber 2012 as DigiMedia
Cayman was de-registered.

During 2010 and 2012, impairment loss of NT$9,488 BT$7,486 thousand were recognized, respectirelgspect of investment in
Validity Sensors Inc.

In July 2011, ChipMOS Taiwan acquired 50 thousaredgored shares of CTJ for JPY 80,000 thousand 281884 thousand). In August
2012, ChipMOS Taiwan converted 50 thousand predeshares into 56 thousand ordinary shares andsh®&ddeo interest in CTJ. During
2012, impairment loss of NT$20,000 thousand wasgeized in respect of investment in CTJ.
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7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN™- NET
Accumulated depreciation consists of the following:

December 31

2011 2012
NT$ NT$ us$
(in thousands)
Buildings and auxiliary equipme 3,265,53 3,595,76! 123,77¢
Machinery and equipme 31,120,21 34,239,96 1,178,65
Furniture and fixture 971,50: 1,040,83! 35,82¢
Transportation equipme 23,05¢ 27,86¢ 95¢
Tools 2,528,12! 2,725,70! 93,82¢
Leasehold improvemen 1,89¢ 2,08¢ 72
37,910,33 41,632,21 1,433,122
Accumulated impairment consists of the following:
December 31
2011 2012
NT$ NT$ us$
(in thousands)
Buildings and auxiliary equipme 616,47 593,63: 20,43t
Machinery and equipme 430,39! 429,11t 14,77
Furniture and fixture 224,33. 214,46. 7,38
Transportation equipme 1,092 1,051 36
Tools 144,81 139,17¢ 4,791
Leasehold improvemen — — —
1,417,10! 1,377,43°  47,41¢

As of December 31, 2012, certain of the above mgkland machinery were mortgaged as collaterdbfag-term loans (Notes 13 and

19).

INTANGIBLE ASSETS-NET

December 31

2011 2012
NT$ NT$ US$
(in thousands)
Land use right:
Cost 121,93: 117,241 4,03¢
Accumulated amortizatio (21,436 (22,997 (797
Carrying value 100,49t 94,254 3,24¢
Deferred pension co — 84,63t 2,91:
Total 100,49¢ 178,89(  6,15¢

The amortization charge of land use rights for 28d®unted to NT$2,415 thousand (2011: NT$2,346<h0d, 2010: NT$2,399
thousand). The weighted average amortization pésidé@ years (2011: 50 years). The estimated agtgeamortization charge for the
five years ending December 31, 2013, 2014, 20156 20d 2017 amounts to approximately NT$2,420 thod€ach year. The land use
rights were pledged as collateral for a creditlfigzciNote 19).

The weighted average amortization period of defepension cost is 13 years. The estimated aggregabetization charge for the five
years ending December 31, 2013, 2014, 2015, 20d@@h7 amounts to approximately NT$6,494 thousanth gear.
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9. BANKLOANS

Unsecured loan:
Loans for import

December 31

2011 2012

NT$ NT$ uss$
(in thousands)

JPY195,310 thousand, repayable by January 2012ahmterest at 1.79281' 76,28t¢ — —
JPY141,600 thousand, repayable by February 201Riahinterest at 1.78541 55,30¢ — —
JPY551,656 thousand, repayable by January 2018ahmerest at 1.31¢- 1.40% — 185,57 6,38¢
JPY286,629 thousand, repayable by February 201®izhinterest at 1.40¢ — 96,42 3,32(
JPY249,038 thousand, repayable by March 2013, &immeaest at 0.9514¢ — 83,77: 2,88¢

Loans for working capita

NT$300,000 thousand, repayable by January 2012ighimterest at 1.5% -

1.976744% 300,00( — —
Secured loan:
Loans for import
JPY44,631 thousand, repayable by February 2012iahimerest at 2.2611! 17,43: — —
JPY250,605 thousand, repayable by March 2012, &immeaest at 2.2611¢ 97,88¢ — —
Loans for import of machinen
USS$ 24 thousand, repayable by January 2013, anmeatst rate (3.91% as of
December 31, 201: — 70E 24
546,91t 366,48:  12,61¢

Unused credit lines of short-term bank loans, a3adfember 31, 2012, totaled approximately NT$1 88% thousand (US$50,452
thousand), which will expire from January 2013 mvidmber 2013.

The weighted average interest rate for bank loaas®9475% per annum in 2012 (2011: 1.4326% parahn
Certain short-term loans were secured by time depdmiildings and land use rights (Note 19).

10. OTHER PAYABLES-THIRD PARTIES

Miscellaneous factory expens
Others

December 31

2011 2012
NT$ NT$ uss$
(in thousands)
357,75: 328,31! 11,30:
723,77 680,09: 23,41’

1,081,53I 1,008,40' 34,71
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11.

12.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIE

December 31

2011 2012
NT$ NT$ uss$
(in thousands)
Accrued bonu: 431,36: 481,21 16,56¢
Others 399,54. 285,78 9,83¢
830,90: 766,99: 26,40:

CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES
Convertible notes due 2011 (CN due 2011)

On September 29, 2006, ChipMOS Bermuda issued U5$20 thousand (NT$2,905,000 thousand) CN due 204 CN due 2011 bo
interest at 3.375% per annum. The noteholders mayert any outstanding notes into common shar€&hgMOS Bermuda, initially at
the conversion price of US$27.40, at any time dutire period from the 451 day after the latest aagissuance date of the notes to the
close of business on the fifth business day befmestated maturity date, subject to prior repuseta redemption. The conversion price
will be subject to certain adjustments. No conv@rspbok place during 2006 to 2010.

During 2007 and 2008, ChipMOS Bermuda repurchase$il 000 thousand (NT$29,050 thousand) and US$18h@rsand
(NT$525,079 thousand) of CN due 2011, respectively.

The noteholders of CN due 2011 had an option tse&hipMOS Bermuda to repurchase for cash allpmrion of the notes on
September 29, 2008 at a repurchase price equbis df the principal amount of the notes plus acgr@ed and unpaid interest to, but
excluding, the date of repurchase (put option) September 29, 2008, ChipMOS Bermuda repurchaseegafg principal US$78,665
thousand (NT$2,285,218 thousand) pursuant to thegtion offer. After September 29, 2008, notehtddeay cause ChipMOS Bermt
to repurchase the CN due 2011 only upon the oaeceref certain fundamental changes.

At any time on or after September 29, 2008, the gamg may also at its option redeem the notes feln @aa price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the notes plus accrued and idripterest, (a) in whole or in part, if the marleice of the Company’s common
shares has been at least 130% of the conversiom fori at least 20 trading days during any 30 coutsee trading day period, or (b) in
whole only, if at least 90% of the initial aggreg@tincipal amount of the notes have been converggadirchased or redeemed (call
option).

On May 3, 2011 ChipMOS Bermuda redeemed the notesash at 100% of the principle amount at US$2tB60sand (NT$65,653
thousand) plus accrued and unpaid interest at netilemdate to the remaining noteholders.

Convertible notes due 2014 (CN due 2014

On October 21, 2009, ChipMOS Bermuda completedkahange transaction with a noteholder of convestitstes due 2009 in an
aggregate principal amount of US$45,000 thousantd8$15,300 thousand (NT$444,465 thousand) in aashUS$15,750 thousand
(NT$457,538 thousand) in new convertible notes lmp®OS Bermuda due October 21, 2014. The CN dud Bote interest at 10% per
annum (10%CN due 2014).

On December 29, 2009, ChipMOS Bermuda issued Ug85tousand (NT$148,736 thousand) CN due 2014 wiuch interest at

8% per annum (8%CN due 2014). The terms of 8% CN2@1d were the same as 10%CN due 2014 except thversion price, coupon
rate and the maturity date. The conversion pric€Bldue 2014 was US$5.00 per share and the coupmisrd%. The maturity date was
December 29, 2014.

During 2010, a noteholder of 10%CN due 2014 comeatl 10%CN due 2014 into 2,625 thousand commareshof the Company. In
connection with the make-whole clause, the Compssiyed 1,956 thousand common shares to the noteteddnterest payment of
US$6,872 thousand (NT$199,632 thousand).

During 2010, noteholders of 8%CN due 2014 conved8$2,000 thousand (NT$58,100 thousand) in aggegmatcipal amount into
400 thousand common shares of our Company. In ctionewith the make-whole clause, the Company idsk@6 thousand common
shares to the noteholders as interest payment $70Q5thousand (NT$20,393 thousand).

During 2011, noteholders of 8%CN due 2014 conved8$2,120 thousand (NT$61,586 thousand) in aggeguatcipal amount into
424 thousand common shares of our Company. In etionevith the make-whole clause, the Company ids{i8thousand common
shares to the noteholders as interest payment $6 Ubthousand (NT$18,465 thousand).

On April 19, 2011, ChipMOS Bermuda executed Comp@agversion of 8% CN due 2014 of US$1,000 thousai$e9,050 thousand)
in aggregate principal amount into 200 thousandrnomshares of our Company. In connection with tlhé&envhole clause, the
Company issued 33 thousand common shares to tehoiders as interest payment of US$ 286 thousam@g808 thousand).
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12.

13.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES (conthued)
Convertible notes due 2015 (CN due 2015)

On March 8 and 16, 2010, ChipMOS Bermuda issuedl\ 8% thousand (NT$43,575 thousand) and US$3,0806s8nd (NT$87,150
thousand) CN due 2015, respectively, which borerést at 8% per annum. The terms of CN due 2018 tieersame as CN due 2014
except for the conversion price, coupon rate andinty date. The conversion price of CN due 2015 W&$5.0 per share and the cou
rate was 8%. The maturity dates were March 8, 20ttbMarch 16, 2015, respectively.

In May 2010, noteholders of CN due 2015 convert&$8J000 thousand (NT$87,150 thousand) in aggremateipal amount into
600 thousand common shares of our Company. In ctienewith the make-whole clause, the Company ids2448 thousand common
shares to the noteholders as interest payment $11133 thousand (NT$32,914 thousand).

On April 19, 2011, ChipMOS Bermuda executed Comp@agversion of 8%CN due 2015 of US$1,500 thous&i$é3,575 thousand)
in aggregate principal amount into 300 thousandmomshares of our Company. In connection with tiaerwhole clause, the
Company issued 51 thousand common shares to tehaiders as interest payment of US$ 452 thousam@1B,131 thousand).

Since April 2011, there were no outstanding coribkerinotes.

LONG-TERM LOANS

December 31

2011 2012

NT$ NT$ uss$
(in thousands)

Syndicated bank loans collateralized by equipmepiayable quarterly from May 20

to February 2012, interest at floating rate (2.31&%f December 31, 201 95,82¢ — —
Bank loans collateralized by buildings, repayahlarterly from April 2011 to January
2015, interest at floating rate (1.92% as of Decan®i, 2011 162,50( — —

Syndicated bank loans collateralized by equipmepiayable semi-annually from

January 2012 to July 2015, interest at floating (8t0421% and 2.7789% as of

December 31, 2011 and 2012, respectiv 5,382,00! 4,843,80! 166,74(
Syndicated bank loans collateralized by land arltlings, repayable semi-annually

from January 2014 to July 2016, interest at flgatate (3.0421% and 2.7789% as

of December 31, 2011 and 2012, respectiv 3,028,001 3,028,001 104,23:
Bank loans collateralized by buildings, repayahlarterly from June 2013 to March
2018, interest at floating rate (1.92% as of Decan®i, 2011 and 201: 500,00( 500,00 17,21:
Bank loans collateralized by buildings, repayahlarterly from February to Novemt
2014, interest at floating rate (1.73% as of Decan®i, 2012 — 400,00( 13,76¢
Bank loans collateralized by buildings and land niglet, repayable quarterly from Ju
2014 to March 2015, interest at floating rate (36%ds of December 31, 201 — 174,24: 5,99¢
Bank loans collateralized by equipment, repayabkrtgrly from July 2014 to April
2015, interest at floating rate (3.91% as of Decan®i, 2012 — 21,68¢ 74€
9,168,32i 8,967,72° 308,69
Less- current portior (684,029 (2,227,80) (76,689
8,484,30! 6,739,992  232,01:

Unused credit lines of long-term bank loans as efénber 31, 2012 totaled approximately US$2,458stwd (NT$71,267 thousand).
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13.

14,

LONG-TERM LOANS (continued

Under syndicated bank loans facility agreement& KBS Taiwan and ThaiLin are required to maintaéntain financial ratios.
ChipMOS Taiwan was in compliance with the financatio requirements as of December 31, 2011 an@.2ZMaiLin was in compliance
with the financial ratio requirements as of Decenfg 2011. ThaiLin is not required to maintain dimancial ratio as of December 31,
2012 as the syndicated bank loans were repaidgl@aof?2.

As of December 31, 2012, certain land and buildengg machinery and land use right were mortgagedléseral for the long-term
loans (Note 19).

On November 18, 2010, a meeting was hosted by Bafkiwan, the largest bank creditor, to discuspIOS Taiwan’s request for an
extension of repayment for short-term loans of N#$Z,571 thousand. Over 50% of the banks agred2elogmber 27, 2010 and the
repayment of short-term loans was extended to Dbeefil, 2012 but with quarterly repayment starfiogh March 31, 2011. The key
extended repayment terms and conditions includeeagent by ChipMOS Taiwan to repay 20% of the autdihg short-term loans on
December 31, 2010 and to repay the balance in aigtaliments by setting aside NT$50,000 thousarchpnth with Bank of Taiwan
from January 2011 till December 2012.

In the same meeting, ChipMOS Taiwan also agresétaside NT$300,000 thousand per month for 20T$2M0,000 thousand per
month for 2012 and NT$150,000 thousand per montR@d3 with Bank of Taiwan for the long-term loapayment.

On July 14, 2011, ChipMOS Taiwan signed a new syatdd loan facility of NT$8,410,000 thousand faeman of 5 years. This loan
facility is primarily used for refinancing and refiag existing bank debts and equipment leases,hwi&re fully repaid in July and
August 2011.

On March 7, 2012, ChipMOS Shanghai obtained a laank facility of US$9,200 thousand for a term ofedars. US$6,000 thousand of
which can be drawn for materials and expenses patyraed US$3,200 thousand of which can be drawmfazhine purchasing.

Future minimum principal payments under the lomgatébans as of December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Amount
NT$ uss$
(in thousands)
2013 2,227,801 76,68¢
2014 2,861,72. 98,51(
2015 1,836,40. 63,21¢
2016 1,916,801 65,98
After 2016 125,00( 4,30z

8,967,72 308,69

CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

ChipMOS Taiwan originally leased some equipmentanraperating leases. As part of the plan to rentedie financial difficulty at that
time, ChipMOS Taiwan negotiated with the lessors emnverted the leases of certain equipment inpitaddeases in November 2009.
The capital leases originally mature from 2012@&2and have buy-out options but they cannot bewed, terminated or refunded.

The leased equipment and the corresponding cégétsés payable were recorded at the lower of thedhie of the leased equipment .
the present value of the minimum lease paymenssicti assets. The capital leases were repayabimitedy installments and carried
interest at floating rates of 4.0888% - 4.0973%fa3ecember 31, 2010.

Under the capital leases, ChipMOS Taiwan was redquiv maintain certain financial ratios, startingnfi 2010.
In July 2011, ChipMOS Taiwan repaid the outstandiapital leases utilizing the new syndicated loBN5$8,410,000 thousand (Note
13).
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15. PENSION PLAN

ChipMOS Taiwan and ThaiLin have established defipedefit pension plans for all of their regular éoypes, which provide benefits
based on the length of service and the averagehiyasdlary for the six-month period immediately dref retirement.

ChipMOS Taiwan and ThaiLin make monthly contribn8pequal to 2% of salaries and wages, to a pefigsimhthat is administered by a
pension fund monitoring committee and depositetthénCentral Trust of China in the Republic of China

Taiwan has a new pension scheme law effective JUM05. The new pension scheme is a defined borih scheme. All new
employees who join or joined ChipMOS Taiwan andilimaon or after July 1, 2005 must participate lve hew scheme. Existing
employees can choose to stay with the old scherteejoin the new scheme. Under the new scheme MIBB Taiwan and ThaiLin are
required to contribute 6% of the employees’ satainéo the employees’ own pension fund accountsageah by the government.

The employees of ChipMOS Shanghai are requiredttcpate in a central pension scheme operatatidiocal municipal government.
Contributions are made based on a percentage eftipdoyees’ salaries and bonuses, if applicable aae charged to the statement of
operations as incurred.

Certain pension information is as follows:
a. Net pension cos

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012

NT$ NT$ NT$ Uss

(in thousands)

Service cos 1,32¢ 1,18¢ 83¢ 29
Interest cos 12,29: 11,83: 13,09: 451
Projected return on plan ass (5,140 (7,090 (6,84¢) (23€)
Amortization 53 53 53 2
Curtailment los: 8,14¢ 12,05¢ 23,40’ 80¢
Net periodic benefit cot — — 23,15’ 797
Cost of settlemer — — 36,00¢ 1,23¢
16,67¢ 18,04( 89,71: 3,08¢
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15. PENSION PLAN (continued
b.  Reconciliation of the fund status of the plan aocraed pension co

Year Ended December 31
2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ Us$
(in thousands)

Actuarial present value of benefit obligatic

Vested benefit obligatio 48€ 14,02( 151,11¢ 5,20z
Nonvested benefit obligatic 304,25: 334,18( 334,39° 11,511
Accumulated benefit obligatic 304,73¢ 348,20( 485,51! 16,71
Additional benefits based on future sala 359,72¢ 297,35! 287,41- 9,894
Projected benefit obligatic 664,46° 645,55! 772,92¢ 26,60
Plan assets at fair vall (343,82) (371,45) (313,16() (10,780)
Projected benefit obligation in excess of plan & 320,64 274,10: 459,76¢ 15,821
Unrecognized net transition obligati (39¢) (34%) (262) 9
Unrecognized prior service cc 4,20t 3,99¢ (84,42%) (2,906
Unrecognized net ga (347,61) (307,049 (337,38() (11,619
Additional pension liability — — 135,26° 4,65¢
Accrued (prepaid) pensic (23,160) (29,297 172,96¢ 5,954

c. Actuarial assumption

2010 2011 2012
Discount rate used in determining present values 1.88% 1.88Y% 1.63%
Future salary increase r¢ 4.25% 3.50% 3.00%
Expected rate of return on plan as: 2.00% 2.00% 1.88%

d. Changes in pension fut

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NTS NT$ NTS US$
(in thousands)
Company contribution 23,84+ 24,17: 22,71 782
Payment of benefit — 64¢ 84,25! 2,90(

16. SHAREHOLDERY? EQUITY

Under ROC Company Law, capital surplus can onlyded to offset deficits, except that capital sisglanerated from (1) donations
(donated capital) or (2) the excess of the issice mver the par value of capital stock (includatgcks issued for new capital and
mergers, and the purchase of treasury stock) carabsferred to capital as stock dividends whendefeit remains and shareholders
approve such distribution.

ChipMOS Taiwan'’s Articles of Incorporation provitteat the following may be appropriated from thewsalated net income, after
deducting any previously accumulated deficit an#h16gal reserve, subject to shareholders’ apprgaall0% as bonuses to employees,
(b) not more than 0.5% as remuneration to dire@odssupervisors, (c) a special reserve, if deameedssary, and (d) dividends to
shareholders.

ThaiLin’s Articles of Incorporation provide thatdtiollowing may be appropriated from the accumulatet income, after deducting any
previously accumulated deficit and 10% legal resgsubject to shareholders’ approval: (a) not niose 0.5% as remuneration to
directors and supervisors, (b) not less than 10%oasses to employees, and (c) dividends to shiatefsobut not less than 50% should
be distributed as cash dividends to shareholders.

These appropriations and the disposition of theairing net income, except for bonuses to employdiesgtors and supervisors, shall be
resolved by the shareholders in the following yaad given effect in the financial statements of ttear.

The aforementioned appropriation for legal resashal be made until the reserve equals the aggrgmatvalue of ChipMOS Taiwan’s
and ThaiLin’s outstanding capital stock. The resezan only be used to offset a deficit, or whe#kance has reached 25% of the
aggregate par value of the outstanding capitakst6€hipMOS Taiwan and ThaiLin, and up to 25% #wrcan be distributed as stock
dividends or cash dividends after approval in shalders’ meeting.
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16. SHAREHOLDERY EQUITY (continued,

Stock Options

The Share Option plan provides that the direcffgiers, employees and consultants of ChipMOS BRetanand its affiliates may be
granted options to purchase common shares of Chip&muda at specified exercise prices.

The following table summarizes information abowicktoptions outstanding at December 31, 2012.

Market Number Number Number Number Number
Market Price Exercisable Exercisable Exercisable Exercisable Exercisable
Year Exercise Number Price at Year on on on on on
of Grant Price Outstanding at Grant End or after or after or after or after or after
us$ Us$ USs$
2006 19.244 60,750 22.64 11.6027 13,500 13,500 11,250 11,250 11,250
~ 22.882 ~ 26.9: August August ~ August~ August ~ August ~
2006 Decembe Decembe Decembe Decembe
2007 2008 2009 2010
2007 14.552 290,586 17.12 11.6021 13,500 69,232 69,216 69,362 69,276
~ 25.90¢ ~ 30.4¢ August  January - January - January - January -
2007 Decembe Decembe Decembe Decembe
2008 2009 2010 2011
2008 0.748 223,950 0.88 11.602: 12,500 36,398 36,512 38,720 99,820
~11.9 ~14.0( August ~ January - January - January - January -
Novembe Decembe Decembe Decembe Decembe
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
2009 0.8528 209,569 1.0032 11.602% 20,506 23,291 24,418 52,251 89,103
~2.55 ~3.00 August ~ January - January - January - January -
Novembe Novembe Novembe Novembe Novembe
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
2010 2.448 141,121 2.88 11.602] 18,750 27,557 27,663 33,576 33,575
~5.474 ~6.44 August January~ January~ January~ January~
2010 Septembe  August August August
2011 2012 2013 2014
2011 4.59 581,896 54 11.602° 37,500 94,121 150,097 150,090 150,088
~6.222 ~7.32 August March~ March~ March~ March~
2011 Septembe Septembe Septembe Septembe
2012 2013 2014 2015
2012 11.1095 197,676 13.07 11.602% 77,544 40,044 40,044 40,044
~11.143! ~13.11 February- February- February- February-
August August August August
2013 2014 2015 2016

NT$486,142 thousand (US$16,735 thousand) of congemsexpense has been recognized with NT$65,98%tnd (US$2,272
thousand) (2011: NT$49,055 thousand) being accduotethrough the statement of operations. The Gompssued 204,316 (2011:
692,624) stock options in 2012 to its employee20h2, 103,426 (2011: 148,403) stock options werteited, 289,268 (2011: nil) stock
options were expired and 668,246 (2011: 96,103ksbdptions were exercised, leaving 1,705,548 (2Q1362,172) stock options
outstanding at December 31, 2012.
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16. SHAREHOLDERY EQUITY (continued,

Share Appreciation Rights

The share appreciation rights plan provides thatirectors, officers and employees of ChipMOS Betanand its affiliates may be
granted cash-settled share appreciation rights.

The following table summarizes information abowudrghappreciation rights outstanding at Decembe@12.

Market Number Number Number Number
Market Price Exercisable Exercisable Exercisable Exercisable
Year Exercise Number Price at Year on on on on
of Grant Price Outstanding at Grant End Or after or after or after or after
USs$ US$ USss$
2007 14.552 59,625 17.12 11.6027 14,943 14,943 14,870 14,869
~ 25.90¢€ ~ 30.4¢ January ~ January ~ January ~ January ~
Decembel Decembel Decembel December
2008 2009 2010 2011
2008 0.748 27,048 0.88 11.6027 4,593 4,667 4,873 12,915
~11.9 ~14.0C January ~  January ~  January ~  January ~
December December December December
2009 2010 2011 2012
2009 0.884 103,248 1.04 11.6027 4,792 5,954 32,843 59,659
~2.55 ~3.00 January ~ January ~ January ~ January ~
August August August August
2010 2011 2012 2013
2010 2.448 8,325 2.88 11.6027 376 1,583 3,189 3,177
~3.06 ~3.6 March ~ March ~ March ~ March ~
August August August August
2011 2012 2013 2014
2011 5.151 401,142 6.06 11.6027 66,491 111,566 111,546 111,539
~6.222 ~7.32 March ~ March ~ March ~ March ~
August August August August
2012 2013 2014 2015
2012 11.1095 41,460 13.07 11.6027 10,366 10,366 10,364 10,364
~11.143¢ ~13.11 February - February- February - February -
August August August August
2013 2014 2015 2016

640,848

During the year, 43,660 (2011:525,885) rights wgramted, 67,375 (2011: 70,621) rights were forégites4,106 (2011: nil) rights were
expired and 231,270 (2011: 32,832) rights were@sed. As of December 31, 2012, there were 640(8d81:1,049,939) share
appreciation rights outstanding.

The Company recognized compensation expense of N[$73 thousand (US$3,985 thousand) (2011: NT$3je@®sand) in respect of
share appreciation rights at fair value.

F-29



Table of Contents

17. INCOME TAX EXPENSE / (BENEFIT

a. Areconciliation of income tax expense — curtgafore tax credits and income tax expense on ieddoss) before income tax at
statutory rates is shown belo

Year Ended December 31
2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ Uss$
(in thousands)

Tax on pretax income (loss) at ( — — — _
Tax on pretax income (loss) at applicable statutatgs 538,99¢ 82,84( 221,24: 7,61¢

Tax effect:
Losses carried forwait (61,64¢) (113,72) (133,49) (4,595
Permanent difference (183,420 (37,849 (43,55¢) (1,499
Temporary difference (256,750 112,87! 12,79¢ 44C
Income tax expens- current before tax credi 37,17( 44,14( 56,99( 1,962

The ROC statutory rates for 2010, 2011 and 2012 &&bb.
The PRC statutory rates for 2010, 2011 and 2012 &8%.
b. Income tax expense consists

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NTS$ NTS$ NTS US$
(in thousands)
Income tax expens- current before tax credi 37,17( 44,14( 56,99( 1,962
Additional 10% on the unappropriated earni — 164,07: 32,57( 1,121
Income tax credit (9,445 (179,82) (53,56¢) (1,849
Income tax for the current ye 27,72t 28,39( 35,99 1,23¢
Net change in deferred income tax assets (liadsljtfor the
year
Tax credits 515,42: 302,96t 77,61¢ 2,672
Temporary difference 289,61( (104,40¢) (12,709 (409
Losses (recognized) utilize 82,05: 218,84! 253,97¢ 8,74:
Valuation allowance (1,124,761 (397,67 (224,389 (7,729
Deferred tax effect of change in tax r 80,93t — — —
Adjustment of prior yea’ taxes 29,65¢ (2,617) 1 —
Income tax expense (bene! (99,360) 45,50¢ 131,49° 4,52

Since the Company is an exempted company incogubiatBermuda, a tax-free country, tax on pretaoine is calculated at the
Bermuda statutory rate of 0% for each year.
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17.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT) (continuet

C.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are sanz®d as follows

December 31

2011 2012
NT$ NT$ Uss$
(in thousands)
Net current deferred income tax ass
Unrealized foreign exchange los: 2,08t (103) 4
Tax credits 76,28( 26,75 921
Losses carried forwal 122,93: 136,35: 4,69
Loss of market price decline and obsolete and-moving inventorie: 19,41 8,18: 282
Unrealized loss on sale allowanc 20,16° 20,89¢ 71¢
Allowance for doubtful receivable 11,01 11,01 37¢
Others 132,52( 133,89! 4,61(
384,40 336,99: 11,601
Less: Valuation allowance (307,85() (259,16¢) (8,922

76,55¢ 77,82¢ 2,67¢

Net nor-current deferred income tax assi

Losses carried forwai 877,26¢ 593,01: 20,41:
Tax credits 70,42: 42,33: 1,457
Depreciation difference (57,909 (43,729 (1,505
Unrealized impairment loss on idle property, plamtl equipmer 10,497 10,50¢ 362
Others 216,73t 228,02¢ 7,85(

1,117,02, 830,15: 28,57
Less: Valuation allowance (516,67) (326,57 (11,247

600,35: 503,58: 17,33t

The deferred income tax components measured aatep applicable statutory rates as of DecembgR311 and 2012 were 17%,
respectively for ChipMOS Taiwan and ThailLin and 2f%ChipMOS Shanghai.

d. The balance and year of expiry of unused investrizentredits and losses carried forward as of Dées81, 2012 are as follown

Machinery
Losses
R&D and carried
expenditures equipment forward
NT$ NT$ NT$
Year of expiry (in thousands)
2013 15,33: 11,42( 136,35:
2014 — 34,02] 98,90¢
2015 — 8,30¢ 49,09:
2016 — — 41,71¢
2017 — — 54,62(
2019 — — 348,67t
15,33: 53,75: 729,36¢

The deferred tax assets relate to investment &ditsron research and development expenditure amth@ses of machinery and
equipment which will expire from 2013 to 2015. Un&ROC tax regulations, tax credits can be utilimdeduce current income tax
obligations only to the extent of 50% of such ineotax obligations except in the year when suctctesits will expire, in which
case, the entire amount of expiring tax credits maytilized to reduce the current income tax @il@n. The foregoing limitation
on the utilization of tax credits, the expiry datdéshe tax credits, the level of tax credits expddo be generated from future
operations led management to conclude that itlikely that these investment tax credits will béyfuealized. Losses carried
forward can be used to deduct current income téigatinns up to the extent of taxable income anlll @ipire after ten years if not
fully utilized by the Company. Accordingly, a vatiem allowance on deferred tax assets is recograsesf December 31, 2011 and
2012.

The losses carried forward of ChipMOS Shanghai exiplire after five years.
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17. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT) (continuec

e. According to ROC tax law, ChipMOS Taiwan’s arfthiLin’s unappropriated earnings generated in 1888Bthereafter are subject
to a tax of 10% in the year when the shareholdzEsslve that such earnings shall be retained. Théesl earnings as of
December 31, 2011 and 2012 consis!

December 31

2011 2012

NTS$ NTS$ Uss$
(in thousands)

Before 199¢ — — —
1998 and thereatftt 1,925,36! 3,214,35: 110,64¢

1,925,36! 3,214,35! 110,64¢

The income tax returns of ChipMOS Taiwan and Thathirough 2010 have been assessed by the tax digthor

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company engages in business transactions é@tfollowing related parties:
a. MVI: A major shareholder. (Note :
b. DenMOS Technology Inc. (DenMOS): An investee of M{Note 1)
c. ProMOS: An investee of MVI. (Note :
d SPIL: A major shareholder. (Note

Note 1 Since April 1, 2011, MVI's interest in ChipMOS Beuta was reduced to below 10%. Accordingly MVI, P@&land
DenMOS were not considered related parties of ta@any. The transactions with these parties wesdatied till the
end of March 2011 as related party transacti

Note 2 In March 2011, SPIL’s holding in ChipMOS Bermudaased to below 10% and SPIL was no longer redaadeajor
shareholder of ChipMOS Bermuda. From April 1, 20bivards, SPIL was not considered a related partiyeoCompan
The transactions with SPIL were disclosed till ¢mel of March 2011 as related party transacti

The significant transactions with the aforement@parties, other than those disclosed in otherspate summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2010 2011 2012
NTS$ NTS$ NTS$ US$
(in thousands)

During the yea
Revenue

ProMOS 2,033,34.  379,00¢ — —
2,033,34.  379,00¢ — —

Other expense

MVI 14¢ 25 — —
SPIL 76€ — — —
914 25 — —

Other revenu
ProMOS 412 98 — —
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18.

19.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuec

The price of sales to ProMOS was agreed upon quarbased on the then fair market price. The abiten term for ProMOS was
originally 75 days after month end. On November2®)8, ChipMOS Taiwan and ProMOS revised the sulbacting contract by
requiring ProMOS to provide wafers with a valueg36#6 of the subcontracting fee as collateral. Efecvarch 2009, ChipMOS Taiwan
started to request prepayments from ProMOS. In RGO, the collection term was revised to 30 dater afelivery and it was further
revised to 45 days after delivery in October 20hBeptember 2008, ThaiLin revised the collectemt for ProMOS from 75 days to
105 days after month end. In April 2009, ThaiLiartd to request prepayments from ProMOS. In J046,Zhe collection term was
revised to 30 days after delivery. In January 2@é collection term was revised to 45 days afedivdry.

Other related parties have normal collection teof®0 days after month end. The selling price estame as for other customers.
The payment terms for purchases from related gaatie the same as those from other suppliers.

On December 29, 2009, a director of the Companghaged US$1,000 thousand (NT$29,050 thousand) 88ie@Ne014 (Note 12). On
April 19, 2011, the 8%CN due 2014 issued to theaor was converted into 200 thousand common slofitke Company. In connecti
with the make-whole clause, the Company issued838stand common shares to the director as inteagstgnt of US$286 thousand
(NT$8,308 thousand).

As of December 31, 2009, other receivables fronM@¥8 amounted to NT$408,999 thousand and 100% afioevavas made by
ChipMOS Taiwan. NT$7,000 thousand was received pgil 010. Under the amended subcontracting conRPeamMOS paid ChipMOS
Taiwan NT$200,000 thousand in May 2010. The remaitNT$201,999 thousand was collected in nine mgrittgtallments ending on
March 15, 2011. As of December 31, 2010, ChipMOBv@a received NT$335,999 thousand and the reldtedance of NT$408,999
thousand was reversed to other non operating incdheebalance of NT$66,000 thousand was collectedanthly installments by
March 2011.

As of December 31, 2009, other receivables fronM@8 amounted to NT$54,537 thousand and 100% alloevaras made by ThailLin.
In June 2010, ThaiLin agreed a settlement with Fd@vin the amount of NT$24,000 thousand and it vedlected during the year. The
allowance of NT$24,000 thousand was reversed teratbn-operating income.

In February 2010, ChipMOS Taiwan entered into anifiment Purchase Agreement with SPIL to purchase’SPRAM test and LCD
driver assembly and test operation lines with pasehprice of approximately NT$1,630,580 thousamtldd the terms and conditions of
the Equipment Purchase Agreement, ChipMOS Taiwdlrpay the purchase price in four installments RiLSwith the final installment
scheduled to be paid on or before March 31, 20h&.tfansaction was early completed in January 2011.

At the same time, ChipMOS Bermuda also enteredaréthare Purchase Agreement with SPIL to sell tb 8°holding of

133,000 thousand common shares of ChipMOS Taiwénavtonsideration of NT$1,630,580 thousand. Utiieterms and conditions
the Share Purchase Agreement, SPIL will pay thehase price in four installments to the Company it final installment scheduled
to be paid on or about March 31, 2011. The traimagtas early completed in January 2011.

The Company consults its ROC counsel on certaataélparty transactions and obtains legal opiniassppropriate, to ensure that suct
transactions do not violate relevant ROC laws aglliations.

PLEDGED OR MORTGAGED ASSET

The Company provided certain assets as collatemailynfor short and long-term bank loans, capialses and customs duty guarantee,
which were as follows:

December 31

2011 2012

NT$ NT$ US$

(in thousands)

Restricted cash and cash equiva 285,13: 174,48t 6,00¢
Land 452,73t 452,73t 15,58t
Buildings 5,474,16 5,118,31 176,19(
Machinery and equipmen 5,150,541 2,119,43 72,95¢
Land use righ 100,49t 94,25¢ 3,24¢
11,463,07 7,959,222 273,98
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20. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a. As of December 31, 2012, ChipMOS Taiwan leasedgis of land from the Hsinchu and Southern Tai®eience Park under
several agreements expiring on various dates fr@h7 20 2032, with renewal optior

The future minimum lease payments under the abosmationed leases as of December 31, 2012 are asvfoll

Year Amount
NT$ US$
(in thousands)

2013 27,37( 94z
2014 27,37( 94z
2015 27,37( 94z
2016 27,37( 94z
Thereaftel 140,95! 4,852
Total minimum lease paymer 250,43! 8,62(

b.  Asof December 31, 2012, ChipMOS USA leasedffise under an agreement expiring in 2015. Thariiminimum lease
payments as of December 31, 2012 are as fo

Year Amount
NT$ USs$
(in thousands)
2013 2,93t 101
2014 2,84¢ 98
2015 2,93C 101
Total minimum lease paymer 8,71C  30C

c. As of December 31, 2012, ChipMOS Taiwan hadtaapommitments in relation to purchase of plard erachinery in the amount
of NT$786,804 thousand (US$27,084 thousa

d. As of December 31, 2012, ThaiLin had capital ootments in relation to purchase of plant and maetyi in the amount of
NT$101,396 thousand (US$3,490 thousa

e. As of December 31, 2012, ChipMOS Shanghai hpidat@ommitments in relation to purchase of pland machinery in the
amount of NT$30,268 thousand (US$1,042 thous:
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20. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continu®

f.

On April 1, 1999, Motorola, Inc. (“Motorola”) ahChipMOS Taiwan entered into an immunity agreen(ra “Agreement”), that
each party covenanted not to sue each other farghef certain Ball Grid Array (“BGA”) patents puiant to the Agreement. In
December 2004, Motorola spun off its semicondudiaision and thereby formed Freescale Semicondubior (“Freescale”).
Subsequently, Freescale assumed Motorola’s rigitohbligations under the Agreement. On OctobeR066, Freescale
unilaterally terminated the Agreement, alleging@hDS Taiwan breach of the Agreement. Under the &guent, ChipMOS
Taiwan agreed to pay running royalties for its nfaoturing of certain BGA packages covered by Ma@oow Freescale) patents
pursuant to the Agreement. As such, ChipMOS Taiargned Freescale’s unilateral termination of thee&gent has no legal
effect. ChipMOS Taiwan has continued to accrue ltgyaayments for products it believes are covengthle Agreement. The
payments previously returned by Freescale and addry ChipMOS Taiwan have been deposited in a agpascrow account. On
July 13, 2009, Freescale alleged that ChipMOS Tailreached the Agreement by failing to pay roysaltie certain BGA packages
assembled by ChipMOS Taiwan. Freescale claimsstiet packages are covered by one or more Fregsatalets identified in the
Agreement while ChipMOS Taiwan contends that sumtkages are not covered by any of Freescale’stgdtethe Agreement.
ChipMOS Taiwan filed an answer to deny all allegasgi and also filed counterclaims against Freesdkdging Freescale engage(
patent misuse by seeking to obtain royalties otageof ChipMOS Taiwan’s BGA products that were novered by any Freescale
patent included under the Agreement, and for detday judgement of patent non-infringement and lioktg. In response, on
December 11, 2009, Freescale filed a motion to idsthe declaratory judgment counterclaims fileddmpMOS Taiwan and to
stay all other patent related claims and issuesitsmbreach of contract claims could be decidedummary Judgment granting in
part and denying in part the motions of both Fraksand ChipMOS Taiwan was given by court on J8ly2010. The above order
finds that the Agreement constituted a “Total S&egalty” agreement, however, Freescale’s motios partly denied for patent
misuse. A mediation was held by both parties orolet 28, 2010, but was unsuccessful. The fact d&ggrocess regarding
patent misuse issue closed in late April 2011. &tpert discovery process regarding patent missse islosed in the middle of
June 2011. An Order granting Freescale’s motiompéstial summary judgment and denying ChipMOS Talwa&ross-motion for
partial judgment was given on September 8, 20110Ader granting in part and denying in part ChipM®8tion for
Reconsideration was given on March 30, 2012. TheriQeinstated ChipMO&laims for patent misuse and its affirmative deés
for patent exhausted, mutual mistake and licenssedeale refiled its motions to strike ChipMOSYjaemand and for summary
judgment on ChipMO'’ affirmative defenses of exhaustion, mutual mistakd license. The Court has granted those madions
January 24, 2013 and ChipMOS is in the procesgfiéi motion for reconsideration of those rulinge.hi¢aring date has been set
the motion for reconsideration. The Company’s celihas not formed any opinion as to the outcomtb@tase. The Company
considers that an unfavorable outcome for thisengtremote
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20. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continu®

g.

On April 20, 1999, ChipMOS Taiwan entered intgeaniconductor packaging technology license agraemigh Tessera
Technologies, Inc. (Tessera). In February 2006pRIQS Taiwan and ChipMOS USA received notice of epainfringement
lawsuit brought by Tessera, alleging infringemefrgeveral Tessera patents and breach of an exigtergse agreement with
ChipMOS Taiwan. The fact discovery has been stayedcordance with a Northern District of Califar@ourt order issued on
May 24, 2007. On April 21, 2008, Tessera requestatithe International Trade Commission (ITC) inigege ChipMOS Bermuda,
ChipMOS Taiwan and ChipMOS USA (collectively refatrto as the Companies) on the basis of allegddtidos of Section 337
of the Tariff Act of 1930. In its request for intggmtion (“ITC-649 Investigation”), Tessera allegibat the Companies infringed
certain patents among which are three that wersubgect of the stayed litigation in the Northeristidct of California. Tessera al:
requested that the ITC issue an exclusion ordenjoin the importation of accused products intoliited States. On

September 30, 2008, Judge of Northern Districtaff@nia Court (“Judge”) granted a motion to exdehe hearing date from
March 16 to March 24, 2009 and target date fromust@8 to November 2, 2009. On February 10, 20@9Judge ordered the
procedural schedule in the ITC-649 Investigatiorstaged until the ITC issues its Final Determinaiiothe ITC-605 Investigation.
The target date of Initial Determination was alsteaded from December 7, 2009 to February 8, 20tOMarch 13, 2009, after t
close of discovery, Tessera submitted a requéstmainate the ITC-649 Investigation. On July 17020he Judge issued an order
granting the request to terminate the ITC-649 Itigation. No petitions for review were filed. ThEG had determined not to
review the Initial Determination and issued an otdegerminate the investigation on August 7, 2008 ITC’s Final Determinatio
for the ITC-605 Investigation issued in May 200%vegpealed to the Court of Appeals for the Fedeirauit (“CAFC”). CAFC
confirmed ITC'’s finding in May 2011. CAFC'’s abovedision was appealed to the United States Supresug.d he United States
Supreme Court denied the above petition for revaéthe 605 Investigation in December 2011. Duéntodenial of the petition for
review of the 605 Investigation by the United SéaBeipreme Court, the stayed litigation in the NemtDistrict of California Court
resumed. It is currently scheduled for jury trimlApril 2014. On July 19, 2012, Tessera filed awdttion with the court dismissing
its breach of contract claim against the Compariesordingly, this litigation is now limited to oplTessera’s patent infringement
allegations against the Companies. A court-orderediation was held on December 13, 2012 but wagasessful. The
Company'’s counsel has not formed an opinion aseé@mtitcome of the case. The Company considersuthamfavorable outcome
for this matter is remott

21. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT!

On March 14, 2013, the Board of Directors of thenpany approved the plans for listing ChipMOS TaiwariTaiwan’s emerging stock
board in the second quarter of 2013. The Boardatgpooved a share repurchase program for repurciabares by the Company of up
to US$7.5 million. The Company intends to adoplaa po effect the repurchase program commencirtgersecond quarter of 2013.
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ChipMOS Taiwan has entered into forward exchangeraots and foreign currency options for the yesided December 31, 2010, 2011
and 2012 to hedge its exchange rate risk on foreigrency assets or liabilities and anticipatedgeations. No derivative financial
instrument was used during 2011 and 2012. Infownath the derivative transactions is as follows:

a. Forward exchange contrac
As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, there were n&tanding forward contracts.
b.  Financial risk informatiol

1) Credit risk. Credit risk is the risk that a ctenparty will not meet its obligations under a fic&@l instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Compargxposed to credit risk from its operating adiéa (primarily for trade
and other receivables). The Company performs owgguiedit evaluation of the debtors’ financial cdmati and maintains an
allowance for doubtful receivables based on histbcollection, writesff experience and individual examination of avialié
information regarding the customers. The banks wiith the Company has entered into the above actstare reputable
and, therefore, the Company is not expected toxpesed to significant credit risk

2) Market risk and hedge strategy. The Companwariftial assets at fair value through profit and e stated at market
value, which is affected by the stock prices indpen stock market. Subject to turmoil in the gldlmancial market, the
Company has evaluated its financial instrumentsthedCompany believed the exposure to market 8sif ®ecember 31,
2012 was not significant. The Company is exposeadadket risks arising from changes in currency argle rates due to
U.S. dollar denominated accounts receivable, Yemwghénated accounts payable and New Taiwan dollaoiénated debt.
In order to manage these exposures, the Compangtisoes enters into forward contracts and optiortrects.

3) Liquidity risk. Liquidity risk is the risk thahe Company will encounter difficulty in raisingrfds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. Liquiditgkrimay result from an inability to sell a financéaset quickly at close to its
fair value. Prudent liquidity risk management ineglimaintaining sufficient cash. The Company mositord maintains a
level of bank balances deemed adequate to finamopérations. The Company employs projected dashanalysis to
manage liquidity risk by forecasting the amountas$h required and monitoring the working capitahefgroup to ensure
that all liabilities due and known funding requirems could be met. In addition, there are unuseditclines for contingenc
purposes

4) Cash flow interest rate risk. Interest rate rssthe risk that the fair value or future castwiboof a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interess rathe Company’s exposure to the risk of changesarket interest rates
relates primarily to the Company’s short and logigt bank loans with floating interest rates. At Braber 31, 2012, itis
estimated that a general increase or decrease af Iifterest rates, with all other variables hedtistant, would increase the
Compan'’s annual cash outflow by NT$93,342 thousand (U8%$3thousand

F-37



Table of Contents

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued
c. The estimated fair values of the Comp’s financial instruments are as follov

December 31

2011 2012
Carrying Carrying
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(in thousands)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel 7,357,90. 7,357,90. 9,319,02. 9,319,02. 320,79:.
Restricted cash and cash equivale 285,13¢ 285,13: 174,48t 174,48t 6,00¢
Notes receivabl 5,71( 5,71( 4,95¢ 4,95¢ 171
Accounts receivabl 3,666,50° 3,666,50 3,992,21! 3,992,21' 137,42t
Other receivable 73,17¢ 73,17¢ 149,82: 149,82- 5,15
Long-term investment 39,12: 39,12 11,63¢ 11,63¢ 401
Refundable deposi 21,36¢ 21,36« 21,07( 21,07( 72t
Liabilities
Bank loans 546,91¢ 546,91t 366,48: 366,48. 12,61¢
Accounts payabl 1,130,73 1,130,733 890,07" 890,07  30,63¢
Other payable 1,081,531 1,081,531 1,008,40' 1,008,40' 34,71:
Payables to contractors and equipment supy 415,39: 415,39: 484,65¢ 484,65¢ 16,68
Long-term loans (including current portio 9,168,32¢ 9,168,32 8,967,72 8,967,72° 308,69
Guarantee deposi 1,771 1,77 2,47¢ 2,47¢ 85

Fair values of financial instruments were determias follows:

1) Shor-term financial instrument-the carrying values approximate the fair valuestdues shor-term nature
2) Long-term investment— market value for listed companies and net equityeséor the others

3) Refundable deposits and guarantee dep- future values

4)  Long-term liabilities — based on forecasted déshis discounted at current interest rates of lsinlong-term liabilities. Other long-
term liabilities are their carrying values as thisg floating interest rate

The fair value of non-financial instruments was imatuded in the fair values disclosed above. Adoagly, the sum of the fair values of
the financial instruments listed above does notkthe fair value of the Company.
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22.

23.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued

d. The following table details the Compasgxposure to foreign currency risk arising fromwognized assets or liabilities denomin
in a currency other than the functional currencyhefentity to which they relat

Year Ended December 31

2011 2012
Exchange Exchange
Foreign Foreign
Currency Rate NT$ Currency Rate NT$

(in thousands)
Financial Asset

U.S. Dollar 187,90: 30.27¢ 5,688,42: 247,70: 29.0¢ 7,193,47.

Japanese Ye 586,03: 0.390¢ 228,89! 2,555,64 0.336¢ 859,73:
Financial Liabilities

U.S. Dollar 15,80¢ 30.27¢ 478,27 20,28: 29.0¢ 589,02°

Japanese Ye 1,626,18: 0.390¢ 635,15 1,510,401 0.336¢ 508,12:

SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATIORM

The Company engages mainly in the research andagewment, manufacturing, assembly and testing ofis@mductors. In accordance
with SFAS No. 41 and FASB ASC 280-10-50, the Comyfmohief operating decision maker has been idietias the Chief Executive
Officer/Chairman, who reviews these segment reswyit§esting, Assembly, Testing and Assembly for L&t other Flat-Panel Display
Driver Semiconductors and Bumping when making decgsabout allocating resources and assessinggttiermance of the Company.
Financial segment information is as follows:

The Company uses income (loss) from operationseameasurement for segment profit (loss) and tkes lodi performance assessment.
There was no material inconsistency between theusmting policies of the operating segment and to®anting policies described in
Note 2.

a. Semiconductor testing, assembly, LCD and othe-panel display driver semiconductors and bumpingises.

2010

Consolidatec

Testing  Assembly LCD Bumping  Others  Elimination Totals

NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
(in thousands)
Revenue from external custom: 6,169,70° 6,258,81! 3,199,000 1,582,20: — — 17,209,73
Revenue among intersegme 4,96( 8,75¢ — — 34,77¢ (48,497 —
Gross profit (loss (265,54) 185,53t 698,78: (15,139 34,77¢ 7,31€ 645,73(
Income (loss) from operatiol (763,06} (193,07)  493,42! (87,666 (157,109 198,45 (509,02)
Depreciation and amortizatic 3,815,231 1,039,45 1,105,75: 328,98. 174,57: (182,36¢) 6,281,62'
Expenditure for segment ass 1,393,62! 512,46¢ 1,658,50. 724,86: 20 (52,209 4,237,27
Segment asse 8,707,18! 3,872,78 2,962,56. 1,854,57! 1,341 (125,48)) 17,272,96
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23. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION (continue:

2011
Consolidatec
Testing  Assembly LCD Bumping  Others  Elimination Totals
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$
(in thousands)

Revenue from external custom: 5,899,08: 5,989,06 3,985,83. 2,336,95 — — 18,210,93

Revenue among intersegme 2,29¢ — — — 37,44¢ (39,74 —
Gross profit (loss 337,08! 199,97¢ 882,59t 114,55¢ 37,44¢ 90,05¢ 1,661,72:
Income (loss) from operatiol (96,68¢) (104,04%) 656,20:. 30,39¢ (149,89) 197,53t 533,50¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 3,154,15! 903,18( 1,273,05! 361,56: 166,77! (181,13) 5,677,60
Expenditure for segment ass 463,60: 254,36¢ 1,188,02 412,91¢ 372 — 2,319,28:
Segment asse 6,080,01. 2,961,59. 3,254,80° 1,730,48 1,13¢ (131,98) 13,896,04

2012
Consolidated
Testing  Assembly LCD Bumping Others  Elimination Totals
NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(in thousands)

Revenue from external custom: 5,563,231 6,380,61. 4,356,27 2,920,43! — — 19,220,56 661,63

Revenue among intersegme 14,07( 42.,40° — — 45,26: (101,740 — —
Gross profit (loss 607,35: 396,89¢ 1,259,13 217,20: 45,26 56,197 2,582,04 88,88!
Income (loss) from operatiol 209,75} 48,877 1,008,91! 98,57¢ (149,679 168,79¢ 1,385,24 47,68¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,456,03 811,93( 1,092,03 372,65: 54,36: (155,13 4,631,87 159,44!
Expenditure for segment ass 508,62: 414,75! 977,45t 903,21( 38 (27,43) 2,776,64 95,58:
Segment asse 4,043,68 2,314,64. 3,480,61 2,408,23 547 (139,74) 12,107,97 416,79¢

Non-operating income (expenses) were not allocatéide reportable segments when assessing segeréoitrpance and were not
disclosed here.
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23. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION (continuet
b. Netrevenue

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ uss$
(in thousands)

Area
ROC 12,684,43 13,338,55 13,631,58 469,24¢
uU.S. 3,780,05! 2,762,66: 1,400,70 48,21,
Singapore 63,35: 1,015,65! 2,779,34i 95,67t
Korea 430,74¢ 314,77 310,41¢ 10,68¢
Japar 120,67 351,04 491,09: 16,90¢
Others 130,47 428,24( 607,41 20,90¢

17,209,73 18,210,93 19,220,56 661,63

c. Net sales to customers representing at least 10%tdbtal sales

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount
NT$ NT$ NT$ Uss
(in thousands)

Customel

ProMOS 2,033,34¢. 12 1,00572 6 320,880 2 11,04¢
Novatek 3,166,790 18 3,829,11. 21 3,941,100 21 135,66t
Micron 1,477,441 9 192558 11 2,713,78 14 93,41¢

24. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACAINTING PRINCIPLES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY AND
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNED STATES

The accompanying financial statements have begraped in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the Republic
China (“ROC GAAP"), which differ in the followingespects from accounting principles generally a@mept the United States of
America (“U.S. GAAP"):

a. Technologies transferred in payment of capitalls

Pursuant to a Joint Venture Agreement enteredietaween MVI and SPIL on July 28, 1997, MVI and Sedntributed, as
payment for their subscription in the shares oflstaf ChipMOS Taiwan, technologies relating to thgting and assembly of
semiconductors at an agreed value of NT$750,000staml. Under ROC GAAP, such technology transfepaiiment of capital
stock are recorded as an intangible asset, andiiastbby systematic charges to income over theogderéstimated to be benefited.
As permitted under ROC GAAP, the Company useseyaar amortization period. Under U.S. GAAP, tteht®mlogy contribution
cannot be recognized due to the unavailability fH#iavalue for the technologies. Therefore, theydag value of the technologies
has been adjusted to zero under U.S. GAAP.

b. Star-up costs

ROC GAAP requires start-up costs to be deferredaanalrtized in a systematic manner over its estichaseful beneficial life.
Start-up costs include all costs incurred priopitoduction readiness. On the other hand, U.S. GamRarily requires that start-up
costs be expensed as incurred. Some of the exparsesecorded in manufacturing expenses and threrefso affect ending
inventory balances under U.S. GAAP.
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24, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACAINTING PRINCIPLES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY AND
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNED STATES (continued

C.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment amgleyee dormitory buildin

Under ROC GAAP, the estimated life of a building) ¢e as long as 55 years based on the ROC Inteevanue Code. For U.S.
GAAP purposes, building lives are estimated to bgears. Some of the depreciation expenses wevedext in manufacturing
expenses and therefore also affect ending invelt@ignces under U.S. GAAP.

Transfer of building and facilities from M\

The Company purchased buildings and facilities fidii in 1997. The costs of assets purchased fronl M¥fre based on MVI's
book value of such building and facilities on aafied cut-off date plus an additional payment af$4173,174 thousand
representing compensation to MVI. This additiorament of NT$173,174 thousand was capitalized bydbmpany as allowed
under ROC GAAP. Under U.S. GAAP, assets acquiredegorded at amounts that do not exceed theivéiies. Also, generally
under U.S. GAAP, the transferee should record $iseta transferred from related parties with sigaift influence at the
predecessor’s basis. Therefore, the transfer etaf®m MVI was recorded at MVI's predecessor tiastis and NT$173,174
thousand was deducted from the capital surplusbailding and facilities for the purposes of U.S. &A Some of the related
depreciation expenses were recorded in manufagtexpenses and therefore also affect ending inmebidances under U.S.
GAAP.

Impairment of lon-lived asset:

Impairment assessments are made by the Companyevieats and circumstances exist that indicatesahging value of these
assets may not be recoverable. In view of the sustdosses incurred by ChipMOS Shanghai, the Compeviewed its property,
plant and equipment and land use rights for paémtipairment as at December 31, 2011 and 2012.

Under U.S. GAAP, impairment losses for assets tbede and used are recorded in current period egsrand create a new cost
basis for related assets going forward, and capmoéversed subsequently. Under U.S. GAAP, in a@ecare with FASB ASC 360
“Property, Plant and Equipment”, long-lived asdethkl and used by the Company are reviewed for impit whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the cargmgunt of an asset may not be recoverable. Aniimpat loss shall be
recognized only if the carrying amount of a longell asset (asset group) is not recoverable anedgéts fair value. The carrying
amount of a long-lived asset (asset group) is eaverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscalioésh flows expected to result
from the use and eventual disposition of the aesset group). That assessment shall be base@ @artying amount of the asset
(asset group) at the date it is tested for recdilisg whether in use or under development. An @inment loss shall be measurec
the amount by which the carrying amount of a longd asset (asset group) exceeds its fair valuevBihue is determined by the
Company using future cash flows discounted at oaimates. There are no differences in impairmesd lecognized under ROC
GAAP and U.S. GAAP in 2010, 2011 and 2012.

Earnings per share (EP

In calculating the weighted average number of shautstanding for EPS purposes under ROC GAAP, @eplbonus shares have
been treated as outstanding for all periods in an@asimilar to a stock split or stock dividend.dgnU.S. GAAP, employee bonus
shares have been considered separately from ttle ditddend or split and have been treated as auding from the date of
shareholder approval.

Interest capitalizatio

Under ROC GAAP, interest on borrowings during camngion conceptually should be capitalized in thsets that are constructed
or produced for a company’s own use. However, tfityccapital is raised during a year, no capitdl@ainterest is recorded for the
amount of property acquired up to the equity capitsed in that year. Under U.S. GAAP, FASB ASG 8Biterest”, interest is
generally capitalized on assets until they arelabks and ready for use.
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24, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACAINTING PRINCIPLES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY AND
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNED STATES (continued

h.

Convertible note

Under ROC GAAP, there is no requirement to accéonthe fair value of a conversion feature embeddedtie convertible notes
due 2009 as it was issued before January 1, 2088edlJ.S. GAAP, the Company accounts for the fain® of the conversion
feature of its convertible notes in accordance WASB ASC 815 “Derivatives and Hedging”, which r@gs the Company to
bifurcate and separately account for the conver@ature as embedded derivatives contained in timepany’s convertible notes.
The Company carried these embedded derivativets draiance sheet at fair value and changes iwvdties of these embedded
derivatives are reflected in the consolidated stat# of operations. Commencing January 1, 2006, BB&P requires the
Company to bifurcate and separately account foapdtcall option features contained in the Compsnghvertible notes issued
after 2005. The Company issued convertible notésq@e 2011) on September 29, 2006. The Companigedéire put and call
options of the CN due 2011 on the balance shdatratalue with changes in fair values reflectedtia consolidated statement of
operations. The other conversion features are dedan equity.

Commencing from January 1, 2006, under ROC GAAPjdbue costs of convertible notes are recordedr@gduction of the
convertible notes. Under U.S. GAAP the issue castcapitalized as deferred assets and amortizsdtios period of the
convertible notes.

There is no difference under ROC GAAP and U.S. GAARccounting for the CN due 2014 and 2015.
As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, there were nstanding convertible notes (See Note 12).

Sharebased paymen

Under ROC GAAP, the Company followed Accountingneiples Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stdekued to
Employees” (“APB No. 25"), in accounting for its playee stock option plans prior to January 1, 2Q0&ler APB No. 25, when
the exercise price of the Company’s stock optigriess than the market price of the underlyingeshan the date of grant,
compensation expense is recognized. Under U.S. Ga&mmencing from January 1, 2006, the CompanyiepplASB ASC 718
“Compensation — Stock Compensation”, with respeaptions and warrants issued to non-employeesBFASC 718 requires the
use of option valuation models to measure thevidine of the options and warrants at the measuredae. The total stock-based
compensation expense resulting from stock opticas iwcluded in the consolidated statements of tipasa There is no difference
between ROC GAAP and U.S. GAAP effective Januai30D8 upon adoption of SFAS No. 39 for options tgdrsince January 1,
2008.

Defined Benefit Pension Pla

Under U.S. GAAP, commencing from January 1, 2006,Gompany applies FASB ASC 715 “Compensation #é&teént
Benefits”. FASB ASC 715 requires an employer tiparsors one or more defined benefit pension plasher postretirement
plans to 1) recognize the funded status of a plegsured as the difference between plan assets ahfue and the benefit
obligation, in the balance sheet; 2) recognizeguity as a component of accumulated other compmbeioss, net of tax, the gai
or losses and prior service costs or credits ths¢ aluring the period but are not yet recognizedanponents of net periodic
benefit cost; 3) measure defined benefit plan ass®d obligations as of the date of the employetal yearend balance sheet; a
4) disclose in the notes to the financial statesadtitional information about the effects on reviqic benefit cost for the next
fiscal year that arise from delayed recognitionhaf gains or losses, prior service costs or credlitd transition asset or obligation.
Under ROC GAAP, there is no such requirement foogaition. Furthermore, the accounting treatmergstfiements are different
under ROC GAAP and U.S. GAAP. Under ROC GAAP, sattnt gains or losses are equal to the changeweffunded status
plus a pro rata portion of the unrecognized pr@wige cost, unrecognized net gains (losses), anetognized transition
obligations/assets, before the settlement/curtaitreeent multiplied by the percentage reductioprijected benefit obligation
(PBO). Under U.S. GAAP, settlement gain (losshis total unrecognized net gain or losses includimggain or loss that arose
from the measurement at the settlement date aretognized transition assets before settlement phietti by the percentage
reduction in PBO.

F-43



Table of Contents

24, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACAINTING PRINCIPLES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY AND
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNED STATES (continued

K.

Income tax expens

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted FASB 740 “Income Taxes”. FASB ASC 740 prescribasaae-likely-than-
not threshold for financial statement recognitiod aneasurement of a tax position taken or expeotéd taken in a tax return. Tl
interpretation also provides guidance on derecagmiaf income tax assets and liabilities, clasatiion of current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities, accounting riteriest and penalties associated with tax posiaoisincome tax disclosures.

Uncertain tax positions have been classified asausrent income tax liabilities unless these areeeigd to be paid in one year. -
Company’s policy for interest and penalties reldtethcome tax exposure is to recognize interegtmanalties as a component of
the provision of income taxes in the consolidatetesnent of operations.

The Company is potentially subject to income tadi@un the ROC and internationally until the applile statutes of limitations
expire. Tax audits by their nature are often complad can require several years to complete. Tleafimg is a summary of tax
years, potentially subject to examination, in tlgaiicant tax and business jurisdictions in whtble Company operates:

Tax Years Subject tc

Jurisdiction Examination
Republic of China 5 Years
United State: 3 Years
Hong Kong 6 Years
Peopl’s Republic of Chini Unlimited

In 2012, the Company assessed that certain rogaitynents are more likely than not to be disallolgdelevant tax authorities a
the income tax payable was decreased by NT$2,38G#nd (US$101 thousand).

The Company’s subsidiaries are currently under éxation by the relevant tax authorities for varidas years. The Company
regularly assesses the potential outcome of themmiaations in each of the taxing jurisdictions whiketermining the adequacy of
the amount of unrecognized tax benefit recordediléNthis often difficult to predict the final oubene or the timing of resolution of
any particular uncertain tax position, the Compbelyeves it has appropriately accrued for unceiairbenefits. However, audit
outcomes and timing of audit settlements and fuganents that would impact the previously recordeacognized tax benefits and
the range of anticipated increases or decreasaw@rognized tax benefits are subject to signiticaicertainty. It is possible that
the ultimate outcome of current or future examiadimay exceed current unrecognized tax benefamiounts that could be
material, but cannot be estimated as of Decemhe2(@®I2. The effective tax rate and net income ingiaen future period could
therefore be materially impacted.

There are no such provisions under ROC GAAP.

Cash and cash equivalel

Under ROC GAAP, cash and cash equivalents inclinde deposits regardless of its maturity date. Uhdi& GAAP, cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investiseihat are readily convertible to cash with oréimaturities of three months or
less. Thus, time deposits with original maturitsésnore than three months are classified as casivagnts under ROC GAAP but
should be included in other current assets undsr GAAP.

Classification of no-operating income (expenst

Under ROC GAAP, gains on disposal of property, ptard equipment, land use rights, scrap materidtaoling and claim
received are recorded as non-operating incomelassdn sale of receivables, impairment lossesropepty, plant and equipment,
other assets, and goodwill are recorded as noratipgrexpenses as these items represent revenwexpedses not arising from
ordinary operating activities. All of these specifion-operating line items are considered operatiémgs under U.S. GAAP.

Under U.S. GAAP, gains on disposal of propertynpknd equipment, land use rights, scrap matemitaoling and claim receive
are recorded as other operating income; and losslenof receivables, impairment losses on propplant and equipment, other
assets, and goodwill are recorded as other opgratipenses.
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24, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACAINTING PRINCIPLES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY AND
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNED STATES (continued

n. Classification of loss on partial disposal of agidlary while retaining contre

Under ROC GAAP, loss on partial disposal of a sdibsy while retaining control is recorded as a roperating expense as this it
represents an expense not arising from ordinaryatipg activities.

Under U.S. GAAP, changes in a parent’s ownershgrést while the parent retains its controllingafigial interest in its subsidiary
shall be accounted for as equity transactions. &fbeg, no loss shall be recognized in consolidagtdncome or comprehensive
income. Any difference between the fair value @ donsideration received or paid and the amounttigh the noncontrolling
interest is adjusted shall be recognized in ectitybutable to the parent.

The following reconciles net income (loss) and gqunder ROC GAAP as reported in the accompanyarsalidated financial
statements to net income and equity amounts datetminder U.S. GAAP, giving effect to adjustmeuptstiie differences listed above.

Year Ended December 31
2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ USs$
(in thousands)

Net income attributable to ChipMC

Net income (loss) based on ROC GA 1,644,73; (15,167 721,83t  24,84¢
Adjustments
Amortization of deferred char¢ (44¢) (339 — —
Amortization of sta-up costs 35 — — —
Pension expenst (22,07 (17,909 113,29 3,90(
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipn — 3,972 — —
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment amgleyee dormitory
building (56,12F (52,007 (61,816 (2,129
Transfer of building and facilities from M\ 15¢ 15¢ 14C 5
Effect of U.S. GAAP adjustments on income ta 13,26( 11,18: (11,969 (412)
Adjustment for uncertain tax positio 3,001 (5,205 2,93( 101
Stoclk-based compensatic 13,25: 23,03¢ 18,45 63%
Loss on partial disposal of a subsidiary while irétey control — 74,92 — —
Noncontrolling interest 21,10¢ 23,42( (32,279  (1,11)
Net increase (decrease) in net incc (27,830) 61,24¢ 28,75¢ 99C
Net income based on U.S. GA/ 1,616,90: 46,08t 750,59  25,83¢
Earnings per shar- basic 67.4F .78 27.32 0.9¢
Earnings per shar diluted 66.3¢ 1.71 26.52 0.91
Number of weighted average shares outstan- basic 23,97 26,59( 27,477 27,47
Number of weighted average shares outstan- diluted 26,80¢ 26,96 28,30t 28,30t
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24, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACAINTING PRINCIPLES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY AND
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNED STATES (continued

The following table reconciles the denominatoratcalate basic and diluted earnings per share:

December 31
2010 2011 2012
(in thousands)

Basic number of shart 23,97 26,59( 27,47

Add: Stock option: 28¢ 372 82¢
Convertible note 2,547 — —

Diluted number of share 26,80¢ 26,96 28,30

The following table reconciles the numerator tacakdte basic and diluted earnings per share:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ Us$
(in thousands)
Net income based on U.S. GA/ 1,616,90. 46,08¢ 750,59 25,83¢
Add: Amortization of discount on convertible no 9,90¢ — — —
Interest expense (net of te (18,42)) — — —
Loss on embedded derivati 181,43t — — —
Amortization of deferred charge on convertibleées: 44¢ — — —
Foreign exchange ga (11,54) — — —
Income attributable to ChipMOS adjusted for theet§ of assumed exercise of options and conveofinates 1,778,72  46,08¢ 750,59 25,83¢

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NT$ NTS$ NTS$ Us$
(in thousands)
Equity
Equity based on ROC GAA 14,043,45 14,983,27 15,969,07 549,71(

Adjustments
Technology transfer in payment of capital st

Original cost (750,000 (750,000 (750,000 (25,81¢)
Accumulated amortization of technology transfepayment of capital stocl 750,00( 750,00( 750,00( 25,81¢
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment amgleyee dormitory building (339,99) (391,99) (453,81) (15,627)
Transfer of building and facilities from M\
Original cost (173,179 (173,179 (173,179 (5,967)
Depreciation and gain on disposal of building eedlities from MVI 170,67 170,83! 170,97« 5,88¢
Net effect on inventorie ?3) ®3) 2 —
Pension expenst (390,98() (372,27) (386,009 (13,289)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipn — 3,972 3,972 137
Interest capitalizatio 118,75 118,75 118,75 4,08¢
Amortization of interest capitalizatic (143,78) (143,78) (143,78) (4,94¢
Effect of U.S. GAAP adjustments on income ta 88,54 99,72¢ 87,76( 3,021
Adjustment for uncertain tax positio (2,24¢) (6,45)) (3,52) (221)
Equity component of convertible not (466,15) — — —
Loss on redemption of convertible no (129,299 — — —
Amortization of deferred char¢ (39,269 — — —
Amortization of discount on convertible nor (607,569 — — —
Gain on embedded derivative liabiliti 1,242,62 — — —
Net decrease in equi (670,86 (694,389 (778,83() (26,81()
Equity based on U.S. GAA 13,372,59 14,288,88 15,190,24 522,90(

F-46



Table of Contents

24, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACAINTING PRINCIPLES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY AND
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNED STATES (continued

Year Ended December 31
2010 2011 2012
NT$ NTS$ NTS$ US$
(in thousands)

Changes in equity based on U.S. GA
Balance, beginning of the ye 9,433,65! 13,372,59 14,288,88 491,87:
Repurchase of shar — (305,83)) (10,529

Interest payment for convertible no 29,21¢ 5,40¢

Convertible notes conversit 1,078,00: 305,56¢ — —
Issuance of option warrar 43,87: 48,97¢ 65,79 2,26¢
Exercise of stock optio 1,45( 15,98: 122,86¢ 4,23(
Stocl-based compensatic (13,25) (23,03¢) (18,45) (63%)
Cumulative translation adjustmel (78,46¢€) 107,85: (17,006 (585)
Net income for the ye: 1,616,90. 46,08t 750,59: 25,83¢
Loss on partial disposal of a subsidiary whileirétey control — (74,927 — —
Reverse stock spl — (239) — —
Adjustment of equity method for lo-term investment (3,260 (6,619 (24,66() (849)
Disposal of the Compa’s shares by a subsidic — — 528,29t 18,18¢
Cash dividenc — — (117,52) (4,04%)
Unrecognized pension expen: (53,699 43,61¢ (137,109 (4,719
Noncontrolling interest 1,318,16! 447 ,61: 54,39( 1,87(
Balance, end of the ye 13,372,59 14,288,88 15,190,24 522,90(

A reconciliation of the significant balance shest@unts to the approximate amounts determined ubd&rGAAP is as follows:

December 31

2011 2012

NTS$ NT$ Us$
(in thousands)

Current assel

As reportec 13,091,19 15,538,04 534,87.
U.S. GAAP adjustment
Effect of inventory adjustment

Depreciation of property, plant and equipm 1,00% 93¢ 32
Transfer of building and facilities from M\ 3 2) —
Adjustments for uncertain tax positi (6,207) — —
As adjustec 13,085,98 15,538,97 534,90«

Property, plant and equipme- net

As reportec 13,896,04 12,107,97 416,79¢
U.S. GAAP adjustment
Depreciation of property, plant and equipm (367,710 (427,82) (14,727
Transfer of building and facilities from M\ (2,339 (2,200 (76)
Interest capitalizatio (25,029 (25,029) (861)
As adjustec 13,500,97 11,652,93 401,13

Intangible assel

As reportec 100,49¢ 178,89( 6,15¢
U.S. GAAP adjustment

Deferred pension co — (84,63€) (2,919
As adjustec 100,49¢ 94,25 3,24¢

Other asset

As reportec 1,154,20° 912,84¢ 31,420
U.S. GAAP adjustment
Depreciation of employee dormitory buildi (21,319 (22,949 (790
Effect of U.S. GAAP adjustment on income 99,72¢ 87,76( 3,021
Adjustments for uncertain tax positi 4,961 — —
As adjustec 1,237,57! 977,65¢ 33,65¢
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24, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACAINTING PRINCIPLES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY AND
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNED STATES (continued

Other liabilities

As reportec
U.S. GAAP adjustment
Pensior
Adjustment for uncertain tax positic

As adjustec

December 31

2011 2012

NTS$ NT$ Uss$
(in thousands)

101,33: 175,44 6,03¢
372,27 301,36¢ 10,37¢

5,20 3,521 121
478,80¢ 480,33t 16,53¢

As a result of the adjustments presented aboveghmximate amounts of total assets under U.S. Bare NT$27,964,159 thousand
and NT$28,275,452 thousand (US$973,337 thousanaf) Bscember 31, 2011, and 2012, respectively.

The following U.S. GAAP condensed statements ofati@ns for the years ended December 31, 2010, 26d12012 have been derived
from the audited financial statements and refleetadjustments presented above. Certain accougshieen reclassified to conform to

U.S. GAAP.

Net revenu

Cost of revenu

Gross profit

Other operating incom

Operating expenst

Income from operation

Non-operating income (expense net

Income before income tax and noncontrolling inter
Net income attributable to ChipMC

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ Uss$
(in thousands)
17,209,73 18,210,93 19,220,56 661,63
(16,634,90) (16,612,51) (16,613,18) (571,88)
574,83: 1,598,41. 2,607,37 89,75¢
5,039,57 120,59! 120,63( 4,15
(2,670,66)  (1,307,53)  (1,275,97) (43,929
2,943,74! 411,48( 1,452,03! 49,98¢
(1,197,38) (301,89:) (461,119 (15,879
1,746,36! 109,58 990,91¢ 34,11
1,616,90. 46,08¢ 750,59: 25,83¢
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25. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY U.S. GAAI

a.

Income tax expens
Income (loss) before income tax and noncontroliimigrests consists of the following:

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ uss$
(in thousands)
Bermuda (951,54) 356,95t (107,35) (3,695
ROC 2,242 37! 285,51t 1,170,26! 40,28
Others 45553t (532,88 (71,990 (2,479
1,746,36! 109,58t 990,91¢ 34,11

Income tax expense (benefit) consists of:

Year Ended December 31
2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ Us$
(in thousands)

Income tax for the current ye

Bermuda 6,58¢ 6,36( 6,46¢ 222
ROC 19,36¢ 21,52 29,02 99¢
Others 1,77/ 50z 497 17

27,72t 28,39( 35,99: 1,23¢
Deferred income ta

ROC (143,22) 13,75¢ 104,54 3,59¢
Others (29,777 — — _
(173,00 13,75¢ 104,54 3,59¢
Adjustment of prior yea’ income taxe: 29,65¢ (2,617 1 —
Income tax expense (bene! (115,62) 39,52¢ 140,53¢ 4,83¢

Reconciliation between the income tax calculategrentax financial statement income based on theitsiry tax rate and the
income tax expense which conforms to U.S. GAARsifodows:

Year Ended December 31
2010 2011 2012
NTS$ NTS$ NTS$ US$
(in thousands)

Tax on pretax income (loss) at ( — — — —
Tax on pretax income (loss) at applicable statutatgs 525,73t 76,86 230,28: 7,927
Additional 10% on the unappropriated earni — 164,07: 32,57C 1,121
Tax effects of

Permanent difference

Non-taxable loss on sales of investm 5,08¢ — — —
Non-deductible investment loss (135,96) (10,98) (12,29¢) (423)
Non-deductible expens (53,479 (26,97¢ (31,33) (1,079
Other 92t 11C 71 2
Temporary difference 32,85¢ 8,46¢ 1,09t 38
Tax credits- utilized (9,445 (179,82) (53,56¢ (1,849
- deferrec 515,42. 302,96t 77,61¢ 2,672
Valuation allowanct (2,227,76) (397,67) (224,389 (7,724
Losses carried forwait (61,646 (113,72) (133,49) (4,599
Losses carried forwar- deferrec 82,057 218,84! 253,97t 8,74
Deferred tax effect of change in tax r 80,93t — — —
Adjustment of prior ye¢ s income ta 29,65¢ (2,617) 1 —
Income tax expense (bene! (115,62) 39,52¢ 140,53t 4,83¢
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25. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY U.S. GAAP (comtied)
a. Income tax expense (continue

The components of net deferred income tax assets agsfollows:

Deferred income tax asse¢

Current
Unrealized foreign exchange Ic
Tax credits
Losses carried forwai

Loss of market price decline and obsolete and-moving inventorie:

Unrealized loss on sale allowan
Allowance for doubtful receivable
Others

Valuation allowanct

Non-current
Tax credits
Losses carried forwai
Impairment los:
Building
Pensior
Star-up costs
Depreciation difference
Others

Valuation allowance
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December 31

2011 2012
NT$ NT$ uss$
(in thousands)

2,08t (109) (4
76,28( 26,75: 921
122,93: 136,35 4,694
19,41 8,18: 282
20,16° 20,89¢ 71¢
11,01 11,01 37¢
129,47- 133,89! 4,60¢
381,36 336,99. 11,60(
(311,01) (259,160 (8,921)
70,35: 77,82¢ 2,67¢
70,42 42,33: 1,457
877,26¢ 593,017 20,41
10,49° 10,50¢ 362
611 587 20
14,08¢ (5,179 (17€)

2 2 —
26,37: 148,45: 5,11(
217,49¢ 131,39! 4,524
1,216,75 921,11: 31,70¢
(511,71) (329,769 (11,352
705,04: 591,34. 20,35¢
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25. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY U.S. GAAP (comtiied)

b. Pension plan

The impact of the adoption of FASB ASC 715 has lrediacted within the consolidated financial stadeits as follows:

Components of net periodic benefit ¢
Service cos
Interest cos
Project return on plan assi
Net amortization and deferr:
Unrecognized net transition obligati
Curtailment lost
Net prior service cos
Net periodic benefit cot
Cost settlement

Net periodic benefit cot

Recognized in other comprehensive inco
Unrecognized net transition obligati
Net prior service cos
Unrecognized actuarial loss (ga

Total recognized in other comprehensive ince

Total recognized in total benefit cost and othenpoehensive incom

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ uss$
(in thousands)

1,32¢ 1,18¢ 83¢ 29
12,29: 11,83: 13,09: 451
(5,140 (7,090 (6,84¢) (236)
53 53 53 2
8,35¢ 12,26: 10,70¢ 36¢
(20€) (206) 12,70: 437
- - 23,15; 797
— — 36,00¢  1,23¢
16,67¢ 18,04( 89,71 3,08¢
13€ 13€ 182 6
62C 328 115,21( 3,96¢
52,94 (44,079 21,71« 747
53,69¢ (43,619 137,10t 4,71¢
70,37, (25,579 226,81 7,807

The estimated net transition assets and actuasgalfbr the defined benefit pension plans thatbalamortized from accumulated
other comprehensive income into benefits cost 1226 NT$116 thousand (US$4 thousand) and NT$&f@rsand (US$300

thousand), respectively.

Changes in benefit obligatic
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye
Service cos
Interest cos
Plan amendmen
Actuarial loss (gain

Benefit obligation at end of ye

Changes in plan asst¢
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y
Actual return on plan asse
Employer contributior
Plan amendmen

Funds statu
Unrecognized actuarial lo:

Net amount recognized (recognized as accrued pensit)
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Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ uss$
(in thousands)
546,38! 664,46 645,55¢ 22,22
1,32¢ 1,18¢ 83¢ 29
12,29: 11,83 13,00¢ 448
— — 154,89¢ 5,332
104,46! (31,939 (26,432 (910
664,46 645,55: 787,86¢ 27,12:
314,99: 343,82: 371,45:; 12,78
4,41° 3,73: 3,26( 112
24,41¢ 23,89: 22,71% 782
— — (83,899 (2,88¢)
343,82: 371,45. 313,53:; 10,79
(320,649  (274,10) (474,339 (16,329
(47,179 (68,879) — —
(367,819 (342,98() (474,339 (16,329
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25. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY U.S. GAAP (comtied)
b. Pension plans (continue

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprekieriscome, net of noncontrolling interests, conasfst

2011 2012
NT$ NT$ US$
(in thousands)

Unrecognized net transition obligation (as: (2,047) (1,629 (56)
Net prior service cos (3,259 144,50t 4,97¢
Unrecognized los 295,77: 325,24 11,19¢
Gross amount recognizi 290,46¢ 468,12¢ 16,11«
Noncontrolling interest (54,804 (95,356 (3,287)
Total recognized in total benefit cost and othenpoehensive incom 235,66 372,77( 12,83:

2010 2011 2012
Actuarial assumption
Discount rate 1.75% 1.75% 1.50%
Rate of compensation incree 4.25% 4.00% 4.00%
Expected return on plan ass 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defirlmhefit pension plans was NT$335,176 thousand arg#B4,714 thousand
(US$16,686 thousand) at December 31, 2011 and 284@2ectively.

There were no pension plans with an accumulatedfti@bligation in excess of plan assets as of bdmr 31, 2010 and 2011.

The plan assets are all deposited in the Bank fdra The plan benefits are based on employeessyaaservice and
compensation. The plan assets primarily consisash, government loans, equity securities, notddands.

The fair value of the plan assets was NT$371,468¢and and NT$313,531 thousand (US$10,793 thousamBcember 31, 2011
and 2012, respectively. As of December 31, 2011281@, these assets were allocated among assgoaseas follows:

Current maximum

Asset category 2011 2012 allocation policy
Equity securities 41% 39% 40%
Bonds 27% 27%

Notes 8% 10%

Government loan 1% 1%

Cash 23% 23%

Total 100% 100%

Under ROC regulation, government authority willleot the fund as Labor Retirement Fund and deteiitia assets allocation and
investment policy.

ChipMOS Taiwan and ThaiLin anticipate contributiNg$23,443 thousand (US$807 thousand) to their pengians during 2013.
The Company has no other post-retirement or pogt@ment benefit plans.
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25. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY U.S. GAAP (comtiied)

c. Statements of cash flov

SFAS No. 17, “Statement of Cash Flows” has beetiexhfts objectives and principles are similathiose set out in FASB ASC
230, “Statement of Cash Flows. The principal défezes between the standards relate to classific&iwmmarized cash flow data
by operating, investing and financing activities as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2010 2011 2012
NT$ NT$ NT$ US$
(in thousands)

Net cash inflow (outflow) from

Operating activitie: 8,504,000 6,179,59. 4,391,691 151,17
Investing activities (2,454,16) (3,250,71) (2,594,91) (89,32
Financing activitie: (2,959,48) (2,464,55) (162,68) (5,600
3,090,34t 464,32:  1,634,09! 56,25!]

Effect of changes in foreign exchange 1 (16,817 31,86 (16,535 (569)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 3,676,321 6,749,86! 7,246,05 249,43:
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 6,749,86! 7,246,051 8,863,611 305,11¢

d. Statements of comprehensive inca

Year Ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
NT$ NTS$ NT$ US$
(in thousands)
Net income based on U.S. GA/ 1,616,90: 46,08t 750,59: 25,83¢
Other comprehensive income (los
Translation adjustmel (78,46¢) 107,85: (17,006 (58%)
Unrecognized pension cos (53,699 43,61¢ (137,100 (4,719
Comprehensive incorr 1,484,73 197,55 596,48( 20,53

e. Statements of accumulated other comprehensive ia¢toss)

Translation Accumulated

Unrecognizec Other
Comprehensive

Pension Cost Adjustment Income

NT$ NT$ NT$

(in thousands)

December 31, 201 (279,28 326,05: 46,76¢
Addition in 2011 43,61¢ 107,85: 151,47(
December 31, 201 (235,669 433,90: 198,23t
Addition in 2012 (137,109 (17,000 (154,11)
December 31, 201 (372,77() 416,89¢ 44,12¢
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25. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY U.S. GAAP (comtiied)

f.

Shareholder equity
Employee stock-based compensation has been acddontender FASB ASC 715.

The Company has in place a Share Option Plan (P0#1). Under the terms of the plan, the exercig@met on the grant of share
options may not be less than the par value of afgaom Share on the date of grant of such optioAugust 2006, the Company
adopted a second Share Option Plan (2006 Plan)ndimer of shares that may be issued under thglans is 4,000,000 shares
and may consist in whole or part of authorizedunissued shares of the Company which are not reddor any other purpose. No
consideration is payable for the grant of an optinrSeptember 2011, the Company adopted a thiadeShption Plan (2011 Plan).
The number of shares that may be issued undepltinisis 1,000,000 shares and may consist in whopeud of authorized but
unissued shares of the Company which are not reddor any other purpose. No consideration is playfy the grant of an option.

Under the plans, options may be granted to alctbirs, officers, employees and consultants of the@any and its affiliates.
Options are exercisable for a maximum of ten y&ara the date on which such option is granted arelfears from the date on
which such option is granted if the holder of tidi@n owns more than 10% of the combined voting gmoef the Company at the
time the option is granted.

In September 2006 and August 2008, the Companytedaare appreciation rights plans. The sharesajgtion rights plans
provide that the directors, officers and employafethe Company and its affiliates may be granteshesettled share appreciation
rights.

The fair value for options granted has been estithat the date of grant using the Black-Scholeso@Rricing Model with the
following weighted average assumptions:

Risk free Expected
Year of grant interest rate Expected life Expected volatility dividend yield
2006 4.62% ~ 4.74¢ 4.25 year 102.67% ~ 133.21 0%
2007 3.32% ~ 5.04¢ 4.25 year 134.71% ~ 171.09 0%
2008 1.30% ~ 3.42¢ 4.25 ~ 6 yeal 97.83% ~ 188.06" 0%
2009 1.32% ~ 2.39¢ 4.25 ~ 5 yeal 139.36% ~ 163.82 0%
2010 0.86% ~ 2.48¢ 3.25 ~ 7 yeal 153.18% ~ 213.94 0%
2011 0.45% ~ 2.11¢ 3.50 ~ 5 yeal 170.25% ~ 177.79 0%
2012 0.37% ~ 0.84¢ 3.50 ~ 5.50 yea 141.96% ~ 189.03 1.33%

The following table presents the stock option amtifor the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2012.

Weightec
Average Aggregate
Number of Exercise Intrinsic
Options Price Value
us$ us$

(in thousands’
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,114,05. 10.8(
Grantec 692,62- 5.17
Forfeited (148,40 10.9¢
Exercisec (96,109 5.7t
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,562,17. 9.47
Grantec 204,31t 11.1¢
Forfeited (103,420 10.2%
Exercisec (668,241 6.21
Expired (289,261) 20.5¢

Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,705,54 9.0z 7,791
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 1,448,89; 12.7

Exercisable at December 31, 2( 901,34. 11.57 3,46:
Vested and expected to vest in 2( 2,506,50: 13.5¢

Vested and expected to vest in 2( 1,665,33 13.1¢ 7,57¢
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25. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY U.S. GAAP (comtiied)

f.

Shareholder equity (continued

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeagents the total intrinsic value (i.e., the défece between the Company’s
closing stock price of US$11.6027 on December 8124December 31, 2011: US$5.16) and the exercise, gimes the number
options) that would have been received by the aptimiders had all option holders exercised theiiomg on December 31, 2012.
The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe year ended December 31, 2012 was NT$16H8Sand (US$564 thousal
(2011: NT$3,036 thousand). The total fair valu@ptions vested and forfeited during the year eridecember 31, 2012 was
NT$86,612 thousand (US$2,981 thousand) (2011: NIBBB thousand). The number of options vested duha year ended
December 31, 2012 was 409,965 (2011: 348,384)wiighted average remaining contractual term obtitstanding options at
December 31, 2012 was 3.7 (2011: 3.6) years.

Total unrecognized compensation cost related kstptions is expected to be recognized over ahtetyaverage period of 3.7
years.

The Company’s employees have the ability to exeraistock option (i.e., remit cash consideratiothéoCompany for the exercise
price) in exchange for stock during the vestingqukof the award.

The following table presents a summary of the nunalb@and weighted average grant date fair valuganding the unvested share
options as of December 31, 2012 and changes dilméngear then ended:

Weighted
Average

Number of Fair

Options Value

uss$
Unvested options outstanding at December 31, ; 917,44 6.6€
Grantec 692,62 5.57
Vested (348,38 6.74
Forfeited (148,409 11.2
Unvested options outstanding at December 31, : 1,113,28! 5.3t
Grantec 204,31¢ 12.2¢
Vested (409,969 4.5¢
Forfeited (103,420 10.8:
Unvested options outstanding at December 31, : 804,20! 6.81

The Company’s determination of fair value of emgleyshare options on the date of grant using thekBBaholes Option Pricing
Model is affected by the Company’s stock price afl as assumptions regarding a number of highlypgernand subjective
variables. These variables include, but are nateianto the Company’s expected stock price votgtdiver the term of the awards.
Option pricing models were developed for use iinesing the value of traded options that have reiing or hedging restrictions
and are fully transferable. Because the Companyigi@yee stock options have certain characterigii@sare significantly different
from traded options, and because changes in thedivie assumptions can materially affect the estgd value, in management’s
opinion, the existing valuation models may not pdevan accurate measure of the fair value of tha@2my’s employee stock
options. Although the fair value of employee stogkions is determined in accordance with FASB AS6 ising an option pricing
model, that value may not be indicative of the failue observed in a willing buyer/willing selleanket transaction.
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26. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANIARDS FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 20:

The Company is required by FASB ASC 250-10-s99-#&ke certain disclosures about the effect thatynssued accounting standards
will have on the consolidated financial statemetgpted for future periods.

a. According to the Rule No. 0990004943 issued byHRimancial Supervisory Commission (FSC) on Febr2arg010, companies wi
shares listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange (TW$Epnded on the GreTai Securities Market or Emey@tock Market should
prepare its consolidated financial statements comance with the Guidelines Governing the Prejmratf Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers, the International FinancialdReépg Standards (IFRSs), International Accountgtgndards (IASs),
interpretations as well as related guidance tréedlby Accounting Research and Development FoumtléiRDF) and issued by
the FSC for the year ending December 31, 2013.€fber, the Company followed its listed subsididngaiLin and will prepare its
consolidated financial statement for the year epd@ecember 31, 2013 in accordance with IFF

b. IFRS 1, “First-time Adoption of Internationalr@incial Reporting Standards,” establishes the piwres for the Company’s first
consolidated financial statements prepared in aegme with IFRSs. According to IFRS 1, the Compamgquired to determine
the accounting policies under IFRSs and retrospagtapply those accounting policies in its operadance sheet at the date of
transition to IFRSs (January 1, 2012 ; the tramsitlate) ; except for optional exemptions and memgaxceptions to such
retrospective application provided under IFRS le Tain optional exemptions the Company adoptedwarenarized as follows

1) The Company elected not to apply IFRS 3, “Bussn@ombinations,” retrospectively to business coaions occurred
before January 1, 201

2) The Company elected to take the optional exemgtom applying IFRS 2, “Share-based Paymentrosgtectively for the
share-based payment transactions granted and vestecehiouary 1, 201

3) The Company elected not to apply IAS 19, “Emplpenefits,” retrospectively to employee bengiits recognize alll
cumulative actuarial gains and losses in retairsediegs as of January 1, 20:

4) The Company elected to take the optional exemgtom applying IAS 32, “Financial instruments:sbliosures,”
retrospectively for the convertible notes trangaddisettled before January 1, 20

5) The Company elected not to apply IAS 39, “Finahiostruments: Recognition and Measurement, osgiectively for the
transactions occurred before January 1, 2

6) The Company elected not to apply IAS 23, “BorirggvCost,” retrospectively for the transactionsweed before January 1,
2012.

F-56



Table of Contents

26. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING BANDARDS FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013

(continued)

c. Asof December 31, 2012, based on the Compasgaessment, the significant differences betwee@dmepany’s current
accounting policies under ROC GAAP and the oneg®utleRSs are stated as follov

1) Reconciliation of consolidated balance sheet antiary 1, 201

ROC GAAP Effect of Transition IFRSs
Item Amount to IFRSs Amount Item Note
Current assel
Cash and cash equivalel 7,357,90; — 7,357,90; Cash and cash equivalel
Notes and accounts receivable - net of allowan Notes and accounts receiva- net of allowance foi
for doubtful receivables and sales ret 3,672,21 — 3,672,21 doubtful receivables and sales ret
Other receivables - net of allowance for doubtful Other receivables - net of allowance for doubtful
receivables 73,17¢ — 73,17¢ receivables
Inventories- net 1,533,861 — 1,533,861 Inventories- net
Deferred income ta- current 76,55¢ (76,559 — c)
Restricted cash and cash equivalt 285,13: — 285,13¢ Restricted cash and cash equivalt
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 92,33t 10,74: 103,07¢ Prepaid expenses and other current a: b), d)
Total current Assel 13,091,19 (65,81¢) 13,025,37 Total current Asset
Long-term investment
Financial assets carried at ¢ 39,12: — 39,12: Financial assets carried at ¢
Total lon¢-term investment 39,12: — 39,12: Total lon¢-term investment
Property, plant and equipme- net 13,896,04 468,14¢ 14,364,19. Property, plant and equipme d), e)
Intangible assel- net 100,49¢ (100,49)) — b)
Other asset
Refundable deposi 21,36¢ — 21,36¢ Refundable deposi
Deferred charge 130,15 (130,15) — d)
Deferred income ta- non curren 600,35: 123,92 724,27" Deferred income ta- non curren a), C)
Others 402,33! (281,77Y) 120,56( Others a), b), d), e
Total other asse 1,154,20 (288,00i) 866,19¢ Total other asse
Total asset 28,281,06 13,82« 28,294,88 Total asset
Current liabilities
Bank loans 546,91t — 546,91¢ Bank loans
Accounts payabl 1,130,73! — 1,130,73! Accounts payabl
Income tax payabl 20,28: — 20,28: Income tax payabl
Other payable 1,081,53! — 1,081,53! Other payable
Payables to contractors and equipment supf 415,39: — 415,39: Payables to contractors and equipment supy
Deferred credi 2,38 — 2,38: Deferred credi
Current portion of lon-term loans 684,02¢ — 684,02¢ Current portion of lon-term loans
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 830,90: — 830,90 Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Total current liabilities 4,712,16. — 4,712,16. Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Long-term loans 8,484,301 — 8,484,301 Long-term loans
Long-term deferred revent 95,30« — 95,30« Long-term deferred revent
Total lon¢-term liabilities 8,579,60: — 8,579,60: Total lon¢-term liabilities
Other liabilities
Accrued pension co: 4,25( 278,61 282,86¢ Accrued pension co a)
Guarantee deposi 1,777 — 1,771 Guarantee deposi
Total other liabilities 6,02 278,61¢ 284,64¢ Total other liabilities
Total Liabilities 13,297,79 278,61¢ 13,576,41 Total Liabilities
Equity
Capital stock 39,04: — 39,04: Capital stock
Capital surplu: 15,201,35 (77,440 15,123,91 Capital surplus f)
Accumulated losse (3,787,43) (130,563) (3,917,99)  Accumulated losse a), f)
Cumulative translation adjustmel 433,90: — 433,90: Foreign currency translation resel
Treasury stocl (924,78) — (924,78))  Treasury stocl
Total Shareholde’ Equity 10,962,08 (208,00:) 10,754,08 Equity attributable to shareholders of the pa
Noncontrolling interest 4,021,18! (56,79)) 3,964,39: Noncontrolling interest a)
Total equity 14,983,27 (264,79)) 14,718,47 Total equity
Total liabilities and equit 28,281,06 13,82 28,294,88 Total liabilities and equit
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26. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING BANDARDS FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013

a)

b)
c)
d)

e)

f)

(continued)

The Company arranged an actuarial valuatioréor@ance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”. As ofidary 1, 2012, accrued pension cost was adjustezhfoncrease of NT$278,619
thousand, prepaid pension cost was adjusted feceedse of NT$33,541 thousand, deferred incomadsets was adjusted for an increase of NT$47,36s8mnd, retained earnings
was adjusted for a decrease of NT$208,002 thousadichoncontrolling interests was adjusted for aedese of NT$56,793 thousat

Land use rights of NT$100,498 thousand was rediedsb prepaid expense and other current asséiF $2,476 thousand and other assets of NT$98,0a%kend
Deferred income te-current of NT$76,559 thousand was reclassifieceferded income te-noncurrent

Deferred charges of NT$130,157 thousand wasassifled to prepaid expense and other currentsass&T$8,267 thousand, fixed assets of NT$108tB6asand, and other assets of
NT$13,538 thousan

Employee dormitory buildings of NT$248,429 thousand idle assets of NT$111,365 thousand were sfitbto fixed asset:

Capital surplus of lor-term investments of NT$77,440 thousand was refiedsb retained earning
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26. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING BANDARDS FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013

(continued)

2) Reconciliation of consolidated balance sheet d3eaember 31, 201

ROC GAAP Effect of Transition IFRSs
Item Amount to IFRSs Amount Item Note
Current assel
Cash and cash equivalel 9,319,02; — 9,319,02; Cash and cash equivalel
Notes and accounts receivable - net of allowanc: Notes and accounts receiva- net of allowance for
doubtful receivables and sales ret 3,997,17: — 3,997,17: doubtful receivables and sales ret
Other receivables - net of allowance for doubtful Other receivables - net of allowance for doubtful
receivables 149,82« — 149,82« receivables
Inventories- net 1,687,88! — 1,687,88! Inventories- net
Deferred income ta- current 77,82¢ (77,825 — c)
Restricted cash and cash equivalt 174,48t — 174,48¢ Restricted cash and cash equivalt
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 131,81¢ 3,115 134,93¢ Prepaid expenses and other current a: b), d;
Total current Assel 15,538,04 (74,709 15,463,33 Total current Asset
Long-term investment
Financial assets carried at ¢ 11,63¢ — 11,63¢ Financial assets carried at ¢
Total lon¢-term investment 11,63t — 11,63¢ Total lon¢-term investment
Property, plant and equipme- net 12,107,97 367,30t 12,475,28 Property, plant and equipme d), e
Intangible assel- net 178,89( (178,89() — a), b,
Other asset
Refundable deposi 21,07( — 21,07( Refundable deposi
Deferred charge 96,91¢ (96,919 — d)
Deferred income ta- non curren 503,58: 130,42t 634,00t Deferred income ta— non curren a), c)
Others 291,27 (179,25() 112,02 Others b), e
Total other asse 912,84¢ (145,74) 767,10" Total other asse
Total asset 28,749,39 (32,03%) 28,717,35 Total asset
Current liabilities
Bank loans 366,48 — 366,48 Bank loans
Accounts payabl 890,07" — 890,07" Accounts payabl
Income tax payabl 28,88( — 28,88( Income tax payabl
Other payable 1,008,40! — 1,008,40! Other payable
Payables to contractors and equipment supf 484,65¢ — 484,65¢ Payables to contractors and equipment supy
Deferred credi 2,291 — 2,291 Deferred credi
Current portion of lon-term loans 2,227,801 — 2,227,801 Current portion of lon-term loans
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 766,99: — 766,99: Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Total current liabilities 5,775,59 — 5,775,59 Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Long-term loans 6,739,92 — 6,739,92' Long-term loans
Long-term deferred revent 89,35( — 89,35( Long-term deferred revent
Total lon¢-term liabilities 6,829,27 — 6,829,27 Total lon¢-term liabilities
Other liabilities
Accrued pension co: 172,96¢ 207,69: 380,66 Accrued pension co a)
Guarantee deposi 2,47¢ — 2,47¢ Guarantee deposi
Total other liabilities 175,44 207,69: 383,13¢ Total other liabilities
Total Liabilities 12,780,31 207,69: 12,988,00 Total Liabilities
Equity
Capital stock 39,01: — 39,01: Capital stock
Capital surplu: 11,583,89 (77,440 11,506,45 Capital surplus f)
Retained earning 531,79: (152,61 379,17¢ Retained earning a), f)
Unrealized pension co (42,647 42,64 — a)
Cumulative translation adjustmel 416,89t — 416,89t Foreign currency translation rese
Treasury stocl (635,74) — (635,74)  Treasury stocl
Total Shareholde’ Equity 11,893,21 (187,41) 11,705,80 Equity attributable to shareholders of the pa
Noncontrolling interest 4,075,86! (52,319 4,023,54! Noncontrolling interest a)
Total equity 15,969,07 (239,72) 15,729,35 Total equity
Total liabilities and equit 28,749,39 (32,03Y) 28,717,35 Total liabilities and equit
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a)

b)
<)
d)

e)

(continued)

The Company arranged an actuarial valuatioc@or@ance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”. As ofd@enber 31, 2012, deferred pension cost was adjfmteddecrease of
NT$84,636 thousand, accrued pension cost was adjést an increase of NT$207,692 thousand, defénaie tax assets was adjusted for an increa@$52,601 thousant
retained earnings was adjusted for a decrease $2807055 thousand, unrealized pension cost wastadjfior a decrease of NT$42,642 thousand and ntnoding interests was
adjusted for a decrease of NT$52,314 thous

Land use rights of NT$94,254 thousand was reclassit prepaid expense and other current ass&t3$2,381 thousand and other assets of NT$91,878tmal
Deferred income te-current of NT$77,825 thousand was reclassifiecefered income te-noncurrent

Deferred charges of NT$96,919 thousand was refil$o prepaid expense and other current asség $736 thousand and fixed assets of NT$96,183stuoal
Employee dormitory buildings of NT$221,115 thousand idle assets of NT$50,008 thousand were refitabo fixed assets

The capital surplus of lor-term investments of NT$77,440 thousand was refiedsb retained earning

3) Reconciliation of consolidated statement of compnaiive income for the year ended December 31,

Effect of
ROC GAAP Transition IFRSs

Item Amount to IFRSs Amount Note
Net revenue 19,220,56 — 19,220,56
Cost of revenu 16,638,51 26,32« 16,664,83 a), b
Gross profi 2,582,04! (26,324 2,555,72
Operating expenst 1,196,79 1,992 1,198,79. a), b
Income from operatior 1,385,241 (28,31¢ 1,356,93
Net nor-operating los: (464,40) 82,48¢ (381,91) a)
Income before income tax and noncontrolling inter 920,84! 54,17( 975,01!
Income tax expens (131,49) (9,209 (140,700 b)
Income before noncontrolling intere: 789,34( 44,96 834,30¢
Net income attributable to noncontrolling intere (67,510 (7,607 (75,117 b)
Net income attributable to ChipMC 721,83t  37,35¢ 759,19.
a) Since the reclassification of other assetsxedfiassets, the depreciation recognized in nontipgrexpense of NT$82,486 thousand was reclasdifi@dst of revenue of

NT$80,069 thousand and operating expense of NT$2dusand

b) The Company arranged an actuarial valuatiorcao@ance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” for theay ended December 31, 2012, pension cost recabimz®st of revenue

was adjusted for a decrease of NT$53,745 thougmmsion cost recognized in operating expense wastad for a decrease of NT$425 thousand, incomexpense was
adjusted for an increase of NT$9,209 thousand nandontrolling interests was adjusted for an ingeeaf NT$7,607 thousan
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Exhibit 12.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Shih-Jye Cheng, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2f-EhipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact or endttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andtffierperiods presented in this report;

4. The company'’s other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatebsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the compamlysclosure controls and procedures and presantad report our conclusions abi
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the camgfsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the period
covered by the annual report that has materiaflsctgd, or is reasonably likely to materially atfebe company’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) anlgalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlitmittee of company’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the camyfmability to record, process, summarize and refaancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 26, 2013

/sl Shir-Jye Cheng
Name: Shih-Jye Cheng
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 12.2
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Shou-Kang Chen, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2f-EhipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorny untrue statement of a material fact or dnfttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andffierperiods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatebsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the compamsclosure controls and procedures and preséntlds report our conclusions abi
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the camgfsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the period
covered by the annual report that has materiafscédd, or is reasonably likely to materially affebe company’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer(s) anlgalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the acmlitmittee of company’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the comyfmability to record, process, summarize and refaancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 26, 2013

/sl Shot-Kang Chen
Name: Shoit-Kang Chen
Title:  Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 13.1

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, the undersigned, $fehcheng, Chairman and Chief Executive Office€ClbipMOS TECHNOLOGIES
(Bermuda) LTD. (the “Company”), hereby certifies His knowledge, that the Company’s Annual ReporEorm 20-F for the year ended
December 31, 2012 (the “Report”) fully compliesiwihe requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), gdieable, of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, and that the information contained inReport fairly presents, in all material respedis, financial condition and results of operations
of the Company, as of, and for, the periods preskim the Report.

The foregoing certification is being furnished puast to 18 U.S.C. §1350 solely for purposes of dgimg with the provisions of Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, is not ideshto be used or relied upon for any other purposkis not being filed as part of the
Report or as a separate disclosure document.

Date: April 26, 2013

/sl Shih-Jye Cheng
Name: Shih-Jye Cheng
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 13.2

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, the undersigned, 8lamg Chen, Chief Financial Officer of ChipMOS TECBNOGIES (Bermuda)
LTD. (the “Company”), hereby certifies, to his knedge, that the Company’s Annual Report on Forni26r the year ended December 31,
2012 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requinents of Section13(a) or 15(d), as applicablehef3ecurities Exchange Act of 1934, and
that the information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finarealdition and results of operations of the
Company, as of, and for, the periods presenteldrReport.

The foregoing certification is being furnished puast to 18 U.S.C. §1350 solely for purposes of dgimg with the provisions of Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, is not ideshto be used or relied upon for any other purposkis not being filed as part of the
Report or as a separate disclosure document.

Date: April 26, 2013

/sl Shoi-Kang Chen
Name: ShoiL-Kang Chen
Title:  Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 15.1

MOORE STEPHENS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

905 Silvercord, Tower 2
30 Canton Road
Taimshatsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel : (E52) 2375 3180
Fax : (852) 2375 1828
E-mail : mai@ms.com.hk

wne NS A

April 26, 2013

The Board of Directors

ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTD.
No. 1, R & D Road :

Hsinchu Science Park

Hsinchu City, 30076

Republic of China

Attention: Mr. S.J. Cheng
Dear Sirs,
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM'S CON SENT

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement No. 333-130230 on Form F-3Registration Statements Nos. 333-
176935, 333-137838, 333-116670 and 333-85290 om a8 of our report dated March 14, 2013, relatmthe consolidated financial
statements of ChipMOS TECHNOLOGIES (Bermuda) LTihe(“*Company”), and the effectiveness of the Coryfsaimternal control over
financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Repmr Form 20-F of the Company for the year endeceldder 31, 2012 (the “Annual
Report”). We also consent to the inclusion of apart in the Annual Report.

Yours faithfully,

/sl Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong



